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PRESENTATION OF INFORMATION

In this Annual Report on Form 20-F, unless the ewintrequires otherwise, all references twe", "us',
"Company' or "SQM" are to Sociedad Quimica y Minera de Chile S.A.,open stock corporatiorsqciedad
anonima abiertaorganized under the laws of the Republic of Clalel its consolidated subsidiaries.

All references to $," "US$" "U.S. dollars,’ “USD” and "dollars" are to United States dollars, references to
"pesos, “CLP” and "Ch$" are to Chilean pesos, references to ThUS$ atbhdwsands of United States dollars,
references to ThCh$ are to thousands of Chileaospasd references t&JF" are toUnidades de FomentoThe
UF is an inflation-indexed, peso-denominated umidt tis linked to, and adjusted daily to reflect s in, the
previous month's Chilean consumer price index. oAblay 31, 2010, UF 1.00 was equivalent to US$3%iié
Ch$21,112.41.

The Republic of Chile is governed by a democratiesgnment, organized in fourteen regions plus tiegrdvbolitan
Region (surrounding and including Santiago, thdtahpf Chile). Our production operations are ocemitated in
northern Chile, specifically in the Tarapaca Regiad in the Antofagasta Region.

Our fiscal year ends on December 31.

We use the metric system of weights and measurealdulating our operating and other data. TheddnStates
equivalent units of the most common metric uniesdulsy us are as shown below:

1 kilometer equals approximately 0.6214 miles

1 meter equals approximately 3.2808 feet

1 centimeter equals approximately 0.3937 inches

1 hectare equals approximately 2.4710 acres

1 metric ton equals 1,000 kilograms or approxinya2e205 pounds.

We are not aware of any independent, authoritainece of information regarding sizes, growth ratesarket
shares for most of our markets. Accordingly, tharkat size, market growth rate and market shaienaiss
contained herein have been developed by us usiegnal and external sources and reflect our beseicu
estimates. These estimates have not been conflgnidiependent sources.

Percentages and certain amounts contained henaénble@n rounded for ease of presentation. Anyejsmcies in
any figure between totals and the sums of the atsqaresented are due to rounding.

GLOSSARY*

"assay value’s Chemical result or mineral component amount tiagitains the sample.

"average global metallurgical recoveries Percentage that measures the metallurgical nhevat
effectiveness based on the quantitative relatignbetween the initial product contained in the
mine-extracted material and the final product poadlin the plant.

"average mining exploitation factof' Index or ratio that measures the mineral exatmh effectiveness,
based on the quantitative relationship betweemitinmineral minus exploitation losses) / in-situ
mineral.

“cash and cash equivalents"The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)rdsf cash equivalents
as highly liquid securities with maturities of leéksan three months. Liquid securities typically are
those that can be sold easily with little or ncslogvalue.

“Controller Group ” A person or company or group of persons or canmgs that have executed a joint
performance agreement, that have a direct or icidéteare in a company’s ownership and have the
power to influence the decisions of the companyemagement.

"Corfo" Production Development Corporatio@drporacion de Fomento de la Produccipformed in
1939, a national organization in charge of prompt®hile's manufacturing productivity and
commercial development.

"cut-off grade” The minimal assay value or chemical amount afiesanineral component above which
exploitation is economical.



"dilution” Loss of mineral grade because of contaminatiith barren material (or waste) incorporated in
some exploited ore mineral.

"exploitation losse8 Amounts of ore mineral that have not been exé accordance with exploitation
designs.

"fertigation” The process by which plant nutrients are appletthe ground using an irrigation system.

"geostatistical analysis Statistical tools applied to mining planningobgy and geochemical data that
allow estimation of averages, grades and quantibésmineral resources and reserves.

"heap leaching A process whereby minerals are leached fromagher pad, of crushed ore by leaching
solutions percolating down through the heap andectadd from a sloping, impermeable liner
below the pad.

"horizontal layering"” Rock mass (stratiform seam) with generally umifdhickness that conform to the
sedimentary fields (mineralized and horizontal rocthese cases).

"hypothetical resource$ Mineral resources that have limited geochemieabnnaissance, based mainly
on geological data and samples assay values spat&den 500—-1000 meters.

"Indicated Mineral Resource' See "Resources—Indicated Mineral Resource."
"Inferred Mineral Resource" See "Resources—Inferred Mineral Resource."

"industrial crops" Refers to crops that require processing aftawvdst in order to be ready for
consumption or sale. Tobacco, tea and seed crepsxamples of industrial crops.

“Kriging Method” A technique used to estimate ore reserves, in witieh spatial distribution of
continuous geophysical variables is estimated usimgrol points where values are known.

"LIBOR" London Inter Bank Offered Rate.
"limited reconnaissance& Low or limited level of geological knowledge.
"Measured Mineral Resourcé See "Resources—Measured Mineral Resource."

"metallurgical treatment” A set of chemical and physical processes appledocks to extract their
useful minerals (or metals).

"ore depth' Depth of the mineral that may be economicallpleited.

"ore typ€' Main mineral having economic value containethia caliche ore (sodium nitrate or iodine).
"ore" A mineral or rock from which a substance havemgnomic value may be extracted.

"Probable Mineral Reservé See "Reserves—Probable Mineral Reserve."

"Proved Mineral Reservé See "Reserves—Proved Mineral Reserve."

"Reserves—Probable Mineral Reserve& The economically mineable part of an Indicatitineral
Resource and, in some circumstances, Measured aMiResource. The calculation of the reserves
includes diluting of materials and allowances fogses which may occur when the material is
mined. Appropriate assessments, which may indedsibility studies, have been carried out and
include consideration of and modification by rdamly assumed mining, metallurgical,
economic, marketing, legal, environmental, sociad governmental factors. These assessments
demonstrate at the time of reporting that extract® reasonably justified. A Probable Mineral
Reserve has a lower level of confidence than aderddineral Reserve.

"Reserves—Proved Mineral Reservd The economically mineable part of a Measurednddal
Resource. The calculation of the reserves inclutilesing materials and allowances for losses
which may occur when the material is mined. Appaip assessments, which may include
feasibility studies, have been carried out anduel consideration of and modification by
realistically assumed mining, metallurgical, ecoimmmarketing, legal, environmental, social and
governmental factors. These assessments demenatrétie time of reporting that extraction is
reasonably justified.

"Resources—Indicated Mineral Resourc& That part of a Mineral Resource for which togea
densities, shape, physical characteristics, gradk raineral content can be estimated with a
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reasonable level of confidence. The calculatioased on exploration, sampling and testing
information gathered through appropriate technigues locations such as outcrops, trenches,
pits, workings, and drill holes. The locations #ye widely or inappropriately spaced to confirm
geological continuity and/or grade continuity bué¢ apaced closely enough for continuity to be
assumed. An Indicated Mineral Resource has a Itevet of confidence than that applying to a
Measured Mineral Resource, but has a higher ldvebafidence than that applying to an Inferred
Mineral Resource.

A deposit may be classified as an Indicated MinBesource when the nature, quality, amount
and distribution of data are such as to allow then@etent Person determining the Mineral
Resource to confidently interpret the geologicanfework and to assume continuity of
mineralization. Confidence in the estimate is isight to allow the appropriate application of
technical and economic parameters and to enaldeanation of economic viability.

"Resources—Inferred Mineral Resourc& That part of a Mineral Resource for which togea grade
and mineral content can be estimated with a lowllef’confidence, by inferring them on the basis
of geological evidence and assumed but not verifjedlogical and/or grade continuity. The
estimate is based on information gathered throynginogriate techniques from locations such as
outcrops, trenches, pits, workings and drill hokasd this information is of limited or uncertain
quality and/or reliability. An Inferred Mineral Reurce has a lower level of confidence than that
applying to an Indicated Mineral Resource.

"Resources—Measured Mineral ResourceThe part of a Mineral Resource for which tonnatgnsities,
shape, physical characteristics, grade and mirwenaient can be estimated with a high level of
confidence. The estimate is based on detailed ehdble exploration, sampling and testing
information gathered through appropriate technigues locations such as outcrops, trenches,
pits, workings, and drill holes. The locations apaced closely enough to confirm geological
and/or grade continuity.

A deposit may be classified as a Measured MiriReslource when the nature, quality, amount and
distribution of data are such as to leave no reslslendoubt, in the opinion of the Competent
Person determining the Mineral Resource, that dmnage and grade of the deposit can be
estimated within close limits and that any variatitom the estimate would not significantly affect
potential economic viability. This category reqdira high level of confidence in, and
understanding of, the geology and controls of tleenal deposit. Confidence in the estimate is
sufficient to allow the appropriate applicationtethnical and economic parameters and to enable
an evaluation of economic viability.

“vat leaching” A process whereby minerals are extracted frorat@d ore by placing the ore in large vats
containing leaching solutions.

"wasté' Rock or mineral which is not economical for nletagical treatment.

"Weighted Average Agé The sum of the product of the age of each fiaeset at a given facility and its
current gross book value as of December 31, 20G@atl by the total gross book value of the
Company's fixed assets at such facility as of D31, 2009.

*  The definitions we use for resources and reseavedased on those provided by thestituto de Ingenieros de
Minas de Chilé (Chilean Institute of Mining Engineers).

** The definition of a Controller Group that hasdmeprovided is the one that applies to the Compdadlgilean
law provides for a broader definition of a ConteolGroup.

SQM will provide a copy of any or all of the documte incorporated herein by reference (other thanbés,
unless such exhibits are specifically incorpordtgdreference in such documents), upon written at mequest.
Written requests for such copies should be diretietbciedad Quimica y Minera de Chile S.A., Elvedor 4285,
6" Floor, Santiago, Chile, Attention: Investor Redat Department. Requests may also be made byhtelep
(562-425-2000), facsimile (562-425-2493) or e-niia@sgm.com).



CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STAT EMENTS

This Form 20-F contains statements that are or coagtitute forward-looking statements within theamiag of
the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 599These statements are not based on historictal dad reflect
our expectations for future events and results.d&@such as "believe," "expect," "predict," "antatig" "intend,"
"estimate," "should," "may," "could" or similar engssions may identify forward-looking informatiomhese
statements appear throughout this Form 20-F ankidacstatements regarding the intent, belief omrezur
expectations of the Company and its managememading but not limited to any statements concerning

« the Company's capital investment program and dpusdait of new products;

» trends affecting the Company's financial condittomesults of operations;

level of production, quality of the ore and brinasd production levels and yields;

» the future impact of competition; and

» regulatory changes
Such forward-looking statements are not guarantédsiture performance and involve risks and undefits.
Actual results may differ materially from those déised in such forward-looking statements inclugethis Form
20-F, including, without limitation, the informatiounder Item 4. Information on the Company and It&m

Operating and Financial Review and Prospects. oFattat could cause actual results to differ nitgrinclude,
but are not limited to:

* SQM's ability to implement its capital expendityrexluding its ability to arrange financing
when required;

» the nature and extent of future competition in SQpincipal markets;

» political, economic and demographic developmenthéemerging market countries of Latin
America and Asia where SQM conducts a large poufats business;

» volatility of global prices for SQM’s products;
» changes in production capacities;

« changes in raw material and energy prices;
» currency and interest rate fluctuations; and

» additional factors discussed below under Iltem 8y Kformation—Risk Factors.
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PART I

ITEM 1. IDENTITY OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND ADVISE RS
Not Applicable.
ITEM 2. OFFER STATISTICS AND EXPECTED TIMETABLE

Not Applicable.
ITEM 3. KEY INFORMATION

3.A. Selected Financial Data

The following table presents selected consoliddieancial information for SQM and one or more o it
subsidiaries, as applicable, for each of the periadicated. This information should be read injgnction
with, and is qualified in its entirety by referent® the Audited Consolidated Financial Statemefitshe
Company as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 and &br afathe three years in the period ended Decediher
2009. The consolidated financial statements asemfehber 31, 2006 and 2005 and for the years théeden
are not included herein. The Company's Consolid&iadncial Statements are prepared in accordanite wi
Chilean GAAP, which differs in certain material pests from U.S. GAAP. Note 30 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements as of December 31, 2009 a@8 aAd for each of the three years in the periateén
December 31, 2009 provides a description of thecppal differences between Chilean GAAP and U.SABA
and a reconciliation of net income for the yearsleeh December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 and total
shareholders' equity as of December 31, 2009 a08 20U.S. GAAP.

Year ended December 3

200¢ 200¢ 2007 200¢ 200t
Income Statement Data (in millions of US$(1)
Chilean GAAP
Total Revenues 1,436.9 1,774.1 1,187.5 1,042.9 0896.
Operating Income 441.9 632.2 259.5 219.9 181.2
Non-operating results, net (37.0) (29.3) (27.1) .036 (34.3)
Net income 327.1 501.4 180.0 141.3 113.5
Net earnings per share (2) 1.24 1.91 0.68 0.54 0.43
Net earnings per ADR (2) (3) 1.24 1.91 0.68 0.54 430.
Dividend per share (4) (5) 0.81 1.24 0.44 0.35 0.28
Weighted average shares 263,197 263,197 263,197 263,197 263,197
outstanding (000s) (2)
US GAAP
Total Revenues 1,436.9 1,774.1 1,187.5 1,042.9 0896.
Operating Income 433.9 623.0 237.0 205.5 163.9
Non-operating results, net (6) (15.2) (26.9) 1.7 4.1 (6.1)
Equity participation in 5.7 14.4 3.6 2.0 2.6
income (loss) of related
companies, net
Net income 349.4 506.7 200.2 158.8 129.8
Net income attributable to
parent company 347.9 500.9 192.7 154.3 125.2
Net income attributable to
non-controlling interest 15 5.8 7.5 4.5 4.6

Basic and diluted earnings

per share attributable to

parent company 1.32 1.90 0.73 0.59 0.48
Basic and diluted earnings

per ADR attributable to

parent company (3) 1.32 1.90 0.73 0.59 0.48
Weighted average shares 263,197 263,197 263,197 263,197 263,197
outstanding (000s) (2)



As of December 31,

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Balance Sheet Data (in millions of US$(1)
Chilean GAAP
Total assets 3,203.1 2,567.2 1,986.3 1,871.2 16640.
Long-term debt 1,035.2 515.9 486.7 480.7 100.0
Total shareholders’ equity 1,466.6 1,463.1 1,182.41,086.0 1,020.4
Capital stock 477.4 477.4 477.4 477.4 477.4
US GAAP
Total assets 3,177.5 2,549.1 1,959.6 1,846.0 10609.
Long-term debt 1,028.9 514.5 485.0 478.7 100.0
Total shareholders’ equity 1,481.2 1,415.4 1,128.11,033.1 957.9
Equity attributable to parent
company 1,434.6 1,368.0 1,084.1 994.5 923.4
Equity attributable to non-
controlling interest 46.6 47.4 44.0 38.6 34.5
Capital stock 479.3 479.3 479.3 479.3 479.3

Note: The Company is not aware of any materialediffices between Chilean and U.S. GAAP that are not
addressed in Note 30 to the Consolidated Finatabments of December 31, 2009.

(1) Except shares outstanding, dividend and neliregs per share and net earnings per ADR.

(2) There are no authoritative pronouncementseaeltd the calculation of earnings per share in mzowe with Chilean GAAP.

For comparative purposes the calculation has basedoon the same number of weighted average shattanding as used for
the U.S. GAAP calculation.

(3) The ratio of ordinary shares to Series A ADRsWO0:1 for all periods reflected in the table. Beeies A ADRs were delisted
from the New York Stock Exchange on March 27, 200 ratio of ordinary shares to Series B ADRs geanfrom 10:1 to 1:1

on March 28, 2008. The calculation of earningsAd®R is based on the ratio of 1:1.

(4) Dividends per share are calculated based orl26%524 shares for the periods ended Decembe2(®5, 2006, 2007, 2008
and 2009.

(5) Dividends may only be paid from net income befamortization of negative goodwill as determirechccordance with
Chilean GAAP; see Item 8.A.8. Dividend Policy. Bividends in Ch$ see Item 8.A.8.Dividend Policy —vibends.

(6) Does not include equity participation in incoftass) of related companies, net.

EXCHANGE RATES

Chile has two currency markets, thtercado Cambiario Formalor the "Formal Exchange Market," and the
Mercado Cambiario Informalor the "Informal Exchange Market." The Formal Exage Market comprises
banks and other entities authorized by the Banaur@lede Chile (the "Chilean Central Bank"). Théohmal
Exchange Market comprises entities that are notessfy authorized to operate in the Formal Exchange
Market, such as certain foreign exchange housesravel agencies, among others. The Chilean CeRtrak

is empowered to determine that certain purchasgésales of foreign currencies be carried out onFrenal
Exchange Market.

Both the Formal Exchange Market and the InformatHaxge Market are driven by free market forces.
Current regulations require that the Chilean CéBemk be informed of certain transactions and thate
transactions be effected through the Formal Exobatarket.

The doélar observadpor "Observed Exchange Rate," which is reportedHgy Chilean Central Bank and
published daily in the Chilean newspapers, is cdetpby taking the weighted average of the previous
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business day's transactions on the Formal Exchifiagket. Nevertheless, the Chilean Central Bankthas
power to intervene by buying or selling foreign remcy on the Formal Exchange Market to attempt to
maintain the Observed Exchange Rate within a dibsinege.

On February 23, 2009, the Chilean Central Bankd#ektito intervene in the Formal Exchange Market by
increasing the level of international reserves 1868 billion. This action took place between Ma2BQ9 and
December, 2009. The Chilean Central Bank decideinflement this program in order to strengthen the
international liquidity of the Chilean economy the face of recent uncertainty in the global finahmarkets.
The Informal Exchange Market reflects transacticaisied out at an informal exchange rate, or tihétmal
Exchange Rate." There are no limits imposed onettient to which the rate of exchange in the Infdrma
Exchange Market can fluctuate above or below thee®led Exchange Rate.

The Federal Reserve Bank of New York does not tepooon buying rate for Chilean pesos.

On May 31, 2010, the Observed Exchange Rate waS3Dhd2 = US$1.00.

Observed Exchange Rate (1)

Ch$ per US$
Year/Month Low (1) High (1) Average Year/Month
(2)(3) End
2005 509.7( 592.7¢ 559.8¢ 512.5C
2006 511.44 549.6: 530.2¢ 532.3¢
2007 493.1¢ 548.67  522.6¢ 496.8¢
2008 431.2: 676.7¢ 521.7¢ 636.4¢
2009 491.0¢ 643.87 559.67 507.1(C
2010:
Jan. 489.47 531.7¢ 500.6¢ 523.1(
Feb. 523.1( 546.1¢ 532.5¢ 527.8¢
Mar. 508.6¢ 533.8i 523.1¢ 524.4¢
Apr. 514.9: 527.3¢ 520.6: 517.2:
May 517.2% 549.17 533.21 530.62
Source: Central Bank of Chile
Q) Observed exchange rates are the actual highoandn a day-to-day basis, for each period.
) The monthly average rate is calculated on atdalay basis for each month.

3.B. Capitalization and Indebtedness

Not applicable.

3.C. Reasons for the Offer and Use of Proceeds
Not applicable.

3.D. Risk Factors

Our operations are subject to certain risk factbe may affect SQM's financial condition or resutif
operations. In addition to other information caméa in this Annual Report on Form 20-F, you should
consider carefully the risks described below. Eheésks are not the only ones we face. Additioiskis not
currently known to us or that are known but we ently believe are not significant may also affeat o
business operations. Our business, financial dondor results of operations could be materiaffeeted by
any of these risks.



Risks Relating to our Business

Our sales to emerging markets expose us to riskistesl to economic conditions and trends in those
countries

We sell our products in more than 100 countriesiradathe world. In 2009, 42% of our sales were made
emerging market countries: 13% in Central and Séuterica (excluding Chile); 14% in Chile; and 1566 i
Asia (excluding Japan). We expect to expand owssal these and other emerging markets in thedufiure
results of and prospects of our operations in thegions and in other countries in which we esshbli
operations will depend, in part, on the generatll®f political stability and economic activity apalicies in
those countries. Future developments in the paliteystems or economies of these countries or the
implementation of future governmental policieshinge countries, including the imposition of withdinh and
other taxes, restrictions on the payment of divitdeor repatriation of capital, the imposition ofpiont duties

or other restrictions, the imposition of new enmimental regulations or price controls or change®ievant
laws or regulations could have a material adveffeeteon our sales or operations in those countries

Volatility of world fertilizer and chemical pricemand changes in production capacities could affeatro
business, financial condition and results of opei@ts

The prices of our products are determined printyiga world prices, which, in some cases, have lsdiject

to substantial volatility in recent years. Worldrtilizer and chemical prices vary depending upoe th
relationship between supply and demand at any divez Supply and demand dynamics for our prodacts
tied to a certain extent to global economic cyclasd have been impacted by current global economic
conditions. Furthermore, the supply of certainiliegrs or chemical products, including certain grots that

we provide, varies principally depending on thedaetion of the major producers, including SQM, &imeir
respective business strategies.

During 2008, world prices of potassium-based fediks (including some of our specialty plant nuttseand
potassium chloride) increased significantly durihg first nine months of the year. Towards the ehg008,
fertilizer prices generally fell as a result of thgobal economic and financial slowdown. During 200
volatility in prices continued to affect commodityarkets around the world. During the first threenths of
2010, prices of potassium-based fertilizers haabilited to some extent after the conclusion of angmt
contract negotiations between major producers agérbs at the end of 2009. However, we cannot asgure
that prices will not decline in the future.

lodine prices have followed an upward trend sirate 2003, reaching an average price of approxisnatel
US$28 per kilogram in 2009. In October 2008, weocaimted an increase of iodine prices by 25%, aral as
result prices increased during 2009. Sales voluofigadine and its derivatives may be affected byeagyal
decreases in the use of applications that aretsen® economic growth. For example, sales voludedined
32% in 2009 compared to 2008. We cannot assurgtitats and sales volumes will not decline in thterfe.

We started production of lithium carbonate from bhimes extracted from Salar de Atacama in Octal9&6
and started selling lithium carbonate commerciatlyJanuary 1997. Our entry into the market created
oversupply of lithium carbonate, resulting in amio prices from over US$3,000 per ton before auryeto
less than US$2,000 per ton. At the end of 2008gprivere approximately US$6,000 per ton and rerdahe
this level until the fourth quarter of 2009 wheiicps declined to approximately US$5,000 per torfoigethe
global economic slowdown, the increase in prices W result of market dynamics reflecting sustiine
growth in demand in the past few years and sugyly grew only enough to match demand, and we lesliev
this price increase was due mainly to high growtdemand, which had not been fully balanced bysthpply

of lithium carbonate. As a result of events in glbmarkets during 2009, demand for lithium carbenat
declined and, as expected, lithium prices and salesnes for 2009 were lower compared to the previo
year. In September 2009, we announced a 20% putéoc lithium carbonate and lithium hydroxide as a
measure to stimulate demand. As a result, we heer & significant recovery in the lithium marketidg the
months following the announcement. We cannot asguethat this upward trend will continue in théue.
Potential decreases in sales volumes of lithiurbarzate could have a material adverse effect orbasiness,
financial condition and results of operations.



We expect that prices for the products we manufaatull continue to be influenced, among other gsinby
worldwide supply and demand and the business giest@f major producers. Some of the major producer
(including SQM) have increased or have the abii@tyincrease production. As a result, the priceowf
products may be subject to substantial volatili#ygh volatility or a substantial decline in the q&s, or in
volume demand, of one or more of our products chalk a material adverse effect on our businessnfial
condition and results of operations.

Our inventory levels may increase because of thebgl economic situation

In general, the global economic slowdown has hadrgract on our inventories. Demand decreased during
2009 and, as a result, inventories increased &gnily. Higher inventories carry a financial riskie to
increased need for cash to fund working capitaghidi inventory levels could also imply increase# of loss

of product. We cannot assure you that inventorgliewill normalize in the future. These factorsIdduave a
material adverse effect on our business, finamciatlition and results of operations.

Our level of and exposure to unrecoverable accourgseivable may significantly increase

The potentially negative effects of the global emait downturn on the financial condition of our mmers
may include the extension of the payment termsuofa@counts receivable and may increase our expasur
bad debt. While we are taking measures, such ag gsedit insurance, letters of credits and prepaytrfor a
portion of sales, to minimize this risk, the in@gean our accounts receivable coupled with thenfired
condition of customers may result in losses thatdcbave a material adverse effect on our busirigss)cial
condition and results of operations.

New production of lithium carbonate from new comjgets

Potential new production of lithium carbonate froew competitors in the markets in which we opecatgd
adversely affect prices. There is limited inforratbn the status of new lithium carbonate prodactiapacity
expansion projects being developed by current ameéngial competitors and, as such, we cannot make
accurate projections regarding the capacities eipte new entrants into the market and the daiestich
they could become operational. If these potentiajegts are completed in the short term, they cadikrsely
affect market prices and our market share, whidiuin could adversely affect our business, findruisition

and results of operations.

We have an ambitious capital expenditure progranatlis subject to significant risks and uncertaine

Our business is capital intensive. Specificallye thxploration and exploitation of reserves, minangd
processing costs, the maintenance of machineryeguipment and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations require substantial capital expendiud®e must continue to invest capital to maintaintm
increase our exploitation levels and the amourfinished products we produce. We require envirortalen
permits for our new projects. Obtaining permitcantain cases may cause significant delays instheution
and implementation of new projects and, conseqguently require us to reassess the related risks and
economic incentives. We cannot assure you that iWdevable to maintain our production levels ongeate
sufficient cash flow, or that we will have accesstfficient investments, loans or other financattgrnatives,

to continue our exploration, exploitation and rafgnactivities at or above present levels, or thatwill be
able to implement our projects or receive the reargspermits required for them in time. Any or @lithese
factors may have a material adverse impact on vsinbss, financial condition and results of opersti

Currency fluctuations may have a negative effect oar financial performance

We transact a significant portion of our businesdJiS. dollars, and the U.S. dollar is the curreatyhe
primary economic environment in which we operateaddition, the U.S. dollar is our functional curcg for
financial statement reporting purposes. A signifigaortion of our operating costs, however, istaglao the
Chilean peso. Therefore, an increase or decreat$e iaxchange rate between the Chilean peso and.ghe
dollar would affect our costs of production. Theil€in peso has been subject to large devaluatinds a
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revaluations in the past and may be subject tdfgignt fluctuations in the future. As of Decemlsdr, 2009,
the Chilean peso to U.S. dollar exchange rate we5@7.10 per U.S. dollar, while as of December2808,
the Chilean peso to U.S. dollar exchange rate we686.45 per U.S. dollar. As a result, the U.Sladol
depreciated approximately 20% compared to the gesog 2009.

As an international company operating in sevetaiotountries, we also transact business and fspedsaand
liabilities in other non-U.S. dollar currenciescbuas, among others, the euro, the South Africad ead the
Mexican peso. As a result, fluctuations in the exgje rates of such foreign currencies to the Wbardmay
affect our business, financial condition and resaftoperations.

Interest rate fluctuations may have a material imgtzon our financial performance

We have outstanding short- and long-term debt Ileairs interest based on the London Interbank Q@ffere
Rate, or "LIBOR," plus a spread. As we do not hdegvative instruments to hedge LIBOR, we are sulije
fluctuations in this rate. As of December 31, 2008% of our financial debt had LIBOR-based pricifigus,
significant increases in the rate could impactfancial condition and results of operations.

High raw materials and energy prices could increaser production costs and cost of goods sold

We rely on certain raw materials and various saiafeenergy (diesel, electricity, natural gas, foiéland
others) to manufacture our products. Purchasesmhraterials that we do not produce and energytitotesa
significant part of our cost of sales (24.1% in 20070 the extent we are unable to pass on incseasaw
materials and energy prices to our customers, osinbss, financial condition and results of operaticould
be materially adversely affected.

Our reserves estimates could be subject to sigaiitachanges

Our mining reserves estimates are prepared by wuar geologists. Estimation methods involve numerous
uncertainties as to the quantity and quality of theerves, and reserve estimates could change dgwar
downwards. In addition, our reserve estimates atesabject to review by external geologists or atemmal
auditing firm. A downward change in the quantitydém quality of our reserves could affect futurduoes
and costs of production and therefore have a nahtedverse effect on our business, financial camdiand
results of operations.

Quiality standards in markets in which we sell ourgalucts could become stricter over time

In the markets in which we do business, customeag impose quality standards on our products and/or
governments may enact stricter regulations fordik&ibution and/or use of our products. As a resué may

not be able to sell our products if we cannot nsmth standards. In addition, our cost of productiay
increase in order to meet any such newly promutgatandards. Failure to sell our products in onenore
markets or to important customers could materialiiyersely affect our business, financial conditéord
results of operations.

Our business is subject to many operating and othisks for which we may not be fully covered undasur
insurance policies

Our facilities located in Chile and abroad are irduagainst losses, damages or other risks byanear
policies that are standard for the industry and wauld reasonably be expected to be sufficienplydent
and experienced persons engaged in businesseardiondurs.

As a result of the recent major earthquake in GhilEebruary 2010, conditions in the insurance retankay
change, and as a result we may face higher premamchiseduced coverage. Additionally, we may beesibj
to certain events that may not be covered undeintheance policies, and that could have a matadakrse
effect on our business, financial condition andiltssof operations.



We face significantly higher energy costs as a il a natural gas shortage in Chile

As part of a cost reduction effort, in 2001 we cected our facilities to a natural gas network. Trasural
gas, which originates in Argentina and is subjeca tL0-year agreement terminating in 2011, is wsaihly

for heat generation at our industrial facilitieauebto energy shortages in Argentina, in 2004 lacghorities
began to restrict exports of natural gas to Chileider to increase the supply to their domestickata.
Additionally, even though we have long-term priogreeements related to natural gas, the Argentinean
government has increased taxes on gas exportshwbidd lead our suppliers to demand pricing changed

we cannot assure you that they will not do so agathe future.

We suffered partial shortages of natural gas du2id@g, 2005 and 2006, and during 2007, 2008 an8 2@0
received practically no natural gas. We believe #fiiuation will continue and that during 2010 wié likely
receive little to no natural gas from Argentina. $tlof our industrial equipment that uses natural@m also
operate on fuel oil, and the remaining equipmentagzerate on diesel. However, the cost of fuehond diesel
is significantly higher than the cost of naturakgand therefore we have recently faced signifigdrigher
energy costs. We expect this situation to contiraung, as such, we expect the reduction in our alagas
supply to continue to have a material adverse eféec our business, financial condition and resolts
operations.

Decline in the supply of natural gas could negatiyeaffect the supply of electricity and our eledtity
contracts

The natural gas supply crisis discussed above laasg Chile's northern power grid (Sistema Inteectedo
del Norte Grande) under significant stress. Comiihstress on the northern power grid could leaa ggstem
failure that would then affect the supply of elaxty. Restrictions on our electricity consumptiaould
materially adversely affect our operations, potdiytidecreasing our production volumes and increasiur
production costs. During 2009, purchases of eldttriepresented 6.5% of our cost of sales.

As the supply of natural gas continues to be uaognve are faced with the potential early terniorgtpartial
amendment or temporary suspension of our long-tdectricity supply contracts. We maintain contragith
two main utilities in Chile, Electroandina S.A. aNdrgener S.A., and in the past both have soudjef feom
the terms of their electricity supply agreemenssegting that unforeseen events have restrictesiujwely and
increased the price of gas from Argentina. As altex these requests, we entered into negotiatieaslting
in new tariffs that have had a negative effect on msults of operations. Further increases inciba of
energy could prompt these companies to once agek t® modify, terminate or suspend these contréfcts
that were to happen, and these companies weret@ipin any resulting judicial proceedings, ousiness,
financial condition and results of operations cdutdmaterially adversely affected.

Changes in technology or other developments couwdult in preferences for substitute products

Our products, particularly iodine, lithium and thelerivatives, are preferred raw materials for aiart
industrial applications, such as rechargeable fiesteand LCD screens. Changes in technology, the
development of substitute raw materials or othereligments could adversely affect demand for tteesk
other products which we produce.

We are exposed to labor strikes and liabilities tleauld impact our production levels and costs

Approximately 70% of our permanent employees inle€Cls represented by 28 labor unions. As a rewut,
are exposed to labor strikes that could impact production levels. If a strike occurs and continfmsa
sustained period of time, we could be faced witltéased costs and even disruption in our prodaet that
could have a material adverse effect on our busjrdEgmncial condition and results of operations.

Chilean Law No. 20,123, known as the Ley de Subatetion ("Law on Subcontracting"), provides thaiew

a serious accident in the workplace occurs, a cagnpaust halt work at the site where the accideok fgace
until authorities from the National Geology and Mim Service inspect the site and prescribe the uneas
such company must take to prevent future risks.Kasy not be resumed until such company has tdken t
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prescribed measures, and the period of time befork may be resumed may last for a number of halags,
or longer. The effects of this law could have aeriat adverse effect on our business, financiaddmn and
results of operations.

Pending lawsuits could adversely impact us

We are party to a range of lawsuits and arbitrationolving different matters as described in N28eto our
consolidated financial statements. Although wendto defend our positions vigorously, our defeoisthese
actions may not be successful. Judgments or seiftiesnin these lawsuits may have a material adwaffeet
on our business, financial condition and resultspdrations. In addition, our strategy of beingald/leader
includes entering into commercial and productidramtes, joint ventures and acquisitions to improue
global competitive position. As these operationsréase in complexity and are carried out in diffiere
jurisdictions, we might be subject to legal prodegd that, if settled against us, could have a ristadverse
effect on our business, financial condition andiltssof operations.

The Chilean labor code has recently established preeedures for labor matters which include orallgr
conducted by specialized judges. The majority es¢horal trials have found in favor of the employdgese
new procedures could increase the probability geegk judgments which could have a material adwfeet
on our business, financial condition and resultspErations.

We have operations in multiple jurisdictions withffiering regulatory, tax and other regimes

We operate in multiple jurisdictions with complesgulatory environments subject to different intetations
by companies and respective governmental autharifieese jurisdictions may each have their owrctales,
environmental regulations, labor codes and legahéwork, which could complicate efforts to complighw
these regulations.

Risks Relating to Chile

As we are a company based in Chile, we are exptséthilean political risks

Our business, results of operations, financial ¢@dand prospects could be affected by changeslicies
of the Chilean government, other political develepts in or affecting Chile, and regulatory and ledanges
or administrative practices of Chilean authorit@ar which we have no control.

Changes in regulations regarding, or any revocation suspension of, our concessions could negatively
affect our business

Any adverse changes to our concession rightsyevacation or suspension of our concessions, duaNe a
material adverse effect on our business, finamcatition and results of operations.

Changes in mining or port concessions could affectr operating costs

We conduct our mining (including brine extracti@perations under exploitation and exploration cesioms
granted in accordance with provisions of the Chileanstitution and related laws and statutes. Our
exploitation concessions essentially grant a pagbeight to conduct mining operations in the areagered
by the concessions, provided that we pay annualession fees (with the exception of the Salar dednha
rights, for which we have a lease until 2030). &xploration concessions permit us to explore foraral
resources on the land covered thereby for a spdgiieriod of time and to subsequently request a
corresponding exploitation concession.

We also operate port facilities at Tocopilla, CHidethe shipment of our products and the delivadrgertain
raw materials, pursuant to concessions grantediilgah regulatory authorities. These concessioms ar
renewable provided that we use such facilitiesutisagized and pay annual concession fees.



Any significant changes to any of these concessionfd have a material adverse effect on our basjne
financial condition and results of operations.

Changes in water rights laws could affect our opéng costs

We hold water rights that are key to our operatidimese rights were obtained from the Chilean water
authority for supply of water from rivers and walksar our production facilities, which we believe a
sufficient to meet current operating requiremeHtswvever, the Chilean water rights code (the "Weatede")
is subject to changes, which could have a matedeérse impact on our business, financial conddinh
results of operations. For example, an amendmebiished on June 16, 2005 modified the Water Code,
allowing under certain conditions, the grantingpefmanent water rights of up to two liters per sedor each
well built prior to June 30, 2004, in the locatiomisere we conduct our mining operations, withoutsidering
the availability of water, or how the new rightsynadfect holders of existing rights. Therefore, #mount of
water we can effectively extract based on our exjstights could be reduced if these additionahtsgare
exercised. In addition, we must pay annual conoadgies to maintain water rights we are not exirgis
These and potential future changes to the Watee €odld have a material adverse effect on our basin
financial condition and results of operations.

Our water supply could be affected by geologicahnbges

Our access to water may be impacted by change=oiogy or other natural factors, such as wellsrdryip,
that we cannot control, and which may have a nadtadverse effect on our business, financial camdind
results of operations.

The Chilean government could levy additional tax&s corporations operating in Chile

In 2005, the Chilean Congress approved Law No.ZB)(lso known as the "Royalty Law"), establishing
royalty tax to be applied to mining activities dkeyaed in Chile.

After the earthquake in February 2010 in the sofitBhile, the government proposed changes to Ihath t
Royalty Law and the corporate tax rate that woalde tax rates in order to partially fund the rexgweffort.
Currently, these changes are in the legislat@gar(ara de Diputaddsawaiting approval.

We cannot assure you that the manner in which thalR® Law is interpreted and applied will not cgann
the future. In addition, the Chilean government rdagide to levy additional taxes on mining compsuaie
other corporations in Chile. Such changes coul@ lzamaterial adverse effect on our business, finhnc
condition and results of operations.

Environmental laws and regulations could exposetashigher costs, liabilities, claims and failure tmeet
current and future production targets

Our operations in Chile are subject to national landl regulations relating to environmental praitat We
are required to conduct environmental impact studfeany future projects or activities (or sigrsiint
modifications thereto) that may affect the enviremin The National Environmental Commission (the
Comision Nacional del Medio Ambiente, or "CONAMACUrrently evaluates environmental impact studies
submitted for its approval and oversees the impieati®n of projects, and private citizens, pubberacies or
local authorities may challenge projects that néyeasely affect the environment, either before éh@®ejects
are executed or once they are already operatirfigré&ament remedies available include fines and teany

or permanent closure of facilities.

Chilean environmental regulations have become asingly stringent in recent years, both with respethe
approval of new projects and in connection withithplementation and development of projects already
approved. This trend is likely to continue. Furthere, recently implemented environmental regulatioave
created uncertainty because rules and enforcemectgures for these regulations have not been fully
developed. Given public interest in environmentdbecement matters, these regulations or theiriegtidn
may also be subject to political considerations #éna beyond our control.
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We continuously monitor the impact of our operasiom the environment and have, from time to timaden
modifications to our facilities to minimize any age impacts. We believe we are currently in coangk in
all material respects with applicable environmenrggulations in Chile. The only exception is fortfalate
matter levels that have exceeded permissible latdle Maria Elena facilities. We believe thataxe
complying with current regulations at these fae$it however, we must complete a three-year mangor
period which ends in 2011. Future developmenthéncteation or implementation of environmental
requirements, or in their interpretation, couldutes substantially increased capital, operatioeampliance
costs or otherwise adversely affect our busin@sangial condition and results of operations.

In connection with our current investments at taaSde Atacama, we have obtained approval for an
environmental impact assessment study that all@ie increase brine and water extraction, subjeat t
rigorous environmental monitoring system. The ses@# these investments is dependent on the betavio
the ecosystem variables being monitored over tifitke behavior of these variables in future yahres not
meet environmental requirements, our operation p@agubject to important restrictions by the autresion
the maximum allowable amounts of brine and watéaeiion.

In connection with our future investments in nitgrand iodine operations, we have submitted andcexpe
submit several environmental impact assessmenestuthe success of these investments is depeoadé¢he
approval of such submissions by the pertinent gouental authorities.

Our future development also depends on our abdisustain future production levels, which requires
additional investments and the submission of tieesponding environmental impact assessment stutlies
fail to obtain approval, our ability to maintainopluction at specified levels will be seriously iritpd, thus
having a material adverse effect on our busin@sanéial condition and results of operations.

In addition, our worldwide operations are subjednternational environmental regulations. Sineesland
regulations in the different jurisdictions in whiale operate may change, we cannot guarantee that faws,
or changes to existing laws, will not materiallyweacsely impact our business, financial conditiod egsults of
operations.

Our financial statements will be reported in acc@mce with IFRS as from January 1, 2010

As required by the SVS, we adopted IFRS as fromakgnl, 2010. We cannot ensure that changing t&IFR
accounting principles will not affect our financiihtements. If our future financial statementy var
significantly from those expressed under ChilearABArating agencies, banks and investors may rkratea
the Company's financial performance, which coulduin, adversely affect our financial costs. Thesanges
could have a material adverse effect on our busjrigncial condition and results of operatiomsadidition,
IFRS as required by the SVS differs from U.S. GAAP.

Ratification of the International Labor Organizatin's Convention 169 concerning indigenous and tribal
peoples might affect our development plans

In 2008, Chile, a member of the International LaBoganization ("ILO"), ratified the ILO's Conventid 69
(the "Indigenous Rights Convention") concerninggedous and tribal peoples. The Indigenous Rights
Convention established several rights for indigeniadividuals and communities. Among other riglkitg,
Indigenous Rights Convention outlines that (i) gefious groups be notified of and consulted pridh¢o
development of any project on land deemed indigertaght to veto was not included); and (i) indigeis
groups have, to the extent possible, a stake iaftiemesulting from the exploitation of naturasoarces in
alleged indigenous land. The extent of these bisnledis not been defined by the government. Therigis
outlined in the Indigenous Rights Convention caafféct the development of our investment projetts i
alleged indigenous lands which could have a matadieerse effect on our business, financial cooditind
results of operations.
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Chile is located in a seismically active region

Although a major earthquake affected parts of sntiChile in February 2010, SQM operations were not
impacted. Chile is prone to earthquakes becauséoitated along major fault lines. A major earthig could
have significant negative consequences for ouratipsis and for the general infrastructure, suctoads, rail,
and access to goods, in Chile. Even though we miniimisurance policies standard for this industithw
earthquake coverage we cannot assure you thatira fstismic event will not have a material adveffect on
our business, financial condition and results arapons.

Risks related to our shares and to our ADRs

The price of our ADRs and the U.S. dollar value arfiy dividends will be affected by fluctuations ihe U.S.
dollar/Chilean peso exchange rate

Chilean trading in the shares underlying our AD&®sanducted in Chilean pesos. The depositary adkive
cash distributions that we make with respect tostieres in pesos. The depositary will convert fegos to
U.S. dollars at the then prevailing exchange m@amake dividend and other distribution paymentespect of
ADRs. If the value of the peso falls relative be tU.S. dollar, the value of the ADRs and any itistions to
be received from the depositary will decrease.

Developments in other emerging markets could mai#yi affect the value of our ADRs

The Chilean financial and securities markets aveyarying degrees, influenced by economic and ntarke
conditions in other emerging market countries a@iomrs of the world. Although economic conditiong ar
different in each country or region, investor réactto developments in one country or region cameha
significant effects on the securities of issuersother countries and regions, including Chile aratirL
America. Events in other parts of the world mayehan adverse effect on Chilean financial and siesir
markets and on the value of our ADRs.

The volatility and low liquidity of the Chilean secities markets could affect the ability of our sheholders
to sell our ADRs

The Chilean securities markets are substantiallgllem less liquid and more volatile than the majecurities
markets in the United States. The volatility and laquidity of the Chilean markets could increake price
volatility of our ADRs and may impair the ability a holder to sell our ADRs into the Chilean mariethe
amount and at the price and time he wishes to do so

Our share price may react negatively to future agsjtions and investments

As world leaders in our core businesses, part ofstrategy is to constantly look for opportunitibat will
allow us to consolidate and strengthen our comipefgosition. Pursuant to this strategy, we maynftome to
time, evaluate and eventually carry out acquisgtioglating to any of our businesses or to new legsies in
which we believe we may have sustainable competdaivantages. Depending on our capital structuiteea
time of such acquisitions, we may need to raiseifiignt debt and/or equity which will affect oundncial
condition and future cash flows. Any change in fiancial condition could affect our results of cgt@ns,
negatively impacting our share price.

You may be unable to enforce rights under U.S. Sities Laws

Because we are a Chilean company subject to Chidegrthe rights of our shareholders may diffenirthe
rights of shareholders in companies incorporatetthénUnited States, and you may not be able toreafor
may have difficulty enforcing rights currently iffext under U.S. Federal or State securities laws.

Our Company is asbciedad andnima abieftdopen stock corporation) incorporated under tnesl of the
Republic of Chile. Most of SQM's directors andia#fs reside outside the United States, principall@hile.
All or a substantial portion of the assets of thesesons are located outside the United States wesult, if
any of our shareholders, including holders of oWDRS, were to bring a lawsuit against our officers o
directors in the United States, it may be diffidait them to effect service of legal process witthie United
States upon these persons. Likewise, it may bécudlifffor them to enforce judgments obtained in tedi
States courts based upon the civil liability pravis of the federal securities laws of the Unitéatés against
them in United States courts.
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In addition, there is no treaty between the Uni¢ates and Chile providing for the reciprocal ecéonent of
foreign judgments. However, Chilean courts havemefd judgments rendered in the United States,igedv
that the Chilean court finds that the United Staimgrt respected basic principles of due procedspaiblic

policy. Nevertheless, there is doubt as to whetimeaction could be brought successfully in Chil¢hia first

instance on the basis of liability based solelyrugize civil liability provisions of the United St federal
securities laws.

As preemptive rights may be unavailable for our ADRIders, they have the risk of their holdings bgin
diluted if we issue new stock

Chilean laws require companies to offer their shalders preemptive rights whenever selling new eshaf
capital stock. Preemptive rights permit holdersn@intain their existing ownership percentage iromgany
by subscribing for additional shares. If we inceeasr capital by issuing new shares, a holder rmagsibe
for up to the number of shares that would prevdatidn of the holder's ownership interest.

If we issue preemptive rights, United States haldgrADRs would not be able to exercise their ggimless a
registration statement under the Securities Acteweffective with respect to such rights and theresha
issuable upon exercise of such rights or an exemgtiom registration were available. We cannot gessu
holders of ADRs that we will file a registrationasgment or that an exemption from registration \wél
available. We may, in our absolute discretionjdkenot to prepare and file such a registratiotestant. If
our holders were unable to exercise their preeraptghts because SQM did not file a registrati@teshent,
the depositary bank would attempt to sell theihtsgand distribute the net proceeds from the sakbam,
after deducting the depositary's fees and experisdse depositary could not sell the rights, theyuld expire
and holders of ADRs would not realize any valuerfrimem. In either case, ADR holders' equity irgeie
SQM would be diluted in proportion to the increas&QM's capital stock.

If the Company were classified as a Passive Foreiffivestment Company there could be adverse
consequences for U.S. investors

We believe that we were not classified as a pasBiveign investment company, or PFIC, for 2010.
Characterization as a PFIC could result in adver&: tax consequences to you if you are a U.S.shoven
our shares or ADRs. For example, if we (or anyoof subsidiaries) are a PFIC, our U.S. investory ma
become subject to increased tax liabilities unde®. Wax laws and regulations and will become suljec
burdensome reporting requirements. The deternoimaif whether or not we (or any of our subsidiades
portfolio companies) are a PFIC is made on an dnpasis and will depend on the composition of aur (
their) income and assets from time to time. Sea 18.E Taxation — United States Tax Considerations.
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ITEM 4. INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY
4.A. History and Development of the Company

Historical Background

Sociedad Quimica y Minera de Chile S.A. "SQM" isagen stock corporatiors¢ciedad anénima abienta
organized under the laws of the Republic of Chilhe Company was constituted by public deed issued
June 17, 1968 by the Notary Public of Santiago, 84rgio Rodriguez Garcés. Its existence was apgdrby
Decree No. 1.164 of June 22, 1968 of the Minisfr{Fioance, and it was registered on June 29, 18684
Registry of Commerce of Santiago, on page 4.5371Ng892. SQM's headquarters are located at El Gmva
4285, Fl. 6, Las Condes, Santiago, Chile. The Gy telephone number is +56 2 425-2000.

Commercial exploitation of the caliche ore depaisitaorthern Chile began in the 1830s, when soditirate
was extracted from the ore for use in the manufanguof explosives and fertilizers. By the end bet
nineteenth century, nitrate production had becohge l¢éading industry in Chile and the country was th
world's leading supplier of nitrates. The accetmtaommercial development of synthetic nitratethan1920s
and the global economic depression in the 1930secha serious contraction of the Chilean nitratanass,
which did not recover significantly until shorthetore the Second World War. After the war, theasjatead
commercial production of synthetic nitrates resiiite a further contraction of the natural nitrateustry in
Chile, which continued to operate at depresseddento the 1960s.

SQM was formed in 1968 through a joint venture leetv Compafiia Salitrera Anglo Lautaro S.A. (“Anglo
Lautaro”™) and Corporacién de Fomento de la ProduccidfProduction Development Corporation” or
“Corfo”), a Chilean government entity. Three yeafter our formation, in 1971, Anglo Lautaro soltiaflits
shares to Corfo, and we were wholly owned by thée@h Government until 1983. In 1983, Corfo began a
process of privatization by selling our shareshpublic and subsequently listing such sharebeisantiago
Stock Exchange. By 1988, all of our shares werdigubowned. Our Series B ADRs have traded on the
NYSE under the ticker symbol “SQM" since 1993.

Since its inception, in addition to producing riié® the Company has produced iodine, which isfalsed in
the caliche ore deposits in northern Chile.

Between the years 1994 and 1999, we invested aippaitedy US$300 million in the development of thda8a
de Atacama project in northern Chile. The projeeblved the construction of a potassium chloritenp a
lithium carbonate plant, a potassium sulfate plantl a boric acid plant.

To help finance the above projects, we accessedtimational capital markets by issuing additid®eries B
ADRs on the New York Stock Exchange in 1995. 189 %e issued additional Series A shares, which were
also listed on the New York Stock Exchange as ADEfective March 27, 2008, the Company voluntarily
delisted its Series A ADR (“SQM-A") from the New WoStock Exchange.

During the period from 2000 through 2004 we priadlijp consolidated the investments carried out i@ th
preceding five years. We focused on reducing astismproving efficiencies throughout the organoat

Since 2005, we have strengthened our leaderstoprimain businesses by increasing our capital edipee
program and making appropriate acquisitions anddfitures. During this period we acquired Kefc®urbai
and the iodine business of DSM. We also sold (itilzantes Olmeca, our Mexican subsidiary, (ii)rou
butyllithium plant located in Houston, Texas anid) @ur stake in Impronta S.R.L., our Italian subary.
These sales allowed SQM to concentrate its efforisits core products. In 2007, we completed the
construction of a new prilling and granulating plarin 2008, we completed our lithium carbonateacéy
expansion and began work on the engineering sthgenew potassium nitrate plant. In 2009, we cargth
expansion of potassium-based products in the 8al&tacama.
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Capital Expenditure Program

We are constantly reviewing different opportunittesmprove our production methods, increase pridnc
capacity of existing products and develop new pectsliland markets. Additionally, significant capital
expenditures are required every year in order $tagu our production capacity. We are focused aeldging
new products in response to identified customeradeias well as new products that can be derivgaaof
our existing production or other products that dofit our long-term development strategy. Our capit
expenditures during the past five years were maialgted to the acquisition of new assets, constmiof
new facilities and renewal of plant and equipment.

SQM’s capital expenditures in the 2007-2009 peviede the following:

(in millions of US$ 200¢ 200¢ 2007
CapitalExpenditures (: 376.2 286.¢ 18t.0

(1) For purposes of this item, capital expenditureduite investments aimed at sustaining, improvingnoreasing production levels,
including acquisitions and investments in relatethpanies.
We have developed a capital expenditure progratmgdbr investments totalling US$370 million foD20
and a total of US$280 million during 2011. The mpimpose of our capital expenditure program is\wdase
the production capacities of several of our prosluticluding expansions in natural nitrates andaggitim-
based products from the Salar de Atacama. In addipart of this investment plan is intended to erage
production processes in order to improve our opegatfficiency.

During 2009, we had total capital expenditures 86376.2 million, primarily due to:
e continued construction of a new potassium nitratelpction facility at Coya Sur;
« investments related to increase production capamfitpotassium-based products at the Salar de
Atacama;
e upgrade of our railroad system to handle expandediugtion capacity; and
e various projects designed to maintain productigracay, increase yields and reduce costs.

We have budgeted for 2010 and 2011 total capitpkmditures of approximately US$650 million, prinhari
relating to:
e completion of potassium nitrate expansion at Caya S
e investments related to increase production capamfitpotassium-based products at the Salar de
Atacama;
e upgrade of our railroad system to handle expandediugtion capacity; and
e various projects designed to maintain productigracdy, increase yields and reduce costs.

4 .B. Business Overview

The Company

We believe that we are the world’s largest integtaproducer of potassium nitrate, iodine and lithiu
carbonate. We also produce other specialty plamtemis, iodine and lithium derivatives, potassiahtioride
and certain industrial chemicals (including indigdtnitrates). Our products are sold in over 100Qrtoes
through our worldwide distribution network, with ®6of our sales derived from countries outside Chrile
2009.

Our products are mainly derived from mineral degsofsiund in northern Chile. We mine and proceskleal
ore and brine deposits. The caliche ore in nortiite contains the only known nitrate and iodiregasits in
the world and is the world’s largest commercialpleited source of natural nitrates. The brine d#gmf the
Salar de Atacama, a salt-encrusted depressionmwitté Atacama desert in northern Chile, contairh hig
concentrations of lithium and potassium as weligrificant concentrations of sulfate and boron.

From our caliche ore deposits, we produce a widgeaaof nitrate-based products used for speciakytpl
nutrients and industrial applications, as well adine and iodine derivatives. At the Salar de Ata@awe
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extract brines rich in potassium, lithium, sulfated boron in order to produce potassium chloridéagsium
sulfate, lithium solutions, boric acid and bisci®fimagnesium chloride). We produce lithium cartverand
lithium hydroxide at a plant near the city of Ardaghsta, Chile, from the solutions brought from $adar de
Atacama. We market all of these products througbstablished worldwide distribution network.

Our products are divided into six main categorggcialty plant nutrients; iodine and its derivasiylithium
and its derivatives; industrial chemicals; potassithloride; and other commodity fertilizers. Spégialant
nutrients are fertilizers that enable farmers tpriove yields and quality of certain crops. lodiligium and
their derivatives are used in human nutrition, piageuticals and other industrial applications. Sigedly,
iodine and its derivatives are mainly used in th@y contrast media and biocides industries, agdoaing
application is in the production of polarizing filrwhich is an important component in liquid crystisplay
(“LCD") screens. Lithium and its derivatives areintp used in batteries, greases and frits for potida of
ceramics. Industrial chemicals have a wide rangepgpfications in certain chemical processes sucthas
manufacturing of glass, explosives and ceramiad, amore recently, industrial nitrates are beingdusesolar
energy plants as a means for energy storage. Rotashloride is a commodity fertilizer that is praskd and
sold by the Company worldwide. During 2009, potasstchloride has begun to contribute significantiyotr
operations, and we expect this trend to continubemear future. In addition, we complement outfptio of
plant nutrients through the buying and selling thieo fertilizers mainly for use in Chile.

For the year ended December 31, 2009, we had resenfi US$1,436.9 million, operating income of
US$441.9 million and net income of US$327.1 milli@ur market capitalization as of December 31, 2009
was approximately US$9.89 billion.

Our Series A and Series B common shares are listede Santiago Stock Exchange. Our Series B AQRdRs h
been listed on the NYSE since 1993. Our ticker symbn the Santiago Stock Exchange for our Seriagd\
Series B shares are “SQM-A" and “SQM-B,” respediivand our ticker symbol on the NYSE for the Sgeie
ADRs is “SQM.”

Specialty Plant Nutrition We produce five principal types of specialty plawitrients: potassium nitrate,
sodium nitrate, sodium potassium nitrate, potassiutfate and specialty blends. All of these spgciglant
nutrients are used in either solid or liquid formainty on high value crops such as fruits, vegewghtereals
and cotton, and they are widely used in cropsehgiloy modern agricultural techniques such as Ipahizs,
greenhousing, fertigation (where fertilizer is dised in water prior to irrigation) and foliar apgation.
According to the type of use or application the ducis are marketed under the brands: Ultrasol™
(fertigation), Qrop™ (field application), SpeedfolTfoliar application), Allganic™ (organic farmingynd
Nutrilake™ (aquaculture). Specialty plant nutritioas certain advantages over commodity fertiljzarsh as
rapid and effective absorption (without requirintrification), superior water solubility, alkalingH (which
reduces soil acidity) and low chlorine content. Shadvantages, plus customized specialty blendsrtbet
specific needs along with technical service proditg us, allow us to create plant nutrition solosdhat add
value to crops through higher yields and bettetityyaroduction. Because our products are natoralerived
from natural nitrate compounds or natural potassiwimes, they have certain advantages over syntiigti
produced fertilizers, including the presence ofaiarbeneficial trace elements and their organtaneawhich
makes them more attractive to customers who ppetatucts of natural origin. As a result, our spiégiplant
nutrients enable our customers to achieve higreddgiand better quality crops. Consequently, sjiggiant
nutrients are sold at a premium price.

lodine and its derivativesWe are the world's leading producer of iodine imdihe derivatives, which are used
in a wide range of medical, pharmaceutical, aghical and industrial applications, including x-regntrast
media, polarizing films for liquid crystal display$CDs), antiseptics, biocides and disinfectants;the
synthesis of pharmaceuticals, herbicides, eleasppigments, dye components and heat stabilizers.

Lithium and its derivatives We are the world's leading producer of lithiuartonate, which is used in a
variety of applications, including batteries, friter the ceramic and enamel industries, heat-aadigjlass
(ceramic glass), primary aluminum, lithium bromfioe air conditioner equipment, continuous castiogvger
for steel extrusion, pharmaceuticals, and lithiuerivditives. We are also a leading supplier of Uithi
hydroxide, which is used primarily as a raw matéaridhe lubricating grease industry.
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Industrial Chemicals We produce four industrial chemicals: sodiumatér potassium nitrate, boric acid and
potassium chloride. Sodium nitrate is used prirganlthe production of glass, explosives, chardajuettes
and metal treatment. Potassium nitrate is usedemtanufacture of specialty glass, and it is alsorgortant
raw material for the production of frits for theramics and enamel industries. Also, a combinatibn o
potassium nitrate and sodium nitrate is used &ernial storage medium in solar-based electricihegating
plants. Boric acid is used in the manufacture @$ fior the ceramics and enamel industries, liqurigstal
displays (LCD), glass and fiberglass. Potassiurorate is used as an additive in oil drilling as bad in the
production of carragenine.

Potassium Chloride: We produce potassium chloride from brines extradteth the Salar de Atacama.
Potassium chloride is a commodity fertilizer usedettilize a variety of crops including corn, whead soy.

Other Commodity Fertilizersin Chile we import fertilizers that are distriledt through Soquimich Comercial
S.A., offering complete fertilization services tar@ustomers.

The following table sets forth the percentage hidealn of our revenues in the 2005-2009 period adogrib
our product lines:

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Specialty Plant Nutrition 45% 55% 49% 48% 54%
lodine and Derivatives 13% 14% 18% 21% 17%
Lithium and Derivatives 8% 10% 15% 12% 9%
Industrial Chemicals 8% 7% 7% 7% 8%
Potassium Chloride 20% 8% 4% 3% 4%
Other Commaodity 6% 6% 7% 9% 8%
Fertilizers

Total 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Business Strateqy

Our general business strategy is to:

(1) maintain leadership in specialty plant nutrientgjire, lithium and industrial nitrates, in terms of
production capacity, costs, production, pricing dedelopment of new products;

(2) increase our production capacity of potassium-edléértilizers from the Salar de Atacama,;

(3) continually increase the efficiency of our prodantprocesses and reduce costs;

(4) evaluate acquisitions, joint ventures and commkeatliances in each of our core businesses; and
(5) maintain a solid, conservative financial positior anvestment grade ratings for our debt securities

We have identified market demand in each of ouom@joduct lines, both within our existing custorbese
and in new markets, for existing products and fidittonal products that can be produced from ouunah
resources. In order to take advantage of thesertymities, we have developed specific strategiesézh of
our product lines.

Specialty Plant Nutrition

Our strategy in our specialty plant nutrients bastis to: (i) continue expanding our sales of nahtitrates

by continuing to leverage the advantages of ourciaftg products over commodity-type fertilizersj) (i
increase our sales of higher margin specialty plautrients based on potassium and natural nitrates,
particularly soluble potassium nitrate and NPK Her(iii) pursue investment opportunities in cormpéatary
businesses to increase production, reduce costsadmhvalue to and improve the marketing of oudpots;

(iv) develop new specialty nutrient blends produgedur mixing plants that are strategically lochte or
near our principal markets, in order to meet specifistomer needs; (v) focus primarily on the merker
plant nutrients in soluble and foliar applicationrder to establish a leadership position; (uitHer develop
our global distribution and marketing system digeand through strategic alliances with other piemis and
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global or local distributors; and (vii) reduce guoduction costs through improved processes arttehigbor
productivity so as to compete more effectively.

lodine and its derivatives

Our strategy in our iodine business is to (i) maimtour leadership in the iodine market by encaugg
demand growth and expanding our production capaeitine with such demand growth; (ii) develop new
iodine derivatives and participate in iodine regyglprojects; and (iii) reduce our production cogtough
improved processes and higher labor productivityriter to compete more effectively.

Lithium and its derivatives

Our strategy in our lithium business is to (i) ntain our leadership in the lithium industry as thegest
producer and distributor of lithium carbonate aittdum hydroxide; (ii) selectively pursue opportties in the
lithium derivatives business by creating new lithisompounds; and (iii) reduce our production ctistsugh
improved processes and higher labor productivityrider to compete more effectively.

Industrial Chemicals

Our strategy in our industrial chemical busines®i§) maintain our leadership position in sodinitrate and
potassium nitrate; (i) maintain our leadershipipos in the industrial nitrates for thermal stoeagarket and
become a long-term, reliable source for the ingustnd (iii) reduce our production costs througtpioved
processes and higher labor productivity in ordesxdimpete more effectively.

Potassium Chloride

Our strategy is to increase significantly our prctthn capacity of potassium chloride. Our distribntstrategy
is (i) to offer a portfolio or package of produdteluding potassium sulfate, potassium nitrate atiter
fertilizers to our traditional markets; and (ii)fiecus in markets where we have logistical advasdag

New Business Ventures

From time to time we evaluate opportunities to expaur business in our current core businessesithimw
new businesses in which we believe we may haveisastie competitive advantages, both within andidat
Chile, and we expect to continue to do so in tharfu We are currently exploring concessions faotaie
metallic minerals. If found, we may decide to explsell or enter into a joint venture to extrabese
resources. We may decide to acquire part or althef equity of, or undertake joint ventures or other
transactions with, other companies involved inlousinesses or in other businesses.
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Main Business Lines

Specialty Plant Nutrition

We believe we are the world's largest produceratégsium nitrate. We estimate that our sales ateduor
approximately 50% of world potassium nitrate sabgsvolume in 2009. We also produce the following
specialty plant nutrients: sodium nitrate, sodiuptapsium nitrate, potassium sulfate, urea phosphade
specialty blends (containing various combinatiohsitsogen, phosphate and potassium and generatyyhk

as "NPK blends").

These specialty plant nutrients have specific attaristics that increase productivity and enhangality
when used on certain crops and soils. Additionathese plant nutrients are well suited for highdyie
agricultural techniques such as hydroponics, fetiog, greenhouses and foliar applications. Higlwarop
farmers are prompted to invest in specialty plaritients due to their technical advantages overncodity
fertilizers (such as urea and potassium chlorid@ese advantages translate into products and evips
higher yields and added quality. Our specialty plantrients have significant advantages for certain
applications over commaodity fertilizers based anogjen and potassium, such as the aforementioreedaund
potassium chloride.

In particular, our specialty plant nutrients:

e are fully water soluble, allowing their use in hgdonics, fertigation, foliar applications and other
advanced agricultural techniques;

e are absorbed more rapidly by plants because thegotiaequire nitrification, unlike ammonia-based
fertilizers;

« are free of chlorine content, reducing the riskasrching roots and other problems caused by cldpri

« do not release hydrogen after application, theelwyding increased soil acidity;

e possess trace elements, which promote diseastregsn plants and have other beneficial effects;

e are more attractive to customers who prefer pradoichatural origin; and

« are more efficient than commodity fertilizers besmauhey deliver more nutrients per unit of product
applied.

In 2009, our sales from specialty plant nutrientsewJS$648.7 million, representing 45% of our tetdes for
that year. Decreased sales in 2009, compared ¢alaip 2008, were due to lower demand and a dexipas
prices as a result of global economic conditions.

Specialty Plant Nutrition: Market

The target market for our specialty plant nutrieistdiigh-value crops such as fruits, vegetabled, @ops
grown using modern agricultural techniques. Sir@@0] the international market for specialty plantrients
has grown at a faster rate than the internatiomaket for commodity-type fertilizers. This is mgstue to: (i)
the application of new agricultural technologiestsas fertigation and hydroponics and increasirg afs
green houses; (ii) the increase in the cost of,lardch has forced farmers to improve their yiel@is) the

scarcity of water; (iv) the increase of consumptaifresh fruits and vegetables per capita; andtlie)
increasing demand for higher quality crops.

Worldwide scarcity of water and weather changesd®ifarmers to develop new agricultural technigsesh
as fertigation, that minimize water requirementsede applications require fully water-soluble plautrients.

Increasing land costs near urban centers also farngers to maximize their yield per surface affgeecialty
plant nutrients, when applied to certain cropsp hlielincrease productivity for various reasonspémticular,
since our nitrate-based specialty plant nutrientsige nitrogen in nitric form, crops absorb theaster than
they absorb urea- or ammonium-based fertilizerschvprovide nitrogen in ammonium form. This is besa
crops absorb nitrogen in nitric form; thus nitrogerammonium form has to be converted into nitdmi in
the soil first. This process does not occur immietiaas it takes time and requires special soiblaé@ns, and
it releases hydrogen into the soil, increasing aoitlity, which in most cases is harmful to thd soid the
crop. Nitric nitrogen application facilitates a reoefficient application of nutrients to the platiiereby
increasing the crop's yield and improving its gyali
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Our potassium-based specialty plant nutrients hlerioe free, unlike potassium chloride, which he tmost
commonly used potassium-based commodity fertilibercertain crops, chlorine has negative effect th
translate into lower yield and quality.

The most important agricultural applications of isod nitrate, potassium nitrate, potassium sulfatd a
sodium potassium nitrate plant nutrients are: itréalscrops, vegetables, fruits, sugar beet, co#iod other
high-value crops.

Specialty Plant Nutrition: Our Products

Potassium nitrate, sodium potassium nitrate andialpe blends are higher margin products derivexinfr or
consisting of, sodium nitrate, and they are alldpe®ed in crystallized or prilled form. Specialtyebtls are
produced using our own specialty plant nutrientd ather components at blending plants operatechby t
Company or its affiliates and related companie€ivie, the United States, Mexico, United Arab Ergisa
Belgium, The Netherlands, South Africa, Turkey &gypt.

The following table shows our sales volumes of nenues from specialty plant nutrients for therge&905
through 2009.

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Sales Volume (Th. MT)
Sodium nitrate 16.5 22.8 45.9 43.3 63.3
Potassium nitrate and sodium 392.1 538.2 695.3 615.0 690.2
potassium nitrate
Potassium sulfate 133.4 138.3 172.0 172.4 178.6
Blended and other specialty 274.8 309.0 378.6 393.8 350.7
plant nutrients(1)
Revenues (in US$ millions) 648.7 978.9 580.8 503.1 487.8

(1) Includes blended and other specialty plant nusiefitalso includes Yara's products sold purst@otir commercial agreement.

Specialty Plant Nutrition: Marketing and Customers

In 2009, we sold our specialty plant nutrients iose to 90 countries. During the same year, sdldben
Company's specialty plant nutrients sales were d@024% were sold to customers in Central anditSou
America (not including Chile), 7% to customers ihil€, 26% to customers in North America, 25% to
customers in Europe and 18% to customers in odggoms. No single customer represented more thanf7%
SQM's specialty plant nutrient sales during 200@] aur 10 largest customers accounted in the agtgdagr
no more than 38% of sales during that period.

Sales Breakdown 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Central & South America 24% 34% 28% 29% 29%
North America 26% 19% 23% 22% 22%
Europe 25% 20% 19% 19% 20%
Chile 7% 7% 10% 9% 9%
Others 18% 20% 20% 21% 20%

The amounts set forth in the table above reflelessaf SQM's specialty plant nutrients products dachot
include sales by SQM of third-party specialty plantrients products. We sell our specialty plantrieats
products outside Chile mainly through our own wwaitie network of representative offices and throogh
distribution affiliates.

In November 2001, we signed an agreement with Yahés agreement allows us to make use of Yara's
distribution network in countries where its preserand commercial infrastructure are larger thars.our
Similarly, in those markets where our presenceaigdr, both our specialty plant nutrients and $aeae
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marketed through our offices. Both parties, howewsgintain an active control over the marketingadir
own products.

We also signed a joint venture agreement with Y Israel Chemicals Limited at the end of 2001désn
this joint venture agreement, SQM, Yara, and Is€emicals Limited are developing the liquid antuiste

plant nutrient blends business through their paditon in a Belgian company called NU3 N.V. ("NUJ3to

which SQM and Israel Chemicals Limited contributieeir blending facility in Belgium, and Yara cothiuted

its blending facility in the Netherlands. With thisint venture agreement, important synergies hasen

achieved, particularly in production costs, adnifaiion and the marketing of soluble blends, stiesging

the development of new products and improving eustoservice.

In 2005, SQM and Yara formed a joint venture caM&R Specialty Fertilizers ("MSF"), for the prodiom
of tailor-made liquid NPK (nitrogen-phosphate-pstam) fertilizers. The plant is located in Egyptams a
production capacity of 80,000 metric tons per year.

In 2005, SQM also acquired 100% of the shares dédkavhich has a urea phosphate plant located ioeDu
Urea phosphate is a specialty plant nutrient thatsed primarily in drip irrigation systems. Thanil has an
annual production capacity of 30,000 metric tons.

In May 2008, we signed a commitment letter for atjzwenture with Migao Corporation ("Migao") foreh
production and distribution of specialty plant ments in China. In 2009, we signed a shareholdgirsesnent
in connection with this joint venture. Through fjont venture, we will construct a potassium nirgant
with a production capacity of 40,000 metric tons ypear. We expect this plant to be ready duringftheth

quarter of 2010. In addition, the joint venturelwliktribute the potassium nitrate produced by MigaChina
and imports of SQM's specialty plant nutrients tan@, and it will also handle any exports of poiass
nitrate produced by the joint venture or by Migdahis joint venture will enable us to increase orgsgnce in
China, which represents one of the most importadtfastest-growing markets for the fertilizer intilys

In May 2009, SQM's subsidiary Soquimich Europeaidiigs, entered into an agreement with Coromandel
Fertilizers Ltd. to create a joint venture for fiveduction and distribution of water soluble fézgks in India.
The agreement established a 5050 contributiomagdint venture. As part of the agreement, a n&y0d0
metric ton facility will be constructed in the cityf Kakinada to produce water soluble fertilizeNPK
grades). This new facility will require a total @stment of approximately US$2.2 million and shobéd
operational by the second half of 2010.

In October 2009, SQM S.A. signed an agreement @itigdao Star Plant Protection Technology Co., Ltd.,
resulting in the creation of the joint venture S@\hgdao, for the production, distribution and saflesoluble
NPK specialty plant nutrients in China. The agrestna 5050 joint venture, entails a total invesimef
US$2 million. The plant, located in the city of dinprovince of Shangdong, is currently operaticaral will
have an annual production capacity of 15,000 mairis.

In December 2009, SQM signed an agreement witlrtéech Roullier Group to form the joint venture '8Q
VITAS." This agreement joins two of the largest gamies in the businesses of specialty plant nugjen
specialty animal nutrition and professional hygidgheru, Brazil and Dubai will be the main focugta$ joint
venture. As part of the agreement, the SQM mixilagtdocated in Dubai becomes part of this joirmtuee.

We maintain stocks of our specialty plant nutrigntshe main markets of the Americas, Asia, Eurdpe,
Middle East and Africa in order to facilitate prongeliveries to customers. In addition, we sellcspley plant
nutrients directly to some of our large custom&ales are made pursuant to spot purchase ordershard
term contracts.

In connection with our marketing efforts, we pravigbchnical and agronomical assistance and sufmporr
customers. By working closely with our customers, ave able to identify new, higher-value-added pctsl
and markets. Our specialty plant nutrients prodacesused on a wide variety of crops, particulagjue-
added crops, where the use of our products enablesustomers to increase yield and command a premi
price.

Our customers are located in both the northernsanthern hemispheres. Consequently, there are taviaia
seasonal or cyclical factors that can materiallgcifthe sales of our specialty plant nutrient piasl.
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Specialty Plant Nutrition: Fertilizer Sales in Cha

We market specialty plants nutrients in Chile tlgtoiSoquimich Comercial S.A. which sells these potsiu
either alone or in blends with other imported prdumainly triple super phosphate (TSP) and dianiom
phosphate (DAP), among others.

Soquimich Comercial sells imported fertilizers #gorers in Chile mainly for application in the pratian of
sugar beets, cereals, industrial crops, potatdapeg and other fruits. Most of the fertilizeratt&oquimich
Comercial S.A. imports are purchased on a sposiasn different countries in the world.

We believe that all contracts and agreements bet@eguimich Comercial S.A. and third party supglier
with respect to imported fertilizers, contain starttland customary commercial terms and conditi@sing
the preceding ten years, Soquimich Comercial Sas éxperienced no material difficulties in obtagnin
adequate supplies of such fertilizers at satisfggidces, and we expect continuing to do so inftitere.

We estimate that Soquimich Comercial S.A.'s salefetdilizers represented approximately 34% of kota
fertilizer sales in Chile during 2009. No singlestomer represented more than 4% of Soquimich Coater
S.A’s total fertilizer sales revenues, and its lafjest customers in total represented less thda @b
revenues.

Revenues generated by Soquimich Comercial S.Aesepted 13.1% of the Company's 2009 consolidated
revenues. Soquimich Comercial S.A.'s consolida¢ée@nues were approximately US$189 million, US$249
million and US$203 million, in 2009, 2008 and 2G@gpectively.

Specialty Plant Nutrition: Competition

We believe we are the world's largest produceraafitsn and potassium nitrate for agricultural user O
sodium nitrate products compete indirectly withcsaky and commaodity-type substitutes, which mayubed
by some customers instead of sodium nitrate depgrmh the type of soil and crop to which the praadwitl
be applied. Such substitute products include calgiitrate, ammonium nitrate and calcium ammoniutrate.

In the potassium nitrate market our largest cortgrets Haifa Chemicals Ltd. ("Haifa"), in Israelhigh is a
subsidiary of Trans Resources International Inc.8at@nate that sales of potassium nitrate by Haitaunted
for approximately 38% of total world sales durim@d2 (excluding sales by Chinese producers who géper
sell to the domestic Chinese market).

S.C.M. Virginia, a Chilean iodine producer, ultirelgt controlled by Inverraz S.A., also produces psitam
nitrate from caliche ore and potassium chloride.FA@nother Chilean producer, mainly oriented taned
production, began production of potassium nitratamf caliche ore and potassium chloride during 2005.
Kemapco, a Jordanian producer owned by Arab Pofaslduces potassium nitrate in a plant locatedectos
the Port of Agaba, Jordan. In addition, there anemal potassium nitrate producers in China, thgekt of
which are Wentong and Migao. Most of the Chinesslpction is consumed by the Chinese domestic market

The principal means of competition in the sale ofagsium nitrate are product quality, customer iseyv
location, logistics, agronomic expertise and price.

In the potassium sulfate market, we have sevenalpetitors of which the most important are K+S KALI
GmbH (Germany), Tessenderlo Chemie (Belgium) aneaG8alt Lake Minerals Corp. (United States). We
believe that those three producers account forjarityaof the world production of potassium sulfate

Through a partially owned facility, NU3, we alscoduce soluble and liquid fertilizers using our sstam
nitrate as a raw material. Through this activitg have acquired production technology and markedimugyv-
how, which we believe will be useful for sellingroproducts to greenhouse growers and for use itainer
high-technology processes such as fertigation gddlponics.

We believe we are the largest Chilean produceuti gpecialty blends. In Chile, our products maiohmpete

with imported fertilizer blends that use calcium raomium nitrate or potassium magnesium sulfate. Our
specialty plant nutrients also compete indirectithdower-priced synthetic commaodity-type fertilizesuch as
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ammonia and urea, which are produced by many pevduc a highly price-competitive market. Our progu
compete on the basis of advantages that make tf@msuitable for certain applications as descradzale.

lodine and its derivatives

We believe we are the world's largest producerodinie. In 2009, our revenues from iodine and iodine
derivatives amounted to US$190.3 million, represgni3% of our total revenues in that year. Weneste
that our sales accounted for 25% of world iodidesshy volume in 2009.

lodine: Market

lodine and iodine derivatives are used in a widgyeaof medical, agricultural and industrial apgiimas as
well as in human and animal nutrition products.inedand iodine derivatives are used as raw maseaal
catalysts in the formulation of products such asy-contrast media, biocides, antiseptics and fisiants,
pharmaceutical intermediates, polarizing films fd€Ds, chemicals, herbicides, organic compounds and
pigments. lodine is also added in the form of mitan iodate or potassium iodide to edible salt revent
iodine deficiency disorders.

lodine: Our Products

We produce iodine, and through a joint venture wfijay North America L.L.C., ("Ajay"), a U.S.-based
Company, we produce organic and inorganic iodinvaives. Ajay-SQM Group ("ASG"), established hret
mid 1990s, has production plants in the UnitedeStaChile and France. ASG is the world's leadingganic
and organic iodine derivatives producer.

Consistent with our business strategy, we are aatigtworking on the development of new applicasidor
our iodine-based products, pursuing a continuingaesgion of our businesses and maintaining our rharke
leadership.

We manufacture our iodine and iodine derivativeadoordance with international quality standards laave
qualified our iodine facilities and production pesses under the 1SO-9001:2008 program, providiirg th
party certification of the quality management syse&nd international quality control standards thathave
implemented.

The following table sets forth our total sales agvknues from iodine and iodine derivatives inytbars 2005
through 2009:

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Sales Volume (Th. MT)
lodine and derivatives 7.2 10.5 9.1 9.8 8.1
Revenues (in US$ millions) 190.3 246.9 215.1 217.7 149.1

Our sales revenues in 2009 dropped from US$246Glbmio US$190.3 million mainly due to significayt
lower sales volumes as a consequence of the giobabmic slowdown, partially offset by higher psace

lodine: Marketing and Customers

In 2009, we sold our iodine products to over 308t@mers in more than 70 countries. During the spoae,
most of our sales were exported: 31% was sold $toawers in Europe, 36% to customers in North Anagric
3% to customers in Central and South America afd 8)customers in Asia, Oceania and other regilNos.
single customer accounted for more than 6% of then@any's iodine sales in 2009, and our ten largest
customers accounted in the aggregate for no mare4B% of sales.
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Sales Breakdown 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Europe 31% 30% 31% 34% 30%
North America 36% 40% 38% 40% 37%
Central & South America 3% 2% 5% 5% 13%
Others 30% 28% 26% 21% 20%

We sell iodine through our own worldwide networkrepresentative offices and through our sales, atipp
and distribution affiliates. We maintain inventarief iodine at our facilities throughout the wottdfacilitate
prompt delivery to customers. lodine sales are npgeuant to spot purchase orders and short, medingn
long-term contracts. Sales agreements generallcifgpe@nnual minimum and maximum purchase
commitments, and prices are adjusted periodicatlgording to prevailing market prices.

lodine: Competition

SQM and several producers in Chile, Japan and ttied)States are the world's main iodine producéisre
is also production of iodine in Russia, Turkmemstadonesia and China.

lodine production in Chile starts from minerals,esas in Japan, the United States, Russia, Turktaerand
Indonesia producers extract iodine from undergrobnides which are mainly obtained together with the
extraction of natural gas. In China, iodine is agted from seaweed.

We estimate that eight Japanese iodine producemuated for approximately 25% of world iodine sales
2009. We estimate that the largest Japanese pmdseé_hemicals Ltd., accounted for approximaldl9o of
the world iodine sales (excluding recycling).

We estimate that iodine producers in the UnitedeStdone of which is owned by Ise Chemicals Ltd.)
accounted for almost 5% of world iodine sales i®®0while four Chilean companies, including SQM,
accounted for approximately 53% of such sales (Bg%BQM and 28% by the other Chilean producers)eOth
Chilean producers include ACF Minera S.A. and Ataa&hemical S.A., which is controlled by InverraA.S
Additionally, Atacama Minerals Corp., a Canadiampany, has its iodine operations in Chile. In 2GD8gw
U.S.-based player, lofina, entered the iodine ntaikfe believe that lofina could become a relevdayer in
coming years.

lodine recycling is an increasing trend worldwi&everal Japanese producers have recycling fasilitreere
they recover iodine and iodine derivatives frominedvaste streams. lodine recycling, mainly relatedCD
consumption, has increased over the past few yaatscurrently represents approximately 15% of world
iodine sales. It is estimated that around 70% t&% @6 the world recycling was done by Japanese @din
producers.

SQM, through ASG or alone, is also actively papating in the iodine recycling business using iatkad
side-streams from a variety of chemical process&irope, the United States and Asia.

We estimate that worldwide sales of iodine amouttezpproximately 25,500 metric tons in 2009.

The prices of our iodine and iodine derivative prad are determined by world iodine prices, whica a
subject to market conditions. World iodine pricesywdepending upon, among other things, the relsliip
between supply and demand at any given time. Thplgwf iodine varies principally depending upore th
production of the few major iodine producers (imihg us) and their respective business strateg§ies. result
of a steady growing demand, iodine prices have heemasing since the end of 2003. While pricesewer
around US$13 per kilogram in 2003, they reachedvamnage of approximately US$28 per kilogram in 2009

Demand for iodine varies depending upon overaklewf economic activity and the level of demandhia
medical, pharmaceutical, industrial and other gsctioat are the main users of iodine and iodinérdeve
products. Prices for iodine and iodine-derivativeducts in the future are expected to be influermedimilar
supply and demand factors and the business statefiimajor producers, a few of whom either haveaor
acquire additional production capacity. The larggsire production capacity is currently held by us.
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The main factors of competition in the sale of rediand iodine derivative products are reliabiljyice,
quality, customer service and the price and aviithtof substitutes. We believe we have compegtiv
advantages compared to other producers due tdazbeoksour mining reserves and the production ciépac
We believe our iodine is competitive with that pnodd by other manufacturers in certain advancedisinidl
processes. We also believe we have benefited cdimplgt from the long-term relationships we have
established with our larger customers. While tlesesubstitutes for iodine available for certaiplaations,
such as antiseptics and disinfectants, there areosbeffective substitutes currently available floe main
nutritional, pharmaceutical, animal feed, and naiemical uses of iodine, which together accountiiost
iodine sales.

We have a total production capacity of approxinyaldl,000 metric tons of iodine per year which exiseeur
current production levels. Due to the decline idine demand during the year 2009, our sales desiieasd
our inventories increased. We are planning to adjwentory levels during 2010.

Lithium and its derivatives

We believe we are the world's largest produceitluim carbonate and one of the world's largestipecers of
lithium hydroxide. In 2009, our revenues from lithi sales amounted to US$117.8 million, represergfrg
of our total revenues. We estimate that our satesumted for approximately 31% of the world's dedchah
lithium chemicals in volume.

Lithium: Market

Lithium carbonate is used in a variety of applicas, including batteries, ceramic and enamel fhsat
resistant glass (ceramic glass), primary aluminaimconditioning chemicals, continuous casting pexvitr
steel extrusion, synthesis of pharmaceuticals idmdrh derivatives.

Lithium hydroxide is primarily used as a raw maikin the lubricating grease industry, as wellrathie dyes
and battery industries.

Lithium: Our Products

We produce lithium carbonate at the Salar del Carfaeilities, near Antofagasta, Chile, from solagowith
high concentrations of lithium coming from the msiam chloride production at the Salar de Atacahe.
annual production capacity of such lithium carbenptant is 40,000 MT per year. We believe that the
technologies we use, together with the high comagahs of lithium we obtain from the Salar de Asana,
allow us to be one of the lowest cost producerddwode.

We also produce lithium hydroxide at our facilitiesthe Salar del Carmen next to the lithium casben
operation. The lithium hydroxide facility has a @uation capacity of 6,000 MT per year and is onehef
largest plants in the world.

The following table sets forth our total sales avkenues from lithium carbonate and its derivatihasng the
years 2005 through 2009:

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Sales Volume (Th. MT)
Lithium and derivatives 21.3 27.9 28.6 30.4 27.8
Revenues (in US$ millions) 117.8 172.3 179.8 128.9 81.4

Our sales revenues in 2009 reached US$117.8 mibiatecline from US$172.3 million in 2008, mainkyed
to significantly lower sales volumes and lower pscresulting from the global economic slowdown.

Lithium: Marketing and Customers
In 2009, we sold our lithium products to approxieta270 customers in approximately 50 countriestUdily

all of our lithium products were sold overseas: 3fi¥customers in Europe, 14% to customers in North
America, 53% to customers in Asia and Oceania &d@ customers in other regions. No single customer
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accounted for more than 13% of the Company's $al2809, and our ten largest customers accountéukin
aggregate for no more than 52% of sales.

Sales 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Breakdown

Europe 31% 31% 34% 32% 33%
North America 14% 18% 21% 24% 25%
Asia & Oceania 53% 48% 38% 36% 31%
Others 2% 2% 7% 8% 11%

Lithium: Competition

Our main competitors in the lithium carbonate aitdidm hydroxide businesses are Chemetall GmbH
("Chemetall," a subsidiary of Rockwood Specialt&rsup Inc.) and FMC Corporation ("FMC"). In additiaa
number of Chinese producers together accountedgproximately 29% of the world market in 2009 in
volume. Chemetall produces lithium carbonate irofisrations located in Chile through Sociedad @hildel
Litio Limitada and in Nevada, United States. Itoduction of downstream lithium products is mostly
performed in the United States, Germany and TaiwdhC has production facilities in Argentina through
Minera del Altiplano S.A., where they produce lititi chloride and lithium carbonate. Production af it
downstream lithium products is mostly performedhia United States and the United Kingdom.

Lithium carbonate is being produced in China andbeleve this production will increase in the nadure.
Other new projects to develop lithium deposits dwitle have been announced recently. We believestitae
of these projects could develop into significantkeaiplayers in the long term.

We estimate that worldwide sales of lithium chersiaxpressed as lithium carbonate equivalent (ekuiu
direct use for lithium minerals) amounted to apprately 68,500 metric tons in 2009.

Industrial Chemicals

In addition to producing sodium and potassium tetfar agricultural applications, we produce thgeades of
sodium and potassium nitrate for industrial appioees: industrial, technical and refined gradese Three
grades differ mainly in their chemical purity. Godustrial grades of sodium and potassium nitrége differ
from agricultural grade in the degree of purity. \Wigjoy certain operational flexibility when prodngi
industrial sodium and potassium nitrate becausg dne produced from the same process as their aguiv
agricultural grades, needing only an additionap sté purification. We may, with certain constrajnshift
production from one grade to the other dependinmarket conditions. This flexibility allows us toaximize
yields as well as to reduce commercial risk. Initmld to producing industrial nitrates, we produmed
commercialize other industrial chemicals such asgcbacid—a by-product of the production of potassiu
sulfate—and industrial-grade potassium chlorid¢hsold into industrial markets in crystalline farm 2009,
our revenues from industrial chemicals were US$Lillion, representing 8% of our total revenuestfat
year.

Industrial Chemicals: Market

Industrial sodium and potassium nitrates are used wide range of industrial applications, inclugithe
production of glass, ceramics, explosives, chardwamuettes and various chemical processes andl meta
treatments. In addition, the most significant gitowbtential comes from industrial nitrates for thal storage

in solar energy projects.

Boric acid is mainly used as raw material in thenafacturing of glass, fiberglass, ceramic and endrits,
and LCD flat panel displays.

Industrial potassium chloride is mainly used asadditive in oil and gas drilling fluids as well &s the
production of carragenine.
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Industrial Chemicals: Our Products

The following table sets forth our sales volumesnalustrial chemicals and total revenues duringytbars
2005 through 2009:

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Sales Volume (Th. MT)
Industrial nitrates 149.2 161.9 175.2 162.0 176.3
Boric Acid 3.4 7.2 9.2 9.7 6.3
Revenues (in US$ millions) 115.4 123.6 81.2 713 570

Sales of industrial chemicals dropped from US$128iion in 2008 to US$115.4 million, mainly due to
lower sales volumes as consequence of the globabetic slowdown.

Our aggregate nitrate production capacity, inclgddetassium nitrate, sodium nitrate and sodium gsitan
nitrate, is approximately 1.2 million metric tonscluding production capacity at the new potasshitrate
plant that will be finished by the second half 6.2 and the idle production capacity at existirtgate plants.

Industrial Chemicals: Marketing and Customers

We sold our industrial nitrate products in morentf# countries in 2009. Thirty percent of our sabés
industrial chemicals were made to customers in INéimerica, 45% to customers in Europe, 18% to
customers in Central and South America and 7% s$toawers in Asia, Oceania and other regions. Ndesing
customer accounted for more than 14% of the Conmipaajes of industrial chemicals in 2009, and euor t
largest customers accounted in the aggregate forane than 40% of such sales.

Sales Breakdown 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

North America 30% 34% 40% 41% 42%
Europe 45% 38% 34% 29% 28%
Central & South America 18% 18% 17% 17% 17%
Others 7% 10% 9% 13% 13%

We sell our industrial chemical products mainlyothgh our own worldwide network of representativiice
and through our sales and distribution affiliadd& maintain inventories of our industrial sodiurtrate and
potassium nitrate products at our facilities in &a&, North America, South Africa and South Ameriga
achieve prompt deliveries to customers. Induss@lium and potassium nitrate sales are made pudrsuan
spot purchase orders. Our Research and Developgitapattment, together with our foreign affiliatesyypde
technical support to our customers and continuowsigk with them to develop new products or appiars
for our products.

Industrial Chemicals: Competition

We believe we are the world's largest producerndistrial sodium and potassium nitrate. In the aafse
industrial sodium nitrate, we estimate that ouesalepresented 49% of world demand in 2009 (exuiudi
China and India internal demand, for which reliadmates are not available). Our competitorsvamly in
Europe and Asia, producing sodium nitrate as arbghpct of other production processes. In refineadgr
sodium nitrate, BASF AG, a German corporation aedegl producers in Japan (the largest of which is
Mitsubishi & Co. Ltd.) and Eastern Europe are hygbbmpetitive in the European and Asian markets. Ou
industrial sodium nitrate products also competeirgudly with substitute chemicals, including sodium
carbonate, sodium hydroxide, sodium sulfate, caichitrate and ammonium nitrate, which may be used i
certain applications instead of sodium nitrate aredavailable from a large number of producersdvade.

Our main competitor in the industrial potassiunmaté market is Haifa Chemicals Ltd., which we eaterhas
a 34% market share in the industrial sector. Wienes¢ our market share at approximately 39% for9200
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Producers compete in the market for industrial smdand potassium nitrate based on reliability, pobd
quality, price and customer service. We believé weare a low cost producer of both products aadble to
produce high quality products.

In the boric acid market, we are a relatively srpatiducer mainly supplying regional needs.
In the industrial potassium chloride market, weind to increase our current minor presence.

Potassium Chloride

In 2009, our potassium chloride revenues amouretl$$284.8 million, representing 20% of our total
revenues in 2009. We are currently making investmanpotassium chloride that will enable us toréase
our production and sales of this product. We extigsttrend to continue in the future.

We produce potassium chloride by extracting briftem the Salar de Atacama that are rich in potassiu
chloride and other salts.

Potassium chloride is the most common source aigsaim found in fertilizers. Because of its highodde
content, potassium chloride is used in crops sgclvteeat, corn, soy and rice among others. Potagsiume
of the three macronutrients that a plant needsteldp. Although potassium does not form part pfamt's
structure, it is essential to the developmentbdsic functions.

Potassium chloride is also an important comporambdir specialty plant nutrients business linés lised as a
raw material to produce potassium nitrate.

Potassium Chloride: Market

During the last decade, the potassium chloride etdrlas experienced rapid growth due to severafdeprs
such as a growing world population, higher demandbfotein-based diets and less arable land. Athege
factors have contributed to growing demand forilieers, and in particular potassium chloride, Herés are
being made to maximize crop yields and use ressuwtfeciently. During this same period, major plesy@n
this industry on the supply side have producedsgsitan chloride according to market demand. Hisatisic
production levels have been below market productapacity.

However, market demand and production are beinggzlwards existing levels of production capadiiyr
much of 2008, demand outpaced production, whichtdegsubstantial increases in potassium chlorideepri
During the latter part of 2008, however, demandpotassium chloride began to fall as a result efdlobal
economic slowdown.

During 2009, demand was estimated to be approximd@86 lower than in 2008. Major producers contithue
their strategy of matching production to demandeskhproducers, however, still ended 2009 with ticsithy
high inventories. During the last quarter of 2008portant contract negotiations between major [sitas
chloride producers and buyers concluded, whictumn helped to stabilize prices. As a result, dembaasl
slowly begun to recover since the fourth quarte2@j9.

Potassium Chloride: Our Products

Potassium chloride differs from our other specialgnt nutrient products because it is a commddittilizer
and contains chloride. SQM offers potassium chiidtwo grades: standard and granular.

The following table shows our sales volumes of enanues from potassium chloride during the yeaf%2
through 2009.

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Sales Volume (Th. MT)
Potassium Chloride 556.5 185.6 179.0 126.4 128.8
Revenues (in US$ millions) 284.8 140.0 51.3 32.1 324
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Potassium Chloride: Marketing and Customers

In 2009, we sold potassium chloride in approximat countries. Eight percent of our sales were $ol
customers in Chile, 26% to customers in Latin Aigeeand 66% to customers in other regions.

Sales 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Breakdown

Chile 8% 58% 63% 62% 82%
Latin America 26% 23% 18% 17% 18%
Others 66% 19% 19% 21% 0%

In April of 2009, SQM announced that it had signadsupply contract with Potash Corporation of
Saskatchewan (“PCS"). The agreement establishésStQM Salar S.A., affiliate of SQM, will sell to BC
Sales (USA) Inc., affiliate of PCS, between 150,860 250,000 tons annually of potassium chlorideetsold
by PCS in Japan, India and China. The negotiateédgef the contract will be from May 1, 2009 to ¥a,
2012. Sales for this contract will be made at migpkiees.

Potassium Chloride: Competition

We estimate that SQM accounted for approximately &f%lobal sales in 2009. We also believe that the
largest producers of potassium chloride are PCG&umting for approximately 12% of the global sakes] the
companies Urakali Group and BPC Limited, which thgeaccount for 27% of global sales.

Production Process

Our integrated production process can be classifoedrding to our natural resources:

e Caliche ore deposits: contain nitrates and iodine.
e Salar brines: contain potassium, lithium, sulfatd horon.

Caliche Ore Deposits

Caliche deposits are located in northern Chile,revfaieiring 2009 we operated four mines: Pedro ddivial
Maria Elena (El Toco), Pampa Blanca and Nueva Yietén March 2010, operations at the El Toco (mgni
site of Maria Elena production facilities) and Pamplanca mines were temporarily suspended due to
decreased global demand for nitrates and iodinmgliine preceding 15 months. These operations walsre
suspended in an effort to optimize inventory osthproducts.

Caliche ore is found under a layer of barren oveflbol in seams with variable thickness from twenty
centimeters to five meters, and with the overburgetying in thickness from half a meter to one ankalf
meters.

Before proper mining begins, a full explorationggtas carried out, including full geological recarssance,
sampling and drilling caliche ore to determine fibatures of each deposit and its quality. Drilleheamples
properly identified are tested at our chemical fabaries. With the exploration information on asgd grid
pattern of drill holes, the ore evaluation stageviates information for mine planning purpose. Mpianning
is done on a long-term basis (10 years), medium-tassis (three years) and short-term basis (ong. y&a
mine production plan is a dynamic tool that detdddly, weekly and monthly production plans. Afténill

holes are made, information is updated to offemtlest accurate ore supply schedule to the progepsamts.

Generally, bulldozers first rip and remove the bueden in the mining area. This process is follovogd
production drilling and blasting to break the daéicseams. Front-end loaders load the ore on off-moeks.
In the Pedro de Valdivia mine, trucks deliver the t stockpiles next to rail loading stations. Bheckpiled
ore is later loaded on to railcars that take theemal to the processing facilities. Until the suspen of the
mining operations at El Toco, trucks hauled the amd dumped it directly at a crushing installatiafter
which a 14-kilometer-long overland conveyor bekteyn delivered the ore to the processing facilities

At the Pedro de Valdivia facility, the ore is crashand leached to produce concentrated solutiongrogthe
nitrate, iodine and sodium sulfate. The crushinghefore produces a coarse fraction that is leaohadvat
system and a fine fraction that is leached by aigiiaThese are followed by liquid-solid separatiaiinere
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solids precipitate as sediment and liquids comgimitrate and iodine are sent to be processed Jdme
process was followed at the El Toco mining operatiotil operations were suspended in March 2010

In Nueva Victoria, the run of mine ore is loadechaeps and leached to produce concentrated saufidns
process was also used at Pampa Blanca operatithsiining operations were suspended.

Caliche Ore-Derived Products

Caliche ore-derived products are: sodium nitrattagsium nitrate, sodium potassium nitrate, iodind
iodine derivatives.

Sodium Nitrate

During 2009, sodium nitrate for both agriculturabdlandustrial applications was produced at the M&iena
and Pedro de Valdivia facilities using the Guggémhmethod, which was originally patented in 192hisT
closed circuit method involves adding a heated Hipag solution to the crushed caliche in the vats to
selectively dissolve the contents. The concentratgdtion is then cooled, causing the sodium ratriat
crystallize. Part of the unloaded solution is thecycled to the leaching vats. The other part efgblution is
stripped of its iodine content at the treatmennidaThe crystallized sodium nitrate is separatedhfthe
remaining solution by centrifuging. The residueutiisg from the crushing of the caliche ore is leed at
ambient temperature with water, producing a wedlttiem that is pumped to solar evaporation pondsuat
Coya Sur facilities, near Maria Elena, for concatitin. While the process of extracting sodium tétrisom
caliche ore is well established, variations in cloaincontent of the ore, temperature of the leaglsiolutions
and other operational features require a high @egfeknow-how to manage the process effectively and
efficiently.

The remaining materials from the sodium nitratestaljization process are vat leach tailings andeakw
solution. The ore tailings are unloaded from thachéng vats and deposited at sites near the prioduct
facilities. The weak solution is re-cycled for tugt leaching and for the extraction of iodine.

Our total current crystallized sodium nitrate praiiton capacity at Pedro de Valdivia facility is aggmately
430,000 metric tons per year. Crystallized sodiutrate is processed further at Coya Sur and Maléad
production plants to produce prilled sodium nitratéich is transported to our port facilities incbpilla for
shipping to customers and distributors worldwidesignificant part of the sodium nitrate producedviaria
Elena, until its temporary suspension in March 2C4fd Pedro de Valdivia was used in the produatibn
potassium nitrate at Coya Sur, sodium potassiurataiat Maria Elena and a highly refined industgi@de
sodium nitrate at Coya Sur.

Potassium Nitrate

Potassium nitrate is produced at our Coya Surityaailsing production methods we have developed. The
solutions from the leaching of the fine fractiontloé ore, once the iodine is extracted, are punipéae Coya
Sur facilities. These solutions loaded with nitraiee concentrated in solar evaporation ponds. Gamce
adequate level of concentration is reached, thetienl is combined with potassium chloride to prasluc
potassium nitrate and discard sodium chloride. f@selting solution, which is rich in potassium atf#, is
crystallized using a cooling and centrifuging prseThe crystallized potassium nitrate is eithercessed
further to produce prilled potassium nitrate orcuf® the production of sodium potassium nitratee Tveak
solution of the process is re-used for further patighn of potassium nitrate. A portion of the pstam nitrate

is used in the production of a high purity techhgrade potassium nitrate.

Concentrated nitrate salts were produced at Pange® up to March 2010, and are currently produated
Nueva Victoria by leaching caliche ore in heapsnder to extract solutions that are rich in iodamal nitrate.
These solutions are sent to plants where iodirexiisacted and subsequently the solutions are seswlar
evaporation ponds where the solutions are evapbiaid rich nitrate salt is produced. These conatadr
nitrate salts are sent to Coya Sur or another ofsali processing facilities where they are leached the
resulting rich nitrate solution is used in the praiibn of potassium nitrate.

Our current potassium nitrate production capadit@@ya Sur is approximately 650,000 metric tonsyear,
including 260,000 metric tons per year of technigedde potassium nitrate. We expect to increase tha
production capacity by approximately 300,000 metmits per year by mid 2010. The effective produrctid

the new facility will depend on the availability nitrate salts to feed the facility.
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The nitrates produced in crystallized or prillednfioat Coya Sur have been certified by TUV-Rheilander
the quality standard ISO 9001:2008. Potassiumtaijpeoduced at Coya Sur and Maria Elena is trateghoo
Tocopilla for shipping to customers and distribstor

Sodium Potassium Nitrate

Sodium potassium nitrate is a mixture of approxetyatwo parts sodium nitrate per one part potassium
nitrate. We produce sodium potassium nitrate at Maria Elena facilities using standard, non-pagnte
production methods we have developed. Crystallsmtium nitrate is mixed with the crystallized psiam
nitrate to make sodium potassium nitrate, whichthisn prilled. The prilled sodium potassium nitrége
transported to Tocopilla for bulk shipment to cuséos.

The production process for sodium potassium nitigtbasically the same as that for sodium nitratd a
potassium nitrate.

With certain production restraints and following nket conditions we may supply sodium nitrate, peitas
nitrate or sodium potassium nitrate either in gdlbr crystallized form.

lodine and lodine Derivatives

We produce iodine at our Pedro de Valdivia and Muéictoria facilities. We also produced iodine at dris
facility from December 2008 until July 2009. Duri2f09, lodine was produced by extracting it frora th
solutions resulting from the leaching of caliche at the Pedro de Valdivia, Maria Elena, Nuevadriatand
Pampa Blanca facilities. As of March 2010, miningeations at Maria Elena and Pampa Blanca were
temporarily suspended. As a result of these sugpe)swe expect that iodine production in 2010 i
approximately 20% lower compared to 2009. We algeet that nitrate production should decline slight

As in the case of nitrates, the process of extrgciodine from the caliche ore is well establishbdt
variations in the iodine and other chemical corsteritthe treated ore and other operational parametguire
a high level of know-how to manage the processttfely and efficiently.

The solutions from the leaching of caliche carmine in iodate form. Part of the iodate solutiomeduced to
iodide using sulfur dioxide, which is produced hyriing sulfur. The resulting iodide is combinedwihe
rest of the untreated iodate solution to releasenental iodine. The solid iodine is then refinetbtigh a
smelting process and prilled. We have obtainedysia the United States for our iodine prillingpess.

Prilled iodine is tested for quality control purpss using international standard procedures thahawe
implemented, then packed in 20-50 kilogram drum358-700 kilogram maxibags and transported by ttack
Antofagasta or Iquique for export. Our iodine aadine derivatives production facilities have guatifunder
the new ISO-9001:2008 program, providing third-pacertification—by TUV-Rheiland—of the quality
management system.

Our total iodine production in 2009 was approxirafd.1 thousand metric tons: approximately 2.6idand
metric tons from Pedro de Valdivia, 1.2 thousandriméons from Maria Elena, 1.2 thousand metricstrom
Pampa Blanca, and 5.1 thousand metric tons fronv&\Métoria and Iris. The Nueva Victoria facilitg also
used for recycling iodine from the potassium iodidmtained in the LCD waste solutions imported tiyain
from Korea. Nueva Victoria is also equipped to tolline from iodide delivered from other SQM faiids.
We have the flexibility to adjust our productiorcarding to market conditions. Our total currentdarction
capacity at our iodine production plants is apprately 11,000 MT.

We use a portion of the produced iodine to manufacinorganic iodine derivatives, which are intedmée
products used for manufacturing agricultural anttitional applications, at facilities located ne8antiago,
Chile, and also produce inorganic and organic iedierivative products together with Ajay that pasés
iodine from us. We have in the past primarily méekleour iodine derivative products in South America
Africa and Asia, while Ajay and its affiliates haypeimarily sold their iodine derivative products North
America and Europe.

Salar de Atacama Brine Deposits

The Salar de Atacama, located approximately 250niéters east of Antofagasta, is a salt-encrusted
depression within the Atacama desert, within whieh an underground deposit of brines containgubitous
sodium chloride rock fed by an underground inflolvwater from the Andes mountains. The brines are
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estimated to cover a surface of approximately 2 8fpfare kilometers and contain commercially exaldé
deposits of potassium, lithium, sulfates and bof@oncentrations vary at different locations throughsuch
Salar. Our production rights to the Salar de Atesaame pursuant to a lease contract with the Chilean
government, expiring in 2030.

Brines are pumped from depths between 1.5 and @@rsnbelow surface, through a field of wells thag a
located in areas of the Salar de Atacama that tongdatively high concentrations of potassiumhilitn,
sulfate, boron and other minerals.

We process these brines to produce potassium @b)dithium carbonate, lithium hydroxide, lithiurhloride,
potassium sulfate, boric acid and bischofite (magme chloride).

Potassium Chloride

We use potassium chloride in the production of ggitan nitrate. Production of our own supplies dbgsium
chloride provides us with substantial raw mates@t savings.

In order to produce potassium chloride, brines fitben Salar de Atacama are pumped to solar evaporati
ponds. Evaporation of the brines results in a cemptystallized mixture of salts of potassium ciderand
sodium chloride. One portion of this mixture isvested and stored, and the other portion is repeaceand
the remaining salts are transferred by truck teogegssing facility where the potassium chloridséparated
by a grinding, flotation, and filtering process.t&sium chloride is sent approximately 300 kilomsete our
Coya Sur facilities via a dedicated truck transpmystem, where it is used in the production of ggitan
nitrate. We sell potassium chloride produced atShikar de Atacama in excess of our needs to thirties. All

of our potassium-related production facilities fire tSalar de Atacama currently have a productioadgpin
excess of up to 1.5 million metric tons per yeactual production capacity will depend on volumesl an
guality of the mining resources pumped from theaSdé Atacama. During 2009 actual production wghéni
than in 2008 and we expect that 2010 productiohb&ihigher than in 2009.

During 2009, we increased production capacity ofmatassium chloride facility to approximately 100800
metric tons per year. In addition, we converted potassium sulfate facility to a dual plant, withet
production capacity to produce only potassium d¢tiéoor to produce both potassium sulfate and piot@ass
chloride. If the facility produces only potassiuimaride, we have an additional 460,000 metric tpesyear
of production capacity of potassium chloride.

The by-products of the potassium chloride productioocess are (i) brines remaining after removathef
potassium chloride, which are used to produceulithtarbonate as described below, and the amo@xciess
of our needs is reinjected into the Salar de Atagafi) sodium chloride, which is similar to therface
material of the Salar de Atacama and is depositesites near the production facility; and (iii) ethsalts
containing magnesium chloride.

Lithium Carbonate and Lithium Chloride

A portion of the brines remaining after the prodorctof potassium chloride is sent to additionalasol
concentration ponds adjacent to the potassium idelqroduction facility. Following additional evadion,
the remaining concentrated solution of lithium cide is transported by truck to a production fagilocated
near Antofagasta, approximately 230 kilometers fitbien Salar de Atacama. At the production facilttye
solution is purified and treated with sodium cardterto produce lithium carbonate, which is dried #ren, if
necessary, compacted and finally packaged for sdmijprd\ portion of this purified lithium chloride lsion is
packaged and shipped to customers. The produdctipacity of our lithium carbonate facility is apphmately
40,000 metric tons per year. Future production ddlpend on the actual volumes and quality of ttindulin
solutions sent by the Salar de Atacama operatasgiell as prevailing market conditions.

Lithium carbonate production quality assurance moghas been certified by TUV-Rheiland under 1SO
9001:2000 since 2005 and under 1ISO 9001:2008 shateber 2009.

Lithium Hydroxide

Lithium carbonate is sold to customers, and we aise it as a raw material for our lithium hydroxide
monohydrate facility, which started operationstet €nd of 2005. This facility has a production cityeof
6,000 metric tons per year and is located in tHarSkel Carmen, adjacent to our lithium carbonaterations.
In the production process, lithium carbonate iste@dwith a lime solution to produce lithium hydiae brine

32



and calcium carbonate salt, which is filtered aihelpin reservoirs. The brine is evaporated in diple effect
evaporator and crystallized to produce the lithiayaroxide monohydrate, which is dried and packaiged
shipment to customers.

Lithium hydroxide production quality assurance pesg has been certified by TUV-Rheiland under 1SO
9001:2000 since 2007 and under 1ISO 9001:2008 Shteber 2009.

Potassium Sulfate and Boric Acid

Approximately 12 kilometers northeast of the patamschloride facilities at the Salar de Atacama,use the
brines from the Salar de Atacama to produce patassiulfate, potassium chloride (as a byproduct of
potassium sulfate process) and boric acid. Thet ddoncated in an area of the Salar de Atacamaevhigh
sulfate and potassium concentrations are foundhénbtines. Brines are pumped to preconcentratider so
evaporation ponds where waste sodium chloride asdtsemoved by precipitation. After further evagimm,

the sulfate and potassium salts are harvestedarnda@ treatment at the potassium sulfate plaotagsium
sulfate is produced using flotation, concentraiioml reaction processes, after which it is cryzedlj dried
and packaged for shipment. Production capacityp@®assium sulfate is approximately 300,000 MT peary
During the next three years, this dual-plant willused principally to produce potassium chloridierA2012,
this plant will be used to produce both potassitaoride and potassium sulfate.

The principal by-products of the production of msiam sulfate are: (i) non-commercial sodium cldleyi
which is deposited at sites near the productioilitigcand (ii) remaining solutions, which are rgated into
the Salar de Atacama or returned to the evaporgimmds. The principal by-products of the boric acid
production process are remaining solutions thattr@@ted with sodium carbonate to neutralize aciditd
then are reinjected into the Salar de Atacama.

Raw Materials

The main raw material that we require in the préidmcof nitrate and iodine is caliche ore, whiclolstained
from our surface mines. The main raw material anphoduction of potassium chloride, lithium carkenand
potassium sulfate is the brine extracted from quarations at the Salar de Atacama.

Other important raw materials are sodium carborfated for lithium carbonate production and for the
neutralization of iodine solutions), sulfur, sultuacid, kerosene, anti-caking and anti-dust agemtgnonium
nitrate (used for the preparation of explosiveshi mining operations), woven bags for packagingfimal
products, electricity acquired from electric ui@g, and diesel and fuel oil in heat generation. We diesel
and fuel oil as the main energy source in heatrggioa. Our raw material costs (excluding caliche, alar
brines and including energy) represented 24.1%uptost of sales in 2009.

In 1998, we entered into a long-term (15-year) teldty supply agreement with Norgener S.A., a majo
Chilean electricity producer. In 1999, we enteredoia long-term electricity supply agreement with
Electroandina S.A., also a major Chilean elecripitoducer. The agreement has a 10-year term, dirigito
2009, with two, three-year renewal options exetdeséy us. In 2009, we exercised our first extemsiption.
Since April 2000, we have been connected to théhaor power grid, which currently supplies eledtyi¢o
most cities and industrial facilities in northermil@. During 2006 and 2007, Norgener and Electroend
asked to change their contracts due to the gagctiEsts from Argentina that modified their codtinder both
contracts, the price was finally adjusted upwardsthe readjustment clauses were modified.

In May 2001, we entered into a 10-year gas supphytract with Distrinor S.A., which would supply a
maximum of 3,850,000 million Btu per year. This gapply was sufficient to satisfy the requiremedntsthe
facilities that are connected to a natural gas lysupjpwever, beginning in 2004, the Argentinean govment
has imposed restrictions on the supply of natusaland, in 2009, we only received from Argentinaa inon-
continuous basis, approximately 25% of the gasiveden a normal year. Consequently, we have hadsé
other higher-cost fuels as substitutes for namymal
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We obtain ammonium nitrate, sulfur, sulfuric adkdrosene and soda ash from several large supptiaisly

in Chile and the United States, under long-termtremts or general agreements, some of which contain
provisions for annual revisions of prices, quaasitiand deliveries. In addition to the potassiunoridhé
produced by us, we acquire potassium chloride from

Sociedad Chilena del Litio Limitada, a local Chilesupplier. Diesel fuel is obtained under contrabes
provide for sales of fuel at international marketes.

We believe that all of the contracts and agreemisgtiseen SQM and third-party suppliers with respectur
main raw materials contain standard and customamntercial terms and conditions.

Water Supply

The main sources of water for our nitrate and iedacilities at Pedro de Valdivia, Maria Elena &aa Sur
are the Loa and San Salvador rivers, which run peamproduction facilities. Water for our Pampa iila,

Nueva Victoria and Salar de Atacama facilitieshsaed from wells near the production facilitiesthe case
of Pampa Blanca and the Salar del Carmen we addiljobuy water from third parties for our prodacti

processes. We have permits from the Chilean Watéhnakity to explore for additional non-potable waaed

permits to use granted water rights for an indefipieriod of time (based on specified maximum vasm
without charge. In addition, we purchase potableewiiom local utility companies. We have not expeced

significant difficulties obtaining the necessaryterao conduct our operations.

Government Requlations

Regulations in Chile Generally

We are subiject to the full range of government lagns and supervision generally applicable to panies
engaged in business in Chile, including labor lasasgcial security laws, public health laws, consumer
protection laws, environmental laws, tax laws, s#éies laws and anti-trust laws. These includeutaipns to
ensure sanitary and safety conditions in manufagjyplants.

We conduct our mining operations pursuant to egbion concessions and exploitation concessionsteptan
pursuant to applicable Chilean law. Exploitati@ncessions essentially grant a perpetual rightotwact
mining operations in the areas covered by the @wmiges, provided that annual concession fees dag\wih

the exception of the Salar de Atacama rights, whiealve been leased to us until 2030). Exploration
concessions permit us to explore for mineral resmsion the land covered thereby for a specifietgef
time, and to subsequently request a correspondjplgigation concession.

We also hold water rights obtained from the Chileater regulatory authority for a supply of wateonfi
rivers or wells near our production facilities scifnt to meet our current and anticipated opegatin
requirements. See Item 3. Key Information foristakssion under "Risk Factors" of how changes inimgj,
water rights and environmental laws could affectaperating costs. We operate port facilities atdflla for
shipment of products and delivery of certain ravtanals pursuant to maritime concessions, undelicgiye
Chilean laws, which are normally renewable on ajagiton, provided that such facilities are useduikaized
and annual concession fees are paid.

Under Law No. 16,319, the Company has an agreemithtthe Chilean Commission of Nuclear Energy
(“CCHEN") regarding the exploitation and sale dhium from the Salar de Atacama. The agreement sets
guotas for the tonnage of lithium authorized tesblkel each year.

We hold water rights that are key to our businesgelbpment. These rights were obtained from thige@n
Water Authority for a supply of water from riveracawells near our production facilities, which welibve
are sufficient to meet current operating requiretsieHowever, the Water Code is subject to changbish
could have a material adverse impact on our busjriggncial condition and results of operatiohsiw No.
20,017, published on June 16, 2005, modified thde@h laws relating to water rights. Under certain
conditions, these modifications allow the consiitutof permanent water rights of up to 2 liters pecond for
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each well built prior to June 30, 2004, in the tomas where we conduct our mining operations. Sigthts
may be constituted in favor of parties that reqeekstater rights prior to January 1, 2000, when seduest
had not yet been processed as of June 16, 200%onistituting these new water rights, the law does
consider the availability of water, or how the neghts may affect holders of existing rights. Téfere, the
amount of water we can effectively extract basedwonexisting rights could be reduced if these talatl
rights are exercised. These and other potentiatdichanges to the Water Code could have a miadehiarse
impact on our business, financial condition andltef operations.

In 2005, the Chilean Congress approved Law No.ZB(@lso known as the “Royalty Law”) establishing a
royalty tax to be applied to mining activities dioged in Chile. The Chilean Government may detidievy
additional taxes on mining companies or other aajpans in Chile, and such taxes could have a nahter
adverse impact on our business, financial condaiwch results of operations.

In 2006, the Chilean Congress amended the Laboe,Gotl effective January 15, 2007, certain changes
made affecting companies that hire subcontractogdvide certain services. This new law, knowrthes
“Law on Subcontracting”, establishes a new requaeimthat applies in the event of accidents in the
workplace. The law states that when a seriousiantioccurs, the company must halt work at thevditere
the accident took place until authorities from National Geology and Mining Service inspect the sihd
prescribe the measures the company must take vergréuture risks. Work may not be resumed uihid t
company has taken the prescribed measures, apetfiog of time before work may be resumed mayftasa
number of hours, days, or longer. The effectshiff hew law could have a material adverse effecoun
business, financial condition and results of openat

On December 2, 2009, Law No. 20.393 went into éffestablishing a system of criminal liability ftagal
entities. The objective of the new regulationdsatlow legal entities to be prosecuted for thenes of (a)
asset laundering, (b) financing terrorism, andf@)ery, where such crimes are committed by pewpie hold
relevant positions within a legal entity, in orderbenefit that legal entity. The law establishegrevention
model that includes, among others, the designati@nperson in charge of prevention and the estailent of
special programs and policies. The implementaifahis model can exempt the company from liahility

On January 1, 2010, Law No. 20.382 went into effie¢toducing modifications to Law No. 18.045 (tatg to
the Securities Market) and Law No. 18.046 (relatingCorporations). The new law relates to cormorat
governance and in general seeks to improve suctemsats the professionalization of senior manageiaten
shareholder corporations, the transparency of imétion, and the detection and resolution of possibhflicts

of interest. The law establishes the concept ahdependent director for certain corporationsluding SQM
S.A. Such director has a preferential right t@almeember of the Directors’ Committee, which positim turn,
grants the director further powers. The new inddpat director may be elected by any shareholdér an
ownership interest greater than 1% in the company,he or she must satisfy a series of independence
requirements with respect to the company and thepaoy's competition, providers, customers and nitgjor
shareholders. The Law also refines the regulatiegarding the information that companies must igie¥o
the general public and to the Superintendency obi$iees and Insurance, as well as regulationgingldo the
use of inside information, the independence ofresleauditors, and procedures for the analysisasfsactions
with related parties.

In 2010, the Chilean Congress amended the Envirotahkaw to create the Ministry of Environment, the
Environmental Assessment Service and the Supedetey of the Environment and to introduce important
amendments to environmental regulations in termsetiing up new agencies and introducing new piavis

in procedures applicable to projects which openatioear impacts in the environment. The new Mipistall
design and implement environmental policies regatim environmental conservation, sustainable groavith
protection of Chile's renewable energy resourcesaddition, the Ministry will be responsible fonacting
emission and quality standard regulations as veeteaovery and decontamination plans. The Envieotiah
Assessment Service will pursue procedures at theirdimental Impact System where projects are
environmentally approved or rejected. In proceslur obtaining the environmental license, any @ers
including legal entities and companies, will bevakd to file oppositions and comments. Moreovemmary
procedures, such as Environmental Impact Statemaititsllow such oppositions and comments undetaie
circumstances. Technical reports from governmeagehcies would be considered bound for final datis
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The Superintendency of the Environment will be adependent agency in charge of coordinating other
governmental agencies in their environmental obbga. Likewise, will receive, investigate and idiec
complaints concerning the infringement of environtaé regulations and sanction violators delivering
injunction orders or levying relevant fines.

There are currently no material legal or admintsteaproceedings pending against the Company vesipect

to any regulatory matter, except as discussed ut®idety, Health and Environmental Regulations"obel
and we believe that we are in compliance in all anat respects with all applicable statutory and
administrative regulations with respect to our hass.

Safety, Health and Environmental Regulations in Qéi

Our operations in Chile are subject to both natiarad local regulations related to safety, headthd
environmental protection.

In Chile, the main regulations on these matters dha applicable to SQM are the Code on Safety imrg
Operations, the Health Code, the Law on Subcomtiggcand the Environmental Framework Law. The fatte
was subjected to several important modificatiorst thntered into effect in January 2010, includihg t
creation of the Ministry of the Environment, thetidaal Service of Environmental Impact Assessmant]
the Environmental Enforcement Superintendence. Eheironmental Enforcement Superintendence will
begin operations once the complementary legislatioth regulation is enacted, which is expected tioc
between 2010 and 2011.

Health and safety at work are fundamental aspected management of mining operations, which is why
SQM has made constant efforts to maintain goodittneaid safety conditions for the people workingtst
mining sites. In addition to the role played by tBempany in this important matter, the governmeag a
regulatory role, enacting and enforcing regulation®rder to protect and ensure the health andysafie
workers. The State, acting through the MinistryHefalth and the National Service for Geology andiiin
(“Sernageomin”), performs health and safety indpastand oversees mining projects, among othes tasid

it has exclusive powers to enforce standards tlgteenvironmental conditions and the health aretygaf

the people performing activities related to mining.

The Mine Health and Safety Act of 1989 (Ministry Miining, Code on Safety in Mining Operations or
“Reglamento de Seguridad Minera,” Supreme DecreeNDS72, amended by DS No. 132/2002) protects
workers and nearby communities against health afetyshazards, and it provides for enforcemenheflaw
where compliance has not been achieved. SQM's HateMining Standards (“Reglamentos Internos
Mineros”) establish our obligation to maintain arlygace that is safe and free of health risks,mash as
this is reasonably practicable. We must comply whthgeneral provisions of the Health and Safetly 1889
(Ministry of Health, Standards on Basic Sanitaryd d@@nvironmental Conditions in the Workplace, or
“Reglamento sobre Condiciones Sanitarias y AmbleatBasicas en los Lugares de Trabajo” DS No. 594,
amended by DS No. 57/2003), our own internal statsjaand the provisions of the Mine Health and yafe
Act of 1989. In the event of non-compliance, thenistiry of Health and particularly the National Seevfor
Geology and Mining are entitled to use their erdanent powers to ensure compliance with the law.

The new and modified Environmental Framework Laplaeed the National Commission of the Environment
(“Comision Nacional de Medio Ambiente” or “CONAMAYith the Ministry of the Environment, which now
is the governmental agency responsible for cootitigand supervising environmental issues. Undemiaw
Environmental Framework Law, we will continue to teguired to conduct environmental impact studies o
any future projects or activities (or their sigoént modifications) that may affect the environmétaw, with

the above mentioned modifications to the Environt@erFramework Law, the National Service of
Environmental Impact Assessment, together with rofablic institutions with mandates related to the
environment, evaluates environmental impact studiebmitted for its approval, and also audits the
environmental performance during the constructiord @peration of the projects. The Environmental
Framework Law also promotes citizen participatiompiioject evaluation and implementation.

On August 10, 1993, the Ministry of Health publidhia the Official Gazette a resolution establishihgt
atmospheric particulate levels at our productiailifees in Maria Elena and Pedro de Valdivia extagb air
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quality standards, affecting the nearby towns. figh particulate matter levels came principallyniralust
produced during the processing of caliche orejqaarrly the crushing of the ore before leachingsi@ents of
the town of Pedro de Valdivia were relocated to ttwen of Maria Elena, practically removing Pedro de
Valdivia from the scope of the determination of Mimistry of Health. In 1998, CONAMA approved a pl&
reduce the atmospheric particulate levels belownpesible levels by July of the same year, with aart
amendments, by Decree No. 164/1999. Although wéovield the plan, and reduced substantially the
atmospheric particulate concentration levels at pnaduction facilities at Maria Elena, as a resfltthe
investments and processes implemented, we webit®to fully comply with the July 2000 timetabfenew
plan was published by Decree No. 37/2004 on Mafgl2and it called for an 80% reduction of the eiss

of atmospheric particulate material in two yearse designed a new project to modify the milling and
screening systems used in the processing of theheabre at Maria Elena facilities, in order to iagh the
necessary reduction of particulate material emissidAn environmental impact study for this projeeis
approved by CONAMA through Resolution No. 270 int@er 2005. Upon issuing the approval for the
environmental impact study, CONAMA issued the DechMo. 53975, authorizing this project as the one
through which we would comply with the emissionuetibns required by Decree No. 37/2004. Constractio
of this project was completed in December of 2@0f] currently the new plant is operating in gooddition,
which has allowed for the permanent closure ofdldemilling and screening facility at Maria Elemaduced
particulate material emissions, and consequentfyrorred air quality in the area. Compliance of aialgy
standards required by law has to be assessed aloerigg air quality monitoring data for 3 conséaiyears
(2009 through 2011).

On March 16, 2007, the Ministry of Health publisheadthe Official Gazette a resolution establishihgt
atmospheric particulate levels exceeded air quatiyndards in the coast-town of Tocopilla, wherehaee
our port operations. The high particulate matteelle are caused mainly by two thermoelectric poplants
that use coal and fuel oil and are located nexiuioport operations. Our participation in particalanatter
emissions is very small (less than 0.50% of theltoHowever, a decontamination plan was develdped
CONAMA, and its formal approval is expected duri@10. During 2008 and 2009, SQM implemented
control measures for particulate emissions in aut gperations according to the requirements of pén.

We continuously monitor the impact of our operasiam the environment and have made, from timente,ti
modifications to our facilities in an effort to mlinate any adverse impacts. Also, over time, new
environmental standards and regulations have beenterl, which have required minor adjustments or
modifications of our operations for full compliand&'e anticipate that additional laws and regulatiwll be
enacted over time with respect to environmentalterat While we believe that we will continue to ibe
compliance with all applicable environmental re¢jolas of which we are now aware, there can be no
assurance that future legislative or regulatoryettgyments will not impose new restrictions on operations.
We are committed to both complying with all appliza environmental regulations and applying an
Environmental Management System (“EMS”) to contumslg improve our environmental performance.

We have submitted and will continue to submit salvenvironmental impact assessment studies relatedr
projects to the governmental authorities. We regthie authorization of these submissions in orendintain
and to increase our production capacity.

International Regulations

In 2007, a new European Community Regulation ommites and their safe use went into effect. This
regulation, called REACH (Regulation, Evaluationjtiorisation and Restriction of Chemical Substayces
requires all manufacturers and importers of chelmieancluding SQM — to identify and manage risk&éd

to the substances they manufacture and market. -chimpliance with this regulation would preclude the
Company from commercializing its products in thedpean market.
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4.C. Organizational Structure

All of our principal operating subsidiaries areezgfally wholly-owned, except for Soquimich Comeics.A.,
which is 61% owned by SQM and whose shares aedlighd traded on the Chilean Stock Exchanges, and
Ajay SQM Chile S.A., which is 51% owned by SQM. eMollowing is a summary of our main subsidiaries a
of March 31, 2010. For a list of all our consolethtsubsidiaries see Note 2(e) to the ConsolidaiteahEial
Statements

SQM Beneficial

Main subsidiaries Activity Country . of | Ownership
Incorporation Interest
(Direct/Indirect)
SQM Nitratos S.A. Extracts and sells caliche ore |tGhile 100%
subsidiaries and affiliates of SQM
SQM Industrial S.A. Produces and markets the Coryipan Chile 100%

products directly and through other
subsidiaries and affiliates of SQM
SQM Salar S.A. Exploits the Salar de Atacama |tGhile 100%
produce and market the Company's
products directly and through other
subsidiaries and affiliates of SQM

Minera Nueva Victoria| Produces and markets the Company'€hile 100%
S.A. products directly and through other

subsidiaries and affiliates of SQM
Servicios Integrales de Owns and operates a rail transporChile 100%
Transitos y | system and also owns and operates the
Transferencias S.A. (SIT) Tocopilla port facilities
Soquimich Comercial| Markets the Company’s specialty plaptChile 61%
S.A. nutrition products domestically ang

imports fertilizers for resale in Chile
Ajay-SQM Chile S.A. Produces and markets the Comigan Chile 51%

iodine and iodine derivatives
Sales and distribution Market the Company's productsVarious
subsidiaries in the United throughout the world
States, Belgium, Brazil
Venezuela, Ecuador],
Peru, Argentina, Mexico
South Africa and othe
locations.

38



4.D. Property, Plant and Equipment

Discussion of our mining rights is organized belascording to the geographic location of our mining
operations. SQM's mining interests located throughioe valley of the Tarapaca and Antofagasta regif
northern Chile (in a part of the country known akNorte Grande”), referred to collectively as tialiche
Ore Mines”, are discussed first. The Company's mgjrinterests within the Atacama Desert in the easte
region of el Norte Grande (the “Salar de Atacamad®”) are discussed second.

Description of the Caliche Ore Mines

As of December 31, 2009, we held exploitation ®sghd mineral resources representing approximately
557,875 hectares, and we have applied for additexoitation rights for approximately 1,720,0B8ctares.

In addition, we held exploration rights to minerasources representing approximately 16,700 hegtarel

we have applied for additional exploration rights &pproximately 253,300 hectares. As part of thigds,

we have four mines covering an area of approximéiéll, 575 hectares. These four mines are currbathg
exploited.

In 2007, we modified the criteria we use to defimmine. These new criteria require that a propeaiye both
reserves and the processing facilities necessacary out exploitation. As a result, certain pdjes we
previously defined as mines but that do not hawegssing facilities are now considered part of othimes,
and the number of mines has been reduced fromodiaur. The Nueva Victoria mine includes the mgnin
properties Soronal, Mapocho and Iris, which werscdbed separately in previous Company filings. The
mining properties in terms of surface area and tifyaof reserves have not changed as a result @htw
criteria.

Pedro de Valdivia

The mine and facilities that we operate in PedroVdddivia are located 170 kilometers northeast of
Antofagasta and are accessible by highway. Tleskies have been in operation for approximai#8yyears
and were previously owned and operated by Anglotdrau The areas currently being mined are located
approximately 17 kilometers southeast and appraeiya20 kilometers west of the Pedro de Valdivia
production facilities. Our mining facilities at ét® de Valdivia have a Weighted Average Age of
approximately 11.22 years. Electricity, diesel] &rel oil are the primary sources of power fosthperation.

Maria Elena

We operated mining facilities at Maria Elena umiiarch 2010. The Maria Elena mine and facilities are
located 220 kilometers northeast of Antofagastaaedaccessible by highway. These facilities weerated

for approximately 83 years before operations wergended and were previously owned and operated by
Anglo Lautaro. The area mined until operations wargpended is located approximately 14 kilometerthn

of the Maria Elena production facilities. The poweurces of power utilized are mainly electricetiesel, and

fuel oil. The Weighted Average Age of the Compamgiging facilities at Maria Elena is approximat@l33
years.

Pampa Blanca

We operated mining facilities in Pampa Blanca, Wheclocated 100 kilometers northeast of Antofagasitil
operations were suspended in March 2010. Ore flmmPampa Blanca mine was transported by truck to
nearby heap leaching pads where it is used to psadine and nitrate salts. The Weighted Average éf

the ore recovery facilities at Pampa Blanca is axiprately 10.89 years. The power source utilizeoh@stly
electricity, produced by mobile diesel generators.

Nueva Victoria

We currently conduct caliche ore operations in Nu¥ictoria, which is located 180 kilometers northMaria
Elena and is accessible by highway. Since 2007 Niheva Victoria mine includes the mining properties
Soronal, Mapocho and Iris. Ore from Nueva Victasidgransported by truck to heap leaching pads witése
then used to produce iodine. Nueva Victoria mingudes former Iris mining property acquired fromNdS
Minera S.A. in 2006. The Weighted Average Age of tbre recovery facilities at Nueva Victoria is
approximately 6.41 years. The power source utiligsechostly electricity, obtained from the Northd?Power
Grid (SING).
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Description of the Salar de Atacama Brines

Salar de Atacama Brines

We hold rights to exploit the mineral resourcesinarea covering approximately 228,270 hectarésnaf in
the Salar de Atacama in northern Chile, and we tepied for additional exploitation rights covegin
approximately 48,805 hectares. In addition, wedhexploration rights covering approximately 947,100
hectares, and we have applied for additional eaplum rights covering approximately 49,800 hectares
Exploration rights are valid for a period of twoays, after which the Company can (i) request afo@sgion
concession for the land, (ii) request an extensibthe exploration rights for an additional two yedthe
extension only applies to a reduced surface areal ég 50% of the initial area), or (iii) cease kexption of
the zone covered by the rights. The Weighted Awerage of our mining facilities at the Salar de Atara is
approximately 10.68 years. The main source of pawed by the operation is electricity.

Additional Mining Operations Leased in the Salar d¢acama Region

SQM Salar S.A. holds exclusive rights to exploi timineral resources in an area covering approxiynate
228,270 hectares of land in the Salar de Atacamaiithern Chile. These rights include 147,000 drest that

are owned by Corfo and leased to SQM Salar S.Asyaunt to a lease agreement between Corfo and SQM
Salar S.A. (the “Lease Agreement”). Corfo may unutaterally amend the Lease Agreement, and thesimp
exploit the resources cannot be transferred. Hasé Agreement provides that SQM Salar S.A. ioresple

for the maintenance of Corfo’s exploitation rightsd for annual payments to the Chilean governnaamt, it
expires on December 31, 2030. SQM Salar S.A. dqmired to make lease-royalty payments to Corfo
according to specified percentages of the valygraduction of minerals extracted from the SalaAticama
brines. In the years 2009, 2008 and 2007, royadtyments amounted to approximately US$17.5 million,
US$17.7 million and US$13.9 million, respectively.

In addition to the mining rights leased to SQM $&&A. described above, Corfo has exclusive mimiglgts
covering a total area of approximately 65,200 &alddtl hectares in the Salar de Atacama. Undetettmes of
the Salar de Atacama Project Agreement betweeroGord SQM Salar S.A., (the Project Agreement), €orf
has agreed that it will not permit any other persmexplore, exploit or mine any mineral resourcethose
65,200 hectares of the Salar de Atacama. The ®mdgeement expires on December 31, 2030.

Concessions, Extraction Yields and Reserves for th@aliche Ore Mines and Salar Brines

Concessions Generally

Caliche ore We hold our mineral rights pursuant to one ob ttypes of exclusive concessions granted
pursuant to applicable law in Chile:

(1) “Exploitation Concessions” These are concessiwhereby we are legally entitled to use the lanarder
to exploit the mineral resources contained themrina perpetual basis subject to annual paymentbeto
Chilean government; or

(2) “Exploration Concessions” These are concesswimereby we are legally entitled to use the landrder
to explore for mineral resources for a period of tyears, at the expiration of which the concessiay be
extended one time only for two additional yeathé& area covered by the concession is reducedlby ha

An Exploration Concession is generally obtainedporposes of evaluating the mineral resources iaraa.
Generally, after the holder of the Exploration Gesgion has determined that the area contains &dploi
mineral resources, such holder will apply for arplékation Concession for the area. Such appbeatill
give the holder absolute priority with respect twts Exploitation Concession against third partiésthe
holder of the Exploration Concession determines tha area does not contain commercially explog&abl
mineral resources, the concession is usually atiotedapse, although it is our policy to converbsiantially
all Exploration Concessions to Exploitation Congass An application also can be made for an Biqtion
Concession without first having obtained an ExpgloraConcession for the area involved.
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Concessions for the Caliche Ore Mines and Salar s

Approximately 67% of our total mining concessioms held pursuant to Exploitation Concessions art 33
pursuant to Exploration Concessions, not includingas within the Salar de Atacama. Of the Exploita
Concessions, approximately 85% have been alreadwntagi pursuant to applicable Chilean law, and
approximately 15% are in the process of being g@@anDf the Exploration Concessions, approximat@$69
have been already granted pursuant to applicablea®hlaw, and approximately 10% are in the proa#ss
being granted. Chile owns substantially all thefame land covering our Exploration and Exploitation
Concessions.

We made payments to the Chilean government for Exploration and Exploitation Concessions of
approximately US$7.7 million in the year 2009.

The following table sets forth our exploitation axploration concessions as of December 31, 2009:

Exploitation concession Exploration concessions Total
Mines Total number  Hectares Total number Hectares Total number Hectares
Pedro de Valdivia ........... 584 148,80: 1 300 58t 149,102
El TOcO(1) .ccovvveiiiiienns 615 182,80« 25 4,90( 64C 187,704
Pampa Blanca(1) ............ 464 137,11. 1 200 465 137,312
Nueva Victoria ............... 342 89,15 18 11,30( 36C 100,457
Salar de Atacama............. 447 277,07 2,502 996,90( 2,94¢ 1,273,975
Subtotal mines............. 2,452 834,95( 2,547 1,013,600 4,99¢ 1,848,550
Other caliche areas.......... 7,777 1,720,00 733 253,30( 8,561C 1,973,300
Other salars and other
ArAS .....veeee it
58E 116,93: 21C 53,50( 79t 170,43
Subtotal other
Areas......cccccceevniinnnnenen.
8,36z 1,836,93 943 306,80( 9,30t 2,143,733
Total...cooveeeiiiee 10,81« 2,671,88 3,490 1,320,400 14,30« 3,992,283

(1) Operations at the El Toco and Pampa Blancasmwege temporarily suspended in March 2010.
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Extraction Yields

The following table sets forth certain operatinged@lating to each of our mines:

(values in thousands, unless otherwise stated) 2009 2008 2007
Pedro de Valdivia

Metric tons of ore mined 11,631 11,00¢ 10,670
Average grade nitrate (% by weight) 7.3 7.1 75
lodine (parts per million (ppm)) 363 345 354
Metric tons of crystallized nitrate produced 434 407 422
Metric tons of iodine produced 2.6 2.2 2.3

Maria Elena(1)

Metric tons of ore mined 5,443 4,68: 4,651

Average grade nitrate (% by weight) 6.8 7.1 7.4

lodine (ppm) 375 358 363
Metric tons of crystallized nitrate produced 155 151 167
Metric tons of iodine produced 1.2 1.C 1.0

Coya Sur(2)

Metric tons of crystallized nitrate produced 193 302 257

Pampa Blanca(1)

Metric tons of ore mined 3,785 3,811 3,108
lodine (ppm) 645 533 527
Metric tons of iodine produced 1.2 11 11

Nueva Victoria

Metric tons of ore mined 17,326 15,76( 12,285
lodine (ppm) 463 475 495
Metric tons of iodine produced 5.1 4.C 3.7

Salar de Atacama

Metric tons of lithium carbonate produced(3) 14 30 30
Metric tons of potassium chloride produced 886 700 611
Metric tons of potassium sulfate produced 189 163 157
Metric tons of boric acid produced 5 8 7

(1) Operations at the El Toco and Pampa Blanca mines teenporarily suspended in March 2010.

(2) Includes production at Coya Sur from treatmentioé$ from Maria Elena and Pedro de Valdivia, résafrom pile
treatment at Pampa Blanca and net production fr&f,Mr "technical (grade) potassium nitrate," glant

(3) Lithium carbonate is extracted at the Salar de &t and processed at our facilities at the SalaCalenen.
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Reserves
Reserves for the Caliche Ore Deposits

Our in-house staff of geologists and mining engisgeepares our estimates of caliche ore reseiivess.
proven and probable reserve figures presented baftewestimates, and no assurance can be giveththat
indicated levels of recovery of nitrates and iodiik be realized.

We estimate ore reserves based on engineeringatiemis of assay values derived from sampling df-dri
holes and other openings. Drill-holes have beenenaadlifferent space intervals in order to recogmmining
resources. Normally, we start with 400x400 meterd #ten we reduce spacing to 200x200 meters, 1@0x10
meters and 50x50 meters. The geological occurreh@aliche mineral is unique and different from asth
metallic and non-metallic minerals. Caliche oréoignd in large horizontal layers at depths randiogn one

to four meters and has an overburden between zetaveo meters. This horizontal layering is a ndtura
geological condition and allows the Company toneate the continuity of the caliche bed based ofaser
geological reconnaissance and analysis of sampbtksranches. Mining resources can be calculatetyubie
information from the drill-hole sampling.

According to our experience in caliche ore, the grattern drill-holes with spacing equal to or l#ssn 100
meters produce data on the caliche resourcesdzaffficiently defined to consider them measuresbueces
and then, adjusting for technical, economic andllegpects, as proven reserves. These reservebtameed
using the Kriging Method and the application of i@beg parameters to obtain economically profitable
reserves. Similarly, the information obtained frdetailed geologic work and samples taken from gatiern
drill-holes with spacing equal to or less than 208ters can be used to determine indicated resouBges
adjusting such indicated resources to account dohrtical, economic and legal factors, it is possitd
calculate probable reserves. Probable reservesalrelated by evaluating polygons and have an taiogy

or error margin greater than that of proven reseri#owever, the degree of certainty of probablemes is
high enough to assume continuity between pointheérvation.

Probable reserves are the economically mineable gfaen "indicated mineral resource" and, in some
circumstances, a "measured mineral resource." dicated mineral resource is that part of a minersburce
for which tonnage, densities, shape, physical dbariatics, grade and mineral content can be estuinaith a
reasonable level of confidence. The calculatiotrased on exploration, sampling and testing infoionat
gathered through appropriate techniques from lonatsuch as outcrops, trenches, pits, workings,dailid
holes. A measured mineral resource is the part ofireral resource for which tonnage, densitiespsha
physical characteristics, grade and mineral contant be estimated with a high level of confidentiee
estimate is based on detailed and reliable exporasampling and testing information gathered ulto
appropriate techniques from locations such as ops;trenches, pits, workings, and drill holes.

Proven reserves are the economically mineable giaat measured mineral resource. The calculatiothef
reserves includes diluting materials and allowarioedosses which may occur when the material inei
Appropriate assessments, which may include feitgibdtudies, have been carried out and include
consideration of and modification by realisticalgsumed mining, metallurgical, economic, marketiegal,
environmental, social and governmental factors.s€hessessments demonstrate at the time of reptihghg
extraction is reasonably justified.

The calculation of the reserves includes dilutihgnaterials and allowances for losses which mayoaten
the material is mined. Appropriate assessments;hwimay include feasibility studies, have been edrout
and include consideration of and modification bwligtically assumed mining, metallurgical, econgmic
marketing, legal, environmental, social and goveantal factors.

Proven and probable reserves are determined usiegséve drilling, sampling and mine modeling, mder to

estimate potential restrictions on production yselshcluding cut-off grades, ore type, dilution, stexto-ore
ratio and ore depth. Economic feasibility is deteed on the basis of this information.
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Our estimates of our proven reserves of calicheabreach of our mines as of December 31, 2009 s@re a

follows:
Proven Reserves (1)| Nitrate Average Grade | lodine Average Grade
Mine (millions of metric tons) (percentage by weight (parts per million)
Pedro de Valdivia 166.6 7.1% 368
Maria Elen: 137.¢ 7.3% 412
Pampa Blanca 71.7 5.6% 544
Nueva Victoria (2} 305.( 5.9% 45¢

In addition, the updated estimates of our probadderves of caliche ore at each of our principalesias of

December 31, 2009, are as follows:

Probable Reserves (1) (3)| Nitrate Average Grade | lodine Average Grade
Mine (millions of metric ton) (percentage by weigt (parts per million
Pedro de Valdivi 85.2 6.9% 482
Maria Elena 97.8 7.3% 380
Pampa Blanc 447.¢ 5.8% 53¢
Nueva Victoria (2) 102.4 5.8% 396

Notes on Reserves:

(1) The proven and probable reserves set forthéntables above are shown before losses relategiptoitation and mineral
treatment. Proven and probable reserves are afféstenining exploitation methods, which result iiffefences between
the estimated reserves that are available for é@afit;m in the mining plan and the recoverable matehat is finally
transferred to the leaching vats or heaps. Theageemining exploitation factor for our differentmas ranges between 80%
and 90%, whereas the average global metallurgicaveries of processes for nitrate and iodine @oedan the recovered
material vary between 55% and 65%.

(2) Probable reserves can be expressed as pregernves using a conversion factor. On average,ctitisersion factor is
higher than 60%. This factor depends on geologioalitions and caliche ore continuity, which vargri mine to mine.
The difference between the probable reserve amaunitghe converted probable reserve amounts isethdt of the lower
degree of certainty pertaining to probable resecegspared with proven reserves.

(3) Operations at El Toco and Pampa Blanca mines teenporarily suspended in March 2010.

The proven and probable reserves shown above eneshlt of exploration and evaluation of approxaha
16% of the total caliche-related mining propertyoof Company. However, we have explored those aneas
which we believe there is a higher potential ofifity high-grade caliche ore minerals. The remai@iagp of
this area has not been explored yet or has limignnaissance as inferred or hypothetical ressurce
Reserves shown in these tables are calculated lsetning properties that are not involved in degal
disputes between SQM and other parties.

We maintain an ongoing program of exploration aegburce evaluation on the land surrounding the sréhe
Nueva Victoria, Pedro de Valdivia, Maria Elena &ainpa Blanca and at other sites for which we hiawe t
appropriate concessions. In 2009, we continuedsi lvaconnaissance program on new mining properties
including a geological mapping of the surface apaced drill-hole campaign covering approximatel§92,
hectares. Additionally, we conducted general exglons based on a closer grid pattern of drill-baeer a
total area of approximately 296 hectares and, ditiadh, carried out in-depth sampling of approxisiat2,384
hectares (674 hectares at Pedro de Valdivia, 3tatescat Maria Elena and 1,677 hectares at Nuestari4).

The exploration and development program in 20113 éat a basic reconnaissance program over adotal of
2,471 hectares, general exploration over a to&s af about 86 hectares and, in addition, in-deathpling of
approximately 1,642 hectares.

Reserves for the Salar de Atacama Brines

Our in-house staff of hydro-geologists and miningjieeers prepares our estimates of potassium,teulfa
lithium and boron reserves at the Salar de Atac&i®@have exploration concessions of approximat&B. 8
square kilometers where we have carried out bramepting and geostatistical analysis. We estima& th
proven and probable reserves, based on econontiictiess, geostatistical analysis and brine sangplip to

a depth of 30 and 50 meters in some areas and aglépth of 200 meters in approximately 5% of otalt
exploration concessions, are as follows:
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Proven Reserves (1)| Probable Reserves 1)
(millions of metric tons) (millions of metric tons)
Potassium (K) (2) 50.4 11.3
Sulfate (S, %) (3) 37.2 2.2
Lithium (Li *) (4) 2.7 2.7
Boron (B%Y) (5) 1.1 02

Notes on Reserves:

(1) Metric tons of potassium, sulfate, lithium admton considered in the proven and probable resexreshown before losses
from evaporation processes and metallurgical treatmThe recoveries of each ion depend on botheleomposition,
which changes over time, and the process applipdiguce the desired commercial products.

(2) Recoveries for potassium vary from 47% to 77%.
(3) Recoveries for sulfate vary from 27% to 45%.

(4) Recoveries for lithium vary from 28% to 37%.

(5) Recoveries for boron vary from 28% to 32%.

The proven and probable reserves are based omgirttirine sampling and geo-statistic reservoir atiog in
order to estimate brine volumes and their compmsifio evaluate reserves, we conduct a geostatistiedy
using the Kriging Method in 2D. We calculate thelify of brine effectively drainable or exploitakle each
evaluation unit. We consider chemical parametedetermine the process to be applied to the bridased

on the chemical characteristics, the volume ofeébi@and drainable percentage, we determine the nuofber
metric tons for each of the chemical ions. Proveserves are defined as those geographical bloeks th
comply with a Kriging method estimation error of tgp15%. In the case of probable reserves, thetsele
blocks must comply with an estimation error betwé&8f6 and 35%. Blocks with an error greater than 35%
are not considered in the evaluation of reservéss procedure is used to estimate potential résms on
production yields, and the economic feasibilitypodducing such commercial products as potassiunridel,
potassium sulfate, lithium carbonate and boric acitbtermined on the basis of the evaluation.

PORTS AND WATER RIGHTS

We operate port facilities at Tocopilla in the Nodf Chile for shipment of products and deliveryceftain
raw materials pursuant to renewable concessiomgegtdoy Chilean regulatory authorities, provideat thuch
facilities are used as authorized and annual cermedees are paid by us. We also hold water rifrtsa
supply of water from rivers and wells near our prctébn facilities sufficient to meet our currentepgtional
requirements.

PRODUCTION FACILITIES
Our principal production facilities are located near mines and extraction facilities in northerhil€. The
following table sets forth the principal productifacilities as of December 31, 2009:

Location Type of Facility Approximate Size (Hectars)
Pedro de Valdivia (1) Nitrates and iodine productio 110
Maria Elena (1 Nitrates and iodine producti 90
Coya Sur (1) Nitrates and iodine production 220
Pampa Blanca (1) Concentrated nitrate salts andeod 129
productior
Nueva Victoria (2) lodine production 315
Salar de Atacama (1)(3) Potassium chloride, lithichtoride, 2,794
potassium sulfate and boric acid
Salar del Carmen, Antofagasta (1) Lithium carbonatnd lithium 63
hydroxide productic
Tocopilla Port facilities 22
Q) Includes production facilities, solar evaparatponds and leaching heaps.
2) Includes production facilities and solar evation ponds.
3) We lease the exploitation rights used at tHarSke Atacama from Corfo.
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We own, directly or indirectly through subsidiariedl of the facilities free of any material liededges or
encumbrances, and believe that they are suitalileadaquate for the business we conduct in thennfAs
December 31, 2009, the approximate gross book \altlee property and associated plant and equipratent
our locations was as follows: Pedro de Valdivia$@s.9 million), Maria Elena (US$196.8 million), Go$ur
(US$235.1 million), Pampa Blanca (US$15.7 millioNyeva Victoria (US$141.8 million), Salar de Atagam
(US$433.6 million), Salar del Carmen (US$92.3 mii)i and Tocopilla (US$58.6 million).

In addition to the above-listed facilities, we cgtera computer and information system linking aimgipal
subsidiaries to our operating facilities throughdthile via a local area network. The computer and
information system is used mainly for accountingynitoring of supplies and inventories, billing, tjta
control and research activities. The system's meimé computer equipment is located at our offices i
Santiago.

The approximate Weighted Average Age of our pradadiacilities as of December 31, 2009 was as ¥aito
Pedro de Valdivia (11.22 years), Maria Elena (¥&as), Coya Sur (8.16 years), Nueva Victoria (§ddrs),
Salar de Atacama (10.68 years), and Salar del Ga(imh49 years). Our railroad line between our potida
facilities and Tocopilla was originally constructad1890, but the rails, locomotives and rollingcit have
been replaced and refurbished as needed. The Tiacppit facilities were originally constructed 1961 and
have been refurbished and expanded since that fiime. Weighted Average Age of the Tocopilla port
facilities is approximately 11.03 years. We consitthe condition of our principal plant and equipmtnbe
good.
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The map below shows the locationSQM's principal mining operations and land concessidrish havi
been granted and those that are in the processirgj granted
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TRANSPORTATION AND STORAGE FACILITIES

We own and operate railway lines and equipment, as welbdsand storage facilities, for the transport and
handling of finished products and consumable materials.

The main center for our production and storage of rawrmbtas the hub composed of the facilities in Coya
Sur, Pedro de Valdivia and Maria Elena. Our Salar de Atadanilities constitute the second largest
concentration of plants and raw material storage. O#wdlities include Nueva Victoria, Pampa Blanca, and
the lithium carbonate and lithium hydroxide finishingmk. The Tocopilla port terminal (“Tocopilla Port

Terminal”), which we own, is the main facility forosage and shipment of our products.

Nitrate raw materials are produced and first stored aPedro de Valdivia mine, and then transported by rail
to the plants described in the next paragraph, fordughocessing. Nitrate raw material was also produced at
our El Toco and Pampa Blanca mining facilities until operatiwere temporarily suspended in March 2010 at
these locations. Nitrate raw material produced at thesdduilities were transported by conveyor belt (El
Toco) and trucks (Pampa Blanca) to plants for furthecgssing.

Nitrate finished products are produced at our facilitieMaria Elena and Coya Sur and then transported by
our rail system to Tocopilla Port Terminal, whereytlare stored and shipped, either bagged or in bulk.
Potassium chloride is produced at our facilities in the SiaAtacama and transported either to Tocopilla
Port Terminal or Coya Sur by truck owned by a thirdypdedicated contractor. Product transported to Coya
Sur is used as a raw material for the production tdgsium nitrate or for potassium chloride finisheddpia.
Potassium sulfate and boric acid are both produced afaollities in the Salar de Atacama and are then
transported by truck to the Tocopilla Port Terminal.

Lithium solutions, produced at our facilities in thdeBale Atacama, are transported to the lithium carbonate
facility in the Salar del Carmen area, where finishedulith carbonate is produced. Part of the lithium
carbonate is fed to the adjacent lithium hydroxide plahgre finished lithium hydroxide is produced. These
two products are bagged and stored on the premises arslilzsequently transported by truck to Tocopilla
Port Terminal or to the Antofagasta terminal for sh@mt on charter vessels or container vessels.

lodine raw material, obtained in the same mines as thaast is processed, bagged and stored exclusively in
the facilities of Pedro de Valdivia and Nueva Victoria, #meh shipped by truck to Antofagasta or Iquique for
vessel container transport or by truck to Santiago, wibdiee derivatives are produced.

The facilities at Tocopilla Port Terminal are located apipnately 186 kilometers north of Antofagasta and
approximately 124 kilometers west of Pedro de Valdivliaki®meters west of Maria Elena and Coya Sur and
372 kilometers west of the Salar de Atacama. Our diglvgi Servicios Integrales de Transitos y
Transferencias S.A. (SIT) operates the facilities undertimar concessions granted pursuant to applicable
Chilean laws. The port also complies with ISPS (Intéonal Ship and Port Facility Security Code)
regulation. The Tocopilla Port Terminal facilities inclugegailcar dumper to transfer bulk product into the
conveyor belt system used to store and ship bulk gtodu

Storage facilities consist of a six silo system, withtaltproduction capacity of 55,000 metric tons, and an
open storage area for approximately 230,000 metric todditidnally, to meet future storage needs, the
Company will continue to make investments in accordance witimtlestment plan outlined by management.

Products are also bagged at port facilities in Tocopilleere the bagging capacity is approximately 300,000
metric tons per year.

For shipping bulk product, the conveyor belt systenem$ over the coast line to deliver product directly
inside bulk carrier hatches. Using this system, the hopdapacity is 1,200 tons per hour. Bags are loaded to
bulk vessels using barges that are loaded in TocopillaTRominal dock and unloaded by vessel cranes into
the hatches. Both bulk and bagged trucks are loaded in Tlac®girt Terminal for transferring product
directly to customers or for container vessels shippiom fother ports, mainly Antofagasta, Mejillones and
Iquique.
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Bulk carrier loading in the Tocopilla Port Terminal i®stly contracted to transfer product to our hubsradou
the world or for shipping to customers, which in lied cases use their own contracted vessels for delivery.
Trucking is provided by a mix of spot, contracted arstamer- owned equipment.

Tocopilla processes related to the reception, handlingagegorand shipment of bulk/packaged nitrates

produced in Coya Sur are certified by third party orgaminafiUV-Rheiland under the quality standard 1SO
9001:2008.

ITEM 4A. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not applicable
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ITEM 5. OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Critical accounting policies are defined as those thatedlective of significant judgments and uncertainties,
which would potentially result in materially different vits under different assumptions and conditions.

We believe that our critical accounting policies applied & gheparation of our Chilean GAAP consolidated

financial statements are limited to those described bél@hiould be noted that in many cases, Chilean GAAP
specifically dictates the accounting treatment of a partictaasaction, with limited management’s judgment

in their application. There are also areas in which manag&srjedgment in selecting available alternatives

would not produce materially different results.

Allowance for doubtful accounts

We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts for estimate@soesulting from a case-by-case analysis of
the probability of our customers being unable to maauired payments. If the financial condition of our
customers were to deteriorate unexpectedly, impacting thiitly db make payments, additional allowances
might be required. We routinely review the financial canditof our customers and make assessments of
collectability.

Deferred income tax asset valuation allowance

We and each of our subsidiaries compute and pay incomentax separate basis, except for our U.S.
subsidiaries. We estimate our tax exposure and assess tgngiffemences resulting from differing treatment
of various items for tax and accounting purposes. Thef&atiCes result in deferred tax assets and liabilities,
which are reflected in our consolidated balance sheet.

We record a valuation allowance to reduce deferred tax asghtsamount that we believe is more likely than
not to be realized. The valuation of the deferred tax asskfpisndent on, among other things, our ability to
generate a sufficient level of future taxable income.

Inventories

Inventories of finished products and work in processvahged at average production cost. Raw materials and
goods for resale acquired from third parties are statederage acquisition cost and materials-in-transit are
valued at cost. These values do not exceed net realizable values.

Inventories of non-critical spare parts and supplies lassified as other current assets, except for those items
for which we estimate a turnover period in excess ofyeae, which are classified as other long-term assets.

Inventories are stated net of allowances for items thatotd®sold and obsolete items determined based on
technical studies of inventory conditions and usefulness.

Staff severance indemnities

We have significant staff severance indemnity liabilities, whikhrecognized on an accrual basis. Inherent in
the valuations of these obligations are key assumptinalsiding discount rates. We are required to consider
current market conditions, including changes in inters®tsy in selecting these assumptions. Changes in the
related benefit plan liabilities may occur in the future ttuehanges resulting from fluctuations in our related
headcount or to changes in the assumptions.
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Mining development costs

Mine exploration costs and stripping costs to maingaioduction of mineral resources extracted from

operating mines are considered variable production costsraridciuded in the cost of inventory produced

during the period. Mine development costs at new mines,najdr development costs at operating mines
outside existing areas under extraction that are expectedntditofuture production, are capitalized under

“other long-term assets” and amortized using a units-@dymtion method over the associated proven and
probable reserves. We determine our proven and probableeedesised on drilling, brine sampling and

geostatistical reservoir modeling in order to estimatenal volume and composition.

All other mine exploration costs, including expenseateel to low grade mineral resources rendering reserves
that are not economically exploitable, are charged to thdtsesf operations in the period in which they are
incurred.

Long-lived assets and their impairment

We estimate the useful lives of property, plant and equipmesrder to determine the amount of depreciation
expense to be recorded during any reporting period. The estimeseful lives are based on historical

experience with similar assets, taking into account antidpgatshnological or other changes. If technological
changes are expected to occur more rapidly or in a differaptthan previously anticipated, the useful lives

assigned to these assets may need to be reduced, resuftisgécognition of increased depreciation expense
in future periods.

We evaluate the recoverability of our long-lived assets (dtm&n intangibles and deferred tax assets) in
accordance with Technical Bulletin No. 33, “Accounting treatnoériRroperty, Plant and Equipment,” issued
by the Chilean Association of Accountants. Long-lived asaed reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amousn a@sset may not be recoverable. The rules
require recognition of impairment of long-lived assetg¢ha event that the net book value of such assets
exceeds the future undiscounted net cash flows attributableclpassets. Impairment, if any, is recognized in
the period of identification to the extent the carryimgoant of an asset exceeds the fair value of such asset.
We believe that the accounting estimate related to asset ingpadirsncritical because it requires us to make
assumptions about future cash flows generated fromsthefithe assets over their estimated useful lives.

Impairment of goodwill

We have recorded goodwill related to business acquisitionsler Chilean GAAP, goodwill should be
reviewed for impairment when events or circumstances, suchcasrent losses for two or more periods,
indicate a possible inability to realize the carryingpant.

The impairment analysis requires management to make subjaadigments concerning estimates of how the
assets will perform in the future using a discounted cashdhalysis. Additionally, estimated cash flows may
extend beyond ten years and, by their nature, are difftoultietermine. Events and factors that may
significantly affect the estimates include, among othewsjpetitive forces, customer behavior and attrition,
changes in revenue growth trends, cost structures and technalayghanges in interest rates and specific
industry or market sector conditions.

Derivatives

The Company'’s financial derivative instruments are grily foreign currency forwards and options as well as
cross currency swaps. The Company records these financial derivatracts at fair value. Estimates of fair
values of financial instruments for which no quoteagsion active markets exist are made using valuation
techniques such as forward pricing models, present valaestiofiated future cash flows, and other modeling
techniques. These estimates of fair value include assumptiads by the Company about market variables
that may change in the future.
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ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In conformity with regulations of the SuperintendencySefcurities and Insurance, on January 1, 2010 we
effectively adopted IFRS as issued by the IASB. As a rdsalances of our assets, liabilities and equity as of
January 1, 2010 were impacted. The adoption will alse havimpact on the results of our operation in future
years. Our first annual financial statements under I®i¥#$®e prepared as of and for the year ended December
31, 2010 and will include comparative financial infotima for the year 2009 which will differ from our 2009
financial statements.
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5.A. Operating Results

Introduction

The following discussion should be read in conjunctiaihwie Company's Consolidated Financial Statements
and the Notes thereto included in ltem 18. Certain talons (including percentages) that appear herein have
been rounded.

Our Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared indacam with Chilean GAAP, which differ in certain
material respects from U.S. GAAP. Note 30 to the Glissted Financial Statements provides a description
of the material differences between Chilean GAAP and U.S. Gaw#Pa reconciliation to U.S. GAAP of net
income for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and &2@D0f total shareholders' equity as of
December 31, 2009 and 2008. Our Consolidated FinaBEgtments are prepared in U.S. dollars. The U.S.
dollar is the primary currency in which we operate.

We operate as an independent corporation. Nonetheless we"eoatmlled corporation”, as that term is
defined under Chilean law. See Item 6.E. Share Ownership

Certain segment information by products group and bygrgehical area is provided in Note 30 —Differences
between Chilean and United States Generally Accepted Accountimapies— Il. k) Industry segment and
geographic area information.

Overview of Our Results of Operations

We divide our operations into the production and shtle following product lines:

e specialty plant nutrients
* iodine and its derivatives
» lithium and its derivatives
* industrial chemicals
e potassium chloride; and
» the purchase and sale of other commodity fertilizersigerprimarily in Chile.
In 2009, our sale of potassium chloride had an impoitapact on our results of operations, and we expect

this trend to continue in line with our plans to increasepmtassium chloride production capacity and sales in
the near term.

We sell our products through three primary channelsoeoun sales offices, a network of distributors and, with
respect to our fertilizer products, through Yara Inrdéonal ASA pursuant to a commercial agreement.

FACTORS AFFECTING OUR RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Our results of operations substantially depend on:

e trends in demand for and supply of our products, dioly global economic conditions,
which impact prices and volumes;

« efficient operations of our facilities, particularly as somf them run at production
capacity;

e our ability to accomplish our capital expenditures progiraatimely manner;

« the levels of our inventories;
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« trends in the exchange rate between the U.S. dollar and pessigasficant portion of the
cost of sales is in Chilean pesos, and trends in the exchategbetween the U.S. dollar
and the Euro, as a significant portion of our saleermominated in Euros; and

e energy, logistics, raw materials and maintenance costs.

The following table sets forth our revenues (in milliafidJ.S. dollars) and the percentage accounted for by
each of our product lines for each of the periods indicated:

Year ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
uss % uss % uss %
Specialty plant nutritic 648.7 45 978.¢ 55 5808 4¢
lodine and derivatives 190.3 13 246.9 14 215.1 18
Lithium and derivatives 117.8 8 172.3 10 179.8 15
Industrial chemica 115.¢ 8 123.¢ 7 81.2 7
Potassium chlorid 284.8 20 140.0 8 51.3 4
Other commodity fertilizefd 79.8 6 112.3 6 79.4 7
Total 1,436.9 100 1,774.1 100 1,187.5 100

(1) Primarily consists of imported fertilizers distriied in Chile.

The following table sets forth certain financial informatif the Company under Chilean GAAP (in millions
of U.S. dollars) for each of the periods indicated, psraentage of revenues:

Year ended December 31,

Total revenue

Cost of goods so
Gross margi

Selling and administrative expen
Operating incormr

Non-operating income
Non-operating expenses

Income before income tax
Income ta:

Minority interest

Amortization of negative goodwiill

Net income

2009 2008 2007

USt % USt % USt %
1436 100  1,774. 100 1,187 100.C
(916.1) (63.8) (1,056.2) (59.5)  (857.8) (72.2)
520  36. 717¢ ~ 40F 329 27.¢
(78.9)  (5.5) (85.7)  (4.8) (70.3) (5.9)
441¢  30€ 632: 35 259 F 21.¢

405 2.8 40.6 2.3 25.9

(775)  (5.4) (59.9) (3.8) (53.0) (4.5)
404¢ 28 612¢  34F 232.2 19.€
(765  (5.3) (1080  (6.1) (48.6 4.1)
(13) (0.2 (35  (0.2) (3.8) Y.
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 .00 0.0
3271 228 5014  28.3 180.0 15.2
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Results of Operations — 2009 compared to 2008

During 2009, we generated total revenues of US$1,43@i®mmwhich is 19.0% lower than the US$1,774.1
million recorded for 2008.

The main factors causing the decrease in revenues andrihgowns in the different product lines are described
below:

Specialty Plant Nutrition
Specialty Plant Nutrition revenues for 2009 totaled U8%$64illion, 33.7% lower than the US$978.9 million

recorded for 2008. Set forth below are sales volume dathé specified years by product category in this
product line.

(in Th. MT) 2009 2008 9% change
Yoo 18] 0 0 011 = 1= 2SO PP TP PP PPPPPPPPPP 16.5 22.8 (27%)
Potassium nitrate and sodium potassium NItrate............cccvveeeveeeeneriniiiiiiieeeeeennn 392.1 538.2 (27%)
Blended and other specialty fertilizers ......cccc.ooociiiiiieee e 1845 2059 (10%)
Other non-SQM specialty plant NUIHENTS(L) ..ceeeeervveeeiereriiiiiiiiiie e 90.3 1031 (12%)
POtasSIUM SUIFALE .......coooiiiiiieie s et e e e e s et ee e e e e anee e ee s 1334 1383 (4%)

(1) Consists of certain specialty plant nutriemzdpicts that were not produced by us which we kpsieharily in Chile.

Average prices for our specialty plant nutrients decreaseddprately 18% compared to 2008. Sales volume
for our specialty plant nutrients decreased approxima&@¥y. These declines in 2009 were due to general
adverse market conditions during 2009.

Much of 2009 was characterized by general market uncertamctyhe global economic slowdown. During the
first half of 2009, specialty fertilizer markets laggeghind 2008 market highs. Most distributors and esetsi
preferred to buy only minimum quantities or to posgparchases until market prices settled. Compared to the
fourth quarter of 2008 when markets began to declimefmigntly, the last quarter of 2009 reflected in our
view a shift in market conditions and market sentim&€he extreme caution observed at the end of 2008 and
during the first three quarters of 2009 has led tmeeroptimistic outlook for demand across all of our
fertilizer businesses. The important conclusion of mminegotiations between China and India and several
important potassium chloride producers has reduced theflgeice visibility that was keeping buyers on the
sidelines of potassium-based markets for much of 208% #esult, during the end of 2009 and the beginning
of 2010, we have observed demand recovery in potassiumdehinarkets. Potassium chloride is an important
raw material in the production of potassium nitrate] as a result, prices of the two products are related.
Although volumes were lower year-over-year, we observaokdive trend in volume recovery in this product
line as the year progressed.

lodine and its derivatives

Revenues for iodine and its derivatives during 2009edtalS$190.3 million, a 22.9% decrease compared to
the US$246.9 million reported for 2008. Set forth hedve sales volume data for the specified years.

(in Th. MT) 2009 2008 9% change
lodine and itS deriVALIVES ..........uueiiiit e e e eee e e e e s e 7.2 10.5 (32%)

In October 2008, we announced a price increase as a resuiteasing global demand, mainly driven by X-
ray contrast media and LCD polarizing film applicationsnbmed with lower-than expected supply from
other players in the industry.
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As a result of economic conditions in 2009, togethé¢h wur increased prices, volumes for our iodine and its
derivative products decreased approximately 32%. Averaggspn 2009 for iodine and its derivatives
increased approximately 13% as compared to 2008.

The decrease in sales volumes for iodine and its des@gateflects the general decrease in the use of
applications that are sensitive to economic growth, sutloagles used in paints for construction and nylon
used in the automotive industry, which were negativelycédd by global economic conditions. Our iodine
sales were also negatively affected by inventory optitimizahroughout the iodine supply chain. These
declines, however, were partially offset by stable demanpirfiacipal uses of iodine, such as human and
animal health and nutrition applications. Consistett wur leading position in this industry, we reduced o
sales volumes, helping to stabilize the market.

Sales volumes for the fourth quarter of 2009 were dvaw higher than sales during each of the first three
quarters of the year, suggesting a positive trendrmade in this market.

Lithium and its derivatives
Revenues for lithium and its derivatives totaled US$1iiliBon during 2009, a decrease of 31.6% with

respect to the US$172.3 million recorded for 2008 @t below are sales volume data for the specified
years.

(in Th. MT) 2009 2008 9% change
Lithium and itS derivatiVES ..........c..ueuiiieeieiiiiiieieee e e eee e 21.3 27.9 (24%)

Average prices for lithium and its derivatives decreased appately 10% and sales volumes decreased
approximately 24%. These declines were due to general trtarkditions observed during 2009.

To a large extent, lithium consumption is connectetiecauitomotive and construction industries, which
shrank as a result of the global financial crisis amhemic slowdown. Additionally, many companies
throughout the lithium supply chain optimized theirdntory levels. As a result, after more than a decade of
sustained growth, global demand for lithium in 20@@luhed.

In September 2009, we reduced prices of lithium carbaratdithium hydroxide 20% in order to accelerate
demand recovery, to create incentives for research of neuntithses, and to contribute to the sustainable
long-term development of the lithium market.

Average prices for lithium and its derivatives will bevéy in 2010 as a result of our 20% price reduction
announced in September 2009.

Despite these declines in 2009, sales volumes were hjgheer-over-quarter throughout the year. Consistent
with this tendency we have continued to observe posties of recovery during the first quarter of 2010 in
the lithium market. A strong rebound in demand fadiional, rechargeable batteries has driven volumes
during the first months of 2010.

Industrial chemicals

Industrial chemicals revenues for 2009 totaled US$1tHlbn, 6.6% lower than the US$123.6 million
recorded in 2008. Set forth below are sales volumefdathe specified years by product category.

(in Th. MT) 2009 2008 9% change
INAUSTIAL NITFALES ....veieieie e e e e e e eeeee e s 149.2 1619 (8%)
2] ¢ To3= Tox o USSR 3.4 7.2 (53%)

Average prices for industrial chemicals increased approgiyna¢o, while sales volume decreased
approximately 10%. Higher average prices were due tocaedse in sales of nitrates used for thermal storage
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for solar electricity generation which have higher primesverage than traditional markets for industrial
chemicals. Volumes decreased as demand declined for tratisjoplications of industrial chemicals, which
are closely tied to economic conditions.

While demand for traditional applications of indudtdaemicals was weak during much of 2009, we
experienced growth in demand for nitrates used in themm@ge for solar electricity generation. We expect
this trend to continue in the short- to medium- taismew projects continue to be developed. In additien,
believe volumes for traditional industrial applications, esplyoexplosives for infrastructure and civil works,
are also beginning to show positive signs of recovery.

Potassium chloride

Potassium chloride revenues for 2009 totaled US$28dliBrman increase of 103.4% compared to 2008,
when revenues amounted to US$140.0 million. Set foritwbate sales volume data for the specified years.

(in Th. MT) 2009 2008 9% change
Potassium ChIOTIAE...........uuiiiiiee e e e e e eeaeas 556.5 185.6 200%

As a result of market conditions, average prices for pataschloride significantly decreased during 2009.
Our sales volumes, however, increased approximately 2008%@uigh global demand for potassium chloride
declined during 2009, we were able to increase our s@eicantly as we were successful in further
penetrating this market and gaining market share.

Much of 2009 was characterized by uncertainty in the potasshloride market, and many buyers were
reluctant to make purchases due to a lack of price vigidburing the fourth quarter of 2009 and the first
three months of 2010, however, China and India setttategic contracts which established a floor in pricing,
encouraging other important buyers to return to the etddk the purchase of potassium chloride. This newly
established price has stirred recent demand at the distrigmd farmer levels worldwide. As a result, we
believe there are signs that demand has begun to increase.

Despite the difficult market conditions in 2009, demamtiamentals—such as population growth and
changing diets—for this sector remain intact. Compaunthe effects of these long-term fundamentals are
short-term demand drivers, such as the need to refiliisor inventories and to replenish soil nutrients.
We are well-positioned as a small player in the potassiioride market to capture future growth. Our
expansion plans in this business line have progresseticipated, and we expect 2010 production of
potassium related products from the Salar de Atacara kigher than production recorded in 2009.

Other commodity fertilizers

Revenues from sales of other commaodity fertilizers ahdrgiroducts totaled US$79.8 during 2009, a 29%
decline compared to US$112.3 million in 2008. Revenues imgpacted by lower demand for commodity
fertilizers and lower average prices.

Costs of sales

During 2009, costs of sales fell 13% from US$1,0561Bam (64% of revenues) in 2008 to US$916.1 million
in 2009 (60% of revenues). This decrease was mainly duditfeeent product mix and to lower unit costs as a
result of lower energy costs and a more favorable Ulg&rd€hilean peso exchange rate.

Gross profit

Gross profit decreased 28% from US$717.9 million i6& US$520.8 million in 2009. The decrease in

gross profit, as described above, was mainly due to Ipviegs and lower volumes in most of our product
lines.
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Selling and administrative expenses

Selling and administrative expenses totaled US$78.9 m{iics?% of revenues) for 2009, compared to the
US$85.7 million (4.8% of revenues) recorded for 2008.

Operating income

As a result of the factors described above, operatingriaatecreased 30% to US$441.9 million in 2009 from
US$632.2 million in 2008.

Non-operating income and expenses

We recorded a non-operating loss of US$37.0 milliar2699, which is higher than the US$19.3 million loss
recorded in 2008, primarily due to the following:
* in the fourth quarter of 2009, we made provisianrsdS$15 million related to the suspension of
operations at the El Toco and Pampa Blanca mining fasilith March 2010, operations at the El
Toco and Pampa Blanca mines were temporarily suspended deereased global demand for
nitrates and iodine during the preceding 15 months couptbchigh inventory levels of these
products;
« we have increased our financial debt, as well as our caitiopo since the fourth quarter of 2008,
which has led to higher interest expenses due to the negatiyeof debt; and
« we have obtained lower earnings from investmentsla&e@ companies which also affected non-
operating results, as the fertilizer business activitiegsipoffshore affiliates were affected by lower
global fertilizer prices.

Income taxes

In 2009, income taxes were US$76.5 million, resultingn effective consolidated tax rate of 18.9% compared
to income taxes of US$108.0 million in 2008 and an dffectonsolidated tax rate of 17.6%. In accordance
with Chilean law, SQM and each of its Chilean subsidiart@spute and pay taxes on an individual basis, not
on a consolidated basis.

The corporate income tax rate in Chile was 17% for 20022808. Our effective tax rate is higher than the
Chilean rate primarily because our foreign operationsagct to higher tax rates.

Results of Operations — 2008 compared to 2007

During 2008, we generated total revenues of US$1,774liorm which was 49.4% higher than the
US$1,187.5 million recorded for 2007.

The main factors that explain the increase in revenues andatiations in the different product lines are as
discussed below:

Specialty Plant Nutrition

Revenues from sales of specialty plant nutrients productsased 68.6% from US$580.8 million in 2007 to
US$978.9 million in 2008. Set forth below are saldsw@ data in the specified year by product category.

(in Th. MT) 2008 2007 % change
Yo To (18] 0 0 011 = 1= T TP PP TP PP PPPPPRRROPP 22.8 45.9 (50%)
Potassium nitrate and sodium potassium NItrate............cccvveeeveeeereriniiiiiiieeeeeennn 538.2 695.3 (23%)
POLaSSIUM SUITALE .....cciiiiiiiiiiieie et et e s et e e e eeae s 138.3 172.0 (20%)
Blended and other specialty fertilizers ......ccccooooiiiiiiii e, 2059 2615 (21%)
Other non-SQM specialty plant NUIHENTS(L) .eeeeeevveereeieriiiiiiiiieeee e 103.1 1171 (12%)

(1) Consists of certain specialty plant nutriemsdpicts that were not produced by us which we kpsieharily in Chile.
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The year-over-year growth in revenues was due to subshahigther prices, which more than offset a decline
in sales volumes. On average, specialty plant nutrients pnicesased 116% compared to 2007. This increase
is a result of an increase in prices for potassium-relatgitiZers reflecting the long-term scarcity of
production capacity. Furthermore, the specialized natfuiteis product line continued to command higher
prices for our specialty plant nutrients products.

Sales volume for specialty plant nutrients across our maikets fell year-over-year as farmers were mainly
affected by tight credit conditions generated by globalrfanal crisis and economic slowdown.

lodine and its derivatives

Revenues for iodine and its derivatives amounted to US$2dilion, 14.8% higher than the US$215.1
million recorded for 2007. Set forth below are salesiva data for the specified years.

(in Th. MT) 2008 2007 9% change
10diNe aNd ItS AEIVALIVES .......couvvnieiii et e e e e e eeebaaas 10.5 9.1 15%

Our results from iodine and its derivatives for 20@8ewdriven by an increase in volumes. The increaserin ou
volumes resulted from both market growth and our ghilitcapture market share. The tightness in the market
prompted SQM to announce in the fourth quarter 6828 price increase of approximately 25%.

During the first half of 2008, demand growth in tbhdine market was sustained by demand for polarizing fi
in LCDs, x-ray contrast media for diagnostic imaging arichahfeed and human nutrition applications. In the
second half of 2008, demand for iodine salts used in L&idsnylon applications for the automotive industry
began to decline. However, as mentioned above, the ok&salts remain positive.

Lithium and its derivatives

Revenues for lithium and its derivatives decreased 4% tdT25% million in 2008 from US$179.8 million in
2007. Set forth below are sales volume data forpkeied years.

(in Th. MT) 2008 2007 9% change
Lithium and itS deriVatiVES ...........uuiiiiieeieiiiiiie e eee e 27.9 28.6 (2%)

Our results for lithium and its derivatives productsZ608 were a result of lower volumes and slightly lowe
prices due to the global economic slowdown. Many applieatior lithium are related to the construction
industry, which contracted significantly during 200&atfng sales volumes in the last part of 2008.

Industrial chemicals

Revenues for industrial chemicals increased 52.2% to US$h@Bion in 2008 from US$81.2 million in
2007. Set forth below are sales volume data forpkeiSed years by product category.

(in Th. MT) 2008 2007 % change
INAUSTIAI NITFALES ....veiiiiieie e e e e as 161.9 175.2 (8%)
270 ] g To3E= Tox (o F PP P T UTP RO TP 7.2 9.2 (22%)

Revenues from industrial chemicals increased in 2008 laggedyresult of rising prices. Prices of industrial
nitrates and prices of specialty plant nutrients areeatlir related, and on average prices for this product line
were approximately 66% higher than they were in 200 the global economic slowdown, sales volumes
for industrial nitrates declined approximately 8% i®2@s compared to 2007, with a pronounced drop in the
fourth quarter.
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Potassium chloride
Revenues from potassium chloride increased 173% frofisUS million in 2007 to US$140.0 million in
2008. Set forth below are sales volume data forpkeied years.

(in Th. MT) 2008 2007 9% change
Potassium ChIOTIAE...........viiiiiiei e e e e e e eeeaee 185.6 179.0 4%

The increase in year-over-year potassium chloride revenues reaslt of a substantial increase in prices due
to growing demand and tight supply in the market. Re$pwer demand in the fourth quarter of 2008, we
were able to sell our potassium chloride given ouriveigt small size in this market.

In 2008, global potassium chloride prices experiencedtaised increase in recent periods, due to the
combined effect of tight supply and growing demand.

Other commodity fertilizers

Revenues from sales of other commodity fertilizers irsgddrom US$79.4 million in 2007 to US$112.3
million in 2008 as a result of better pricing condisoWe recorded losses during the fourth quarter of 808
inventories of nitrogen and phosphate fertilizers reltddohding activities; these inventories were acquired in
previous periods but were negatively impacted by thardeglprices in the latter part of 2008.

Costs of sales

During the first nine months of 2008, costs of saleseased due to the appreciation of the peso and higher
costs of oil and raw materials. However, in the foguhrter of 2008, the U.S. dollar began to strengthen
against the peso, alleviating peso-denominated costs andingvitre rising cost trend that had prevailed in
previous years. Furthermore, freight rates, oil priceslaadost of raw materials began to fall during the
second half of 2008.

Gross profit
Gross profit increased 118% from US$329.8 million®2to US$717.9 million in 2008. The increase in the
gross profit, as explained above, was primarily a re$tiigher prices in our main businesses and higher

volumes in iodine which helped us to offset lower satdames in the specialty plant nutrients business line,
and slightly higher costs.

Selling and administrative expenses

Selling and administrative expenses totaled US$85.7 m{iid% of revenues) for 2008, compared to
US$70.3 million (5.9% of revenues) recorded during 20@iese higher expenses were mainly the result of
increased sales commissions in the specialty plant nisttieisiness line.

Operating income

As a result of the factors described above, operatingriadéocreased 144% to US$632.2 million in 2008 from
US$259.5 million in 2007.

Non-operating income and expenses
We recorded a non-operating loss of US$19.3 millior2808 which is lower than the US$27.1 million loss
recorded for 2007. The decrease in the non-operatingviasgrimarily a result of higher interest income,

which increased from US$9.3 million in 2007 to US$1Bifion in 2008, and relatively stable interest
expenses.
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Income taxes

In 2008, income taxes were US$108.0 million, resulitingn effective consolidated tax rate of 17.6%,
compared to income taxes of US$48.6 million and an effectnsolidated tax rate of 20.9% in 2007. In
accordance with Chilean law, SQM and each of its Chileandiabies compute and pay taxes on an individual
basis, not on a consolidated basis. We had tax lossfoawgrds of US$16.9 million as of December 31,
2008, the majority of which have no expiration datesardexpected to be utilized in the future.

The corporate income tax rate in Chile was 17% for 20808807. The Company's effective tax rate is higher
than the Chilean rate mainly because its foreign operadr@nsubject to higher tax rates.

The 122% increase in income taxes was mainly due to theagein our taxable income.

Foreign Exchange Rates and Inflation

We transact a significant portion of our business in daBars, which is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which we operate and is our functionalenwy for financial reporting purposes. A significant
portion of our operating costs is related to the @hilpeso, and therefore an increase or decrease in the
exchange rate between the Chilean peso and the U.S. dollas affieciosts of production. Additionally, as an
international company operating in Chile and several athentries, we transact a portion of our business and
have assets and liabilities in Chilean pesos and other raneldllar currencies, such as the Euro, the South
African Rand and the Mexican peso. As a result, fluctuatiortie exchange rate of such currencies to the
U.S. dollar affect our financial condition and results pérations.

The following is a summary of the aggregate net monetastsassd liabilities that are subject to foreign
exchange gain or loss by currency at December 31, 2009 88d 20

2009 2008
Th US$ Th US$
Chilean pesos (271,513 (104,605
Brazilian real (1,303 (1,367)
Euro 13,821 64,627
Japanese yen 832 1,033
Mexican pesos 667 2,188
South African rand 28,868 11,584
Dirhams 22,575 15,353
Other currencies 16,968 14,971
Total, net (189,085 3,784

We monitor and attempt to maintain our non-dollar tzsand liabilities position in balance and make use of
foreign exchange contracts and other hedging instrumertty to minimize our exposure to the risks of

changes in foreign exchange rates. As of December 31, #008is purpose we had open forward exchange
contracts and options to buy U.S. dollars and sebidor currency for approximately 26.5 million Euros

(US$38 million), and 222 million South African RanddS$30.7 million), as well as forward exchange

contracts to sell U.S. dollars and buy Chilean pesospjmmoaimately 38,911 million Chilean Pesos (US$76.7
million).

Also, we had open forward exchange contracts to buy U.&rsl@nd sell Chilean pesos to hedge our time
deposits in Chilean Pesos for approximately 136,487amilChilean Pesos (US$269.2 million) and forward

contracts to buy U.S. dollars and sell Chilean pesospfamoaimately 25,710 million Chilean Pesos (US$50.7
million) that we used to hedge our fertilizer tradimgsiness in Chile.

Additionally, we had open forward exchange contracts andmptio buy U.S. dollars and sell foreign
currency to hedge part of our future Euro cash flowsypproximately 41.3 million Euros (US$59.1 million)

The net impact of price level adjustments to non-monetargtsasand liabilities and equity for those
subsidiaries that maintain their accounting records ine@hipesos is presented in the Chilean GAAP
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financial statements as part of the net foreign excharige gad losses and is affected by the level of inflation
in Chile. Although other income statement accounts ateafiected by monetary correction adjustments,
operating expenses that are denominated in UF or are linkieflation in some manner increase their U.S.
dollar values in the same way inflation increases (asgyithat the exchange rate remains unchanged).

The prospects and results of operations of SQM could bersaly affected by changes in policies of the
Chilean government, other political developments in cectifig Chile, and regulatory and legal changes or
administrative practices of Chilean authorities, over tviwe have no control.

U.S. GAAP Reconciliation

This discussion on our operating and financial resuits @ndition presented above is based on our primary
financial statements prepared in accordance with ChileanfG&hilean GAAP differs significantly in certain
aspects from U.S. GAAP. The principal differences betweele@hiGAAP and U.S. GAAP as they relate to
our Company are (i) the elimination of the effects o téachnical appraisal of property, plant and equipment
undertaken in 1988, (i) the effects of elimination obmatary correction (price-level restatement) and
conversion of financial statements of subsidiaries that Kesip accounting records in currencies other than
U.S. dollars, (iii) the accounting for derivative contgadiv) the accounting for staff severance indemnities,
(v) treatment of goodwill, and (vi) the elimination déferred tax complementary accounts. For further
details of these differences between Chilean GAAP and U.8FG#ee Note 30 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Net income under U.S. GAAP for 2009, 2008, and 2007 W8%$349.4 million, US$506.7 million and
US$200.2 million, respectively, compared to that repodeder Chilean GAAP of US$327.1 million,
US$501.4 million and US$180.0 million, respectively.

Total shareholders' equity under U.S. GAAP at Decembgl@19 and 2008 was US$1,481.2 million and
US$1,415.3, respectively, compared to that reported u@thlean GAAP of US$1,466.6 million and
US$1,463.1 million, respectively.

5.B. Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2009, we had US$545.4 million of casth cash equivalents and time deposits. In
addition, as of December 31, 2009, we had unused uncommitdd lines amounting to US$470.5 million
and unused committed credit lines amounting to US$40lomilWe renewed part of these committed lines
during 2009 for a period of 3 years.

Shareholders' equity remained relatively unchanged fr&@®1(#63.1 million in 2008 to US$1,466.6 million in
2009. Our ratio of total liabilities to equity plus miitg interest on a consolidated basis increased fromds70
of December 31, 2008 to 1.12 as of December 31, 2009.

We evaluate from time to time our cash requirements to funilataxpenditures, dividend payouts and
increases in working capital. If we consider that ouerimally generated cash flows will not be sufficient we
evaluate and choose the best financial alternative availabte s debt requirements also depend on the level
of accounts receivables and inventories, we cannot accuratelynifeg the amount of debt we will require.
However, we believe that our cash flow generated by operatiasl balances and available credit lines will
enable us to meet our working capital, capital expendituredaht service requirements for 2010, 2011 and
2012.
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The table below sets forth SQM's cash flows for 2000822007:

(in millions of U.S. dollars) 2009 2008 2007

Cash generated by (used in):

Operating activities 371.4 457.3 311.3
Financing activities 202.5 (38.4) (157.1)
Investing activities (373.0) (278.8) (174.2)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 26.6 2 139.6 (19.7)

We operate a capital-intensive business that requires signmificestments in revenue-generating assets. Our
growth strategy has included the purchase of productiofitiesciand equipment and has also included the
improvement and expansion of existing facilities. Furfdis capital expenditures and working capital
requirements have been obtained from net cash provided drgtimg activities, corporate borrowing under
credit facilities and issuance of debt securities.

Our capital expenditures, not considering capitalizedesteamounted to US$357.0 million in 2009.

For 2010, we expect total capital expenditures of approrisn&tS$370 million, and we expect total capital
expenditures of approximately US$280 million in 2011, ckh¢an be increased or decreased depending on
market conditions.

Our other major use of funds is the payment of dividekds declared US$325.9 million, US$217.0 million
and US$91.8 million in dividends during the years 2@@8 and 2007 respectively. On March 16, 2010, our
Board of Directors agreed to propose a modification t@2609 dividend policy that would lower the dividend
rate from 65% to 50% of net income. This modificaticasvapproved at the annual shareholders meeting held
on April 29, 2010. Under Chilean law, the minimumidend payout is 30% of net income for each fiscal year.

Financing activities

Our current ratio (current assets divided by current ligds) increased from 3.0x as of December 31, 2008 to
3.2x as of December 31, 2009. The following table seth key information about our outstanding debt as of
December 31, 2009:

Financial instruments Interest rate Issue date Matuity date  Amortization

Bond—CHS$ 21,000 million(1) .......ccccee.... 00% Jan. 13, 2009 Jan. 5,2014 Bullet

Bond—UF 1.50 million(1) ......cccceveeeiienene 3.00% May 8, 2009 Apr. 11,2014 Bullet

Bond—CH$ 52,000 million(1) .......cccovvveneee 56% May 8, 2009 Apr.1,2014 Bullet

Bond—US$200 millioNn .......ccoeeevvvvieeeriiennns 6.125% Apr. 5, 2006 Apr. 15,2016 Bullet

Bond—UF 2.55 million(1) .......ccceevvervennnen. 4.00% Jan. 24, 2006 Dec. 1, 202&emiannual partial
amortization beginning
in 2007

Bond—UF 4.00 million(1) ......ccceevveeeieeneenne 4.90% Jan. 13, 2009 Jan. 5, 203Gemiannual, beginning
in 2019

Syndicated loan—US$100 million............... 3NMBOR + 0.375% Mar. 3, 2005 Feb. 25, 2010 Bullet

Bilateral loan—US$50 million .................... 6M LIBOR +1.50%  Dec. 24, 2008 Dec. 24,2010 Bullet

Bilateral loan—US$20 million ................... 6M LIBOR + 3.30% Mar. 20, 2009 Mar. 20, 2011 Bullet

Bilateral loan—US$10 million ................... 6M LIBOR + 3.30% Mar. 23, 2009 Mar. 23, 2011 Bullet

Syndicated loan—US$80 million ................ &MBOR + 0.30%  Nov. 28, 2006 Nov. 28,2011 Bullet

Syndicated loan—US$75 million................. BBOR + 3.00%  Jun. 30, 2009 Jun. 24,2012 Bullet

Bilateral loan—US$40 million ................... 3M LIBOR +2.25%  Sep. 11, 2009 Sep. 11, 2012 Bullet

Bilateral loan—US$140 million ................. MALIBOR + 2.10%  Oct. 29, 2009 Oct. 29, 2014 Bullet

(1) UF- and Ch$- denominated bonds are fully hedgédi $o dollars with cross-currency swaps.
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As of December 31, 2009, we had total debt of US&13Bnillion, compared to total debt of US$657.7
million as of December 31, 2008. Taking into accountefffiects of financial derivatives, total debt amounted
to US$1,238.6 million as of December 31, 2009 and USd6aillion as of December 31, 2008. Of the total
debt as of December 31, 2009, US$267.1 million was-$aon debt. All of our long-term debt (including the

current portion) as of December 31, 2009 was denominatgdsindollars, and all our UF and Ch$ local bonds
were hedged with cross-currency swaps to the U.S.rdolla

From December 31, 2009 to the date of this reportepaid or renewed the following debt:

e on January 26, 2010, we paid short-term bank debty eEm@ount of US$10 million with a term of 11
months and an annual interest rate of approximatelyr 1il#h4%.

e on February 12, 2010, we paid short-term bank debt, dested February 20, 2009, in an amount of
US$20 million with a term of 1 year and an annualrggerate of approximately Libor + 2.585%.

e on February 22, 2010, we renewed a short-term bank idedty amount of US$14.5 million with a
term of 6 months and an annual interest rate of approsfyniaibor + 0.557%.

e on February 25, 2010, we renewed a short-term bank idedrt amount of US$20 million with a term
of 3 months and an annual interest rate of approximhaiietr + 0.6%.

e on February 25, 2010, we paid a US$100 million craglieement, dated as of February 25, 2005, with
a term of 5 years and an annual interest rate of approxjnabelr + 0.375%.

e« on March 17, 2010, we paid commercial papers, dated daath 24, 2009, in an amount of Th
Ch$15,000,000 (US$29 million) with a term of 9 man#nd an annual interest rate of approximately
3.3% in pesos.

The financial covenants related to our debt instrumentade: (i) limitations on the ratio of total liabiliti¢e
equity (including minority interest) on a consolidateabib, (ii) limitations on the ratio of total liabilitige
equity (including minority interest) on an unconsatiel basis, (iii) minimum net worth requirements, (iv)
limitations on net financial debt to EBITDA (operatiimcome plus amortization expense plus depreciation
plus dividends received from investment in relate comparadis) on a consolidated basis, (V) limitations on
interest indebtedness of operating subsidiaries and (@ijpmaim production assets. We believe that the terms
and conditions of our debt agreements are standard andhewgtand that we are in compliance in all material
respects with such terms and conditions.

The following table sets forth the maturities of camd-term debt by year December 31, 2009:

Maturity(1)

(in millions of US$) Amount
220 1 PSR 115.1¢
2002 e ————— 444414t E ettt oo 4o o h R EE e et eeae oL b E e e et e e e e e e aa et naer e et ae e e e s aannnne s 120.1
220 1 PR 5.1
2 PR 327.2¢
20 1 PR 5.1
2016 AN tNEIEAMET ... .eiieiiee ettt e e e e s ettt e e e s e s e et e e e e e e s e bbb e b e eeeeeeeeas 402.8
LI ] = L TP PP PP PPP TR 975.6:

(1) Only the capital has been included. For the UF @h#l local bonds, the amounts presented reflectethieU.S. dollar
obligation resulting from the effects of the crassrency swaps that hedge these bonds to the Oli&r.d

From December 31, 2009 to the time this report wasapeglp we renewed or issued the following debt:

e on February 22, 2010, we renewed a short-term bank idebty amount of US$14.5 million with a
term of 6 months and an annual interest rate of approsfyniaibor + 0.557%.

e on February 25, 2010, we renewed a short-term bank idedrt amount of US$20 million with a term
of 3 months and an annual interest rate of approximatietr + 0.6%.
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e on March 31, 2010, we entered into a short-term bankfdetdS$5 million, with a term of 1 month
and an annual interest rate of approximately Libor $%.5

e on April 21, 2010, we issued in the U.S. market a lafldS$250 million with an annual interest rate
of 5.5%. The interest will be paid semi-annually and thetalawill be paid in a single amortization
during April, 2020.

« on May 26, 2010, we renewed a short-term bank debt, in anrarabUS$20 million with a term of 1
month and an annual interest rate of approximatelyrLil®0o2541%.

Environmental Projects

In 2009 we made disbursements amounting to US$9.7omitelated to environmental, safety and health
projects. We have budgeted future disbursements for the2@d@@ramounting to US$11.1 million related to
environmental, safety and health projects. This amounmtd@art of the capital expenditure program discussed
above. Regarding the Maria Elena Project as well as oer athjor environmental projects see ltem 4.
Information on the Company—Environmental Regulations.

5.C. Research and Development, Patents and Licenses, etc

One of the main objectives of our research and developmentisea develop new processes and products in
order to maximize the returns obtained from the resouhz¢sve exploit. The areas of research cover topics
such as chemical process design, phase chemistry, chemicaianayhodologies and physical properties of
finished products.

There are four units that perform this function eaclwliith reports to one of the Senior VP of Nitrate and
lodine Operations, to the Senior VP of Nueva Victoria @pens, to the Senior VP of Salar Operations, and
to the Senior VP of Safety, Health and Environment.

Our research and development policy emphasizes the follo@raptimization of current processes in order
to decrease costs and improve product quality through ntipdefnentation of new technology, and (ii)
development of higher-margin products from current petslthrough vertical integration or different product
specifications.

Our research and development activities have been instrunmemaproving our production processes and
developing new value-added products. As a result of reseathdevelopment activities, new methods of
extraction, crystallization and finishing have been developedhnological advances in recent years have
enabled us to improve process efficiency for the nitratgspaum and lithium operations, to improve the
physical quality of our prilled products and to reducetdemissions and caking by applying specially-
designed additives for our products handled in bulk.

We have patented several production processes for nitratee,iaiid lithium products. These patents have
been filed mainly in the United States, Chile, and in otentries when necessary.

For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007,ent $8$4.6 million, US$2.6 million, and

US$2.8 million, respectively, on research and developméinttas.

5.D. Trend Information

Market sentiment in general has begun to improve in thenfiosths of 2010, and as a result we expect that in
2010 sales volumes across our business lines will heehigan sales volumes in 2009.

In 2009, the prices of our specialty plant nutrition segndecreased compared to 2008, due to general market
uncertainty in potassium fertilizer markets. Althougisidifficult to accurately predict prices in this segment
for the second half of 2010, we believe prices will remalatively flat or slightly lower compared to prices
observed during the first half of 2010. Sales volumepaifissium nitrate and sodium potassium nitrate
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decreased during 2009 with respect to 2008. We believe sdlesesocould increase in 2010 compared to
20009.

Lithium prices fell slightly in 2009 compared to 2008,aaresult of a price decrease announced in September
of 2009. Prices were cut in late 2009 as a measure tolat@mdemand, and prices have remained relatively
stable in the following months. Sales volumes in 200%wewer than 2008 as a result of the economic
downturn. However, given recent signs of economic recovettyeiithium market, we expect sales volumes
in 2010 to be higher than 2009.

In late 2008 we announced an increase in iodine prices, anceasltaiodine prices increased approximately
13% in 2009 compared to 2008. We expect prices in 20X8nbain relatively stable compared to average
2009 prices. Sales volumes in 2009 were lower than 2608 result of deteriorated economic conditions. The
first months of 2010 have shown signs of improvemerthée iodine industry, and we believe that our sales
volumes for this business segment could increase in 2010.

Prices for industrial-grade nitrates increased in 2009 mpaed to 2008. It is difficult to predict at this &m
what prices for industrial-grade nitrates will be in thamfature given that they are to a certain extent linked
to the prices of agricultural-grade nitrates.

Prices of potassium chloride during the first half 0£@@n general have been relatively stable. At this stage,
the Company cannot predict what the price trends will b@0&d onwards. Despite prevailing industry trends,
sales volumes in 2009 were significantly higher than 2@a8.small size in this market allows us flexibility
in making sales. We believe that our sales volumes fstdgment will double in 2010.

During 2009, production costs were lower than in 2008inly due to a different product mix and to lower
unit costs as a result of lower energy costs and a mooeafsle U.S. dollar/Chilean peso exchange rate. We
expect that 2010 productions costs will be slightlyhkigthan in 2009 due to a less favorable U.S.
dollar/Chilean peso exchange rate and higher energy costs.

5.E. Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have not entered into any transactions with unconsetidmtities whereby we have financial guarantees,
retained or contingent interests in transferred asdets/ative instruments or other contingent arrangements
that would expose us to material continuing risks, ingent liabilities, or any other obligation arising @fita
variable interest in an unconsolidated entity that proviidesicing, liquidity, market risk or credit risk suppo

to us or that engages in leasing, hedging or research andmteeeit services with us.

5.F. Tabular Disclosure of Contractual Obligations

The following table sets forth our material expecobligations and commitments as of December
20009:

Less Than 1-3 3 -5 More Than

Total 1 year years Years 5years

ThUuS$ ThUuS$ ThUuS$ ThUuS$ ThUuS$

Long- and short-term debt (*) 1,287,84 252,627 110,000 460,905 464,3:
Capital lease obligations 487 30C 187 - -
Operating leases (**) 198,463 9,021 18,042 18,042 153,3!
Purchase commitments 122,651 115,257 7,394 - -
Staff severance indemnities 29,444 - - - 29,4«
Lotal Contractual Obligations and 1,638,89. 377,205 135623 478,947 6471’

(*) Only the Capital has been included and the ctffef the cros
currency swap
(**) See Consolidated Financial Statements Notél.3€)
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ITEM 6. DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES

6.A. Directors and Senior Management

We are managed by our executive officers under the directioardoard of Directors, which, in accordance
with the Company's By-laws, consists of eight directsesien of whom are elected by holders of Series A
shares and one of whom is elected by holders of Seriea®sshThe entire Board of Directors is regularly
elected every three years at our ordinary shareholdersingeegtumulative voting is allowed for the election
of directors. At the annual ordinary shareholders’ mgehat took place on April 30, 2008, a new Board was
elected, and their terms will expire in 2011. The Boardw&ctors may appoint replacements to fill any
vacancies that occur during periods between elections. If acyaceaurs, the entire Board must be elected or
re-elected at the next regularly scheduled meeting of shdegkol Our Chief Executive Officer is appointed
by the Board of Directors and holds office at the disoretif the Board. The Chief Executive Officer
appoints our executive officers. There are regularly schednkstings of the Board of Directors once a
month. Extraordinary meetings may be called by the Chaimni@n requested by (i) the director elected by
holders of the Series B shares, (ii) any other direcithn the assent of the Chairman or (iii) an absolute
majority of all directors. The Board has a Direct@smmittee and its regulations are discussed below.

Our directors as of May 31, 2010 are as follows:

Directors
Name Position Current position held since

Julio Ponce L. (Z Chairman of the Board and Direc September 19¢

Mr. Ponce is a Forestry Engineer with a degree fron

Universidad de Chile. He joined the Company in 1981.

He is also Chairman of the board of directors of the

following corporations: Sociedad de Inversiones Pampa

Calichera S.A., Sociedad de Inversiones Oro Blanco

S.A., Norte Grande S.A. and Soquimich Comercial S.A.

He is the brother of Eugenio Ponce.

Wayne R. Brownle Vice Chairman of the Boaland Directo December 20C

Mr. Brownlee is Executive Vi-President, Treasur

and Chief Financial Officer of Potash Corporation of
Saskatchewan, Inc. Mr. Brownlee earned degrees in

Arts and Science and Business Administration from the

University of Saskatchewan. He is on the board of

directors of Great Western Brewing Company. He

became a director of SQM in December 2001

Hernan Biichi E Directol April 1993

Mr. Bichi is a Civil Engineer with a degree from
Universidad de Chile. He served as Vice Chairman of
SQM's Board from January 2000 to April 2002. He is
currently a member of the board of directors of
Quifienco S.A., S.A.C.l. Falabella and Madeco S.A.,
among others. He is also Chairman of the board of
directors of Universidad del Desarrollo.
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José Maria Eyzaguirre

Daniel Yarur E

Wolf von Apper

Eduardo Novoa (

Directol December 20(
Mr. Eyzaguirre is a lawyer and is a partner of
Chilean law firm Claro y Cia. He obtained his law
degree from the Universidad de Chile and was admitted
to the Chilean Bar in 1985. In 1987, he obtained a
Master's Degree from the New York University School
of Law. He was admitted to the New York Bar in 1988.
He is also a member of the board of directors of D&S,
an affiliate of Wal-Mart, Gasoducto del Pacifico S.A., a
transandean gas pipeline, Embotelladora Andina S.A., a
bottler of The Coca Cola Company, and Chairman of the
board of directors of Club de Golf Valle Escondido.

Directol April 2003
Mr. Yarur is an Information Engineer with a deg
from the Universidad de Chile and holds an MSc in
Finance from the London School of Economics and an
AMP from Harvard Business School. He is a member
of the board of directors of Banco de Crédito e
Inversiones, Antofagasta P.L.C. (based in London),
Antofagasta Minerals, President Fundacién Chilena de
Ajedrez and President Fondo de Inversiones Alekine.
Mr. Yarur was Chairman of the Chilean Securities and
Exchange Commission from 1994 to 2000 and was also
Chairman of the Council Organization of the Securities
Regulators of America. He is also a Professor in the
Faculty of Economic and Administrative Sciences,
Universidad de Chile.

Directol May 200t
Mr. Von Appen is an entrepreneur. He is current

member of the board of directors of Sociedad de
Fomento Fabril and Vice President of Centro de
Estudios Publicos.

Directol April 200€
Mr. Novoa is an economist with a degrfrom the
Universidad de Chile and holds a Master in Business
Administration from the University of Chicago. He has
held positions in business development, corporate level
strategic direction and asset management at a number of
Chilean and multinational companies, either as a
member of the board of directors, Chief Development
Officer, Country Manager or CEO. Currently, Mr.
Novoa provides strategic advisory services and is a
member of the board of several private companies.
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Kendrick T. Wallac

Directol December 20C
Mr. Wallace is a lawyer who graduated from Hary
Law School. He is currently a consultant to certain
fertilizer industry companies. Until July 1, 2008 avh

he retired, he was Senior Vice President and General
Counsel of Yara International ASA in Oslo, Norway.
Prior to the spin-off of Yara International ASA from
Norsk Hydro ASA, he was the chief legal counsel of
Norsk Hydro ASA for North and South America in
Tampa, Florida. Before that he was a partner in tie la
firm of Bryan Cave LLP in Kansas City, Missouri. He
is also on the board of directors of Sociedad de
Inversiones Pampa Calichera S.A.
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Our executive officers as of May 31, 2010 are as follows:

Executive Officers
Name Position Current position held since

Patricio Contesse (2) Chief Executive Office March 199i
Mr. Contesse is a Forestry Engineer with a degree
the Universidad de Chile. He joined the Company in
1981 as CEO, a position he held until 1982, and again in
1988 for one year. In the past, he was CEO of Celco
Limitada, Schwager S.A. and Compafiia de Aceros del
Pacifico S.A. He has also served as Operations Senior
Executive Vice President of Codelco Chile, President of
Codelco USA and Executive President of Codelco
Chile. Mr. Contesse is also a member of the board of
directors of Soquimich Comercial S.A.

Patricio de Solminihac 7  Chief Operating Officer ar January 20C
Executive Vice President
Mr. de Solminihac is an Industrial Engineer witt
degree from the Pontificia Universidad Catdlica de Chile
and holds a Master in Business Administration from the
University of Chicago. He joined the Company in 1988
as Business Development Vice President. Currently he
is a member of the board of directors of Melon S.A. and
CEM S.A. Mr. de Solminihac is also a member of the
board of directors of Soquimich Comercial S.A.

Matias Astaburuaga General Counsel and Senior Vice Presi February 198
Mr. Astaburuaga is a lawyer with a degree from
Pontificia Universidad Catélica de Chile. He joined the
Company in 1989. Before that, he was Regional
Counsel of The Coca Cola Export Corporation, Andean
Region and Regional Counsel of American Life
Insurance Company, Latin America Region.

Ricardo Ramos F Chief Financial Officer ar November 199
Business Development Senior Vice President
Mr. Ramos is an Industrial Engineer with a degree 1
the Pontificia Universidad Catélica de Chile. He joined
SQM in 1989. Mr. Ramos is also a member of the board
of directors of Soquimich Comercial S.A.
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Jaime San Martin (2)

Eugenio Ponce L

Mauricio Cabello C

Pauline De Vidts ¢

Nueva Victoria Operations Senior Vice Presic March 200i
Mr. San Martin is a Transportation Engir with a

degree from the Pontificia Universidad Catolica de

Chile. He joined the Company in 1995 as Project
Manager. He became Metallic Mining Development
Manager in 1997, and Development Manager in 1998,
Business Development and Mining Property Vice
President in 1999, Technical Senior Vice President in

2001, and Senior Vice President of Lithium Operations

and Mining Affairs in January 2007.

Senior Commercial Vice Presid March 199!
Mr. Ponce is a Mechanical Engineer with a degree-

the Universidad Catolica de Valparaiso. In 1981, he

joined the Company as a Sales Manager. He became
Commercial Manager in 1982, Commercial and
Operations Manager in 1988 and Chief Executive

Officer of SQM Nitratos S.A. in 1991. Currently heais

member of the board of Soquimich Comercial S.A. and

Vice Chairman of the board of directors of Pampa
Calichera. He is Julio Ponce’s brother.

Nitrates«lodine Operations Senior Vice Presid June 200
Mr. Cabello is a Mechanical Engineer with a deg

from the Universidad de Santiago de Chile. He joined

the Company in 2000 as Maintenance Superintendent of
SQM Salar. He became Maintenance Manager of
SQM'’s nitrates and iodine operations in 2002 and
Production Manager of SQM’'s nitrates and iodine
operations in 2004. He previously worked in various
engineering-related positions in Pesquera San José S.A.,
Pesquera Coloso S.A. and Cintac S.A.

Safety, Health & Environment Senior Vice Presii June 200
Mrs. De Vidts is an Industrial Engineer with a dec

from the Pontificia Universidad Catdélica de Chile and

holds a Ph.D. in Chemical Engineering from Texas

A&M University. She joined the Company in 1996 to

work in process development for the Salar de Atacama
Operations, becoming Development Manager for these
operations in 1998, and in 2001, she became Corporate
R&D and Environmental Issues Vice President.
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Juan Carlos Barrera (2) Salar and Lithium Operations Senior Vice Presi January 20C
Mr. Barrera is an Industrial Engineer with a degree f
the Pontificia Universidad Catdlica de Chile and holds a
Master in Business Administration degree from Tulane
University and a Master in Business Administration
degree from Universidad de Chile. He joined the
Company in 1991 as an advisor in the Business
Development area and has served in many positions
since then. In 1995, he became Business Development
Manager of SQM Nitratos S.A. In 1999, he became the
Corporate Quality Manager, in 2000 Corporate Supply
Chain Vice President and, in 2006, General Manager of
Soquimich Comercial S.A. Mr. Barrera is also a member
of the board of directors of Soquimich Comercial S.A.

Daniel Jiménez Scl Human Resources and Corporate Af May 200"
Senior Vice President
Mr. Jiménez is an Industrial Engineer with a det
from the Pontificia Universidad Cat6lica de Chile and
holds a Master in Business Administration degree from
Old Dominion University. He joined the Company in
1991, holding several positions in the finance and sales
areas at SQM'’s headquarters and foreign subsidiaries in
USA and Belgium, countries he was based in for eight
years. In 2002, he became VP Sales and Marketing
lodine, Lithium and Industrial Chemicals

Q) Mr. Julio Ponce’s ownership interest in SQM is expéd in Item 6.E. Share Ownership.
2) The individual beneficially owns less than one petmf the Company’s shares.

6.B. Compensation

During 2009, directors were paid a monthly fee (UF 80the Chairman and UF 50 to each of the remaining
seven directors), which was independent of attendance and tHeemofmBoard sessions. In addition, the

directors received variable compensation (in Chilean pé&ssgd on a profit-sharing program approved by the
shareholders. In 2009, the Chairman received the equival@®b0% of 2008 net income and the remaining
seven directors received the equivalent of 0.50% of 200@c@ine, divided equally among those directors.

At the annual general shareholders meeting of SQM helpril 2009, shareholders approved a change in
variable compensation for the 2009 fiscal year to an amourtl @éq 0.35% of 2009 net income for the

Chairman of the Board and of 0.04% of 2009 net incomedah of the remaining seven Directors. Profit-
sharing payments are paid in the year following tbeali year in which they are earned.

In addition, during 2009, members of the Directors Comemitvere paid 50UF each month regardless of the
number of sessions held by the Committee. On April22,0, the Annual General Shareholders Meeting of
SQM agreed to pay a monthly remuneration of 17UF to eaghlrar of the Directors Committee, regardless

of the number of sessions held by the Committee duriagéhniod between May 2010 and April 2011, both

months included. Additionally, shareholders approvedaky compensation for the 2010 fiscal year to an
amount equal to 0.013% of 2010 net income for each Cosenittember. This remuneration is also

independent from what the Committee members obtaireasbers of the Company’s Board of Directors.
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During 2009, the compensation paid to each of our dirgotdno served on the Board during the year, was as
follows (amounts in Chilean pesos):

SQM S.A. sSQMC
i ] i TOTAL

Meeting(Ch$) Committee (Ch$) Meeting (Ch$) (Ch$)
Julio Ponce Lerou ........ccccoevveevieeeennns 1,588,815,774 75552288 1,664,368,062
Wayne R, Brownlee...........ccccceeuennne. 226,806,182 226,806,182
Hernan Blchi BUC .......cccccccovveeeennnnen. 226,568,058 11,306,784 237,874,842
Joseé Maria Eyzaguirre Baeza............. 227,878,811 227,878,811
Eduardo Novoa Castellon................... 228,925,981 13,664,707 242,590,688
Wolf Von Appen........cccoceveeienennennne. 233,145,873 233,145,873
Kendrick T, Wallace............cccceuvvveee... 226,806,182 226,806,182
Daniel Yarur Elsaca............ccceeeeunnn.n. 227,878,811 12,617,537 240,496,348
TOtal .o

3,186,825,672 37,589,028 75,552,288 3,299,966,988

For the year ended December 31, 2009, the aggregate conpepséd to our 105 main executives based in
Chile was Ch$12,981.5 million. We do not disclosetw shareholders or otherwise make available to the
public information as to the compensation of our iidiial executive officers.

We maintain incentive programs for our employees, baseddividual performance, company performance,
and short- medium- and long-term indicators. Additibnah order to provide incentives to key executives
and to retain such executives, we maintain a long-term casbsbmompensation plan for certain senior
executives, which consists of a long-term bonus linketiectr share price and is payable between 2007 and
2011

As of December 31, 2009, the provision providing a {rgy bonus linked to our share price would have
increased or decreased by approximately US$800,000 pemeaeiment of US$1 in the Series B share price.
The amount of actual cash bonuses payable under the longatentive program will vary depending on the
market share price of the Series B shares on the dafendiich the bonuses are paid.

As of December 31, 2009, we had a provision relatedlltof the incentive programs in an aggregate of
US$36.3 million.

We do not maintain any pension or retirement programghe members of the Board or our executive officers
in Chile.

6.C. Board Practices

Information regarding the period of time each of SQMigent Directors has served in their respective office
is provided in the discussion of each member of tleedabove in Item 6.A Directors and Senior Managers.

The date of expiration of the term of the current Boardwéctors is April 2011. The contracts of our
executive officers are indefinite.

The members of the Board are remunerated in accordanceheiihformation provided above in Item 6.B.

Compensation. There are no contracts between SQM, or atsysoibsidiaries, and the members of the Board
providing for benefits upon termination of theirrter
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Directors' Committee — Audit Committee

As required by Chilean Law, we have a Comité de Directoresgtinrs’' Committee") composed of three
directors, which performs many of the functions of anitacmmmittee. This Directors’ Committee complies
with the requirements of the NYSE corporate governance applicable to audit committees. Under the
NYSE corporate governance rules, the audit committee of acon$any must perform the functions detailed

in the NYSE Listed Company Manual Rules 303A.06 and 3WBA.Non-U.S. companies are required to
comply with Rule 303A.06 beginning July 31, 2005, bt not at any time required to comply with Rule

303A.07.

As of May 31, 2010, the Company's Directors' Committee csexh three Directors: Mr. Hernan Biichi B.,
Mr. Eduardo Novoa C. and Mr. Daniel Yarur E. Each ofttiree members meets the NYSE independence
requirements for audit committee members. This Direct@ommittee operates in accordance with article 50
bis of the Chilean Corporations Act, which provides thatDirectors' Committee will, among other things:

(a) examine and issue an opinion regarding the external asdigport including financial statements
prior to its final presentation for approval at the padly shareholders meeting;

(b) propose to the Board the external auditors and the ragjegcies that will be presented to the ordinary
shareholders meeting;

(c) examine and elaborate a report concerning the operations cdweréile XVI of the Chilean
Corporations Act, which relates to related party t@aatisns; and

(d) examine the remuneration and compensation plans of the ssragement.
Accordingly, the following were the main activitiesair Directors' Committee during 2009:

(a) analysis of unaudited financial reports;

(b) analysis of audited financial reports;

(c) analysis of reports submitted by external auditors, atccmspectors and rating agencies, and
formulation of proposals to the Board recommending eatesuditors, account inspectors and rating
agencies that could be designated by the respective annesdigamareholders meeting;

(d) analysis of functions, objectives and working prografrsuo internal audit department;

(e) analysis of the Company's senior executives' remunerattbocmpensation plans;

(f) analysis of the records relating to the transactions refféoran Title XVI of the Chilean Corporations
Act;

(g) analysis of matters related to the U.S. "Sarbanes-Oxley dsygecially regarding Section 404 thereof;
(h) analysis of matters related to U.S. norms, "IFRS" a@A®B;" and
() analysis of internal control report.
On April 29, 2010, the Annual General Shareholders MgeiffSQM approved an operational budget for the
Directors Committee; the operational budget is equivdleihe annual remuneration of the members of the

Directors Committee.

The activities carried out by the Committee, as well ae#penses incurred by it, are to be disclosed at the
General Shareholders Meeting. During 2009, the Direc@ommittee did not incur any consulting expenses.
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Article 50 bis of the Chilean Corporations Act statest the Committee should consist of three directors, of
which the majority should preferably be independent fittve controller (i.e. any person or entity who
“controls” the company for Chilean law purposes), ¥,aand that their functions be remunerated.

Considering the effective shareholder structure as of Dezmre@ih 2009, the majority of the members of the
Directors Committee are independent.

Comparative Summary of Differences in Corporate Gogrnance Standards

The following table provides a comparative summary ofedéhces in corporate governance practices
followed by us under our home-country rules and thoskcapie to U.S. domestic issuers pursuant to Section
303A of the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) Listed CampManual.

Listed Companies that are foreign private issuers, sisclsQM, are permitted to follow home country
practices in lieu of the provisions of Section 303A, ekageh companies are required to comply with the
requirements of Section 303A.06, 303A.11 and 303A)1&(d (c).

Section NYSE Standards SQM practices pursuant to Glean Stock Exchange
regulations
303A.01 | Listed companies must have a majority dependent) There is no legal obligation to have a majority |of
directors. independent directors on the Board but according to
Chilean law, the Company's directors cannot ses/¢ a
executive officers.
303A.02 | No director qualifies as "independent" saléhe board A Director is considered independent if he wouldéa

of directors affirmatively determines that the dio

been elected without the vote of the controlli

has no material relationship with the listed compashareholder and related persons and entities.

(either directly or as a partner, shareholder &cef of
an organization that has a relationship with
company).

In addition, a director is not independent if:

(i) The director is, or has been within the lasteth
years, an employee of the listed company, or
immediate family member is, or has been withinlése
three years, an executive officer, of the listetchpany.
(i) The director has received, or has animmed
family member who has received, during any twelye-
month period within the last three years, more than
$120,000 in direct compensation from the listed
company, other than director and committee fees |and
pension or other forms of deferred compensation |for
prior service (provided such compensation is hot
contingent in any way on continued service).

(iii) (A) The director is a current partner or erpte of
a firm that is the listed company's internal oreemal
auditor; (B) the director has an immediate family
member who is a current partner of such a firm;tf@)
director has an immediate family member who is a
current employee of such a firm and personally wark
on the listed company's audit; or (D) the direcp@an
immediate family member was within the last thiee
years a partner or employee of such a firm and
personally worked on the listed company's audihiwit
that time.

(iv) The director or an immediate family memberas,
has been with the last three years, employed as
executive officer of another company where anyhef |t
listed company's present executive officers atstmae
time serves or served on that company's compens
committee.

(v) The director is a current employee, or an imiaied
family member is a current executive officer, of

the

an

ate

an

atio
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Section

NYSE Standards

SQM practices pursuant to Glean Stock Exchange
regulations

company that has made payments to, or rece
payments from, the listed company for property
services in an amount which, in any of the laseéh
fiscal years, exceeds the greater of $1 million2%r of
such other company's consolidated gross revenues.

ved
or
r

303A.03

The non-management directors must meetgtlarly
scheduled executive sessions without management.

These meetings are not needed given that direg
cannot serve as executive officers.

303A.04

(a) Listed companies must have a nominatimgorate
governance committee composed entirely
independent directors.

(b) The nominating/corporate governance commi
must have a written charter that addresses:

(i) the committee's purpose and responsibilitieghich,
at minimum, must be to: identify individuals quadd
to become board members, consistent with crit
approved by the board, and to select, or to recamn;
that the board select, the director nominees femtxt
annual meeting of shareholders; develop
recommend to the board a set of corpo
governance guidelines applicable to the corporat
and oversee the evaluation of the board
management; and

(ii) an annual performance evaluation of the cortemsit

ofgulations. However, pursuant to Chilean regoieti
SQM has a Directors' Committee (see Board pract
tabove).

eria
e

and
ate
on

and

303A.05

Listed companies must have a compensationmittee
composed entirely of independent directors, andtn
have a written charter

This committee is not required as such in the @hil
heesgulations. Pursuant to Chilean regulations SQBl &
Director's Committee (see Board practices abovaj
is in charge of reviewing management’s compensatiq

303A.06

Listed companies must have an audit committee.

This committee is not required as such in the @hil
regulations. Pursuant to Chilean regulations, Sigid
a Directors’ Committee that performs the functiais
an audit committee and that complies with {
requirements of the NYSE corporate governance rulg

303A.07

The audit committee must have a minimunthoée
members. All audit committee members must sat

requirements of independence, and the committe¢ mkilean Regulations SQM has a Director's Commit]

have a written charterThe listed companies must ha
an internal audit function to provide managemerth

ongoing assistance of the Company's risk manage
process and the system of internal controls

Pursuant to Section 303A.00, SQM is not required
sfgmply with requirements in 303A.07. Pursuant

ésee Board practices above) that also performs
ifunctions of an audit committee with certg
meguirements of independence.

303A.08

Shareholders must have the opportunityote wn all
equity-compensation plans and material revisi
thereto.

SQM does not have equity compensation plg
bRlowever, as mentioned in Item 6.B Compensation,
Company does have a long-term cash bo
compensation plan for certain senior executiveschv
consists of a long-term bonus linked to the Comfsal
share price. Directors and executives may only iaeq
SQM shares by individual purchases. The purch
must give notice of such purchases to the Compady
the Superintendence of Securities and Insurance.

This committee is not required as such in the @hilg

tors

ces

DD-WFD

he
BS

to
to
tee

the
in

NS.
the
nus

ny

u
paser
a

303A.09

Listed companies must adopt and disclogpocate
governance guidelines.

Chilean law does not require that corporate govezeg
guidelines be adopted. Directors' responsibilites!
access to management and independent advisor
directly provided for by applicable law. Director
compensation is approved at the annual meeting
shareholders, pursuant to applicable law.

R

5 are
S
y of

303A.1C

Listed companies must adopt and disclose a coc

Not required in the Chilean regulations. SQM
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Section NYSE Standards SQM practices pursuant to Glean Stock Exchange
regulations

business conduct and ethics for directors, officerd | adopted and disclosed a Code of Business Conddct an
employees and promptly disclose any waivers of [tR¢hics, available at the Company's website,
code for directors or executive officers. WWW.sgm.com.

303A.11 | Listed foreign private issuers must diseloany | Pursuant to 303A.11, this table sets forth a coatper
significant ways in which their corporate govermransummary of differences in corporate governance
practices differ from those followed by domestipractices followed by SQM under Chilean regulatigns
companies under NYSE listed standards. and those applicable to U.S. domestic issuers pats
to Section 303A.

[«

303A.12 | Each listed company CEO must (a) certiftheosNYSE | Not required in the Chilean regulations. The CE@si]
each year that he or she is not aware of any woldity | only comply with Section 303A.12 (b) and (c).
the listed company of NYSE corporate governance

listing standards; (b) promptly notify the NYSE |n
writing after any executive officer becomes awafe| o
any material non-compliance with any applicable
provisions of Section 303A; and (c) must submit |an
executed Written Affirmation annually to the NYSE
In addition, each listed company must submit aerint
Written Affirmation as and when required by the
interim Written Affirmation form specified by the
NYSE. The annual and interim Written Affirmations
must be in the form specified by the NYSE.

303A.13 | The NYSE may issue a public reprimand fetteany | Not specified in the Chilean regulations.
listed company that violates a NYSE listing staddar

6.D. Employees

As of December 31, 2009, we had 4,387 employees, of w2@Bnwere employed outside of Chile. The
average tenure of our full-time employees is approximatdly&ars.

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Permanent employees 4,387 4,561 3,746 3,745 3,672
Employees in Chile 4,161 4,332 3,515 3,415 3,350
Employees outside of Chile 226 229 231 330 322

Of our permanent employees in Chile, 70% are represbgt28 labor unions, which represent their members
in collective negotiations with the Company. Compensafion unionized personnel is established in
accordance with the relevant collective bargaining agreemertgefrhs of most such agreements currently in
effect are three years, and expiration dates of such agreexsy from contract to contract. Under these
agreements, employees receive a salary according to a scatkepleatds upon job function, seniority and
productivity. Unionized employees also receive certain benpfitsided for by law and certain benefits,
which vary depending upon the terms of the collective agreemsgit, as housing allowances and additional
death and disability benefits.

In addition, the Company owns all of the equity of itnsiébn de Salud Previsional Norte Grande Limitada
("Isapre Norte Grande"), which is a health care organizatiahpitovides medical services primarily to our
employees and Sociedad Prestadora de Servicios de Saludi€idarte S.A. ("Prestadora™), which is a
hospital in Maria Elena. We make contributions to IsappegeNGrande and to Prestadora in accordance with
Chilean laws and the provisions of our various collechigegaining agreements, but we are not otherwise
responsible for its liabilities.

Non-unionized employees receive individually negotiated isalabenefits provided for by law and certain
additional benefits provided by the Company.
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We provide housing and other facilities and services fol@yaps and their families at the Maria Elena site.
We do not maintain any pension or retirement programeur Chilean employees. Most workers in Chile are
subject to a national pension law, adopted in 1980, wéstablishes a system of independent pension plans
that are administered by the corresponding Sociedad Astraidora de Fondos de Pensiones ("AFP"). We
have no liability for the performance of any of these pengians or any pension payments to be made to our
employees. We, however, sponsor staff severance indemnéies foir employees in SQM and our Chilean
subsidiaries whereby we commit to provide a lump saynent to each employee at the end of his/her
employment, whether due to death, termination, resigmatioetirement.

We have experienced no strikes or significant work stoppagés last 15 years and consider the relationship
with our employees to be good.

At the end of 2008, we offered the unions the possibilitynegotiate in advance their collective labor
contracts. To date, we have concluded negotiations witatidr unions, representing 87% our total unionized
workers, signing new agreements which will last for thyears. We expect to finish negotiations with the
remaining unions during the first half of 2010.

6.E. Share Ownership

As of May 31, 2010, SQM has been informed that the Canadiapany Potash Corporation of Saskatchewan
Inc. (“PCS”) indirectly controls 100% of the shares ofdrsiones el Boldo Limitada and 100% of the shares of
Inversiones RAC Limitada. Through these companies PCS 8@t of the total shares of SQM.

As of May 31, 2010, SQM has also been informed thatIMiio Ponce L., Chairman of the board of directors
of SQM, and related persons control 100% of the &itates of Inversiones SQYA S.A., which currently and
indirectly controls 30.54% of the total shares of SQM. She above, considering that Inversiones SQYA S.A.
controls 68.15% of the total shares of Norte Grande $hAt,Norte Grande S.A. controls 2.48% of the total
shares of Sociedad de Inversiones Pampa Calichera S.A argPo/®f the total shares of Sociedad de
Inversiones Oro Blanco S.A., that Sociedad de Inversione®{@nco S.A controls 80.70% of the total shares
of Sociedad de Inversiones Pampa Calichera S.A. and that Sodrediagersiones Pampa Calichera S.A. and
its subsidiary Inversiones Global Mining (Chile) Ltdétimately control 30.54% of the total shares of SQM.

Sociedad de Inversiones Pampa Calichera S.A. and Kowa Comfhrythe latter being owner, directly and
indirectly, of 2.08% of the total shares of SQM as @fyM81, 2010— subscribed on December 21, 2006 a Joint
Performance Agreement that allows them to control 32.62 the total shares of SQM. As a result of this
Agreement, the “Group” led by Mr. Julio Ponce L. indirecibntrols 32.62% of the total shares of SQM S.A.
and is, therefore, the Controller of SQM S.A.

The following table shows the combined stakes that terGller Group held in SQM as of:

% Beneficial ownershig
May 31, 2(10 32.62%
December 31, 2(9 32.2%
December 31, 2(8 34.05%

No other director or executive officer owns more than I%agh share class of the Company as of May 31,
2010. See Item 6. Directors, Senior Management and Empleyeesiote (1). Individual ownership has not
been publicly disclosed.

We do not grant stock options or other arrangementdvimgothe capital of SQM to directors, managers or
employees.
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ITEM7. MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

7.A. Major Shareholders

The following table sets forth certain information conaagnibeneficial ownership of the Series A shares and
Series B shares of SQM as of May 31, 2010 with respect tosbaceholder known by us to beneficially own
more than 5% of the outstanding Series A shares or SeskarBs. The following information is derived from
our records and reports filed by certain of the persons chéelew with the Superintendency of Securities and
Insurance and the Santiago Stock Exchange.

Number of Number of
series £ series B
shares % shares %
beneficially series / beneficially series E %total
Shareholder ownec shares owned shares shares
Sociedad de Inversiones Pampa Calichera
SA(LD(2) wooeeeeieee e 57,934,25 40.56Y 8,643,774 7.18% 25.30%
Inversiones El Boldo Ltda.(3) .......ccccvvieeemeneennee 44,679,45 31.28¥ 17,643,419 14.66¥ 23.68%
The Bank of NewW YOrK .......cooevveeirieiviemmne e — — 50,784,946 42.1% 19.30%
Inversiones RAC Chile Ltda.(3) ....ccccceeveeaenne. 19,200,24 13.44Y 2,699,773 2.24% 8.32%
Inversiones Global Mining (Chile)
[T 1= Vo = T (6 1 13,798,53 9.66% - — 5.24%
Chilean AFP'S(4) ..cccooeeee e eeeee e 10,34( 0.01% 10,688,178 8.88% 4.00%

(1) Mr. Julio Ponce L., Chairman of the Board of SQMdaelated persons control 100% of Inversiones SQYA.
("SQYA"). SQYA indirectly controls and beneficialgwns a majority of the shares of Sociedad de kiwres Pampa
Calichera S.A., ("Pampa Calichera") which, in tuowns also 100% of Global Mining Investments (Chi&A.
Therefore, Mr. Ponce and related persons bendjiaiain through the above entities 80,376,569 sheosstituting
30.54% of the total shares of SQM. The stake hglib Ponce and related parties as of Decembe2®19, 2008 and
2007 was respectively, 30.15%, 32.00% and 32.008teofotal shares of SQM.

(2) Pampa Calichera is a publicly held corporation vehsisares are traded on the Santiago Stock Exch@miggnally,
the shareholders of Pampa Calichera were emplaye8®M. Pampa Calichera was formed to hold thetahpiock
of SQM contributed by such employees or later aeguin the open market.

(3) Potash Corporation of Saskatchewan ("PCS") own&4l6DInversiones el Boldo Limitada and 100% of Irsienes
RAC Ltda., and, accordingly is the beneficial own€B4,222,887 SQM's shares that represent 32.008QM's total
shares. The stake held by PCS as of December 89, 2008, and 2007 was, respectively, 32.00%, 32,04nd
32.00% of the total shares of SQM.

(4) Administradoras de Fondos de Pensiones ("AFPs'lpgat entities that manage pension funds in Chile.

As of December 31, 2007, Yara owned 49% of the shardsvefsiones SQYA which in turn, indirectly
owned 32.00% of the shares of SQM. On April 21, 20G8a sold 100% of the shares it held in Inversiones
SQYA to Mr. Julio Ponce and related persons. As a reduthis sale, as of December 31, 2009, Mr. Julio
Ponce and related persons owned 100% of the sharesr@#.SQ

On December 21, 2006, Pampa Calichera and Kowa Companythédlatter being owner, directly and
indirectly, of 2.07% of the total shares of SQM as @c&mber 31, 2009) executed a joint performance
agreement that allows them to currently control 32.22%hef total shares of SQM. As a result of this
agreement, the "group” led by Mr. Julio Ponce L. became dbetroller group” of SQM, as that term is
defined under Chilean law.
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Series A and Series B shares have the same economic rightsofbeseries are entitled to share equally in
any dividends declared on the outstanding stock) anidigroights at any shareholders meeting, whether
ordinary or extraordinary, with the sole exception of thectwn of the Board, in which the Series A
shareholders elect seven members and the Series B sHarshelect one member. Additionally, Series B
shares cannot exceed 50% of our issued and outstanding Siaciholders of at least 5% of this series may
call an ordinary or extraordinary shareholders' meetingttamdiirector elected by this series may request an
extraordinary Board meeting without the authorizatiothef Chairman of the Board. These conditions will
remain in effect until 2043. Under our by-laws, theximaum individual voting power personally and/or in
representation of other shareholders per series ietin 37.5% of the subscribed shares of each series with
voting rights and 32% of the total subscribed shaii#fs woting rights. To calculate these percentages, shares
that belong to the voting shareholder's related persass Ine added. In addition, the director elected by the
Series B shares cannot vote in the election of the Chairméie &dard if a tie vote has occurred in the prior
voting process. As of December 31, 2009, there are 19582 Series A shares and 120,376,972 Series B
shares outstanding.

7.B. Related Party Transactions

Title XVI of Law No. 18,046, or the Chilean Corporatiohet (the "Law"), regulates transactions with related
parties for publicly held corporations and its relatedips.

Articles 146 to 149 of the Law requires that our transastwith related parties (i) have as their purpose to
contribute to the Company’s interests, (i) be on prieems and conditions similar to those customarily

prevailing in the market at the time of their approval &)l satisfy the requirements and procedures

established by the Law. Violation of such Articles may abssult in administrative or criminal sanctions and

civil liability may be sought by the Company, shareholderinterested third parties that suffer losses as a
result of such violations.

In addition, Article 89 of the Law requires that trangact in between affiliates, subsidiaries or relatedigmr
of asociedad andnima cerradshall also be on terms similar to those customangyaling in the market.
Directors and executive officers of companies that violatelar89 are liable for losses resulting from such
violations.

With respect to SQM S.A., operations with related parinclude negotiations, proceedings, contracts or
operations involving: (i) SQM and (ii) its controlledirectors, managers and officers, and their spouses and
relatives, and other companies and persons connected tootenantioned parties or mentioned in the by-
laws or by the Directors’ Committee. Such operatiory only be carried out if: (i) their objective is to
contribute to the Company’s interests and if their prieans and conditions conform to prevailing market
prices, terms and conditions at the time of their appraval,(ii) they satisfy the requirements and procedures
established by the Law. Such requirements include, amibregso (a) that the operation be informed to the
Board of Directors prior to its execution, (b) that theaRl of Directors, excluding any Directors involved in
the operation, approves the operation with an absolaerity of its members, or, if an absolute majorgy i
not feasible, with a unanimous vote by the Directors netlved in the transaction, or, if neither of these
options is available, that an Extraordinary Shareholddegting be held and that shareholders representing
2/3 of the outstanding shares with voting rights appritye operation. In the latter case, prior to the meeting,
the shareholders must be provided with a report by aspentent evaluator and with statements by the
directors as to whether or not such operation isénGbmpany’s interest, (c) that the grounds for thestmti
and for the exclusion be recorded in the respective minutiége doard meeting, and (d) that the agreement
and the names of the directors who approved the same beete@d the next Shareholders’ Meeting.
Infractions will not affect the validity of the operatibat they will grant the Company or its shareholders the
right to demand that the related party committing suatadtibn refund the amount equivalent to the benefits
received by such party in the operation to the Compard/tteat such party indemnify the Company for any
corresponding damages.

However, the Board of Directors may authorize the followopgrations with related parties to be carried out
without following such requirements and procedures, ag & such authorization is obtained in advance: (a)
operations wherein the amount of the transaction is igaffisant, or (b) operations that, according to the
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general policies on customary practices determined by teedBi Directors, are considered normal based on
the Company’s business activities, or (c) operationsethwut between legal entities wherein the Company
holds at least a 95% ownership interest in the counterpa

We believe that we have complied with the applicable requirernétite referred Articles in all transactions
with related parties. Accounts receivable from and payabigldted companies are stated in U.S. dollars and
accrue no interest. Transactions are made under terms adgitioc@nthat are similar to those offered to
unrelated third parties. We further believe that we cobldin from third parties all raw materials now being
provided by related parties. The provision of such raaterials by new suppliers could initially entall
additional expenses.

For additional information concerning our transactioith affiliates and other related parties, see Note 5 of
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

7.C. Interests of Experts and Counsel
Not applicable
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

8.A. Consolidated Statements and Other Financial Informnan
8.A.1 See Iltem 18. Consolidated Financial Statements focansolidated financial statements.

8.A.2 See Iltem 18. Consolidated Financial Statements.

8.A.3 See ltem 18. Consolidated Financial Statements—Reptmtiependent Registered Public Accounting
Firm.

8.A.4 Not applicable.

8.A.5 Not applicable.

8.A.6 Export Sales

We derive most of our revenues from sales outside o&€CHihe distribution of sales presented below reflects
the regions in which the Company’s subsidiaries are ddcaind does not necessarily reflect the final

destination of the products sold. The following is twenposition of the consolidated sales for the periods
ending on December 31.:

Th. US$ 2009 2008 2007

Foreign sale: 1,208,28 1,395,83 954,641
Total sales 1,436,89 1,774,11 1,187,52
% of foreign sales 84.09% 78.68% 80.39%

8.A.7 Legal Proceedings

The Company is party to various other lawsuits agigmthe ordinary course of business. See Note 23 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for more informatiothese legal proceedings. We believe it is unlikely
that any losses associated with such lawsuits will fogmtly affect the Company’s results of operations,
financial position, and cash flows.

8.A.8. Dividend Policy

As required by Chilean law and regulations, our dividealicp is decided upon from time to time by our
Board of Directors and is announced at the Annual @rgiShareholders' Meeting, which is generally held in
April of each year. Shareholder approval of the dividenitpd not required. However, each year the Board
must submit the declaration of the final dividend midknds in respect of the preceding year, consistent with
the then-established dividend policy to the Annual @adi Shareholders' Meeting for approval. As required
by the Chilean Companies Act, unless otherwise decideddnjimous vote of the holders of issued shares, we
must distribute a cash dividend in an amount equal leaat 30% of our consolidated net income for that year
(determined on a Chilean GAAP basis), unless and excéps Extent it has a deficit in retained earnings.

The Board of Directors has followed a policy of payingragle dividend ranging from 50% to 65% of our
consolidated net income for the year (determined on a @hd&eAP basis), and dividends for each year have
been paid not later than May of the following year. Thaddnd policy for 2009 established that SQM must
distribute and pay in favor of its shareholders, asal filividend, the amount in Chilean pesos equivalent to
65% of the distributable income for 2009. This policgswpartially modified on March 16, 2010 when the
Board of Directors of SQM proposed modifying thidipp lowering this percentage to 50%. At the Annual
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Shareholders’ Meeting held on April 29, 2010, SQMiargholders approved this modification of the dividend

policy and approved a payment of a definitive dividendhien amount of US$0.62131 per share. From this

definitive dividend, the interim dividend amount of USS®94 per share was deducted. Payments for this
dividend were made on May 12, 2010.

At the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting held on April 2010, shareholders also agreed to pay and distribute a
dividend equal to 50% of the distributable income cowrdmg to 2010. For this purpose, distributable
income excludes (i) accrued and uncollected profits from SQ@QWMestments that are not subject to
consolidation and (ii) amortization of negative goodwAllso, at the same meeting, shareholders agreed to the
payment and distribution of an interim dividend that tiigsly will be paid during the final quarter of 2010

an amount not to exceed 50% of the accumulated earninigs ointe months ending September 30, 2010.

We generally declare dividends in U.S. dollars (but may dedaidends in Chilean Pesos) and pay such
dividends in Chilean Pesos. When a dividend is declardd.$ dollars, the exchange rate to be used to
convert the dividend into Chilean Pesos is decided by theelblders at the meeting that approves the
dividend, which has usually been the Observed ExchangedRahe date the dividend is declared.

Although the Board of Directors has no current plaretmmmend a change in the dividend policy, the amount
and timing for payment of dividends is subject to revidirom time to time, depending upon our then current
level of sales, costs, cash flow and capital requirements, dasvelarket conditions. Accordingly, there can
be no assurance as to the amount or timing of declam@tipayment of dividends in the future. Any change in
dividend policy would ordinarily be effective for dividds declared in the year following adoption of the
change, and a notice as to any such change of policy musedeniih Chilean regulatory authorities and
would be publicly available information.

Dividends

Each Series A Share and Series B Share is entitled to shaadlyein any dividends declared on the
outstanding capital stock of SQM.

The following table sets forth the U.S. dollar equivalehtlividends per share and per ADR paid in each of
the years indicated, based on the Observed Exchange Rtte ftate on which the dividend was declared.

Dividends Per Share Per ADR(1)
Dedtared for the  paig in Chs USs
usiness year
2003 2004 55.05 0.088
200¢ 200t 106.5¢ 0.18:
2005 2006 145.11 0.279
2006 2007 183.96 0.349
2007 2008 204.14 0.445
2008 (interim) 2008 243.34 0.380
2008 2009 515.90 0.858
2009 (interim) 2009 191.32 0.380
2009 2010 126.69 0.241

(1) The ratio of ordinary shares to Series A ADRs 10:1 for all periods reflected in the tabldheTSeries A ADRs were
delisted from the New York Stock Exchange on Ma2dh 2008. The ratio of ordinary shares to SerieABRs
changed from 10:1 to 1:1 on March 28, 2008. Theutation in the table for all periods is basedtloa ratio of 1:1.

Dividends payable to holders of ADRs will be paid netaorfiversion expenses of the Depositary and will be
subject to Chilean withholding tax, currently imposethatrate of 35% (subject to credits in certain cases).

As a general requirement, a shareholder who is not a résiti€hile must register as a foreign investor under
one of the foreign investment regimes contemplated ble&hiaw to have dividends, sale proceeds or other
amounts with respect to its shares remitted outside Ciriteigh the Formal Exchange Market. Under the
Foreign Investment Contract, the Depositary, on beliafR holders, will be granted access to the Formal

83



Exchange Market to convert cash dividends from Chilean Pedst dollars and to pay such U.S. dollars to
ADR holders outside Chile net of taxes, and no sepaggistration of ADR holders is required.

8.B. Significant Changes
No significant change has occurred since the date ofrthedial statements set forth in Item 18.
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ITEM 9. THE OFFER AND LISTING
9.A Offer and Listing Details

Price History

The table below sets forth, for the periods indicateslyéiported high and low closing prices for our shares on
the Santiago Stock Exchange and the high and low closing pfitles ADRs as reported by the NYSE, as the
two main exchanges on which our shares are traded. On Mar20@8, the Company voluntarily delisted its
series A ADRs from the New York Stock Exchange. In aolditon March 28, 2008, a ratio change for the
Company’s series B ADRs entered into effect, modifytimg ratio of ordinary shares to series B ADRs from
the previous ratio of 10:1 to a new ratio of 1:1.

€) Last 5 years
Santiago Stock Exchange NYSE
Per Share (1) Per ADR
Series A Series B Series A (2) Series B (3)
High Low High Low High Low High Low
Ch$ Ch$ Ch$ Chs$ uss uss$ uss Uss$
2005 7,000 3,600 7,170 3,269 129.40 66.80 13.34 5.75
2006 7,100 5,220 7,347 5,000 137.50 93.15 13.95 8.99
2007 12,100 7,100 9,985 6,800 234.80 135.00 20.04 12.50
2008 29,300 12,100 27,012 6,750 - - 55.74 14.77
2009 22,000 16,000 21,839 14,319 - - 40.18 23.84
(b) Last 10 quarters
Santiago Stock Exchange NYSE
Per Share (1) Per ADR
Series A Series B Series A (2) Series B (3)
High Low High Low High Low High Low
Ch$ Ch$ Ch$ Chs$ uss Uss$ Uss$ Us$
2008
First quarter 12,600 12,100 10,658 6,750 290.00 226.00 24.25 14.77
Second quarter 29,300 16,000 27,012 10,500 - - 54.74 23.98
Third quarter 25,000 16,000 22,856 13,049 - - 44.71 23.56
Fourth quarter 16,450 15,990 16,451 9,469 - - 26.05 15.25
2009
First quarter 19,000 16,000 18,997 14,319 - - 31.73 23.84
Second quarter 22,000 19,000 21,839 15,969 - - 38.88 27.75
Third quarter 22,000 20,900 21,397 18,695 - - 40.15 33.49
Fourth quarter 21,910 20,700 21,401 18,600 - - 40.18 36.36
2010
First quarter 22,150 21,000 21,329 18,903 - - 43.85 34.40
Second quarter
(through May 31) 21,750 21,700 19,844 17,561 - - 38.26 32.22
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© Last 6 months

Santiago Stock Exchange NYSE
Per Share (1) Per ADR
Series A Series B Series A (2) Series B (3)

High Low High Low High Low High Low

Chs$ Ch$ Ch$ Chs$ Uss$ uUss$ Uss$ uUs$
December 2009 21,350 20,700 19,884 18,966 - - 40.02 37.57
January 2010 21,500 21,000 21,329 19,473 - - 43.85 36.38
February 2010 22,150 21,500 20,382 18,903 - - 38.36 34.40
March 2010 21,750 21,600 20,281 19,218 - - 38.62 36.57
April 2010 21,750 21,700 19,844 18,800 - - 38.26 35.77
May 2010 21,725 21,725 18,895 17,561 - - 36.32 32.22

(1) Pesos per share of Common Stock reflect nomineg i trade date.

(2) Series A shares started trading on the New YorkkSExchange on April 9, 1999.

(3) Series B shares began trading on the New York Sfackange on September 20, 1993. Historical ptiga® been restated to reflect the
change in the ratio of local shares to ADRs fron116 1:1, effective March 28, 2008.

As of May 31, 2010, there were 50,784,946 Series B ABIRstanding held by 63 holders of record for the
Series B ADRs. As of May 31, 2010, such ADRs represeapproximately 19.3% of the total number of
issued and outstanding shares of our Company.

Although the Series A ADRs were voluntarily delistednirthe New York Stock Exchange, there are still
Series A ADRs outstanding. When the Company decidedlist the Series A ADRs and terminate the Series
A ADR program, holders were notified that they had 89stto decide to sell their shareholding or exchange
their ADRs for the underlying local shares. Afteatt80-day period, the Depositary Bank has one yead (unti
June 2009) to attempt to sell the local shares undgrthim outstanding ADRs in the Chilean market.

9.B Plan Of Distribution

Not Applicable
9.C Markets

The Series A shares and the Series B shares are currentlgt tladhe Santiago Stock Exchange, the Bolsa
Electrénica de Chile Bolsa de Valores S.A., (the Eleatr&tock Exchange), and the Bolsa de Corredores
Bolsa de Valores S.A., (the Valparaiso Stock Exchange).of A3ecember 31, 2007, each series was also
traded on the New York Stock Exchange in the form of ADR&re each ADR represented 10 underlying
shares of the corresponding series. On February 26, #©8Company’s Board of Directors voted to
voluntarily delist the Series A ADRs from the New Yorlo& Exchange, due to the low trading volume of
those shares. On the same date, the Board of Directorapsaved a ratio change for the Series B ADRS,
modifying the previous ratio of 10 ordinary shares #0OR to a new ratio of 1:1. The Series A ADRs were
delisted on March 27, 2008, and the Series B ratio changeedrinto effect on March 28, 2008. Prior to their
delisting, the ADRs representing Series A shares tradédeoNYSE beginning on April 9, 1999. The ADRs
representing Series B shares have traded on the NYSE sipimBer 20, 1993. The depositary bank for
these ADRs is the Bank of New York Mellon.
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9.0 Selling Shareholders

Not applicable
9.E Dilution

Not applicable
9.F Expenses Of The Issue

Not applicable
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ITEM 10. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
10.A. Share Capital

Not applicable

10.B. Memorandum and Articles of Association

SQM, headquartered at El Trovador N° 4285, 6th Floanti&o, Chile, is an open stock corporation
(sociedad andénima abierta) organized under the laws &epablic of Chile. The Company was constituted
by public deed issued on June 17, 1968 by the NotanjdPafbSantiago Mr. Sergio Rodriguez Garcés. lts
existence was approved by Decree No. 1.164 of June 22, 18&S8 Ministry of Finance, and it was registered
on June 29, 1968 in the Business Registry of Sant@agpage 4.537 N° 1.992.

Corporate purposes

Our main purposes, which appear in article 4 of ourauys| are to: (a) perform all kinds of chemical or
mining activities and businesses and, among others, tietsted to researching, prospecting, extracting,
producing, working, processing, purchasing, disposingnd commercializing properties, as applicable, of all
metallic and non-metallic and fossil mining substancesetgrdents of any type or nature, to be obtained from
them or from one or more concessions or mining depaaitd, in their natural or converted state, or
transformed into different raw materials or manufacturepastially manufactured products, and of all rights
and properties thereor(p) manufacture, produce, work, purchase, transfer owiperémport, export,
distribute, transport, and commercialize in any way, ald&« of fertilizers, components, raw materials,
chemical, mining, agricultural, and industrial produats] their by-product4r) generate, produce, distribute,
purchase, transfer ownership, and commercialize, in any allainds of electrical, thermal, geothermic or
other type of power, and hydric resources or water rightgeneral;(d) request, manifest, claim, constitute,
explore, work, lease, transfer ownership, and purchasanynway, all kinds of mining concession(g)
purchase, transfer ownership, and administer, in any amy kind of telecommunications, railroads, ships,
ports, and any means of transport, and represent and m&mpgeg companies, common carriers by water,
airlines, and carries in generfl; manufacture, produce, commercialize, maintain, repairremegconstruct,
disassemble, purchase and transfer ownership, and iwanyany kind of electromechanical structure, and
substructure in general, components, parts, spares, sropatjuipment, and machines, and execute, develop,
advice, and commercialize, any kind of electromechanicasnoelting activities;(g) purchase, transfer
ownership, lease, and commercialize any kind of agro iriduand farm forestry activities, in any wai)
purchase, transfer ownership, lease, and commercializey iway) any kind of urban or rural real estdig;
render any kind of health services and manage hospitélsteiclinics, or similar facilities(j) construct,
maintain, purchase, transfer ownership, and manage,yinvay, any kind of roads, tunnels, bridges, water
supply systems, and other required infrastructure warithout any limitation, regardless of whether they
may be public or private, among others, to participat#ds and enter into any kind of contracts, and to be the
legal owner of the applicable concessions; @gdpurchase, transfer ownership, and commercialize, in any
way, any kind of intangible properties such as stocks, §yatebentures, financial assets, commercial papers,
shares or rights in corporations, and any kind of beareursies or instruments, and to administer such
investments, acting always within the Investment and EingrnPolicies approved by the applicable General
Shareholders Meeting. We may comply with the foregoingadétyng ourselves or through or with other
different legal entities or natural persons, within¢bantry or abroad, with properties of our own or owbgd
third parties, and additionally, in the ways and teretmr and with the aforementioned properties and
purposes, we may also construct and operate industriagricultural facilities or installations; constitute,
administer, purchase, transfer ownership, dissolgajdate, transform, modify, or form part of partngosh
institutions, foundations, corporations, or associatiohany kind or nature; perform all actions, enter aito
contracts, and incur in all obligations convenient or necedsarthe foregoing; perform any business or
activity related to its properties, assets, or patrimonywith that of its affiliates, associated companies, or
related companies, and render financial, commercial, techfégall, auditing, administrative, advisory, and
other pertinent services.

Directors

The Company's By-laws, in articles 16 and 16 bis, esdgnéatablish that the transactions in which a
Director has a material interest must comply with theipions set forth in articles 146 to 149 and 136 afvL
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N° 18.046 and the applicable regulations of such Law.wittddtanding the above, such operations must be
approved by two thirds of the Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors duties are remunerated, as statedicle 17 of the Company's By-laws, and the
amount of that compensation is fixed yearly by the Ger@rdinary Shareholders’ Meeting. Therefore,
Directors can neither determine nor modify their compenisati

Directors cannot authorize Company loans on their behalf.

As stated in article 10 of the Company's By-laws, Directam be reelected indefinitely; thus, there is no age
limit for their retirement.

As stated in article 9 of the Company's By-laws, then@any has 8 Directors. One of the Directors has to
necessarily be “independent” as such term is defined inl&rf0 bis of Law N° 18.046. Moreover, the
possession of shares is not a necessary condition to becDirextor of our Company.

The Board of Directors must provide shareholders andptigic with sufficient, reliable and timely
information pertaining to the Company’s legal, econcamd financial situation, as required by the Law or the
Superintendency of Securities and Insurance. The BoardredftBrs must adopt the appropriate measures in
order to avoid the disclosure of such information teses other than those persons who should possess such
information as a result of their title, position oriaty within the Company before such information is
disclosed to shareholders and the public. The BoarDimfctors must treat business dealings and other
information about the Company as confidential until saébrmation is officially disclosed. No Director may
take advantage of the knowledge about commercial opporturtitéshé/she has obtained through his/her
position as Director.

Independent Directors and Directors Committee

SQM S.A. must appoint at least one Independent Directoa@idectors’ Committee, due to the fact that (a)

the Company has a market capitalization greater than or equéd 1,500,000 and (b) at least 12.5% of the
Company's shares with voting rights are held by shadeh® who, on an individual basis, control or possess
less than 10% of such shares.

Persons who have not been involved in any of the circumstdesesbed in the Law at any time during the
preceding 18 months are considered independent. Candidaties pmsition of Independent Director must be
proposed by shareholders representing 1% or moreed@timpany’s shares, at least 10 days prior to the date
of the Shareholders’ Meeting that has been called in orddedbthe Directors. No less than two days prior to
the respective Shareholders’ Meeting, the candidate mustdprtive Chief Executive Officer with a sworn
statement indicating that he/she: (a) accepts his/her cagdidathe position of Independent Director, (b)
does not meet any of the conditions that would preventhigr from being the Independent Director, (c) is not
related to the Company, the other companies of the goowhich the Company belongs, the controller of the
Company, or any of the Company’s officers in such a wailould deprive a sensible person of a reasonable
degree of autonomy, interfere with his/her ability to panfchis/her duties objectively and effectively,
generate a potential conflict of interest, or interferthwiis/her independent judgment, and (d) assumes the
commitment to remain independent as long as he/she thelg®sition of Director.

The Directors’ Committee shall have the following powers datles: (a) to examine the reports of the
external auditors, the balance sheet and other financial statiemresented by the Company’s managers or
liquidators to its shareholders and issue an opiniontaihe same prior to their submission for the approva
the shareholders, (b) to propose to the Board of Diret¢te external auditors and risk rating agencies to be
proposed to shareholders at the respective Shareholdeeting. In the event that an agreement cannot be
reached, the Board of Directors shall formulate its owrgsstipn, and both options shall be submitted for
shareholder consideration at such Shareholders’ Medtihtp examine the information relating to operations
referred to in Articles 146 to 149 of Law No. 18,046l &am prepare a report about such operations. A copy of
such report shall be sent to the Board of Directors, aod seport must be read at the Board Meeting called
for the purpose of approving or rejecting the respectiveratipn or operations, (d) to examine the
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remuneration system and compensation plans for the Cofspaapagement, officers and employees, (e) to
prepare an annual report on its activities, includingias recommendations to the shareholders, (f) to inform
the Board of Directors about whether or not it is aahiis to hire the external audit firm to provide non-audit
services where the firm is not prohibited from provideugh services because the nature of the same could
pose a threat to the firm’'s independence, and (g) any athees indicated in the Company’s by-laws or
authorized by a Shareholders’ Meeting or the Boarldimactors.

The Directors’ Committee shall comprise three members, theritgeof whom must be independent. In the
event that more than three Directors have the right to fanmnof the Committee, these same Directors shall
unanimously determine who shall make up the Committeeheletent that an agreement cannot be reached,
the Directors who were elected with a greater percentagete$ by shareholders controlling or possessing
less than 10% of the Company’s shares shall be givernityridf there is only one Independent Director, this
Director shall name the other members of the Committesng the other Directors who are not independent.
Such other members of the Committee shall have all ofgh&srassociated with such position. The members
of the Committee shall be compensated for their role. Tuat of their remuneration shall be set annually
at the General Shareholders’ Meeting, and it may not beHasshe remuneration set for the Main Directors,
plus an additional 1/3 of that amount. The General ebimdalers’ Meeting shall determine a budget for the
expenses of the Committee and its advisors. Such budgemhaotdye less than the sum of the annual
remunerations of the Committee members. The Committee maymbed professional advisory services in
order to carry out its duties, in accordance with the abovéonedt budget. The proposals made by the
Committee to the Board of Directors that are not accepteatiebjatter must be reported to the Shareholders’
Meeting prior to the vote by shareholders on the correspgndiatter or matters. In addition to the
responsibilities that are associated with the positidDidctor, the members of the Committee are jointly and
severally liable for any damages they cause, in performingdhges as such, to the shareholders and to the
Company.

Shares

Dividends are annually distributed to the Series A an@$8 shareholders of record on the fifth business day
prior to the date for payment of the dividends. The By-ldw$iot specify a time limit after which dividend
entitlement elapses but Chilean regulations establish tieatSafears, unclaimed dividends are to be donated
to the Fire Department.

Article 5 of the Company's By-laws establishes that S&iskares may in no case exceed fifty percent of our
issued, outstanding and paid shares. Series B sharea hesteicted right to vote as they can only elect one
Director of the Company, regardless of their capital st@tidse. Series B shares have the right to call for an
Ordinary or Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting wha shareholders of at least 5% of the Series B issued
shares request so and for an Extraordinary Board efcioirs Meeting without the Chairman's authorization
when it is requested by the Director elected by the shiaieisoof the Series B shares. Series A shares have
the option to exclude the Director elected by Series B sHderkofrom the voting process in which the
Chairman of the Board is to be elected, if there is a fikdrfirst voting process. However, articles 31 and 31
bis establish that in General Shareholders’ Meetings saafeholder will have a right to one vote for each
share he owns or represents and that no shareholdeawellthe right to vote for himself or on behalf of other
shareholders of the same Series A or Series B sharesemprgamore than 37.5% of the outstanding shares
with right to vote of each Series. In calculating a singkreholder's ownership of Series A or B shares, the
shareholder’s stock and those pertaining to thirdgzantiiated to them are to be added.

Article 5 bis of the Company's By-laws establishes thaperson may directly or by means of related third
persons concentrate more than 32% of our total shatiesiglit to vote.

Each Series A share and Series B share is entitled to shaily @gythe Company's profits, i.e., they have the
same rights on any dividends declared on the outstandamngssaf SQM.

Our By-laws do not contain any provision relating tp @demption provisions (b) sinking funds or (c)
liability to capital calls by the Company.
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As established in Article 103 of Law N°18.046, a companyestitbo the supervision of the Superintendency
of Securities and Insurance (SVS) may be liquidateldrfdllowing cases:

(a) Expiration of the duration term, if any, as esshigld in its By-laws;

(b) All the shares end up in the possession of mdigidual for more than ten continuous days;
(c) By agreement of an Extraordinary Shareholders Meeting;

(d) By abolition, pursuant to applicable laws, of tleeree that authorized its existence;

(e) Any other reason contemplated in its By-laws.

Article 40 of the Company's By-laws states that in the tewéfiquidation, the Shareholders’ Meeting will
appoint a three-member receiver committee that will have tterly to carry out the liquidation process.
Any surplus will be distributed equally among the shalders.

The only way to change the rights of the holders of oareshis by modifying the By-laws, which can only be
carried out by an Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meetingea$orth in article 28 of the Company By-laws.

Shareholders’ meetings

Article 29 of the Company's By-laws states that the twalh Shareholders’ Meeting, either Ordinary or
Extraordinary, will be by means of a highlighted publiticethat will be published at least three times, and
on different days, in the newspaper of the legal addressmieéet by the Shareholders’ Meeting, and in the
way and under the conditions indicated by the Regulatiéaklitionally, a notice will be sent by mail to each
shareholder at least fifteen days prior to the dateeoiieting, which shall include a reference of the matters
to be addressed at the meeting. However, those meetitigther full attendance of the shares with right to
vote may be legally held, even if the foregoing formal notiguirements are not met. Notice of any
Shareholders’ Meeting shall be delivered to the S¥Y&aat fifteen days in advance of such meeting.

Any holder of Series A and/or Series B shares registeréde Company's shareholder registry on the fifth
business day prior to the date of the meeting will laaxight to participate at that meeting.

The approval at an Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meetingeofdthowing matters requires the approval of 2/3
of the outstanding shares with voting rights: (a) disposal of 50% or more of one of the Company’s asset
(b) the formulation or maodification of any business plamlving point (a), (c) the disposal of 50% or more of
an asset belonging to a subsidiary that represents at2@#sbf the Company’s assets, (d) the disposal of
shares such that the parent company would lose its poasi@ontroller, (e) the forced sale of shares carried
out by the controller who would acquire more than 95%efGompany’s shares in a tender offer, and (f) the
approval or ratification of proceedings or contracts watlated parties, in accordance with the provisions of
Articles 44 and 147 of Law No. 18,046. The disposagntioned in (a), (b), (c) and (d), above, and the
possession of more than 95% of the Company’s shanésr¢withdrawal rights”.

Foreign shareholders

There exists no restriction on ownership or share coratemy or limiting the exercise of the related right to
vote, by local or foreign shareholders other than thasmuigsed under Item 10.B. Memorandum and Articles
of Association -Shares above.

Change in control

Our Company By-laws provide that no shareholder mag hire than 32% of our shares, unless the by-laws
are modified at an extraordinary shareholders’ meeting. Mergon December 12, 2000, the government
published the_ey de Oferta Publica de Accion@ublic Share Offering law) or (OPA law) that seeks to
protect the interests of minority shareholders of opeckscorporations in transactions involving a change in
control, by requiring that the potential new controflarchase the shares owned by the remaining shareholders
either in total or pro rata. The law applies to thinaasactions in which the controlling party would receive
material premium price compared with the price that dda received by the minority shareholders.
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There are three conditions that would make it mangatooperate under the OPA law:
1) When an investor wants to take control of a compaiyks
2) When a controlling shareholder holds two-thirds of themamy's stock. If such shareholder buys one
more share, it will be mandatory to offer to acquire gt of the outstanding stock within 30 days of
surpassing that threshold.
3) When an investor wants to take control of a corporationgchyhin turn, controls an open stock
corporation that represents 75% or more of the consetidetsets of the former corporation.

Parties interested in taking control of a company musiotify the company of such intention in writing, and
notify its controllers, the companies controlled by ie 8VS and the markets where its stocks are traded and
(ii) publish a highlighted public notice in two newspapafraational circulation at least 10 business days prio
to the date of materialization of the OPA.

Disclosure of share ownership

The Company's By-laws do not provide for a minimineshold at which share ownership must be disclosed.

10.C. Material Contracts

The following summarizes the terms and conditions oft@n contracts to which SQM or any subsidiary is a
party:

e On February 12, 1999, SQM S.A. entered into an ElectEoakgy Supply contract with
Electroandina S.A. This contract allowed for two thyear renewal options, at the option
of SQM. The first option was exercised. As a result, théraonextends through March
16, 2013 with a three-year renewal option of SQM. Emeiynination of the contract is
subject to payment of non-amortized investments.

e On March 21, 1997, SQM Salar S.A. entered into an Eb#gtiSupply agreement with
Norgener S.A. The term of this contract extends throMginch 20, 2017, and early
termination is subject to penalties.

e On January 13, 1998, SQM Nitratos S.A. entered BmoElectrical Energy Supply
agreement with Norgener S.A. The term of this contractnelst through January 31,
2013. Early termination of the contract is subject #ynpent of non-amortized
investments.

« On May 22, 2001, SOM S.A. entered into a Natural Gaplswagreement with Distrinor
S.A. The term of this contract extends through May 21120&arly termination of the
contract is subject to payment of non-amortized investmer89M pays a fixed annual
amount (amortization of investments), and when we reggisewe pay the corresponding
amounts. However, in 2008 we received practically no gasyarekpect this situation to
continue during 2009.

In addition, the Company, during the normal course sfrtmss, has entered into different contracts, some of
which have been described herein, related to its produciommnercial and legal operations. We believe all of
these contracts are standard for this type of industd/nane of them is expected to have a material effect on

the Company's results of operations

10.D. Exchange Controls

The Central Bank of Chile is responsible for, among dtfiegs, monetary policies and exchange controls in
Chile. Appropriate registration of a foreign investrhin Chile permits the investor access to the Formal
Exchange Market. Foreign investments can be registeredthédgti-oreign Investment Committee under
Decree Law N°600 of 1974 or can be registered with ther@leBank of Chile under the Central Bank Act,
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Law N°18840 of October 1989. The Central Bank Aatrisorganic constitutional law requiring a "special
majority" vote of the Chilean Congress to be maodified.

Our 1993, 1995 and 1998 capital increases were carriedinmgr and subject to the then current legal
regulations, whose summary is hereafter included:

A 'Convencion Capitulo XXVI del Titulo | del Compendie Normas de Cambios Internacionales'
Compendium of Foreign Exchange Regulations of the Cetnak of Chile, "Foreign Investment Contract"
was entered into and among the Central Bank of ChileCompany and the Depositary, pursuant to Article
47 of the Central Bank Act and to Chapter XXVI of thengpendium of Foreign Exchange Regulations of the
Central Bank of Chile, "Chapter XXVI", which addresses igsiance of ADRs by a Chilean company.
Absent the Foreign Investment Contract, under applicablea@hexchange controls, investors would not be
granted access to the Formal Exchange Market for the purpbsesverting from Chilean Pesos to U.S.
dollars and repatriating from Chile amounts received ipaesto deposited Series A or B shares or Series A
or B shares withdrawn from deposit on surrender of AQRcluding amounts received as cash dividends and
proceeds from the sale in Chile of the underlying Serieand Series B shares and any rights arising
therefrom). The following is a summary of the matepabvisions contained in the Foreign Investment
Contract. This summary does not purport to be compledes qualified in its entirety by reference to Chapter
XXVI and the Foreign Investment Contract.

Under Chapter XXVI and the Foreign Investment Contraet,Gentral Bank of Chile has agreed to grant to
the Depositary, on behalf of ADR holders, and to anestor not residing or not domiciled in Chile who
withdraws Series A or Series B shares upon deliverp@Rs (such Series A and Series B shares being
referred to herein as "Withdrawn Shares") access to thmdfd&xchange Market to convert Chilean Pesos to
U.S. dollars (and remit such U.S. dollars outside ofleThn respect of Series A and Series B shares
represented by ADRs or Withdrawn Shares, including atsowteived as (a) cash dividends, (b) proceeds
from the sale in Chile of Withdrawn Shares, or from shatistributed because of the liquidation, merger or
consolidation of the Company, subject to receipt by theti@l Bank of Chile of a certificate from the holder
of such shares (or from an institution authorized byGéetral Bank of Chile) that such holder's residence and
domicile are outside Chile and a certificate from a Chilgack exchange (or from a brokerage or securities
firm established in Chile) that such shares were sold @hilean Exchange, (c) proceeds from the sale in
Chile of preemptive rights to subscribe for additioBakies A and Series B shares, (d) proceeds from the
liquidation, merger or consolidation of the Company éjdother distributions, including without limitati
those resulting from any recapitalization, as a resuttotding Series A and Series B shares represented by
ADRs or Withdrawn Shares. Transferees of Withdrawn &huiill not be entitled to any of the foregoing
rights under Chapter XXVI unless the Withdrawn Shaaes redeposited with the Depositary. Investors
receiving Withdrawn Shares in exchange for ADRs will haeeridfht to redeposit such shares in exchange for
ADRs, provided that the conditions to redeposit desdrftsreunder are satisfied.

Chapter XXVI provided that access to the Formal Exchange eflamkconnection with dividend payments

will be conditioned upon certification by the Companytiie Central Bank of Chile that a dividend payment
has been made and any applicable tax has been withheld. Chapteral$¥ provides that access to the

Formal Exchange Market in connection with the sale of Watlvd Shares or distributions thereon will be

conditioned upon receipt by the Central Bank of Chile diftztion by the Depositary that such shares have
been withdrawn in exchange for ADRs and receipt of a waife¢he benefit of the Foreign Investment

Contract with respect thereto until such Withdrawn 8bare redeposited.

Chapter XXVI and the Foreign Investment Contract pfeglithat a person who brings certain types of foreign
currency into Chile, including U.S. dollars, to purdh&eries A shares and/or Series B shares with the benefit
of the Foreign Investment Contract must convert it i@tolean Pesos on the same date and has 5 banking
business days within which to invest in Series A shaneor Series B shares in order to receive the benefits
of the Foreign Investment Contract. If such persondéscwithin such period not to acquire Series A shares
and/or Series B shares, he can access the Formal Exchange telaeleeiquire foreign currency, provided that
the applicable request is presented to the Central Bankwitbanking business days of the initial conversion
into pesos. Series A shares and/or Series B shares acasida$cribed above may be deposited for ADRs
and receive the benefits of the Foreign Investment Congalgject to receipt by the Central Bank of Chile of

a certificate from the Depositary that such deposit has bffeated and that the related ADRs have been
issued and receipt by the Custodian of a declaration frometiserp making such deposit waiving the benefits
of the Foreign Investment Contract with respect to #podited Series A shares and/or Series B shares.
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Access to the Formal Exchange Market under any of the circurestatescribed above is not automatic.

Pursuant to Chapter XXVI, such access requires approvédeo€Céntral Bank of Chile based on a request
presented through a banking institution establishe@hite. The Foreign Investment Contract will provide

that if the Central Bank of Chile has not acted on saglest within seven banking days, the request will be
deemed approved.

Under current Chilean law, foreign investments abidinghle Foreign Investment Contract cannot be changed
unilaterally by the Central Bank of Chile. No assge can be given, however, that additional Chilean
restrictions applicable to the holders of ADRs, the digfmm of underlying Series A shares and/or Series B
shares or the repatriation of the proceeds from such disposould not be imposed in the future, nor can
there be any assessment of the duration or impact of ssitittions if imposed.

As of April 19, 2001, Chapter XXVI of Title | of th€ompendio de Normas de Cambios Internacionefes
the Central Bank of Chile was eliminated and new investmem®R's by non-residents of Chile, are now
governed by Chapter XIV of theompendio de Normas de Cambios Internacionafethe Central Bank of
Chile. This was made with the purpose of simplifying &ircilitating the flow of capital to and from Chile.
According to the new regulations, such investments mastaoried out through Chile's Formal Exchange
Market and only reported to the Central Bank of Chilereklgn investments may still be registered with the
Foreign Investment Committee under Decree Law 600 of 18 4mended, and obtain the benefits of the
contract executed under Decree Law 600.

The Central Bank is also responsible for controllinguimence of loan obligations to be paid from Chile and
by a Chilean borrower to banks and certain other finhmasitutions outside Chile. The following is a
summary of the relevant portions of Chapter XIV regardivegincurrence of loan obligations and does not
purport to be complete and is qualified in its entirgtydference to the provisions of Chapter XIV.

As of December 31, 2009, we had one long-term loastanding obtained in the international markets
(through a Rule 144A offering of US$200 million). Atldnally, Royal Seed Trading Corporation, a wholly
owned subsidiary, has two syndicated loans for an amd&$255.0 million outstanding, which are fully
guaranteed by us. SQM Investment Corporation, a whollyedveubsidiary, has a bilateral loan in the amount
of US$50.0 million outstanding, which is fully guareed by us.

Any purchases of U.S. dollars in connection with paymemtsthese loans will occur with the Formal
Exchange Market. There can be no assurance, however, thatiogst applicable to payments in respect to
the loans could not be imposed in the future, nor cae theelany assessment of the duration or impact of such
restrictions if imposed.

10.E. Taxation

Chilean Tax Considerations

The following describes the material Chilean income tanxsequences of an investment in the ADRs by an
individual who is not domiciled or resident in Chileay legal entity that is not organized under the lafvs
Chile and does not have a permanent establishment locatedlen &Horeign holder." This discussion is
based upon Chilean income tax laws presently in forceudimgd Ruling No. 324 (1990) of the Chilean
Internal Revenue Service and other applicable regulationsudings. The discussion is not intended as tax
advice to any particular investor, which can be rendengdin light of that investor's particular tax situpati

Under Chilean law, provisions contained in statutes @asltax rates applicable to foreign investors, the
computation of taxable income for Chilean purposes and theemanwhich Chilean taxes are imposed and
collected may only be amended by another statute. In auditie Chilean tax authorities issue rulings and
regulations of either general or specific applicationiatetpret the provisions of Chilean tax law. Chilean tax
may not be assessed retroactively against taxpayers who axdrfaith relying on such rulings, regulations

and interpretations, but Chilean tax authorities may chaage rslings, regulations and interpretations

prospectively.
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Cash Dividends and Other Distributions

Cash dividends paid by the Company with respect tolthees, including shares represented by ADRs held by
a U.S. holder will be subject to a 35% Chilean withhaddiax, which is withheld and paid by the Company,
the "Withholding Tax.” If the Company has paid corporaieome tax, the "First Category Tax", on the
income from which the dividend is paid, a credit for thestFCategory Tax effectively reduces the rate of
Withholding Tax. When a credit is available, the Withhaddirax is computed by applying the 35% rate to
the pre-tax amount needed to fund the dividend and thdrastibg from the tentative withholding tax so
determined the amount of First Category Tax actuallgl paithe pre-tax income. Under Chilean income tax
law, dividends are assumed to have been paid out of destaletained tax profits for purposes of determining
the rate at which the First Category Tax was paid.

The effective Withholding Tax rate, after giving effecthe credit for First Category Tax, generally is:

(Withholding Tax rate) - (First Cateqgory Tax effgetrate)
1 - (First Category Tax effective rate)

The effective rate of Withholding Tax to be imposed ondainds paid by the Company will vary depending

upon the amount of the First Category Tax paid by tbegany on the earnings to which the dividends are
attributed. The company distributed two dividends cgoeding to the business year 2009. The first

dividend, paid in December 2009, was considered taxable hariobtal tax retention rate was approximately

22%. The second dividend, distributed by the Compamyay 2010 corresponding to the business year 2009,
was considered taxable, and the total tax retention @geapproximately 22%.

Dividend distributions made in property (such as digtrim of cash equivalents) would be subject to the same
Chilean tax rules as cash dividends. Stock dividendsoargubject to Chilean taxation.

Capital Gains

Gains from the sale or other disposition by a fordigider of ADR outside Chile will not be subject to
Chilean taxation. The deposit and withdrawal of the sharexchange for ADRs will not be subject to any
Chilean taxes.

The tax basis of the shares received in exchange for ADRs {atipa)rwill be the acquisition value of the
shares. The shares exchanged for ADRs are valued at thesthfgice at which they trade on the Chilean
Stock Exchange on the date of the exchange or on eithtbe divo business days preceding the exchange.
Consequently, the conversion of ADRs into the sharegteniinmediate sale of such shares at a price equal to
or less than the highest price for Series A shares or S2ibares on the Chilean Stock Exchange on such
dates will not generate a gain subject to Chilean taxation.

Gain recognized on a sale or exchange of shares (as distiedufrom sales or exchanges of ADRs
representing such shares) will be subject to both the Eategory Tax and the Withholding Tax if either (i)
the foreign holder has held the shares for less thayearesince exchanging the ADRs for the shares, (ii) the
foreign holder acquired and disposed of the sharesiorttiinary course of its business or as a regular trader
of shares, or (iii) the foreign holder and the purchasehe shares are related parties within the meaning of
Chilean tax law. The amount of the First Category Tax neagredited against the amount of the Withholding
Tax. In all other cases, gain on the disposition of theeshwill be subject only to a capital gains tax, whéch i
assessed at the same rate as the First Category Tax. Gainzedagrthe transfer of common shares that
have a high presence in the stock exchange, however, is fettdobcapital gains tax in Chile, provided that
the common shares are transferred in a local exchange, inantti@rized stock exchanges, or within the
process of a public tender of common shares governed byhiteaC Securities Market Act. The common
shares must also have been acquired either on a stock exchahgetheitreferred process of a public tender
of a common shares governed by the Chilean Securities Mackein an initial public offer of common
shares resulting from the formation of a corporation oapital increase of the same, or in an exchange of
convertible bonds. According to Ruling No 224 (2008Yh® Chilean Internal Revenue Service, common
shares received by exchange of ADRs are also considered as édaguia stock exchange” if the respective
ADRs have been acquired on a foreign stock exchange authbgizbé SVS (i.e. London Stock Exchange,
New York Stock Exchange and Bolsa de Valores de Madrid).n@mrshares are considered to have a high
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presence in the stock exchange when they: a) are registetieel 8ecurities Registry b) are registered in a
Chilean Stock Exchange, c) have an adjusted presence equaaliove 25%.

As of June 19, 2001 capital gains obtained in the sat®minon shares that are publicly traded in a stock
exchange are also exempt from capital gains tax in Chile weersale is made by "foreign institutional
investors" such as mutual funds and pension funds, movitat the sale is made in a stock exchange or in
accordance with the provisions of the securities markeilmw 18.045), or in any other form authorized by
the SVS. To qualify as foreign institutional investdi®e referred entities must be formed outside of Chile,
not have domicile in Chile, and they must be an "investrfund" in according with the Chilean tax law.

The exercise of preemptive rights relating to shares willbeosubject to Chilean taxation. Any gain on the
sale or assignment of preemptive rights relating to sheltielse subject to both the First Category Tax and the
Withholding Tax (the former being creditable againstiater).

Other Chilean Taxes

No Chilean inheritance, gift or succession taxes applig¢dransfer or disposition of the ADRs by a foreign
holder, but such taxes generally will apply to the trarafateath or by gift of the shares by a foreign holder.
No Chilean stamp, issue, registration or similar taxefites apply to foreign holders of ADRs or shares.

Withholding Tax Certificates

Upon request, the Company will provide to foreign hadspropriate documentation evidencing the payment
of Chilean withholding taxes.

United States Tax Considerations

The following discussion summarizes the principal Wefieral income tax consequences to beneficial owners
arising from the acquisition, ownership and dispositbthe Series A shares and the Series B shares, together
the "shares" and the ADRs. The discussion which follsssased on the United States Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended, the "Code", the Treasury regslaifomulgated thereunder, and judicial and
administrative interpretations thereof, all as in effmud available on the date hereof, and is subject to any
changes in these or other laws occurring after such dateddition, the summary assumes that the
depositary’s activities are clearly and appropriately defilmealssto ensure that the tax treatment of ADRs will
be identical to the tax treatment of the underlying shares.

For purposes of this summary, the term "U.S. Holdegans a beneficial owner of shares or ADRs that is, for
U.S. federal income tax purposes, (a) an individual iwleoUnited States citizen or resident, (b) a corporation
or partnership created or organized under the lawsedfltiited States or any political subdivision thereof, (c)
an estate, the income of which is subject to U.S. federame tax regardless of the source, or (d) a trust (i)
that validly elects to be treated as a U.S. person forfed8ral income tax purposes or (ii)(A) if a court within
the U.S. is able to exercise primary supervision oveatiministration of the trust and (B) one or more U.S.
persons have the authority to control all substad#alsions of the trust.

The term "Non-U.S. Holder" means, for purposes ofdigsussion, a beneficial owner of shares or ADRs that
is not a U.S. Holder.

If a partnership (or any other entity treated as a pafipefor U.S. federal income tax purposes) holds share
or ADRs, the tax treatment of the partnership and a pairirguch partnership generally will depend on the
status of the partner and the activities of the partnersbigch a partner or partnership should consult its own
tax advisor as to its consequences.

The discussion that follows is not intended as tax adei@ny particular investor and is limited to investors
who will hold the shares or ADRs as "capital assets"iwithe meaning of Section 1221 of the Code and
whose functional currency is the United States dollar.slimemary does not address the tax treatment of U.S.
Holders and Non-U.S. Holders that may be subject ¢ciapU.S. federal income tax rules, such as insurance
companies, tax-exempt organizations, banks, U.S. Holdevsavensubject to the alternative minimum tax, or
U.S. Holders and Non-U.S. Holders who are broker-deatesecurities, who hold the shares or ADRs as a
hedge against currency risks, as a position in a "straddleé&xXqurposes, or as part of a conversion or other
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integrated transaction, or who own (directly, indirecttyby attribution) 10% or more of the total combined
voting power of all classes of the Company's capital stotiled to vote or 10% or more of the value of the
outstanding capital stock of the Company.

As of this date, there is currently no applicable incomértsaty in effect between the United States and Chile.
However, the United States and Chile have recently signeccaméntax treaty that will enter into force once
the treaty is ratified by both countries. There can be sarasce that the treaty will be ratified by either
country. The following summary assumes that there iapmicable income tax treaty in effect between the
United States and Chile.

The discussion below does not address the effect of aitgdJBtates state, local, estate or gift tax law or
foreign tax law on a U.S. Holder or Non-U.S. Holdettlod shares or ADRs. U.S. HOLDERS AND NON-
U.S. HOLDERS OF SHARES OR ADRs SHOULD CONSULT THEMWN TAX ADVISORS TO
DETERMINE THE PARTICULAR CONSEQUENCES UNDER ANY SWCLAW OF OWNING OR
DISPOSING THE SHARES OR ADRs.

For purposes of applying U.S. federal income tax law, any losledbwner of an ADR generally will be
treated as the owner of the underlying shares represéetety.

TO ENSURE COMPLIANCE WITH U.S. TREASURY DEPARTMENTIRCULAR 230, INVESTORS
ARE ADVISED THAT: (A) ANY DISCUSSION OF U.S. FEDERATAX ISSUES IN THIS FORM 20-F IS
NOT INTENDED OR WRITTEN TO BE RELIED UPON, AND CANGT BE RELIED UPON, BY
INVESTORS FOR THE PURPOSE OF AVOIDING PENALTIES THAMAY BE IMPOSED ON SUCH
INVESTORS UNDER THE U.S. INTERNAL REVENUE CODE OMP86, AS AMENDED; (B) SUCH
DISCUSSION IS INCLUDED BY THE COMPANY IN CONNECTIONVITH THE PROMOTION OR
MARKETING (WITHIN THE MEANING OF CIRCULAR 230) BY HE COMPANY OF THE
TRANSACTIONS OR MATTERS ADDRESSED HEREIN; AND (C)NWESTORS SHOULD SEEK
ADVICE BASED ON THEIR PARTICULAR CIRCUMSTANCES FRONAN INDEPENDENT TAX
ADVISOR.

Cash Dividends and Other Distributions

The U.S. Treasury Department has expressed concern that depsdior ADRs, or other intermediaries
between the holders of shares of an issuer and the igsagihe taking actions that are inconsistent with the
claiming of U.S. foreign tax credits by U.S. holderssath receipts or shares. Accordingly, the analysis
regarding the availability of a U.S. foreign tax credit €@hilean taxes and sourcing rules described below
could be affected by future actions that may be takehdy).S. Treasury Department.

The following discussion of cash dividends and otheridigions is subject to the discussion below under
“Passive Foreign Investment Company Considerations’e @grbss amount of a distribution with respect to
shares or ADRs generally will be treated as a taxable diiterihe extent of the Company's current and
accumulated earnings and profits, computed in accordance withfédi&al income tax principles. A
dividend distribution will be so included in grossdme when received by (or otherwise made available to) (i)
the U.S. Holder in the case of the shares or (ii) thegigpy in the case of the ADRs, and in either case will
be characterized as ordinary income for U.S. federal iectar purposes. Distributions in excess of the
Company's current and accumulated earnings and profitdeviipplied against and will reduce the U.S.
Holder's tax basis in the shares or ADRs and, to thatedistributions exceed such tax basis, the excess will
be treated as gain from a sale or exchange of such shares sr ADR Holders that are corporations will not
be allowed a deduction for dividends received in respectsfilditions on the shares or the ADRs. For
example, if the gross amount of a distribution with eesgo the shares or ADRs exceeds the Company's
current and accumulated earnings and profits by US$1@60,excess will generally not be subject to a U.S.
tax to the extent the U.S. Holder's tax basis in the sbaBRs equals or exceeds US$10.00. The Company
does not maintain calculations of its earnings and tgrafinder U.S. federal income tax principles.
Accordingly, U.S. Holders should assume that any caghidison made by us will be treated as a dividend
for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

If a dividend distribution is paid in Chilean pesti®e amount includable in income will generally be th8.U
dollar value, on the date of receipt by the U.S. Holdehé case of the shares or by the depositary in the case
of the ADRs, of the peso amount distributed, regardiessether the payment is actually converted into U.S.
dollars. The amount of any distribution of propeotyer than cash will be the fair market value of such
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property on the date of distribution. Any gain orslogsulting from currency exchange rate fluctuations
during the period from the date the dividend is incluelablthe income of the U.S. Holder to the date the
pesos are converted into U.S. dollars will be treatettdisary income or loss.

A dividend distribution will be treated as foreign souimeome and will generally be classified as "passive
category income" or in the case of certain U.S. Holderséigérrategory income" for U.S. foreign tax credit

purposes. If Chilean withholding taxes are imposed oivideshd, U.S. Holders will be treated as having

actually received the amount of such taxes (net of any credibdoFirst Category Tax) and as having paid

such amount to the Chilean taxing authorities. As a rakleltamount of dividend income included in gross

income by a U.S. Holder will be greater than the amotimash actually received by the U.S. Holder with

respect to such dividend income. A U.S. Holder may be, ahlbject to certain generally applicable

limitations, to claim a foreign tax credit or a deductionChilean withholding taxes (net of any credit for the

First Category Tax) imposed on dividend payments. Tles nelating to the determination of the U.S. foreign

tax credit are complex, and the calculation of U.S. foréax credits and, in the case of a U.S. Holder that
elects to deduct foreign taxes, the availability of deductions|ve the application of rules that depend on a
U.S. Holder's particular circumstances. U.S. Holderauldhaherefore, consult their own tax advisors

regarding the application of the U.S. foreign tax cradds to dividend income on the shares or ADRs.

Subiject to the discussion below under “Informatieporting and Backup Withholding”, if you are a
Non-U.S. Holder, you generally will not be subject t&sUfederal income or withholding tax on dividends
received by you on your shares or ADRs, unless you coiadinatle or business in the United States and such
income is effectively connected with that trade or bessn

Capital Gains

A U.S. Holder will generally recognize gain or loss on thle,sredemption or other disposition of the shares
or ADRs in an amount equal to the difference between tltmuaimealized on the sale or exchange and the
U.S. Holder's adjusted basis in such shares or ADRsis, Ththe U.S. Holder sells the shares for US$40.00
and such U.S. Holder's tax basis in such shares is UE$3Wich U.S. Holder will generally recognize a gain
of US$10.00 for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Subgethe discussion below under “Passive Foreign
Investment Company Considerations”, gain or loss uperséle of the shares or ADRs will be capital gain or
loss if the shares or ADRs are capital assets in the tadnitie U.S. Holder. Capital gains on the sale of
capital assets held for one year or less are subjecStdddleral income tax at ordinary income tax rates. Net
capital gains derived with respect to capital assets helddoe than one year are eligible for reduced rates of
taxation. Gain or loss realized by a U.S. Holder on étear exchange of shares or ADRs will be U.S.-source
income. In addition, certain limitations exist on theddctibility of capital losses by both corporate and
individual taxpayers. Any tax imposed by Chile directlytbe gain from such a sale would generally be
eligible for the U.S. foreign tax credit; however, becatlse gain would generally be U.S.-source, a U.S.
Holder might not be able to use the credit otherwise availabl.S. Holders should consult their own tax
advisors regarding the foreign tax credit implicationshefdale, redemption or other disposition of a share or
ADR.

Subject to the discussion below under “Information Répg and Backup Withholding”, a Non-U.S. Holder
of ADRs or shares will not be subject to United Statesrime or withholding tax on gain from the sale or
other disposition of ADRs or shares unless, in gen@rali¢h gain is effectively connected with the conduct
of a trade or business within the United States oth@)Non-U.S. Holder is an individual who is presenhin t
United States for at least 183 days during the taxable yehe afispositiorand certain other conditions are
met.

Passive Foreign Investment Company Considerations

A Non-U.S. corporation will be classified as a “passivesifpm investment company”, or a PFIC, for U.S.
federal income tax purposes in any taxable year in which,affgying certain look-through rules, either (i) at
least 75% of its gross income is “passive income” or (iigasti 50% of the average value of its gross assets is
attributable to assets that produce “passive income” or adefdrethe production of passive income. Passive
income for this purpose generally includes dividends, irter@galties, rents and gains from the sale of stock
(including gains from the sale of stock of certainssdilaries), partnership interests, securities or comiesdi
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Based on certain estimates of our gross income and gses asd the nature of our business, the Company
believes that it was not classified as a PFIC in 2009. Cdmpany’s status in future years will depend on its
assets and activities in those years. If the Company wertCa & U.S. Holder of shares or ADRs generally
would be subject to imputed interest charges and othadwdistageous tax treatment (including the denial of
taxation at the lower rates applicable to long-term capgaihs with respect to any gain from the sale or
exchange of shares or ADRS).

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

Payments of dividends on the shares or ADRs and the prootedte or other disposition of the shares or
ADRs within the United States by certain non-corporatedrsi may be subject to U.S. information reporting
and backup withholding. A U.S. Holder generally will héject to U.S. information reporting and backup
withholding at a rate of 28% unless the recipient of samyment supplies an accurate taxpayer identification
number, as well as certain other information, or otregwistablishes an exemption, in the manner prescribed
by United States law and applicable regulations. U.$rmmdtion reporting and backup withholding of U.S.
federal income tax at a rate of 28% may also apply to Nontlblers that are not "exempt recipients" and
that fail to provide certain information as may be regpliby United States law and applicable regulations.
Any amount withheld under U.S. backup withholdingh¢g an additional tax and is generally allowable as a
credit against the U.S. Holder's federal income tax liabilitgnufurnishing the required information to the
IRS.

Recently enacted legislation requires certain U.S. Holderseport information with respect to their
investment in shares or, it is assumed, ADRs not hefligih a custodial account with a U.S. financial
institution to the Internal Revenue Service. Investors Vil to report required information could become
subject to substantial penalties.

HOLDERS ARE URGED TO CONSULT THEIR OWN TAX ADVISORSREGARDING THE
APPLICATION OF THE U.S. INFORMATION REPORTING ANDABCKUP WITHHOLDING RULES TO
THEIR PARTICULAR CIRCUMSTANCES.

10.F. Dividends and Paying Agents
Not applicable

10.G. Statement by Experts

Not applicable

10.H. Documents on Display
Documents referred to in this form 20-F are availabtbdegublic at:

http://www.sec.qgov/edgar/searchedgar/companyseardiiml, CIK: 909037.

10.1. Subsidiary Information
See Item 4.C. Organizational Structure.
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ITEM 11. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK ET
RISK

As explained elsewhere in this Annual Report, we trar@aicbusinesses in more than 100 countries, thereby
rendering our market risk dependent upon the fluctusit@nforeign currencies and local and international
interest rates. These fluctuations may generate losdas Value of financial instruments taken in the normal
course of business.

We, from time to time and depending upon then current rharieditions, review and re-establish our
financial policies to protect our operations. Managerigatthorized by our Board of Directors to engage in
certain derivative contracts such as forwards and swaps tdicgchedge the fluctuations in interest rates
and in currencies other than the U.S. dollar.

Derivative instruments used by us are transaction-spesifithat a specific debt instrument or contract
determines the amount, maturity and other terms of theehedde do not use derivative instruments for
speculative purposes.

Interest Rate RiskAs of December 31, 2009, we had approximately 45&upnfinancial debt priced at Libor,
and therefore significant increases in the rate could impaccfinancial condition. We also maintain the
majority of our short-term financial debt priced at dilplus a spread for which we do not have any kind of
derivative contract.

Expected Maturity Date

On Balance Sheet Financial Instruments 2010 2011 %/} 2013 2014 and Total  Fair Value

(in thousands of U.S. dollars) thereafter

Fixed Rate (US$) 39,654 39,350 39,106 38,742 752,11 908,965 732,573
Bond — US$200 million - Int.: 6.125% 12,250 12,250 12,250 12,250 230,625 279,625 234,810
Bond — UF 2.55 million (1) - Int.: 5.84% 10,221 29 9,625 9,309 93,387 132,459 100,586
Bond — CH$ 21,000 million (1) - Int.: 5.27% 1,799 ,799 1,804 1,799 34,580 41,782 38,059
Bond— UF 1.50 million (1)- Int.: 4.80% 2,720 2,72% 2,73¢ 2,725 57,40( 68,317 61,81:
Bond — CH$ 52,000 million (1) - Int.: 4.48% 4,199 ,129 4,210 4,199 94,533 111,340 100,672
Bond — UF 4.00 million (1) (2) - Int.: 5.70% 8,458 8,458 8,481 8,458 241,588 275,442 196,634
Variable Rate (US$) 158,832 118,370 120,674 3,591 143,591 545,057 515,877
Loan — US$ 140 million - Int.: L + 2.10% 2,833 3159 3,601 3,591 143,591 157,206 137,222
Loan — US$ 100 million - Int.: L + 0.375% 100,098 - - - - 100,098 99,993
Loan — US$ 80 million - Int.: L + 0.30% 538 80,592 - - - 81,130 78,915
Loan— US$ 75 million- Int.: L + 3.00% 2,601 2,60¢ 76,30¢ - - 81,51¢ 77,52t
Loan — US$ 50 miillion - Int.: L + 1.50% 50,959 - - - - 50,959 50,621
Loan — US$ 40 million - Int.: L + 2.25% 975 1,016 0,466 - - 42,757 40,468
Loan— US$ 20 million- Int.: L + 3.30% 551 20,37t - - - 20,92¢ 20,75¢
Loan — US$ 10 million - Int.: L + 3.30% 276 10,188 - - - 10,463 10,377
Total 198,485 157,719 159,780 42,333 895,704 1,454,0211,248,450

(1) UF and CH$ bonds are fully hedged, under thi'e@h GAAP, to US$ with a Cross Currency Swap (CO8g cash flows and interest rates
presented above are the CCS US$.

(2) The CCS of the UF4 million Bond will cover ur2013. The expected maturity for the following yewere projected in U.S. dollars using
the same rates that we have today in this CCS.
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Exchange Rate RiskAlthough the U.S. dollar is the primary currency in vihige transact our businesses,
our operations throughout the world expose us to excheaigevariations for non-U.S. dollar currencies.
Therefore, fluctuations in the exchange rate of such loaakncies may affect our financial condition and
results of operations. To lessen these effects, we amaiderivative contracts to protect the net difference
between our principal assets and liabilities for currenciBerahan the U.S. dollar. These contracts are
renewed periodically depending on the amount covered in eancyr Aside from this, we do not hedge
potential future income and expenses in currencies titaerthe U.S. dollar with the exception of the euro and
Chilean peso. We estimate annual sales in Euros and experSh#ean pesos and secure the exchange
difference with derivative contracts.

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008 we had the followingnosietary assets and liabilities that are subject to
foreign exchange gain or loss fluctuation:

2009 2008
Th US$ Th US$
Chilean pesos (271,513 (104,605
Brazilian real (1,303 (1,367)
Euro 13,821 64,627
Japanese yen 832 1,033
Mexican pesos 667 2,188
South African rand 28,868 11,584
Dirhams 22,575 15,353
Other currencies 16,968 14,971
Total, net (189,085 3,784

We monitor and attempt to maintain our non-dollar &sand liabilities position in balance and make use of
foreign exchange contracts and other hedging instrumertty to minimize our exposure to the risks of

changes in foreign exchange rates. As of December 31, #0Q8is purpose we had open forward exchange
contracts and options to buy U.S. dollars and sebidor currency for approximately 26.5 million Euros

(US$38 million), and 222 million South African RanddS$30.7 million), as well as forward exchange

contracts to sell U.S. dollars and buy Chilean pesospjmmoaimately 38,911 million Chilean Pesos (US$76.7
million).

Also, we had open forward exchange contracts to buy U.&rsl@nd sell Chilean pesos to hedge our time
deposits in Chilean Pesos for approximately 136,484omilChilean Pesos (US$269.2 million) and forward
contracts to buy U.S. dollars and sell Chilean pesospfamoaimately 25,710 million Chilean Pesos (US$50.7
million) that we used to hedge our fertilizer tradmgsiness in Chile.

Additionally, we had open forward exchange contracts andmgptio buy U.S. dollars and sell foreign
currency to hedge part of our future Euro cash flowsyfmroximately 41.3 million Euros (US$59.1 million)
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ITEM 12. DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES OTHER THAN EQUITY SECURIT IES

ITEM 12.A. DEBT SECURITIES

Not applicable.

ITEM 12.B. WARRANTS AND RIGHTS

Not applicable.

ITEM 12.C. OTHER SECURITIES

Not applicable.

ITEM 12.D. AMERICAN DEPOSITARY RECEIPTS

Depositary Fees and Charges

The Company’s American Depositary Receipts (“ADR”) pragia administered by The Bank of New York

Mellon (101 Barclay St., 22 FI.W., New York, NY 10386és Depositary. Under the terms of the Deposit
Agreement, an ADR holder may have to pay the followingiserfees to the Depositary:

Service Fees Fees
Execution and delivery of Receipts and the surrend $0.05 per sha
Receipts

Depositary Payments Fiscal Year 2009
The Depositary has agreed to reimburse certain expenatsiral the Company’s ADR program and incurred

by the Company in connection with the program. In®2@0e Depositary reimbursed expenses related to
investor relations for a total amount of $225,762.94.
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PART Il

ITEM 13. DEFAULTS, DIVIDEND ARREARAGES AND DELINQUENCIES
Not applicable

ITEM 14. MATERIAL MODIFICATIONS TO THE RIGHTS OF SECURITY
HOLDERS AND USE OF PROCEEDS

Not applicable.
ITEM 15. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(a) Disclosure Control and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation & @ompany's management, including the Company's
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we ewsdd the effectiveness of the design and
operation of our disclosure controls and proceduresupat to Exchange Act Rules 13(a)-15(b), as of the end
of the period covered by this Annual Report. Based upahevaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the Compattigglosure controls and procedures are effective in
providing reasonable assurance that material informatiovade known to management and that financial and
non-financial information is properly recorded, processachmarized and reported.

The procedures associated to our internal controls argnéekito provide reasonable assurance that our
transactions are properly authorized, assets are safeguardiedt agnauthorized or improper use, and
transactions are properly recorded and reported. Howeveugthithe same design and evaluation period of
the disclosure controls and procedures, the Company's eraeag including the Company's Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, recognized that ¢hare inherent limitations to the effectiveness of any
internal control system regardless of how well designedogrerated. In such a way they can provide only
reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectidenoaevaluation can provide absolute
assurance that all control issues or instances of friady, within the Company have been detected.

There were no significant changes in our internal comtoekr financial reporting that occurred during the
period covered by this Annual Report that have matergfiigcted, or are likely to materially affect our
internal control over financial reporting.

(b) Management’s Annual Report on Internal Contr@ver Financial Reporting

SQM Management is responsible for establishing and maimgamilequate internal control over financial
reporting. The Company’s internal control over finanoéglorting is designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and thepgamation of the financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting f@mcip

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controkmfinancial reporting may not necessarily prevent or
detect some misstatements. It can only provide reasonablamss regarding financial statement preparation
and presentation. Also, projections of any evaluationfetg¥eness for future periods are subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequate because of changes in cenditibecause the degree of compliance
with the polices or procedures may deteriorate over time.

Management assessed the effectiveness of its internal Icom&o financial reporting for the year ended
December 31, 2009. The assessment was based on criteriscsbethbii the framework “Internal Controls —
Integrated Framework” issued by the Committee of Spamgd@rganizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO0). Based on the assessment, SQM management has conbhaidad bf December 31, 2009, the
Company'’s internal control over financial reporting wasétffe.
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(c) Attestation Report of the Registered Public Aoating Firm

Ernst & Young Ltda., the independent registered public acaauritim that has audited our Consolidated
Financial Statements, has also issued an attestation m@pdtiie Company'’s internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2009. This attestationrregppears on pages F-2 and F-3 under Iltem 18
Financial Statements.

(d) Changes in internal control

There were no changes in the Company’s internal controlfmaacial reporting that occurred during 2009

that have materially affected, or are reasonably likelyadtenmally affect, the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting.

ITEM 16. [Reserved]

ITEM 16A. AUDIT COMMITTEE FINANCIAL EXPERT

On June 17, 2008, the Board of Directors determihatl the Company does not have an audit committee
financial expert within the meaning of the regulationspded under Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Pursuant to Chilean regulations, the Company has a Dise@ommittee whose main duties are similar to
those of an audit committee. Each of the members of thecidins' Committee is a member of the audit
committee. See 6.C. Board Practices.

Our Board believes that the members of the Directonsirfiittee have the necessary expertise and experience
to perform the functions of the Directors' Commifpeesuant to Chilean regulations.

ITEM 16B. CODE OF ETHICS

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct that applies @hibf Executive Officer, the Chief Financial
Officer and the Internal Auditor, as well as, to all afficers and employees. Our Code adheres to the
definition set forth in Iltem 16B of Form 20-F undike Exchange Act.

No waivers have been granted therefrom to the officersiomeal above.

The full text of the code is available on our website @t vww.sgm.comin the Investor Relations section
under “Corporate Governance Framework”.

Amendments to, or waivers from one or more provisifithe code will be disclosed on our website.

ITEM 16C. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
The table sets forth the amount of fees billed for each of#itawo fiscal years by our independent auditors,
Ernst & Young, in relation to audit services, audittet services, tax and other services provided to us (in
thousands of U.S. dollars).

Year ended December 31,

2009 200¢
Audit fees 954.9 990.8
Audit-related fees _ _
Tax fees 94.¢ 75.1
Other fees 34.¢
Total fees 1,084.5 1,065.¢
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Audit fees in the above table are the aggregate fees billednsy &rYoung in connection with the audit of
our annual Consolidated Financial Statements, as weieagview of other statutory filings.

Audit-related fees in the above table are fees billed by Brivadung for assurance and related services that
are reasonably related to the performance of the audit or redfiesur financial statements and are not
reported under "Audit Fees."

Tax fees in the above table are fees billed by Ernst & Ydantax advice and tax planning services.
Directors' Committee Pre-Approval Policies and Proedures

Chilean law states that public companies are subjectréadjpproval” requirements under which all audit and
non-audit services provided by the independent auditat imel pre-approved by the Directors’ Committee.

Our Directors’ Committee approves all audits, audit-relatad and other services provided by Ernst &
Young.

Any services provided by Ernst & Young that are not speifi included within the scope of the audit must
be pre-approved by the Directors’ Committee prior p emgagement.

ITEM 16D. EXEMPTIONS FROM THE LISTING STANDARDS FOR AUDIT
COMMITTEE

Not applicable

ITEM 16E. PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES BY THE ISSUER AND
AFFILIATED PURCHASERS

Not applicable
ITEM 16F. CHANGE IN REGISTRANT'S CERTIFYING ACCOUN TANT

Not applicable
ITEM 16G. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

For a summary of the significant differences between ourocai governance practices and the NYSE
corporate governance standards, please see "ltem 6. Directoit, anagement and Employees-C. Board
Practices".
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PART Il
ITEM 17. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Not applicable
ITEM 18. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
See Item 19(a) for a list of all financial statemeiigzlfas part of this Form 20-F annual report.
ITEM 19. EXHIBITS

(a) Index to Financial Statements

Report of IndependelRegistered Public Accounting Firm...........ccccuviiieeeiiiiiiiinieeennns F-1
Report of IndependerRegistered Public Accounting Firm on the internatcol over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2Q09.........c.coviiiiiiiiiiiniie e F-2
Consolidated Financial Statement:
Audited Consolidated Balae Sheets as of December 31, 2009 and .................... F-4
Audited Consolidated Statements of Income for each of tlee tywars in the peric
ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 .......ceueeuiieiieiiieieeee e et s F-6
Audited Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for eadheothree years in tt
period ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 .....cccceeeievvveiiieeiieeeeiiiieieeeeennn, F-7
Notes to the Audited Consolidated Financial Stater ............cccooeevvviiiieeneeiiinnen, F-9

Supplementary Schedule

*All other schedules have been omitted because #reynot applicable or the required informatiorsli®wn in the
consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

(b) Exhibits

Exhibit
No. Exhibit

1.1 By-laws (Estatutos) of the Comps

8.1 Significant subsidiaries of the Compi
12.1 Section 302 Chief Executive Officer Certificat
12.2 Section 302 Chief Financial Officer Certificat
13.1 Section 906 Chief Executive Officer Certificat
13.2 Section 906 Chief Financial Officer Certificat
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SIGNATURES

The registrant hereby certifies that it meets all ofréfggiirements for filing on Form 20-F and that it haly du
caused and authorized the undersigned to sign this annagl oagts behalf.

SOCIEDAD QUIMICA Y MINERA DE CHILE S.A.

(CHEMICAL AND MINING COMPANY OF CHILE INC.)

/sl Ricardo Ramos

Ricardo Ramos R.
Chief Financial Officer and
Business Development Senior Vice President

Date: June 30, 2010
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Consolidated Financial Statements

SOCIEDAD QUIMICA Y MINERA DE CHILE S.A. AND SUBSIDI ARIES

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008
and for each of the three years in the period e mber 31, 2009

Contents

Report of Independent Registered Public ACCOUMEIMGN ...........covvvuiirerririiinierieiii e mmeee e F-1
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfiingy on the internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31, 2009 o ceeiiiiiiiiiii e F-2
Consolidated Financial Statements
Audited Consolidated Balance Sheets as of DeceBIHe2009 and 2008..........c.oeeuveeeeeneenvemmns. F-4
Audited Consolidated Statements of Income for each dhtiee years in the period ended
DECEMDET 31, 2009, ... it et e ettt e e e et et e e e e —n e aaaaaas F-6
Audited Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for eatttedhree years in the period ended
DECemMDBEr 31, 2009. ... ..ceiui ettt ettt ettt ene e e e s F-7
Notes to the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements.............cccuviiieiiiiiiiieceiiieee e F-9

Ch$
ThCh$
US$
ThUS$
ThEuro
UF

- Chilean pesos

- Thousands of Chilean pesos

- United States dollars

- Thousands of United States dollars

- Thousands of Euros

- The UF is an inflation-indexed, Chilean pesmaminated monetary unit. The UF rate
is set daily in advance, based on the change inCivesumer Price Index of the
previous month.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Sociedad Quimica y Minera de Chile S.A.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Sociedad Quimica y Minera de Chile
S.A. and subsidiaries (“the Company”) as of Decanfide 2009 and 2008, and the related consolidated
statements of income and cash flows for each ofttee years in the period ended December 31, 2009.
These financial statements are the responsibifith® Company’s management. Our responsibilitiois
express an opinion on these financial statemersisdoban our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstais of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards requireviieaplan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statemeatBee of material misstatement. An audit alsouideb
examining, on a test basis, evidence supportingatheunts and disclosures in the financial statesnent
assessing the accounting principles used and &ignifestimates made by management, and evaluhatng
overall financial statement presentation. We beliévat our audits provide a reasonable basis for ou
opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredabove present fairly, in all material respectse t
consolidated financial position of Sociedad Quimiddinera de Chile S.A. and subsidiaries at Decambe
31, 2009 and 2008, and the results of their opmratand their cash flows for each of the threesygathe
period ended December 31, 2009 in conformity withoainting principles generally accepted in Chile,
which differ in certain respects from accountingngiples generally accepted in the United States of
America (see Note 30 to the consolidated finarate@tements).

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the Company’s internal alrdwver financial reporting as of December 31, 2009
based on the criteria established in Internal @ihitegrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commisaiuth our report dated February 25, 2010, except
for internal control over financial reporting reddtto Notes 29 and 30 of the 2010 consolidatedfiiah
statements as to which the date is June 18, 28pfessed an unqualified opinion thereon.

ERNST & YOUNG LTDA.
M#MJM.

Santiago, Chile
February 25, 2010
(Except for Notes 29 and 30 for which the dateuiseJ18, 2010)
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Sociedad Quimica y Minera de Chile S.A.:

We have audited Sociedad Quimica y Minera de Chife and subsidiaries’ (the “Company”) internal
control over financial reporting as of December 2009, based on criteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Commitie Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (the “COSO criteria”). The Company’'snagement is responsible for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting, and fiter assessment of the effectiveness of internarabover
financial reporting included in the accompanyingrndgement’'s Annual Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to exggen opinion on the Company’s internal controlrove
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statelof the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards requirevikaplan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal comtvel financial reporting was maintained in all mize
respects. Our audit included obtaining an undedatagnof internal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exesdting and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on thesseskrisk, and performing such other procedureseas
considered necessary in the circumstances. Wevbelat our audit provides a reasonable basisdor o
opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financigbading and the preparation of financial statemdats
external purposes in accordance with generally pgedeaccounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes thoseigies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maartee

of records that, in reasonable detail, accuratety fairly reflect the transactions and dispositiafighe
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable as3eirthat transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in adaace with generally accepted accounting princjples
and that receipts and expenditures of the compempa&ing made only in accordance with authorization
of management and directors of the company; angr(8)ide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisitiorg,usr disposition of the company’s assets thatcchave

a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or déete
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluatibeffectiveness to future periods are subjeth#orisk
that controls may become inadequate because ofjekan conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.



In our opinion, Sociedad Quimica y Minera de CI8lé&\. and subsidiaries maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financggborting as of December 31, 2009, basethenCOSO
criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated balancetshd Sociedad Quimica y Minera de Chile S.A. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2009 and 2008ttendelated consolidated statements of income and
cash flows for each of the three years in the degnded December 31, 2009 and our report dated
February 25, 2010, except as to Notes 29 and 30 ashich the date is June 18, 2010 expressed an
unqualified opinion thereon.

ERNST & YOUNG LTDA.
éwcthle.

Santiago, Chile

February 25, 2010

(Except for internal control over financial repagirelated to Notes 29 and 30 of the 2009 condelitia
financial statements as to which the date is J&)2Q010)
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Sociedad Quimica y Minera de Chile S.A. and Subsidiies
Audited Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Expressed in thousands of US dollars, except astd)

As of December 31,

ASSETS 2009 2008
Notes ThUuS$ ThUS$

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 2y 530,394 303,799
Time deposits 15,043 20,121
Accounts receivable, net 4 309,765 328,041
Other accounts receivable, net 4 16,058 6,743
Accounts receivable from related companies 5 68,656 51,027
Inventories, net 6 637,689 540,727
Recoverable taxes 68,903 37,081
Prepaid expenses 5,275 5,490
Deferred income taxes 7 5,377 34,802
Other current assets 87,971 11,583
Total current assets 1,745,131 1,339,414
Property, plant and equipment, net 8 1,324,40E 1,119,92C
Other assets
Investments in related companies 9 55,205 36,951
Goodwill, net 10 29,725 31,901
Negative goodwill, net 10 (1,073) (1,279)
Long-term accounts receivable, net 4 4,209 767
Long-term accounts receivable from rela
companies 5 - 2,000
Intangible assets, net 2,514 3,115
Other long-term assets 11 43,018 34,426
Total other assets 133,598 107,881
Total assets 3,203,134 2,567,21F

The accompanying notes 1 to 30 form an integral@fahese consolidated financial statements
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Sociedad Quimica y Minera de Chile S.A. and Subsidiies
Audited Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Expressed in thousands of US dollars, except astd)

As of December 31

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 200¢ 200¢
Notes ThUuS$ ThUS$

Current liabilities

Short-term bank debt 12 70,368 133,355
Current portion of long-term bank debt 12 151,158 451
Promissory notes 13 29,363 -
Current portion of bonds payable 13 16,243 7,929
Dividends payable 831 656
Accounts payable 182,958 109,763
Other accounts payable 350 357
Notes and accounts payable to related companic 5 3,892 178
Accrued liabilities 14 37,191 30,414
Withholdings 32,066 32,252
Income taxes 1,298 89,186
Deferred income 27 16,536 31,722
Other current liabilities 3,220 9,643

Total current liabilities 545,474 445,906

Long-term liabilities

Long-term bank debt 12 365,000 230,000
Bonds payable 13 670,221 285,940
Other accounts payable 187 397
Deferred income taxes 7 56,520 57,485
Long-term accrued liabilities 14 53,026 37,310
Total long-term liabilities 1,144,954 611,132
Minority interest 15 46,093 47,069
Shareholders' equity 16
Paid-in capital 477,386 477,386
Other reserves 162,084 159,721
Retained earnings 827,143 826,001
Total shareholders' equity 1,466,612 1,463,108
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 3,203,134 2,567,215

The accompanying notes 1 to 30 form an integral@fahese consolidated financial statements
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Sociedad Quimica y Minera de Chile S.A. and Subsidiies
Audited Consolidated Statements of Income

(Expressed in thousands of US dollars, except astd)

Notes
Operating results

Sales

Cost of sales
Gross margin

Selling and administrative expenses
Operating income

Non-operating results
Non-operating income 17
Non-operating expenses 17
Non-operating loss
Income before income taxes and minority intere:
Income tax expense 7
Income before minority interest
Minority interest 15

Net income for the year

The accompanying notes 1 to 30 form an integral@fahese consolidated financial statements
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For the years ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007

ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$
1,436,891 1,774,11¢ 1,187,527
(916,088)  (1,056,254) (857,765)
520,803 717,865 329,762
(78,895) (85,709) (70,273)
441,908 632,156 259,489
40,472 40,590 25,948
(77,458) (59,896) (53,032)
(36,986) (19,306) (27,084)
404,922 612,850 232,405
(76,532) (107,951) (48,592)
328,390 504,899 183,813
(1,334) (3,492) (3,792)
327,056 501,407 180,021




Sociedad Quimica y Minera de Chile S.A. and Subsidiies
Audited Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Expressed in thousands of US dollars, except asttd)

For the years ended December 3

200¢ 200¢ 2007
Notes ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUuS$
Cash flows from operating activitie:
Net income for the ye 327,05¢ 501,40° 180,02:
Charges (credits) to income not representing caslofvs:
Depreciation expens 8 151,72: 110,57 97,82¢
Amortization of intangible asst 652 69¢ 712
Write-offs and accrua 42,03¢ 44,71( 34,06:
Gain on equity investments in related compse (5,717 (14,358 (3,643
Loss on equitinvestments in related compar 1,25¢ - 77
Amortization of goodwil 10 2,17¢ 2,21¢ 2,252
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipr (228 (2,793 87
Gain on sale of investmel - (1,387 (1,316
Other credits to income nrepresenting cash flo\ 21 (12,269 (4,979 (1,745
Other charges to income not representing cash 21 155,57! 205,98t 108,07!
Foreign exchange difference, 7,57¢ 15,89° (2,212
Net changes in operating assets and liabilitie
(increase) decrease:
Accounts receivab 23,32( (184,713 (25,830
Inventorie: (119,865 (193,469 (34,983
Other asse (33,109 1,97¢ (6,437
Accounts payab 43t 61,15¢ (4,000
Interest payab 11,43¢ 1,72¢ 582
Net income taxes payal (174,452 (42,073 (23,541
Other accounts payal (17,221 (15,147 (2,760
VAT and taxes payak 9,64¢ (33,608 (9,726
Minority interes 15 1,33¢ 3,492 3,792
Net cash provided from operating activitie 371,35« 457,31 311,29«
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from short term bank finant 411,52 280,00( -
Proceeds from issuance of bo 372,34 - -
Payment of dividenc (345,647 (212,831 (94,910
Repayment of bar financing (190,333 (100,000 (57,089
Payment of bonds payak (35,402 (5,573 (5,131
Payment of bond issuance and placement exg (8,093 - -
Other financing disbursemer (1,908 - -
Net cash provided by (used in) financin@ctivities 202,49: (38,404 (157,130
Cash flows from investing activitie:
Sales of property, plant and equipn 1,81( 25,96¢ 2,49¢
Sales of investments in related compe - 1,68¢ 1,47¢
Sales of other investme 20,12: - -
Other investing incon 2,17( 721 39¢
Additions to property, plant and equipm (357,007 (275,893 (165,640
Capitalized intere (19,231 (10,723 (12,388
Investments in related compar (3,580 - -
Time deposit (15,043 (20,121 -
Other disbursemer (2,200 (448 (513
Net cash used in investing activitie (372,960 (278,807 (174,166
Effect of inflation on cash and cash equival 25,71( (516 272
Net change in cash and ceequivalent 226,59! 139,58 (29,730
Beginning balance of cash and cash equive 303,79¢ 164,21. 183,94.
Ending balance of cash and cash equivalel 530,39: 303,79¢ 164,21.

The accompanying notes 1 to 30 form an integral@fahese consolidated financial statements
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Sociedad Quimica y Minera de Chile S.A. and Subsidiies
Audited Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Expressed in thousands of US dollars, except asttd)

For the years ended December 31

__2009 2008 2007
ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$

Supplemental cash flow information:

INEEIESE PAI .eeoeeeeiiiiiiiei e o e e 38,127 26,975 33,441

INCOME tAXES PAI ...eeeeeiiieii e e e e eeeeeeas 93,619 62,766 43,666

Capital lease obligation............cooiiieerreiiiiiee e 329 268 315

The accompanying notes 1 to 30 form an integral@fahese consolidated financial statements
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Sociedad Quimica y Minera de Chile S.A. and Subsidiies
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in thousands of US dollars, except astd)

Note 1 - COMPANY BACKGROUND

Sociedad Quimica y Minera de Chile S.A. (the “Compa“SQM S.A.” or “SQM”) was registered with
the Chilean Superintendency of Securities and amsg Superintendencia de Valores y Seguros
“SVS”) on March 18, 1983. The Company is regulalgdthe SVS as well as by the United States
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) sinsadace of American Depositary Receipts (“ADRS")
in December 1995.

References herein to “Parent Company” are to Sadi€uimica y Minera de Chile S.A. and references
herein to the “Company” or “SQM” are to Sociedadif@iga y Minera de Chile S.A. together with its
consolidated subsidiaries and the companies inhwBiociedad Quimica y Minera de Chile S.A. holds
significant equity interest.

The Company is an integrated producer and distiibot specialty fertilizers, iodine, lithium andhetr
industrial chemicals. The Company extracts nattigsburces and develops them into products, which it
then distributes to more than 100 countries.

Note 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a) Accounting period

These consolidated financial statements have bepaped as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 anddor th
years then ended.

b)  Basis for the preparation of the consolidated fiancial statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statembate been prepared in U.S. dollars in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted inl€€ffChilean GAAP”) and the regulations of the SVS
Certain accounting practices applied by the Comghatconform to Chilean GAAP may not conform to
generally accepted accounting principles in thetéthBStates (“US GAAP”). For the convenience of the
reader, the consolidated financial statements heit accompanying notes have been translated from
Spanish into English.

The consolidated financial statements include tleants of Sociedad Quimica y Minera de
Chile S.A. (the “Parent Company”) and subsidia(@snpanies in which the Parent Company
holds a controlling participation, generally eqteatlirect or indirect ownership of more than
50%). The Parent Company and its subsidiariesedeered to collectively as the “Company”.

The preparation of financial statements requiresagament to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets antitied, disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities as of the date of the financial statertseand the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reported period. Actual resolttd differ from those estimates.
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Sociedad Quimica y Minera de Chile S.A. and Subsidiies
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in thousands of US dollars, except astd)

Note 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
C) Reporting currency
The consolidated financial statements of the Compae prepared in U.S. dollars. As a significant

portion of the Company's operations are transaatet).S. dollars, the U.S. dollar is considered the
currency of the primary economic environment inekhthe Company operates.

d) Reclassifications

For comparison purposes, certain reclassificatiomge been made to the 2008 and 2007 consolidated
financial statements.
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Sociedad Quimica y Minera de Chile S.A. and Subsidiies
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in thousands of US dollars, except astd)
Note 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

e) Basis for consolidation

In accordance with SVS Circular No. 1,697 and TedirBulletins No. 64 and 72 from the Chilean
Association of Accountants, the Company has prebeoasolidated financial statements that incluge th
assets, liabilities, income and cash flows of thiesgliaries indicated in the tables below:

Direct or Indirect Ownership as of December 31,

Foreign Subsidiaries 2009 2008 2007
% % %

Nitratos Naturais Do Chile Ltda. 100.00 100.00 100.00
Nitrate Corporation of Chile Ltd. 100.00 100.00 100.00
SQM North America Corporation. 100.00 100.00 100.00
SQM Europe N.V. 100.00 100.00 100.00
Soquimich S.R.L. Argentina 100.00 100.00 100.00
Soquimich European Holding B.V. 100.00 100.00 100.00
SQM Corporation N.V. 100.00 100.00 100.00
SQI Corporation N.V. 100.00 100.00 100.00
SQM Comercial de Mexico S.A. de C.V. 100.00 100.00 100.00
North American Trading Co. 100.00 100,00 100.00
Administracion y Servicios Santiago S.A. de C.V. 100.00 100.00 100.00
SQM Peru S.A. 100.00 100.00 100.00
SQM Ecuador S.A. 100.00 100.00 100.00
SQM Nitratos Mexico S.A. 51.00 51.00 51.00
SQMC Holding Corporation L.L.P. 100.00 100.00 100.00
SQM Investmet Corporation N.V. 100.00 100.00 100.00
SQM Brasil Ltda. 100.00 100.00 100.00
SQM France S.A. 100.00 100.00 100.00
SQM Japan Co. Ltda. 100.00 100.00 100.00
Royal Seed Trading A.V.V. 100.00 100.00 100.00
SQM Oceania PTY 100.00 100.00 100.00
RS Agro-Chemical Trading A.V.V. 100.00 100.00 100.00
SQM Indonesia 80.00 80.00 80.00
SQM Virginia L.L.C. 100.00 100.00 100.00
Agricolima S.A. de C.V. - - 100.00
SQM Venezuela S.A. 100.00 100.00 100.00
SQM ltalia SRL 100.00 100.00 100.00
Comercial Caiman Internacional S.A. 100.00 100.00 100.00
SQM Africa PTY. 100.00 100.00 100.00
SQM Lithium Specialties LLP 100.00 100.00 100.00
SQM Dubai — Fzco (*) - 100.00 100.00
Fertilizantes Naturales S.A. 66.67 66.67 66.67
lodine Minera B.V. 100.00 100.00 100.00

SQM Agro India PVT. Ltd. 100.00 - -

(*) As a result of the joint venture agreement simvith the Roullier Group for SQM Dubai Fzco., share in
that entity decreased to 50% and, therefore tttisyes not consolidated as of December 31, 2009.
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Sociedad Quimica y Minera de Chile S.A. and Subsidiies
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in thousands of US dollars, except astd)

Note 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

e) Basis for consolidation (continued)
Direct or Indirect Ownership as of December 31,

Domestic Subsidiaries 2009 2008 2007
% % %

Comercial Hydro S.A. 60.64 60.64 60,64
SQM Potasio S.A. 100.00 100.00 100.00
SQM Nitratos S.A. 100.00 100.00 100.00
Ajay SQM Chile S.A. 51.00 51.00 51.00
SQMC Internacional Ltda. 60.64 60.64 60.64
SQM Industrial S.A. 100.00 100.00 100.00
Isapre Norte Grande Ltda. 100.00 100.00 100.00
Almacenes y Depositos Ltda. 100.00 100.00 100.00
Servicios Integrales de Transito y Transferencia S. 100.00 100.00 100.00
Soquimich Comercial S.A. 60.64 60.64 60.64
SQM Salar S.A. 100.00 100.00 100.00
Minera Nueva Victoria S.A. 100.00 100.00 100.00
Proinsa Ltda. 60.58 60.58 60.58
Sociedad Prestadora de Servicios de Salud Cruz del

Norte S.A 100.00 100.00 100.00
Exploraciones Mineras S.A. 100.00 100.00 100.00
Agrorama Callegari Ltda. (*) 42.45 - -

(*) Agrorama Callegari Ltda. was consolidated beeatne Company has control through its subsidiary
Soquimich Comercial S.A.

All significant inter-company balances, transactiamd unrealized gains and losses arising from
transactions between these companies have beenadkahin consolidatiorin addition, the share of
minority investors has been recognized under ntiyarterest.

f) Price-level restatement

The consolidated financial statements of the Compane prepared in US dollars since a significant
portion of the Company’s operations are transaatethat currency. The US dollar is considered the
currency of the primary economic environment inekhthe Company operates.

Under Chilean GAAP, the Parent Company and thodmsidiaries which maintain their accounting
records in US dollars are not required, or permijtte restate the historical dollar amounts forefects
of inflation in Chile.

In accordance with Chilean GAAP the financial stadats of domestic subsidiaries that maintain their
accounting records in Chilean pesos have beerteddtareflect the effects of variations in theghasing
power of Chilean pesos during the year. For thiggse, and in accordance with Chilean regulations,
non-monetary assets and liabilities, equity andrime statement acconts have been restated in tdrms o
year-end constant pesos based on the change gotisemer price index during the year ((2.3%), 8.9%
and 7.4% in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively). résalting net charge or credit to income arisea as
result of the gain or loss in purchasing power fritv@ holding of non-US dollar denominated monetary
assets and liabilities exposed to the effects ftsdtion.
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Sociedad Quimica y Minera de Chile S.A. and Subsidiies
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in thousands of US dollars, except astd)

Note 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

g) Foreign currency

)

Foreign currency transactions

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated inlé2ini pesos and other currencies
have been translated to U.S. dollars at the obdexxehange rates determined by the
Central Bank of Chile in effect at each year-endGhf$ 507.10 per US$ 1 at
December 31, 2009, Ch$ 636.45 per US$ 1 at Dece8ih&008.

The values of the Unidad de Fomento (UF) usedotovert UF-denominated assets
and liabilities to pesos (dollars) as of Decembér 3009 and 2008 were Ch$
20,942.88 (US$ 41.30) and Ch$ 21,452.57 (US$ 33rédpectively.

Translation of non-U.S. dollar financial statenents

a) For those subsidiaries and affiliates locatecChile and which keep their accounting
records in price-level adjusted Chilean pesos:

Balance sheet accounts are translated to U.S.rel@tathe year-end exchange rate
without eliminating the effects of price-level aslfjonent.

Income statement accounts are translated to Ularglat the average exchange rate
each month. The monetary correction account initiieme statement, which is
generated by the inclusion of price-level restaténoe the non-monetary assets and
liabilities and shareholders’ equity, is translated U.S. dollars at the average
exchange rate for each month.

Translation gains and losses, as well as the peigd-restatement to the balance
sheet mentioned above, are included as an adjustimeshareholders’ equity, in
conformity with Circular No. 1,697 of the SVS.

b) The financial statements of those foreign sulsib that keep their accounting records in
currencies other than the U.S. dollar have beerslated at historical exchange rates as
follows:

Monetary assets and liabilities are translatedeatr-gnd exchange rates between the
US dollar and the local currency.

All non-monetary assets and liabilities and shadgrs’ equity are translated at
historical exchange rates between the US dollatlamébcal currency.

Income and expense accounts are translated atgaverghange rates between the
US dollar and the local currency.

Any exchange differences are included in the resaflbperations for the period.

Foreign exchange differences for the years endambiber 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 generated net
earnings (loss) of ThUS$ (7,576), ThUS$ (15,89}, @hUS$ 2,212 respectively, which have been
charged to the consolidated statements of incoreacéh respective period.
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Sociedad Quimica y Minera de Chile S.A. and Subsidiies
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in thousands of US dollars, except astd)

Note 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

g) Foreign currency (continued)

The monetary assets and liabilities of foreign gliases were translated into US dollars at the
exchange rates per US dollar prevailing at Decer@lbeas follows:

2009 2008 2007
USs$ USs$ uss$

Brazilian Ree 1.74 2.3 1.7%
New Peruvian Si 2.8¢ 3.14 2.9¢
Argentine Pes 3.8¢ 3.4 3.1¢
Japanese Y 92.1( 91.0: 114.1¢
Eurc 0.6¢ 0.7z 0.6¢
Mexican Pes 13.0¢ 13.7 10.9(
Australian Dolla 1.1z 1.4 1.1¢
Pound Sterlin 0.62 0.67 0.4¢
Ecuadorian Suc 1.0C 1.0C 1.0C
South African Ran 7.4C 9.2¢ 6.81

h)  Time deposits

Time deposits are recorded at cost plus accruedeisttand UF indexation adjustments, as applicable.

i) Inventories

Inventories of finished products and products iocpss are stated at production cost determined) usin
weighted average method, which is presented netrafisions. Provisions have been made based on
technical studies which cover different variandéscéing our products (density, humidity, and o#f)er

Materials and supplies are stated at acquisiti@h co

The cost of inventories does not exceed theiregaltzable value.

i) Allowance for doubtful accounts

The Company records an allowance for doubtful aatoubased on estimated probability of
unrecoverability of accounts receivable determioedhe basis of a case-by-case analysis of thatigihs
of customers.

This allowance is presented as a deduction frondd &ccounts receivable, Notes receivable and Other
accounts receivable.
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Sociedad Quimica y Minera de Chile S.A. and Subsidiies
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in thousands of US dollars, except astd)

Note 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
k)  Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant, equipment (“PP&E") and properights are recorded at acquisition cost, considdring
general an average residual value of 5%, excepteidain assets that were revalued in accordaniteawi
technicalappraisal performed in 1988

In conformity with Technical Bulletin No. 31 and 28 the Chilean Association of Accountants, the
Company capitalizes interest cost associated wi¢hfinancing of new assets during the construction
period of such assets.

Maintenance costs of plant and equipment are ctagexpense as incurred.

The Company obtains property rights and mining essimns from the Chilean State. Other than minor
filing fees, the property rights are usually ob&irwithout initial cost, and once obtained, arairsd by
the Company as long as the annual fees are paih f&es, which are paid annually in March, are
recorded as prepaid assets and are amortized lowepltowing twelve months. Values attributable to
these original mining concessions are recordeddpenty, plant and equipment.

) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Depreciation for the period is calculated usinggtraight-line method based on the remaining udefes
of assets, estimated by Management.

Estimated

years of

useful life
Mining concessions 7-13
Building and infrastructure 3-80
Machinery and equipment 3-38
Other 2-3C

m)  Assets acquired through financial lease

Property, plant and equipment acquired throughmfired lease agreements are accounted for at tisemqtre
value of the minimum lease payments plus the pgecloption based on the interest rate includedéh ea
contract. The Company does not legally own thesetagnd therefore cannot freely dispose of them.

n) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost plus acquisitipenses and are amortized over a maximum pefiod
40 years, in accordance with Technical Bulletin B®.of the Chilean Association of Accountants.
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Sociedad Quimica y Minera de Chile S.A. and Subsidiies
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in thousands of US dollars, except astd)

Note 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
0) Mining development cost

Mine exploration costs and stripping costs to naimfroduction of mineral resources extracted from
operating mines are considered variable productiosts and are included in the cost of inventory
produced during the period. Mine development cast®iew mines, and major development costs at
operating mines outside existing areas under didrathat are expected to benefit future productom
capitalized under Other long-term assets and apedrtusing a units-of-production method over the
associated proven and probable reserve estimafidres.Company determines its proven and probable
reserves based on drilling, brine sampling andgiatistic reservoir modeling in order to estimaiaeral
volumes and composition.

All other mine exploration costs, including expenselated to low grade mineral resources rendehag
reserves not economically exploitable, are chatgdtie results of operations in the period in whicdy
are incurred.

p) Investments in related companies

Investments in related companies over which the fizom has significant influence, are included inédth
Assets and are recorded using the equity metha@tadunting, in accordance with SVS Circulars Nos.
368 and 1,697 and Technical Bulletins Nos. 64 @&3ued by the Chilean Association of Accountants.
Accordingly, the Company’s proportional share ia tiet income or loss of each investee is recognized
the non-operating income and expense in the cataeli statements of income on an accrual basis, aft
eliminating any unrealized profits from transactiovith the related companies.

The translation adjustment to U.S. dollars of imments in domestic subsidiaries that maintain their
accounting records and are controlled in Chilearsopeis recognized in other reserves within
shareholders’ equity. Direct and indirect investtaen foreign subsidiaries or affiliates are denuetéd

in U.S. dollars.

Investments in which the Company has less than gaetcipation and the capacity to exert significant
influence or control over the investment, due te thpresenation of SQM on the investee’'s Board of
Directors, have been valued using the equity method

q) Goodwill and negative goodwill

Until December 31, 2003, goodwill was calculatedtlas excess of the purchase price of companies
acquired over their net book value, whereas negaodwill arose when the net book value excedued t
purchase price of companies acquired. Beginningialgnl, 2004, the Company adopted Technical
Bulletin No. 72 of the Chilean Association of Acowants that changed the basis for accounting for
goodwill and negative goodwill, introducing therfaalue of the acquired net assets as the badie to
compared with purchase price in a business conmbimah order to determine goodwill or negative
goodwiill.
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Sociedad Quimica y Minera de Chile S.A. and Subsidiies
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in thousands of US dollars, except astd)

Note 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
q) Goodwill and negative goodwill (continued)

Goodwill and negative goodwill resulting from equihethod investments are maintained in the same
currency in which the investment is measured.

Both goodwill and negative goodwill are amortizeab&d on the estimated period of investment return,
which is generally 20 and 10 years for goodwill aredjative goodwill, respectively. Negative goodwill
recognized on the acquisition of Minera Nueva Mietd.A. in 2006 relates to the mining concessions
held by this company. This negative goodwill wik lamortized in the same period as the underlying
concessions once the Company starts to extractatsnieom the Minera Nueva Victoria's deposits.

r)  Reverse purchase agreements

These operations are recorded in Other currentsasgethe amount of the purchase. Starting at the
purchase date, the respective interest is recandectordance with SVS Circular 768

s) Current and deferred income taxes

In conformity with current Chilean tax regulatiortiee Company recognizes the provision for corporate
income tax expense and the income tax for the miaativity (also referred to as “mining royalty’h @n
accrual basis.

The Company records deferred income taxes in aanoedwith Technical Bulletin Nos. 60, 69, 71 and 73
of the Chilean Association of Accountants, and v@ilcular No. 1,466 issued on January 27, 200thby t
SVS, recognizing the deferred tax effects of terapodifferences between the financial and tax \ahfe
assets and liabilities, using the liability methéd.a transitional provision at the date of adapt those
regulations, a contra asset or liability (also mefé to as “complementary”) has been recorded ttiffise
the effects of the deferred tax assets and ligslihot recorded prior to January 1, 2000. Suctra@sset

or liability must be amortized to income over tistiraated average reversal periods corresponditigeto
underlying temporary differences to which the defértax asset or liability relates calculated usimg
tax rates that will be in effect at the time ofeesal.

Deferred tax assets are further reduced by a vatuallowance, if based on the weight of available
evidence it is more-likely-than-not that some mmrtof the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

t) Staff severance indemnities
The Company calculates the liability for staff sewee indemnities in accordance with the Technical
Bulletin No. 8 of the Chilean Association of Acceamts. The liability is determined based on theseng

value of the accrued benefits for the actual yeservice worked assuming average employee tesfure
24 years and a real annual discount rate of 8%.
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Sociedad Quimica y Minera de Chile S.A. and Subsidiies
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in thousands of US dollars, except astd)

Note 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
u) Revenue recognition

Operating revenues are recognized on the dateysigai delivery of the products, in accordance liti
conditions of the respective sales arrangementgonformity with Technical Bulletin No. 70 of the
Chilean Association of AccountantSales invoices issued for goods not delivered éocthstomers prior
to balance sheet date are recorded in deferrednieco

v)  Derivative contracts

The Company maintains derivative contracts to hedgenst movements in foreign currencies, which are
recorded in conformity with Technical Bulletin N&7 of the Chilean Association of Accountants. Such
contracts are recorded at fair value with net Ieggeognized in income on the accrual basis anisgai
recognized when realized.

w)  Computer software

Computer software developed internally using thenfany’s personnel and materials are charged to
income during the year in which the expenses areriad. In accordance with Circular No. 1,819 dated
November 14, 2006 of the SVS, software acquirethbyCompany is recorded at cost.

X)  Research and development expenses

Research and development cost are charged to tené statement in the period in which they are
incurred. Property, plant and equipment that aguiaed for use in research and development aeviti
and determined to provide additional benefits te ompany are recorded in property, plant and
equipment.

y)  Cash and cash equivalents

Included in cash and cash equivalents are cashhankl balances, time deposits, financial instruments
classified as marketable securities and other 4bort investments maturing within 90 days, in
compliance with Technical Bulletin No. 50 issuedthg Chilean Association of Accountants.

The Company defines cash flows from operating #igssas all inflows and outflows of cash that are
directly related to its operations and, in geneadll,cash flows not defined as being from investorg
financing activities.

The detail of cash and cash equivalents as of lealeince sheet date is as follows:

As of December 31,

2009 2008 2007
ThUS$ ThUuS$ ThUS$
Cash 19,217 21,618 18,236
Time deposits 174,742 116,492 85,523
Mutual funds 336,435 165,689 60,453
Total 530,394 303,799 164,212
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Sociedad Quimica y Minera de Chile S.A. and Subsidiies
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in thousands of US dollars, except astd)

Note 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
zZ) Vacations
The cost of employee vacations is recognized ifittacial statements on an accrual basis.

aa) Bonds payable

Bonds are stated at the principal amount plusésteaccrued. The difference between the carryihgevand
the placement value is capitalized and amortizest the life of the related bonds.

ab) Promissory notes

Promissory notes are valued at nominal amountsgadasied interest.

ac) Provisions for mine closure costs

The Company recognizes provisions to cover thostscassociated with closure of mining facilitiesl an
mitigation of environmental damage at present vabfiethe estimated future expenses. The amount
determined is presented under accrued expensesgrterm liabilities.

ad) Deferred income

Deferred income relates to the recognition of doentad sales, the delivery of which occurs subsddoen
the balance sheet date.

ae) Employee benefits

Benefits agreed other than staff severance ind@snithich the Company and its subsidiaries willehav
to pay to its employees by virtue of agreementsredtare recognized on an accrual basis.

Note 3 — CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

During the period ended December 31, 2009, theme we changes in the application of Chilean GAAP
compared to the prior year, which could signifitamatffect the interpretation of these consoliddiedncial
statements.

Beginning January 1, 2008, the Company recognizedtange in the functional currency (from Chilean
pesos to US dollars) in which its consolidated mlisy Soquimich Comercial S.A. was controlled fioe
purpose of reflecting the currency which represbetter underlying transactions in the subsidiany the
control of the value of the investment hold by Barent Company.
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Sociedad Quimica y Minera de Chile S.A. and Subsidiies
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in thousands of US dollars, except astd)

Note 4 — SHORT-TERM AND LONG-TERM ACCOUNTS RECEIVAB LE

a) Short term and long-term accounts receivable ahdraiccounts receivable as of December 31, 2009
and 2008 are detailed as follows:

Between 90 days Total
Up to 90 days and 1 year Short-term (Net)
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$

Short-term
Trade Accounts Receivable 205,516 190,398 51,257 88,698 256,773 279,096
Allowance for Doubtful

Accounts - - - - (13,055) (8,935)
Notes Receivable 53,319 43,060 16,100 17,773 69,419 60,833
Allowance for Doubtful

Accounts - - - - (3,372) (2,953)
Accounts Receivable, Net 309,765 328,041

Other Accounts Receivable 14,127 7,822 2,587 312 16,714 8,134
Allowance for Doubtful

Accounts - - - - (656) (1,391)
Other Accounts Receivable,

Net 16,058 6,743
Long-term Receivables 4,209 767

b) Changes in the allowance for doubtful accountsHeryears ended December 31, are as follows:

2009 2008 2007
ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUuS$
At January 1, 13,279 10,649 11,793
Charged to expenses 3,716 4,700 466
Deductions (release) (199) (1,042) (2,235)
Exchange rate differences 1,214 (855) 512
Business disposals and other (927) (173) 113
At December 31, 17,083 13,279 10,649
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Sociedad Quimica y Minera de Chile S.A. and Subsidiies
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in thousands of US dollars, except asttd)

Note 4 — SHORT-TERM AND LONG-TERM ACCOUNTS RECEIVAB LE (continued)

b) Consolidated Short-term and Long-Term Receivsablby Geographic Location

Latin America and North America, Mexico and
the Caribbean Asia and Oceania Chile Europe Canada Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
ThUS$ ThUuS$ ThUS$ ThuS$ ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$ ThuS$ ThUS$ ThUuS$ ThUS$ Thus$
Total Short and Long-Term Accounts Receivable
Net
Balance 28,616 77,530 4,730 23,751 128,470 108,416 £37,8 84,637 30,363 41,217 330,032 335,551
% of Total 8.67% 23.11% 1.43%  7.08% 38.93% 32.31% 41.77%.2225 9.20% 12.28% 100.00% 100.00%
Short-Term Accounts Receivable, Net
Sub Total Short-Term 28,616 77,530 4,730 23,751 24,261 107,649 137,853 84,637 30,363 41,217 8235, 334,784
% of Total 8.78% 23.16% 1.45%  7.09% 38.14% 32.15% 42.31%.2825 9.32% 12.32% 100.00% 100.00%
Net Short-Term Trade Accounts Receivable
Balance 22,318 75,653 4,709 23,602 61,830 48,848 124,7694,375 30,094 37,683 243,718 270,161
% of Total 9.16% 28.00% 1.93% 8.74% 25.37% 18.08% 51.19%.2384 12.35% 13.95% 100.00% 100.00%
Net Short-Term Notes Receivable
Balance 5,461 1,706 - - 48,096 56,174 12,490 - - - 0838, 57,880
% of Total 8.27% 2.95% - - 72.82%  97.05% 18.91% - - - .00% 100.00%
Net Short-Term Other Accounts Receivable
Balance 837 171 21 149 14,335 2,627 596 262 269 3,534 16,058 6,743
% of Total 5.21% 2.53% 0.13% 2.21% 89.27%  38.96% 3.71% 98.89 1.68% 52.41% 100.00% 100.00%
Long-Term Accounts Receivable, Net
Balance - - - - 4,209 767 - - - - 4,209 767
% of Total - - - - 100.00%  100.00% - - - - 100.00% 100400
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Sociedad Quimica y Minera de Chile S.A. and Subsidries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in thousands of US dollars, except asitd)

Note 5 — BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PAR TIES

Accounts receivable from and payable to related paories are stated in US dollars and accrue no
interest.

Transactions are made under terms and conditiahsith similar to those offered to unrelated tphadies.
On April 21, 2008, Inversiones SQ S.A. and SQH She entities which indirectly hold significant
interest in the Company have acquired from Yarahdind B.V. remaining 49% of shares of
Inversiones SQYA S.A., which they did not possedsrgo that transaction. Effective since that date
Yara Group entities do not hold any interest in@menpany and as such they are not related parties.

a) Amounts included in balances with related parteesfaDecember 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

Short-term Long-term
Accounts Receivable 2009 2008 2009 2008
ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$

Sales de Magnesio Ltda. 292 143 - -
Sociedad Inversiones Pam

Calichera S.A. 8 8 - -
Inversiones PCS Chile S.A - - - -
Doktor Tarsa Tarim Sanayi

AS 7,304 13,641 - -
Nutrisi Holding N.V. 1,741 1,702 - -
Ajay Europe S.A.R.L. 1,492 4,061 - -
Ajay North America LLC 2,914 2,520 - -
Abu Dhabi Fertilizer

Industries WWL 3,546 6,579 - 2,000
NU3 B.V. 1,883 772 - -
SQM Agro India - 595 - -
SQM East Med Turkey - 1,075 - -
Misr Specialty Fertilizers

(MSF) 289 632 - -
Kowa Company Ltd. 15,764 18,170 - -
Minera Saskatchewan Ltde

(PCS) 32,588 - - -
NU3 N.V. (Belgium) - 1,129 - -
SQM Thailand Co. Ltd. 835 - - -
Total 68,656 51,027 - 2,000
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Note 5 — BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PAR TIES (continued)

b) Amounts included in balances with related parteesfeDecember 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

Short-term

Accounts Payable 2009 2008

ThUS$ ThUS$
SQM Thailand Co. Ltd. - 178
NU3 B.V. (Belgium) 94 -
SQM Vitas 2,883 -
Callegari Agricola S.A. 234 -
Coromandel Fertilizers Limited 681 -
Total 3,892 178

There were no outstanding long-term accounts payafth related parties as of December 31, 2009 and
2008.

c) During 2009, 2008 and 2007 principal transactioith velated parties were as follows (1):

Nature of Amount of Transaction Effect on Income - credit
Company Relationship  Transaction 2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007
ThUS$ ThuS$§ ThuS$ ThuS$ ThusS$ Thusg
Abu Dhabi Fertilizer Ind.

WWL Investee Sales of Products 7,385 9,302 5,434 2,053 2,849 1,123

Investe! Financiallncome 54 127 117 54 127 117

Ajay Europe SARL Investee Sales of Products 11,899 19,561 24,965 695 2,667 9,250

Investee Financial Income - 10 10 - 10 10

Investe! Dividend:s - 11¢€ - - - -

Ajay North America LLC Investe: Sales of Produc 13,83¢  28,67¢ 17,28 61C 9,97( 8,06(

Investee Dividends 453 760 - - - -

Kowa Company Ltc Shareholde Sales of Produc 59,23 100,63: 84,70 15,32: 41,066  50,77(

Shareholde Sales of Servict 18t - - - - -

Nu3 B.V. Investee Sales of Products - 14,384 9,025 - 2,425 279

Investee Sales of Services - 109 - - 109 -

Nu3 N.V. Investe! Sales of Produc - 18,16¢ 6,54¢ - 5,71¢ 2,02¢
Doktor Tarsa Tarim Sanayi

AS Investee Sales of Products 11,030 15,590 7,577 1,134 6,492 2,159

SQM Agro India PVT LTD Investee Sales of Products - 598 - - 210 -

MISR Specialit Investe: Sales of Produc 17C 73< - 9 32C -

Investee Financial Income - 8 - - 8 -

Nutrisi Holding N.V Investes Financial Incom 10,82t 104 - 1,86¢ 104 -

Sales de Magnesio Ltda. Investee Sales of Products 908 920 - 828 334 -

Investee Dividends 385 491 - - - -

Investee Sales of Services 270 - - - - -

SQM Eastemed Turke Investe: Sales of Produc - 397 - - 24C -

SQM Thailand Co. Ltd. Investee Sales of Products 1,716 83 - 351 69 -
Minera Saskatchewan Ltde

(PCS Shareholde Sales of Produc 34,94¢ - - 16,83¢ - -

Shareholde Sales of Servict 54( - - - - -

Nutrisi Holding B.V. Investee Sales of Products 10,223 - - 1,316 - -

Investe: Sales of Servict 10¢€ - - - - -

(1) Transactions with related parties involving @isgions and disposals of participations in otéetities are
discussed in Note 9.
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Note 6 - INVENTORIES

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008 the net balanoesentories is detailed as follows:

Short-term
Accounts Payable 2009 2008
ThUS$ ThUuSs$
Finished Products 313,903 320,489
Work in Process 300,161 188,069
Supplies 23,625 32,169
Total 637,689 540,727

Note 7 — CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAXES

a) As of December 31, 2009 and 2008 the Companyth®dgollowing consolidated balances for
retained tax earnings, income not subject to taxes, loss carry-forwards and credit for
shareholders:

2009 2008
ThUS$ ThUS$
Accumulated Tax Basis Retained Earnings with Taed@r 668,670 813,716
Accumulated Tax Basis Retained Earnings without Ceedit 107,832 132,773
Tax Loss Carry-forwards (1) 99,333 16,949
Credit for Shareholders (2) 136,874 166,554

(1) Tax losses in Chile can be carried forward fimitely.
(2) Corresponds to credit to income taxes thatedi@ders have in relation to distribution of dividis.

The Company has recognized deferred income taxesxfdosses and the related valuation allowance,
where applicable, in accordance with Technical &inll No. 60 issued by the Chilean Association of

Accountants.
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Note 7 — CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAXES (continued)

b) The deferred taxes as of December 31, 2002608 represented a net liability of ThUS$ 51,143,
and ThUS$ 22,683 respectively, and consisted ofalh@ving concepts:

As of December 31, 20( Deferred tax asse Deferred tax liability
Short-term  Long-term  Short-term  Long-term
ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$
Temporary differences
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 1,976 1,732 - -
Prepaid Income 166 - - -
Vacation Accrual 2,295 - - -
Unrealized Gain on Sale of Products 53,274 - - -
Provision for Obsolescence of Non-current Assets - 3,433 - -
Production Expenses - - 39,66C -
Accelerated Depreciation of PP&E - - - 81,09¢
Exploration Expenses - - - 5,263
Capitalized Interest - - - 11,222
Staff Severance Indemnities - - - 2,756
Fair Value of PP&E - 2,852 - -
Capitalized Expenses - - - 2,015
Tax Losses Carry-Forwards - 18,20€ - -
Derivatives - - 10,948 -
Employee Benefits 1,105 5,075 - -
Deferred Mining Activity Royalty Taxes 886 - 4,017 4,546
Accrued Interest 393 - - -
Other 4,538 13,237 1 1,485
Total grossdeferred taxe 64,633 44,53¢ 54,62¢€ 108,38¢
Total complementary accour - - - (11,364)
Valuation allowanc (4,630) (4,033) - -
Total deferred taxes 60,003 40,502 54,62€ 97,022
Deferred tax asset/liability, ne 5,377 - - 56,520
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Note 7 — CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAXES (continued)

b) Deferred taxes (continued)

As of December 31, 20( Deferred tax asse Deferred tax liability
Short-term  Long-term  Short-term  Long-term
ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$
Temporary differences
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 1,029 897 - -
Prepaid Income 1,711 - - -
Vacation Accrual 1,734 - - -
Unrealized Gain on Sale of Products 76,633 - - -
Provision for Obsolescence of Non-current Assets - 3,940 - -
Production Expenses - - 29,774 -
Accelerated Depreciation of PP&E - - - 72,211
Exploration Expenses - - - 4,702
Capitalized Interest - - - 9,252
Staff Severance Indemnities - - - 1,935
Fair Value of PP&E - 3,153 - -
Capitalized Expenses - - - 826
Tax Losses Carry-Forwards - 4,362 - -
Derivatives 629 - - -
Employee Benefits 11 2,904 - -
Deferred Mining Activity Royalty Taxes 971 494 2,625 4,384
Accrued Interest 504 - - -
Other 4,785 11,628 - 370
Total gross deferred tax 88,007 27,3732 32,39¢ 93,68C
Total complementary accour - - - (13,515)
Valuation allowanc (20,806) (4,693) - -
Total deferred taxes 67,201 22,68C 32,39¢ 80,16E
Deferred tax asset/liability, ne 34,802 - - 57,485

c) Income tax expense in the years ended DecembheR(®9, 2008 and 2007 is summarized as

follows:
2009 2008 2007
ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$

Tax Expense Adjustment (prior year) (4,433) 576 132
Provision for Current Income Tax (52,563) (147,694) (38,218)
Effect of Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities (5m) 45,786 3,380
Tax Benefit for Tax Losses 13,803 (20,652) (6,213)
Effect of Amortization of Complementary Accounts AR1) (2,111) (5,508)
Effect on Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities do€hanges in

Valuation Allowance 16,452 13,230 (2,182)
Other tax Charges and Credits 8,558 2,914 17
Total Income Tax Expense (76,532) (107,951) (48,592)
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Note 8 - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are summarized &sv®l

As of December 31,

2009 2008
ThUS$ ThUS$
Land
Land 82,081 80,529
Mining concessions 30,086 30,086
Subtotal 112,167 110,615
Buildings and Infrastructure
Buildings 185,356 176,327
Installations 445,972 389,353
Construction-in-Progress 278,559 181,730
Other 294,268 230,135
Subtotal 1,204,155 977,545
Machinery and Equipment
Machinery 636,335 602,490
Equipment 176,919 149,907
Project-in-progress 71,137 30,682
Other 49,954 41,030
Subtotal 934,345 824,109
Other Fixed Assets
Tools 11,615 10,808
Furniture and office equipment 15,910 16,009
Project-in-progress 29,720 22,345
Other 12,270 12,673
Subtotal 69,515 61,835
Amounts related to technical appraisal
Land 7,839 7,839
Buildings and infrastructure 41,439 41,439
Machinery and equipment 12,048 12,048
Other assets 53 53
Subtotal 61,379 61,379
Total property, plant and equipment (cost) 2,381,561 2,035,483
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Buildings and infrastructure (472,950) (391,487)
Machinery and equipment (513,192) (449,558)
Other fixed assets (30,826) (35,264)
Technical appraisal (40,188) (39,254)
Total accumulated depreciation (1,057,156 (915,563
Net property, plant and equipment 1,324,405 1,119,920
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Note 8 - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
Depreciation expense for the years ended Decenih@089, 2008 and 2007 was as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007

ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$
Buildings and infrastructure (77,641) (53,152) (44,135)
Machinery and equipment (69,278) (53,104) (46,210)
Other property, plant and equipment (3,867) (3,180) (6,342)
Technical appraisal (935) (1,139) (1,139)
Total Depreciation 151,721 (110,575) (97,826)

The Company has capitalized assets obtained thriighcial lease arrangements, which are included i
Other property, plant and equipment and are asvist|

As of December 31,

2009 2008

ThUS$ ThUS$
Administrative Office Buildings 1,988 1,988
Accumulated Depreciation (583) (552)
Total Assets in Leasing 1,405 1,436

The administrative office buildings were acquired 230 installments of UF 663.75 each and an annual
contractually established interest rate of 8.5%.

Note 9 — INVESTMENTS IN RELATED PARTIES

a) Information on Foreign Investments

There are no plans for the foreign investmentsatp d¢lividends, as it is the Company’s policy to veist
those earnings.

The Company has not designated their foreign invests as net investment hedges.
b)  Significant Transactions Involving Related Parties

Transactions Executed in 2009

e On April 30, 2009, the SQM’s Directors agreed tdhauze signing of a supply agreement by
which SQM Salar S.A., subsidiary will sell PCS Safe)SA) Inc. (PCS), a subsidiary of Potash
Corporation of Saskatchewan Inc. (SQM'’s sharehldbetween 25,000 and 150,000 tons of
potassium chloride per year that will be sold bySP@ Japan, India and China. These sales may
occur from May 1, 2009 to May 1, 2010, under teand conditions identical to those observed in
the market at that time.
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Note 9 — INVESTMENTS IN RELATED PARTIES, (continued)
b)  Significant Transactions Involving Related Parfieantinued)

 On July 14, 2009, the subsidiary Comercial Agrordbadlegari Limitada was formed, to which
Soquimich Comercial S.A. contributed capital of B%J1,021 obtaining 70% participation in the
capital of that entity.

* On October 9, 2009, the subsidiary Soquimich Eumopioldings formed a joint venture with
Coromandel Fertilizars Limited called CoromandelNM§@ach party contributed capital of ThUS$
2,200 for a 50% share.

e On March 18, 2009, a shareholder agreement bet®@a&h Industrial S.A. and Migao Corporation
was signed to form Sichuan SQM-Migao Chemical keeti Co. Ltd. SQM Industrial S.A. made
its first capital contribution of ThUS$ 3,000 on Waonber 6, 2009 from a total committed of
ThUS$ 10,000 that each party will contribute. Thadditional contributions will be made during
2010.

e On December 17, 2009, Soquimich European Holdinys &quired 51% of SQM Agro India Pvt.
Ltd. for ThUS$ 50. With this acquisition, it nowlds 100% of this entity.

« On December 29, 2009, a joint venture agreementsigaeed with the Roullier Group for the
company SQM Dubai-Fzco., decreasing our share ft00P6 to 50%. On the same date, the
company changed its name to SQM Vitas. We recoededin from that transaction of ThUS$
3,019, which is presented in Other non-operaticgrime.

Transactions Executed in 2008

« On April 24, 2008, the subsidiary Agricolima S.Aasvsold to Mr. Carlos Federico Valenzuela
Cadena, Mr. Diego Valenzuela Cadena and Mr. JesgelAViorelos Montfort, creating a gain on
sale of investment of ThUS$ 1,387.

Transactions Executed in 2007

e OnJanuary 12, 2007, the subsidiary PTM SQM Ibébida was liquidated and extinguished. This
operation gave rise to a loss of ThUS$ 41 in thesisliery Soquimich European Holding B.V.

e On December 7, 2007, SQM North America Corp. sadNautilus International Holding

Corporation all the rights which SQM North AmeriCarp had in Cape Fear Bulk LLC for ThUS$
1,478, and recorded a gain from the sale of investsnof ThUS$ 1,316.

C) Investments with Less Than 20% Ownership
Investments in which the Company has less than 2@#tership and the capacity to exert significant

influence or control over the investment, becau®MSorms part of its Board of Directors, have been
valued using the equity method.
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d) Detail of Investments in Related Companies

Country
Company of origin

Doktor Tarsa Tarim Sanayi AS Turkey

Nutrisi Holding N.V. Belgium
Abu Dhabi Fertilizer Industrie

WWL U.AE.
Ajay North America LLC USA
Ajay Europe S.AR.L. France
Misr Speciality Fertilizers Egypt

Charlee SQM Thailand Co Ltd Thailand

Sales de Magnesio Lt Chile
SQM Eastmed Turke Turkey
SQM Agro India Pvt. Ltd.. India
Asociciacion Garantizadora de
Pensiones Chile
SQM Vitas U.E.A.
SQM Migao Chemical

Fertilized Co Ltda. China
Coromandel SQM Ind India
Total

Currency
of origin 2009
%

Euros 50.00
Euros 50.00
uss 50.00
Uss$ 49.00
Euros 50.00
US$ 47.49
uss$ 40.00
Chg 50.0(
Euros 50.0C
Us$ -
Chs$ 3.31
Dirham 50.00
uss$ 50.00
Uss 50.0C

Ownership Interest
2008

%
50.00

50.00

50.00

49.00

50.00

47.49

40.00

50.0(

50.0¢

49.00

3.31

2007
%

50.00

50.00

50.00

49.00

50.00

47.49

40.00

50.0(

50.0(

49.00

3.31

16,894
12,866
12,143
15,669
10,974
3,749
3,694
65€
40z

38

610
33,007
8,467

1,06(

F-30

Equity of Investment
2009
ThUSs¢

2008

ThUS$

22,424
14,494
10,555
12,482
10,033
4,733
3,535
94¢
437
191

536

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in thousands of US dollars, except asttd)

Carrying value

2009 2008
ThUS$ ThuUs$
8,492 11,212
6,239 6,823
6,072 5,277
6,653 4,892
3,921 4,282
1,780 2,247
1,478 1,414
32¢ 47¢
201 21¢
- 94
20 18
16,503 -
2,988 -
53C -
55,205 36,951

Equity  Participation

Net Income (Loss) in Net Income (Loss)

2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007

ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$ ThuS$ ThUS$ ThuUS$
3,678 12,669 2,027 1,839 6,335 1,014
(2,120) 4,634 1,163 (831) 2,017 581
1,547 5,842 794 773 2,921 397
4,097 2,067 1,284 2,008 1,013 629
1,449 1625 1,474 725 813 737
(882) 622  (140)  (419) 295 (67)
430 1,016 77 172 407 31
354 697 50¢ 177 34¢ 254
(11) 27C (7 (5) 135 (@)
(213) 153 (13) - 75 (6)
@5  © - - - -
(4,598) - - 36 - -
(33) - - (12) - -
_ _ _ 4,46;3 14,36_0 3,56_6




Sociedad Quimica y Minera de Chile S.A. and Subsidries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in thousands of US dollars, except asitd)

Note 10 — GOODWILL AND NEGATIVE GOODWILL

Goodwill and negative goodwill and the related aimations are summarized as follows:

a) Goodwill
Amortization for the year ended
Balance as of December 31 December 31,
Company 2009 2008 2009 2008 2007
ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUuS$ ThUS$

SQM Potassium S.A. 1,012 1,157 144 145 145
Comercial Hydro S.A. 565 737 170 208 245
SQM Industrial S.A. 16,691 17,80¢< 1,113 1,113 1,113
SQM México S.A. de C.V. 669 723 56 56 56
Comercial Caiman

Internacional S.A. 63 85 23 23 23
SQM Dubai Fzco 1,579 1,682 101 101 101
lodine Minera B.V. 9,146 9,714 569 569 569

Total 29,72¢ 31,901 2,176 2,215 2,252

b)  Negative goodwill

Amortization for the year ended

Balance as of December 3 December 31,
Company 2009 2008 2009 2008 2007
ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$

Minera Nueva Victoric
S.A. (1,073 (1,279 - -

Total (1,073) (1,279) - -
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Note 11 — OTHER LONG - TERM ASSETS

Other long-term assets are summarized as follows:

As of December 31,

Description 2009 2008
ThUS$ ThUS$
Engine and Equipment spapefts, net (1) 335 2,306
Mine Development Costs 26,832 24,892
Construction of Salar-Baquedano Road 930 1,050
Deferred Loan Issuance Costs (2) 1,192 320
Cost of Issuance and Placement of Bonds (3) 9,679 4,278
Other 4,050 1,580
Total 43,018 34,426

(1) This item includes non-current spare parts raaterials. An allowance for obsolescence
of those assets has been made and is includets ithettm.

(2) Relates to costs incurred in relation to negimn and issuance of long-term loans.
(3) Refer to the explanation of these costs coathin the Note 20.

Note 12 — BANK DEBT
a) Short-term bank debt as of December 31, 20092008 is detailed as follows:

As of December 31,

Bank or Financial Institution 2009 2008
ThUS$ ThUS$
BBVA Chile 31,138 -
HSBC Bank Chile 15,090 15,266
Banco Estado 20,813 -
JP Morgan Chase Bank - 20,317
BBVA Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria - 40,524
Banco Santander Santiago - 20,075
Banco de Crédito e Inversiones - 35,518
Fortis Bank 1,618 641
Banesto 1,234 390
Deustsche Bank Espafa S.A. 288 408
Caixa Penedes de Espafia 187 194
HSBC Bank Middle East Ltd. - 22
Total 70,368 133,355
Annual average interest rate 4.60% 7.16%
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Note 12 — BANK DEBT (continued)

b)

c)

Long-term bank debt is detailed as follows:

1)

)

@)

(4)

(%)

(6)

As of December 31,

Bank or Financial Institution 2009 2008
ThUS$ ThUS$
BBVA Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria (1) 100,053 100,204
Export Development Canada (2) 50,019 50,032
ING Capital LLC (3) 80,055 80,215
Caja de Ahorro y Monte de Piedra Madrid (4) 40,043 -
Banco Estado NY Branch (5) 170,988 -
BBVA Bancomer (6) 75,000 -
Total 516,158 230,451
Including: Current portion 151,158 451
Long-term portion 365,000 230,000

U.S. dollar-denominated loan without guaranteesrest rate of Libor + 0.375% per annum payabletgtgr The
principal is due on March 3, 2010.

U.S. dollar denominated loan without guaranteegrest rate of Libor + 1.5% per-annum payable qugrtdhe
principal is due on November 30, 2010.

U.S. dollar-denominated loan without guaranteegrigt rate of Libor + 2.62% per annum payable semiually.
The principal is due on November 28, 2011.

U.S. dollar-denominated loan, variable interese ratrrently at 0.43125% per annum payable semidigndde
principal is due on December 22, 2010.

U.S. dollar-denominated loan, variable interese retirrently at 2.5625% per annum payable semialynuBthe
principal is due on September 11, 2012.

U.S. dollar-denominated loan, variable interese ratirrently at 3.25063% per annum payable quartérhe
principal is due on June 24, 2012.

The maturity of long-term debt since DecemlderZ909 and 2008, respectively is as follows:

As of December 31,

Years to Maturity 2009 2008
ThUS$ ThUS$
Current Portion (less than 1 year) 151,158 451
1to 2 years 110,000 150,000
2 to 3 years 115,000 80,000
3to 5 years 140,000 -
Total 516,158 230,451
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Note 13 — BONDS PAYABLE AND PROMISSORY NOTES

a) Bonds payable

The following is description of principal terms aditstanding bonds payable:

Series “C” Bonds:

Series C bonds totaling UF 3,000,000 (ThUS$ 100,9&h an interest rate of 4.00% per annum were
placed on January 25, 2006. During the years eBgedmber 31, 2009 and 2008 the following payments
with regards to the principal amount and interéshose bonds were made:

2009 2008
UE ThUS$ UE ThUS$
Principal 150,00( 5,967 150,00( 5,572
Interest 105,45¢ 4,191 111,39¢ 4,145

Single Series US$ Bonds:

Single Series bonds totaling ThUS$ 200,000 withragrest rate of 6.125% per annum were placed on
April 5, 2006. This placement was carried out uriRele 144 and regulation S of the U.S. Securities A
of 1933. During the years ended December 31, 26092808 the following interest payments on those
bonds were made:

2009 2008
ThUS$ ThUS$
Interest 12,25C 12,25C

Series “G” and “H” Bonds:

On January 13, 2009, the Company placed two sefieends on the Chilean market: Series H bonds for
UF 4,000,000 (ThUS$ 139,216) at a rate of 4.9% aerum, maturing in 21 years, with principal
payments beginning in 2019 and Series G bonds liaiSB 21,000,000 (ThUS$ 34,146) maturing in 5
years with a single principal payment upon matuaitg interest of 7% per annum. During the year énde
December 31, 2009 the following interest paymentthose bonds were made:

2009

ThUS$
Interest — Series G 1,329
Interest — Series H 3,727
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Note 13 — BONDS PAYABLE AND PROMISSORY NOTES (contiued)

Series “J” and “I” Bonds:

On May 8, 2009, the Company placed two series oflbamn the Chilean market: Series J bonds for
ThCh$ 52,000,000 (ThUS$ 92,456) maturing in 5 yeaith a single principal payment upon maturity
and interest of 5.5% per annum, and Series | bfxddF 1,500,000 (ThUS$ 56,051) maturing in 5 years
with a single principal payment upon maturity anterest of 3.00% per annum. During the year ended
December 31, 2009 the following interest paymentthose bonds were made:

2009

ThUS$
Interest — Series J 2,583
Interest — Series | 851

Summary of the bonds payable is presented in tiie kelow:

Number of Currency or Balance as Balance as
registration of Nominal  indexation Interest Payment of Repaymentof of Dec 31, of Dec 31,
the instrument  Series Amount unit Rate Matures on interest principal 2009 2008
ThUS$ ThUS$
Current portion of long-term bonds payable:
446 C 150,000 UF 4.0%  Apr15,2010 Semi-annual Samial 6,537 5,352
184 Single - ThUS$ 6.125% Jun 1, 2010 Semi-annual ulleB 2,577 2,577
564 H UF 49% Jan5, 2010 Semi-annual Semi-annual 3,891 -
563 G ThCh$ 7.0% Jan5, 2010 Semi-annual Bullet 1,386
563 | UF 3.0% Aprl, 2010 Semi-annual Bullet 461
563 J ThCh$ 55%  Apr1, 2010 Semi-annual Bullet 1,391 -
Total 16,243 7,929
Long-term bonds payabl
446 C 2,400,000 UF 4.00% Dec 1, 2026 Semi-annual mi-8enual 99,119 85,940
184 Single 200,000 ThUS$  6.125%  Apr 15,2016 Semisal Bullet 200,000 200,000
564 H 4,000,000 UF 49% Janb5, 2014 Semi-annual  i-S8enual 41,412 -
563 G 21,000,000 ThCh$ 7.0% Jan5, 2030 Semi-annuaBullet 165,197
563 | 1,500,000 UF 3.0% Apr1l,2014 Semi-annual  IeBul 61,949
563 J 52,000,000 ThCh$ 5.5%  Apr1l,2014 Semi-annuaBullet 102,544 -
Total 670,221 285,940

b)  Promissory Notes

On March 24, 2009, the Company placed promissotgsntmtaling ThCh$ 15,000,000 (ThUS$ 25,875)

in the Chilean market. These notes are denomiredgds 2-A, line 46 and mature in 10 years. The
maximum amount that can be issued is UF 1,500,@0.December 15, 2009, the Company repaid the
full amount of these notes outstanding.

On April 2, 2009, the Company placed promissoreadbtaling ThCh$ 15,000,000 (ThUS$ 25,770) in
the Chilean market. These notes are denominatéelsse-B, line 47 and mature in 10 years. The
maximum amount that can be issued is UF 1,500,008.notes bear 3.6% interest rate and outstanding
balance payable as of December 31, 2009 was ThO382
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Note 14 — ACCRUED LIABILITIES

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008 accrued liakslhiee summarized as follows:

As of December 31,

Description 2009 2008
ThUS$ ThUS$
Provision for Royalties Corfo 3,752 5,256
Provision for Employee Compensation and Legal Costs 590 715
Taxes and Monthly Income Tax Installment Payments ,6546 11,659
Vacation Accrual 13,897 10,518
Marketing Expenses 150 107
Professional Fees 1,347 477
Provision for plant suspension 6,500 -
Provision for employees termination plan 2,500 -
Other Accruals 1,801 1,682
Total Short-term Accrued Liabilities 37,191 30,414
Staff Severance Indemnities 29,444 22,129
Incentive bonus provisiofi) 20,082 12,000
Closure of mining sites and environmental expenses 3,500 3,181
Total Long-term Accrued Liabilities 53,026 37,310

(1) This provision corresponds to stay bonusestgdato certain Company’s executives. The benefinised
to the price of the Company’s stock and is to bd pacash between 2010 and 2011. In accordandeNgte
2 ae), these benefits have been recognized oncamahbasis.

Staff Severance Indeminities

Changes in the staff severance indemnities are suized as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$
Opening balance 22,129 20,679 17,472
Increases in obligation 5,897 8,332 4,190
Payments (2,774) (2,227) (2,245)
Exchange differences 5,554 (4,796) 1,336
Other difference (1,362) 141 (74)
Balance as of December 31 29,444 22,129 20,679
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Note 15 — MINORITY INTEREST

Minority interest is summarized as follows:

Participation in equity Participation in (income) loss for the
as of December 31, years ended December 31,
Company 2009 2008 2009 2008 2007
ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$
Soquimich Comercial S.A. 41,123 42,49¢ (1,180) (2,669) (3,886)
Ajay SQM Chile S.A. 4,292 4,159 (354) (532) 166
Cape Fear Bulk LLC - - - - (99)
SQM Nitratos México S.A.
de C.V. 3 10 7 3 31
Fertilizantes Naturales S./ 194 423 230 (300) -
SQM Indonesia S.A. 1 (30) (36) 13 (1)
SQM Potasio S.A. 11 9 3) (7 )
Agrorama Callegari Ltda. 469 - 2 - -
Total 46,092 47,06¢ (1,334) (3,492) (3,792)

Note 16 — SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
a) Paid-in capital
()  Number of Shares

No. of shares with

Series No. of shares subscribed preferrential voting rights
A 142,819,552 142,819,552
B 120,376,972 120,376,972

(i) Capital subscribed and paid

Capital subscribed Capital paid
Series ThUuS$ ThUuS$
A 134,750 134,750
B 342,636 342,636
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Note 16 — SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY (continued)

c) Other reserves

The detail of Other Reserves is as follows:

Effect in income (loss) for the year ended

December 31 Balance as of December 3
Company 2009 2008 2007 2009 2008
ThUS$ ThUs$ ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$

Technical appraisal - - - 151,345 151,345
Changes in other reserves related

investments:
Soquimich Comercial S.A. ( - - 7,88¢ 13,28¢ 13,28¢
Comercial Hydro S.A. 946 (725) - 221 (725)
SQMC Internacional Ltda 43 (35) - 8 (35)
Proinsa Ltd 32 (26) - 6 (26)
Agrorama Callegari Ltd 6€ - - 6€ -
Isapre Norte Grande Limitada (1) 37 (1) 39 (8) (45)
Inversiones Augusta S.A. (1) - - - (761) (761)
SQM Ecuador S.A. (. - - - (271 (271
Almacenes y Depdsitos Limitada ( 42 - 66 130 88
Asociacion Garantizadora de
Pensiones (1) - (6) (5) (23) (23)
Sales de Magnesio Ltd(1) 53 (101 5¢ 63 10
Sociedad de Servicios de Salud 15 - 14 29 14
SQM North America Corp. (. 1,12¢ (2,827 (141, (3,057 (4,186
SQM Dubai Fzco. (1) - - (12) (12) (12)
Ajay Europe SARL (1) - - 343 343 343
Other entities (1) - - - 718 718

Total 2,363 (3,721) 8,252 162,084 159,721

(1) Corresponds to translation adjustments and effecthe price-level restatement. In accordance @S
Circulars No. 368 and 1,697, this adjustment ibam equity variations of the subsidiaries andiatiés that
apply price-level restatement to paid-in capital &m the effect generated by these items expresshaeign
currency.

(2) Corresponds to the translation adjustment prodbgetie application of a law implemented by the Eran
Government.

(3) Corresponds to differences in valuation of the memplan of subsidiary SQM North America Corp.
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Note 16 — SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY (continued)
c) Interim Dividends

At a Board of Directors meeting held on November 2009, the Directors agreed to pay and distribute
an interim dividend of US$ 0.37994 per share beagmrDecember 16, 2009. This dividend totals
approximately ThUS$ 100,000 and is equivalent t®040f distributable net income for 2009,
accumulated as of September 30, 2009. This dididempayable to SQM shareholders registered in the
respective shareholders’ registry as of the fiftkibess day prior to December 16, 2009, in its\edent

in Chilean pesos, based on the observed dollarexgehrate.

At a Board of Directors Meeting held on October 2808 the directors agreed to distribute an interim
dividend of US$0.37994 per share as of November22@8 for a total amount of ThUS$ 100,000 and
lower than 30% of distributable net income for coenomal year 2008, accrued as of September 30, 2008.
This dividend was payable to the shareholders df1S€yistered in the respective registry on thenfift
business day prior to November 21, 2008, in itswedent in Chilean pesos based on the value of the
observed dollar exchange rate.

d) Final Dividends

In an Ordinary General Shareholders' Meeting hghdl 29, 2009, the shareholders agreed to pay and
distribute, in accordance with the respective divdl policy, an annual dividend of ThUS$ 325,914,

equivalent to 65% of distributable net income f602. The amount of ThUS$ 100,000 (US$ 0.37994
per share), which was already paid as an interiideind (see b) above), was deducted from the final
dividend amount. Therefore, the balance of ThU3%,214 (US$ 0.85835 per share) was paid and
distributed to shareholders registered on the fitthiness day prior to payment.
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Note 16 — SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY (continued)

e) Changes in shareholders’ equity in the years ebdegmber 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 were as follows:

Balance as of January 1, 2007
Transfer of the 2006 net income to retained eaming
Declared dividends
Changes in other reserves
Net income for the year 2007
Balance as of December 31, 2007
Balance as of January 1, 2008
Transfer of the 2007 net income to retained eaming
Declared dividends
Interim dividends
Changes in other reserves
Net income for the year 2008
Balance as of December 31, 2008
Balance January 1,2009
Transfer of the 2008 net income to retained eaming
Declared dividends
Changes in other reserves
Interim dividends
Net income for the year 2009
Balance as of December 31, 2009

Number Paid-in Other Interim Retained Net
of shares capital Reserves dividends earnings income Total
ThUSs$ ThUS$ ThUSs$ ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUs$
263,196,52: 477,38¢ 155,19( - 312,09t 141,27 1,085,94
- - - - 141,277  (141,277) -
- - - - (91,786) - (91,786)
- - 8,252 - - - 8,252
- - - - - 180,02: 180,02:
263,196,52 477,38€ 163,442 - 361,587 180,021 1,182,436
263,196,52 477,38t 163,44. - 361,58 180,02: 1,182,43
- - - - 180,021 (180,021) -
- - - - (117,014 - (117,014
(100,000) - - (100,000)
- - (3,721) - - - (3,721)
- - - - - 501,40' 501,40
263,196,52 477,38¢€ 159,72: (100,000 424,59« 501,40° 1,463,10!
263,196,52: 477,38¢ 159,721 (100,000) 424,594 501,407 1,463,108
- - - - 501,40 (501,407 -
- - - 100,00( (325,914 (225,914
- - 2,363 - - - 2,363
- - - (100,000 - (100,000
- - - - - 327,056 327,056
263,196,52 477,38t 162,08« (100,000 600,08 327,05¢ 1,466,61.
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Note 17 — NON-OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES

Amount included in non-operating income and expg@se summarized as follows:

a)

Non-operating income

Interest income

Equity participation in income of unconsolidated
investees

Sale of cross currency swap

Amounts recovered from insurance

Payment discounts obtained from suppliers

Reversal of allowance for doubtful accounts

Income from rental of property, plant and equipment

Recovery of doubtful accounts

Sale of mining concessions

Sale of property, plant and equipment, materiatssmay
metal

Fines collected from third parties

Sale of investments in related companies

Services provided

Indemnities received

Gain on sale of assets of SQM Lithium

Gain from loss of control SQM Dubai-Fzco

Gain from sales of easements

Overestimate on staff severance indemnity provision

Other income

Net foreign exchange gain

Total

Year ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
ThUuS$ ThUuS$ ThUuS$

13,525 13,858 9,347

5717 14,360 3,643

- - 4,000

285 581 275

921 815 458

670 2,623 229

1,133 1,092 958

41 424 861

2,170 721 399

710 1,064 -

288 77 192

- 1,387 1,316

100 156 369

60 146 523

- 2,342 -

3,019 - -

10,356 - -

245 - -

1,232 944 1,166

- - 2,212

40,472 40,590 25,948
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Note 17 — NON-OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES (contiued)

b)  Non-operating expenses
Year ended December 31,
2009 2008 2007
ThUS$ ThUuS$ ThUuS$

Equity participation in loss of unconsolidated istees (1,256) - 77)
Amortization of goodwill (2,176) (2,215) (2,252)
Interest expense (30,979) (19,957) (19,949)
Net foreign exchange loss (7,576) (15,897) -
Work disruption expenses (416) (1,256) (844)
Training expenses and donations (2,431) (2,152) (520)
Non-capitalizable exploration project expenses and

provisions for damages and liquidation of assets 2,348) (9,261) (16,528)
Amortization of intangible assets (403) (403) (413)
Allowance for materials, spare parts and supplies - (4,200) (4,925)
Provision for legal expenses and third-party indities (451) (975) (523)
Indemnities paid to suppliers (90) (237) (1,575)
Provision for plant suspension (12,847) (1,189) -
Non-recoverable taxes (612) (424) (669)
Expenses related to energy tariff adjustments - - (2,066)
Fines paid (262) 42) -
Advisory services (49) (84) -
Provision for employees termination plan (2,500) - -
Cost of dismissal process (1,696) - -
Other expenses (1,366) (1,604) (2,691)
Total (77,458) (59,896) (53,032)

Note 18 — PRICE-LEVEL RESTATEMENT

Amounts charged or credited to income relatingriceplevel restatement are summarized as follows:

(Charge) Credit to income for the year ended
December 31,

2009 2008 2007

ThUS$ ThUuS$ ThUuS$
Inventory 45 - 1,450
Property, plant and equipment (7 44 517
Other assets and liabilities (10) 707 677
Shareholders’ equity 166 (602) (7,016)

Net adjustment of assets and liabilities denomihate

UF - - (484)
Net price-level restatement 194 149 (4,856)
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Note 19 — ASSETS AND LIABILITIES DENOMINATED IN FOR EIGN CURRENCY

Detail of assets and liabilities by currency of ai@mation as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 is
presented in the following table:

F-43

200¢ 200¢
ThUS$ ThUS$
Asset:
Chilean peso 339,755 105,280
US dollar 2,632,877 2,307,684
Euro 83,184 76,679
Japanese yen 1,204 1,404
Brazilian real 329 195
Mexican peso 1,790 3,525
UF 70,829 27,586
South African rand 33,565 12,298
Dirham 22,575 15,744
Other currencies 17,026 16,820
Current liabilities
Chilean peso 150,473 121,664
US dollar 306,855 295,843
Euro 69,363 12,052
Japanese yen 46 77
Brazilian real 1,632 1,562
Mexican peso 938 934
UF 11,412 10,830
South African rand 4,697 714
Dirham - 391
Other currencies 58 1,839
Long-term liabilities
Chilean peso 193,760 18,640
US dollar 624,231 505,448
Japanese yen 326 294
UF 326,452 86,337
Mexican peso 185 403
Other currencies - 10
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Note 20 — SHARE AND DEBT ISSUANCE AND PLACEMENT EXPENSES

Bond issuance and placement expenses are recoittead @ther long-term assets, except for the partio
to be amortized within a year, which is presentedther current assets. These expenses are ardortize
using the straight-line over the period of matunfythe related debt. Amortization is presentechimit
interest expense.

As of December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 and in gaesythen ended, the deferred expenses and their
amortization are detailed as follows:

Other assets as of December 31,

Short- Long-  Short- Long- Amortization in the year

term term term term ended December 31,
Debt 2009 2009 2008 2008 2009 2008 = 2007

ThUS$ ThUS$ ThuS$ ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUSS$
Single series

bonds 293 1,536 293 1,829 293 293 295

Series C bonds 277 2,172 294 2,449 294 310 479
Series G bonds 136 409 - - 136 - -
Series H bonds 133 2,636 - - 139 - -
Series J bonds 552 1,131 - - 415 - -
Series | bonds 348 1,795 - - 262 - -
Total 1,739 9,679 587 4,278 1,539 603 774

Note 21 — CASH FLOW STATEMENT

a) Amounts included in other credits to incomenepiresenting cash flows are as follows:
For the year ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
Description ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$
Adjustment of provision included in other finandiatome (670) (2,656) (229)
Discounts obtained from suppliers (921) (815) (458)
Gain from sales of easements (5,088) - -
Gain from loss of control in SQM Dubai-Fzco (3,018) - -
Other minor credits to income not representing dkmsins (2,572) (1,508) (1,058)
Total (12,269) (4,979) (1,745)
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Note 21 — CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

b) Amounts included in other charges to incomeraptesenting cash flows are as follows:

For the year ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
Description ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUuSs$
Provision for Corfo royalty payments 3,752 5,256 3,643
Deferred income taxes benefit for tax loss 23,969  (39,493) 10,174
Provision for marketing expenses 5,554 4,584 4,317
Provision for employee incentive plans 20,867 28,2 13,495
Adjustment of provision for severance indemnities 4,458 9,234 4,736
Provision for income taxes 52,563 147,694 38,218
Adjustment of provision for vacation 8,389 6,975 8,300
Non-capitalizable exploration project expense amigions

for damages and liquidation assets 4,226 13,158 ,8068
Accrued expenses related to energy tariff adjustsnen - - 4,023
Amortization of prepaid insurance expenses 4,333 31D 7,553
Remuneration of Board of Directors 2,190 5,000 820,
Provision for mine closure - 1,190 -
Adjustment and other expenses of inventories - 45,5 -
Other charges to income not representing cash flows 15,274 11,322 2,990
Total 155,575 205,986 108,075

Note 22 — DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

Derivative instruments are recorded at their falue at year-end. Changes in fair value are rezedrin
income with the asset or liability recorded in otharrent assets or liabilities. Losses from ogtioslate

to fees paid by the Company to enter into suchraots. As of December 31, 2009, 2008 the Company’s
derivative instruments are as follows:

December 31, 2009

Notional or
Type of covered (Liability)Asset Income
derivative amount Expiration Risk type amount (loss) effect

ThUuS$ ThUS$ ThUS$
CCsS Swap (1) 87,236 4th Quarter 2026 Interest Rate 17,997 16,830
CCS Swap (1) 33,673 1st Quarter 2014 Interest Rate 8,243 7,875
CCsS Swap (1) 42,822 1st Quarter 2013 Interest Rate 8,763 9,090
CCS Swap (1) 43,116 1st Quarter 2013 Interest Rate 8,483 8,227
CCS Swap (1) 60,422 1st Quarter 2013 Interest Rate 1,334 593
CCsS Swap (1) 56,041 1st Quarter 2014 Interest Rate 5,690 2,991
CCS Swap (1) 46,220 1st Quarter 2014 Interest Rate 5,223 2,845
CCS Swap (1) 46,220 1st Quarter 2014 Interest Rate 5,226 2,887
FX forward 4,000 1stQuarter 2010 Exchange Rate (118) (118)
FX forward 5,000 1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate (247) (247)
FX forward 3,000 1stQuarter 2010 Exchange Rate (59) (59)
FX forward 10,000 1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate (118) (118)
FX forward 4,000 1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate (111) (111)
FX forward 6,000 1stQuarter 2010 Exchange Rate 7 7

Continued on the next page
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Note 22 — DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Continued from the previous page

FX forward 4,000 1stQuarter 2010 Exchange Rate (113) (113)
FX forward 2,000 1stQuarter 2010 Exchange Rate @an a7
FX forward 4,000 1stQuarter 2010 Exchange Rate (1) (11)
FX forward 8,000 1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate (25) (25)
FX forward 6,944 1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate 746 746
FX forward 2,870 1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate 285 285
FX forward 16,918 1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate 1,816 1,816
FX option 8,879 1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate 160 160
FX option 5,216 1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate 131 131
FX option 7,265 1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate 1 1
FX option 8,599 1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate - -
FX option 8,500 1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate (1) ()
FX option 5,352 1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate - -
FX option 9,157 1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate (98) (98)
FX option 1,987 1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate (421 (41)
FX option 5,287 1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate (98) (98)
FX forward 6,879 2nd Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate 420 420
FX option 59,571 1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate - -
FX forward 10,108 1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate (379) (379)
FX forward 15,198 1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate (433) (433)
FX forward 8,585 1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate (203) (203)
FX forward 10,048 1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate 293 293

FX forward 10,101  1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate (104) (104)

FX forward 20,139  1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate 501 501

FX forward 15,168 1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate 310 310

FX forward 5,059 1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate 82 82

FX forward 5,062 1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate 140 140

FX forward 20,179  1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate 637 637

FX forward 10,266  1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate 352 352

FX forward 4,577  1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate 167 167

FX forward 10,206  1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate 379 379

FX forward 5,064 1stQuarter 2010 Exchange Rate 184 184

FX forward 6,077  1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate 250 250

FX forward 10,114  1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate 301 301

FX forward 20,254  1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate 723 723

FX forward 10,130 1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate 302 302

FX forward 10,235 1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate 351 351

FX forward 10,148 1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate 348 348

FX forward 7,053  1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate 27 27

FX forward 10,070 1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate 39 39

FX forward 10,070 1st Quarter of 201&xchange Rate 59 59

FX forward 10,070 1st Quarter of 201&xchange Rate 59 59

FX forward 15,172 2nd Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate 85 85

FX forward 36,300 1st Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate  (1,189) (1,189)
FX forward 13,900 2nd Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate (919) (919)

FX forward 500 3rd Quarter 2010 Exchange Rate (47) (47)
Total 939,027 65,883 56,262

(1) Cross currency swap.
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Note 22 — DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS(continued)

December 31, 2008

Type of
derivative

FX forward
CCsS Swap (1)
FX option
FX option
FX option
FX forward
FX forward
FX option
FX forward
FX forward
FX forward
FX forward
FX forward
FX option
FX forward
Total

Notional or
covered
amount
ThUS$

42,000
113,025
8,478
11,316
1,617
1,489
24,154
40,378
298
1,289
4,311
77
112
27,818
30,000

306,362

Expiration

1st quarter 2009

4th quarter 2026

1st quarter 2009
2st quarter 2009
3st quarter 2009
1st quarter 2009
1st quarter 2009
1st quarter 2009
1st quarter 2009
1st quarter 2009
2st quarter 2009
2st quarter 2009
3st quarter 2009
1st quarter 2009
1st quarter 2009

(1) Cross currency swap.

(Liability)Asset

Risk type

Exchange rate
Interest rat
Exchange rate
Exchange rate
Exchange rate
Exchange rate
Exchange rate
Exchange rate
Exchange rate
Exchange rate
Exchange rate
Exchange rate
Exchange rate
Exchange rate
Exchange rate

Income

amount (loss) effect
ThUS$ ThUS$
1,278) (1,273)
(11,031) (1,524)
)(843 (843)
128y, (1,125)
)(161 (161)
(86) (86)
(2,390) 02,39
2248, 1,225
(90) (90)
357 357
(1,169) 9),16
17 17
(21) (21)
4 12 -
(16,466) (7,083)
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Note 23 — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

l. Contingencies:

Material lawsuits or other legal actions of whible Company is party to:

1.

Plaintiff
Defendant

Date of lawsuit
Court

Cause

Instance
Nominal amount

Plaintiff
Defendant

Date of lawsuit
Court

Cause

Instance
Nominal amount

Plaintiff
Defendant

Date of lawsuit
Court

Cause

Instance
Nominal amount

Plaintiff

Defendant

Date of lawsuit
Court

Cause

Instance
Nominal amount

Plaintiff
Defendant

Date of lawsuit
Court

Cause

Instance
Nominal amount

: Compaiiia de Salitre y Yodo Soledadl.S
: Sociedad Quimica y Minera de Chile. S.A
: December 1994
: Civil Court of Pozo Almonte
. Partial annulment of mining property, @4ao 29
: Evidence provided
: ThUS$ 211

: Compafiia Productora de Yodo y S&és.
:SQM S.A.
: November 1999
: Civil Court of Pozo Almonte
. Partial annulment of mining property, Pazto 25
: Evidence provided
: ThUS$ 162

: Compafiia Productora de Yodo y S&és.
:SQM S.A.
: November 1999
: Civil Court of Pozo Almonte
: Partial annulment of mining property, Pak to 25
: Evidence provided
: ThUS$ 204

: Angélica Allende and their sons Ivifltolina and Cristdbal

Molina

: Ingenieria, Construccion y ServicibdRSimitada and jointly
and severally SQM Nitratos S.A. and its insaeaoompanies.

: May 2008
. Arbitration Court of Antofagasta
: Work accident
: Evidence
: ThUS$ 670

: Nancy Erika Urra Mufioz

: Fresia Flores Zamorano, Duratec-Yi8ilA. and SQM S.A. and

Its insurance companies.
: December 2008
. £'Civil Court of Santiago
: Work accident

- Response

: ThUS$ 550
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Note 23 — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

l. Contingencies (continued):

6. Plaintiff . Agraria Santa Aldina Limitada
Defendant : SQM Pera S.A.
Date of lawsuit  : June 2009
Court : Civil Court of Pisco - Pera
Cause : Seek compensation for damages for allegeatip of the terms
and conditions of product distribution contract
Instance : Response

Nominal amount : ThUS$ 6,000

7. Plaintiff : Eduardo Fajardo Nufiez, Ana Maria @lans Poblete, Raquel
Beltran Parra, Eduardo Fajardo Beltran y Martingife®
Beltran
Defendant : SQM Salar S.A. and us insurers.
Date of lawsuit  : November 2009
Court : 20 Civil Court of Santiago
Cause : Work accident
Instance : Demand response.

Nominal amount : ThUS$ 1,880

The Company and its subsidiaries are involved irous litigation in the ordinary course of business
including those described in a) above. Based oradivice of counsel, the Company concluded thaether
is no need to accrue any provisions as of DecerBher2009 to cover risk of losses as management

believes the litigation will not result in materlakses for the Company
Il. Restrictions:

Bank loans, bonds payable and promissory noteedsfly, SQM S.A. and its subsidiaries contain
restrictions similar to those of other comparalgiank and obligations existing at the dates whegetho
debt agreements were entered into. These resiécinvolve maximum indebtedness, minimum equity,
ratios of net financial debt to EBITDA and obligats to maintain certain assets that guarantee a
particular minimum production capacity per busingss. Other than these restrictions, SQM S.A.ds n
exposed to any other management restrictions dislitm financial ratios in contracts or agreemenit$
creditors.

Il. Commitments:

Subsidiary SQM Salar S.A. has signed a rental aohtwith CORFO which establishes that such
subsidiary, will pay to CORFO, for the concept a&pleitation of certain mining properties owned by
CORFO and for the products resulting from sucha@saion, the annual rent stated in the aforemastio
contract, the amount of which is calculated onliasis of the sales of each type of product. Théracn

is in force until 2030 and rent began being paiti986. For the years ended December 31, 2009 &0&l 20
rental payments charged to income amounted to THIFSB7 and ThUSS$ 17,712, respectively.
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Note 24 — GUARANTEES OBTAINED FROM THIRD PARTIES
The main pledges provided by certain customersitmaptee to Soquimich Comercial S.A. fulfillment of

the obligations in the commercial mandate agreesrfentdistribution and sale of fertilizers are abdws
as of December 31, 2009

Company Name ThUS$
Llanos y Wammes Soc. Com. Ltda. 2,037
Fertglobal Chile Ltda. y Bramelli 3,352
Tattersall S.A. 1,134

Note 25 — SANCTIONS

During 2009, 2008 and 2007, the SVS and othersalicpply sanctions to the Company, its Directors o
managers.
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Note 26 — ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECTS

The Company is continuously concerned with protgcthe environment both in its production processes
and with respect to products manufactured. Thisnsibment is supported by the principles indicated in
the Company’s Sustainable Development Policy.

SQM is currently operating under an Environmentahnislgement System (EMS) based on the ISO 14000
standard, which has allowed strengthening its enwirental performance through the effective
application of the Company’s Sustainable DevelogrRaticy.

Disbursements made by the Company and its sulisislias of December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 related
to investments in production processes, verificaiad control of compliance with ordinances andslaw
relative to industrial processes and facilities amido ThUS$ 9,324, ThUS$ 10,035 and ThUS$ 10,180
respectively and are detailed as follows:

2009 2008 2007
ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$

Project

Environmental department - 1,022 1,040
Improvements in Maria Elena Camp — streets 689 435 436
Dust emission control - - 76
Light normalization - - 921
Environmental studies — Region | of Chile project 2 4 - -
Maria Elena environmental studies - 1,007
Normalization of lighting at FFCC yard, PV Mill - - 164
The Environment MOP/SOP 2 - - 294
Construction of facilities for workers - 168 292
Environmental commitments in Region | of Chile - - 169
Waste pools R&R Lithium C. Plant - - 2,073
Salar (Salt deposit) environmental follow-up plan - - 2,272
Handling of household and industrial waste 983 736 917
Environmental evaluation 3,163 1,251 194
Handling of dangerous substances 444 579 -
Salar (salt deposit) environmental follow-up plan - 3,045 -
PV environmental improvements 1,029 555 -
Waste pools R&R lithium plant - 2,150 -
Enablement of Camp and Bathrooms 1,369 - -
Salar (Salt deposit) Environmental follow-up Plan 703 - -
Environmental Management 1,235 - -
Others - 94 325
Total 9,324 10,035 10,180
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Note 26 — ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECTS (continued)

The Company's operations in which it uses calich@ aaw material are carried out in desert aretts wi
climatic conditions that are favorable for dryinglids and evaporating liquids using solar energy.
Operations involving the open-pit extraction of enals, due to their low waste-to-mineral ratio, eyate
remaining deposits that slightly alter the enviremta During the extraction process and subsequent
crushing of ore, particle emissions occur, whichasmal for this type of operation.

On August 10, 1993, the Ministry of Health publidha resolution under the Sanitary Code that
established that the levels of breathable partiplesent at the Maria Elena facility exceeded éwell
allowed for air quality and, consequently, affectied nearby city of Maria Elena. These particlesiypa
come from the dust that results from caliche prsiogs particularly during the crushing processésr o
leaching. Within the framework of a decontaminatiplan for this city and in accordance with its
Sustainable Development Policy, the Company hadeimgnted a series of measures that have shown
notable improvement in air quality at Maria ElelmaOctober 2005, the company obtained approval from
the environmental authorities for a project titt@@chnological Change at Maria Elena”. The operatd

this project will facilitate the reduction of pae emissions, as required by the new environmental
standard, started during the second half of 200@. few Maria Elena crushing plant was finally puit o
of service as of July 5, 2008, with the consequmprovement in air quality, which will be able te b
evaluated after three years of operation as redjbiyethe regulation for MP10.

In addition, for all its operations, the Companyries out environmental follow-up and monitoringups
based on specialized scientific studies, and it ptegides an annual training program in environrakent
matters to both its direct employees and its catdra’ employees. Within this context, SQM enteired

a contract with the National Forestry CorporatiddONAF) aimed at researching the activities of
flamingo groups that live in the Salar de Atacaagobns. Such research includes a population cdunt o
the birds, as well as breeding research. Envirotathemonitoring activities carried out by the Compaut

the Salar de Atacama and other systems in whiopédtates are supported by a number of studies that
have integrated diverse scientific efforts from spigious research centers, including Dictuc from
Pontificia Universidad Catélica in Santiago and 8&hool of Agricultural Science of Universidad de
Chile.

Furthermore, the Company is performing significaativities in relation to the recording of Pre-
Columbian and historical cultural heritage, as veslithe protection of heritage sites, in accordavitie
current Chilean laws. These activities have begmeaally performed in the areas surrounding Maria
Elena and the Nueva Victoria plants. This efforbé&ng accompanied by cultural initiatives withhet
community and the organization of exhibits in logat regional museums.

As emphasized in its Sustainable Development Polibg Company strives to maintain positive
relationships with the communities surrounding lteations in which it carries out its operations veell

as to participate in communities’ development bgpsrting joint projects and activities which hetp t
improve the quality of life for residents. For tipisrpose, the Company has focused its efforts tivitaes
involving the rescue of historical heritage, edimaand culture, as well as development, and irotd
do so, it acts both individually and in conjunctiwith private and public entities.
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Note 27 — DEFERRED INCOME

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the amountseofiierred income recognized on the balance sheet
and related to billed deliveries of goods which everot received by customers prior to those dates
amounted to ThUS$ 16,536 and ThUS$ 31,722, respédti

Note 28 — ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPOR TING STANDARDS

In conformity with regulations of SVS the Compamgddts subsidiaries will adopt — effective Janudyy
2010 - International Financial Reporting StandafifiiRS) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB). As a result, balances sétas liabilities and equity as of January 1, 2@ilbbe
impacted, as well as results of the operationsuifaré years. Also, the Company’s first annual fiziah
statements under IFRS as of and for the year eDéedmber 31, 2010, will include comparative 2009
financial information that will differ from thesensolidated financial statements.

Note 29 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On February 23, 2010, the Company informed SVS itisaBoard of Directors held an extraordinary
meeting on February 22, 2010 and agreed by unaminvote of Directors in attendance to cease
production at the facilities EI Toco and Pampa B&anThe Board of Directors decided to suspend
operations based on the fact that worldwide denfianditrates and iodine had been strongly impabtgd
the global financial crisis that began during tberth quarter of 2008, thus decreasing sales vawwer

the last 15 months and increasing SQM's inventbnyiteates and iodine. As a result of this suspamsi
SQM's total nitrate production for 2010 should @ese slightly over the prior year. Due to the sosiom

of the El Toco mine, sodium nitrate production widcrease. This reduction will be partially compeed

by a new sodium nitrate plant located in Coya ®tt® begin operations during the second half df020
Regarding iodine, we estimate that 2010 productibauld fall approximately 20% compared to the
previous year. As a result, production volumes2@t0 should be similar to those recorded in 200& T
Board of Directors considered that even if demamd rfitrates and iodine were to exceed currently
forecasted figures, the Company’s existing invgntexrels and available installed production capacit
including the mines at Pampa Blanca and El Tocalavallow it to respond quickly and efficiently this
increased demand. Property, plant and equipmettieifel Toco and Pampa Blanca facilities have a net
carrying value of ThUS$ 82,204 as of December 8BD92 Based on an analysis of future cash flows the
Company estimates that these assets are not idpasea result of temporary suspension of the
operations.

Management is not aware of any other significaenévthat occurred between December 31, 2009 and
the date of issuance of these consolidated finbsiEitements that may significantly affect them.

Regarding to the earthquake that hit central anthsGhile the morning of February 27, 2010; we want
inform that all of our production centers, inclugliport operations at Tocopilla, have not suffeney a
damages. The epicenter was approximately 1,00 rflil€00 kilometers) south of SQM’s facilities, and
consequently had no effect in the first and seaegibns of Chile.
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Note 30 — DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CHILEAN AND UNITED STATES GENERALLY
ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Accounting principles generally accepted in Chikryin certain important respects from accounting
principles generally accepted in the United Stategch differences involve certain methods for ragag
the amounts shown in the financial statements,edlsas additional disclosures required by US GAAP.

The principal differences Between Chilean GAAP asfl GAAP are described below together with
explanations, where appropriate, of the methodd irsthe determination of the adjustments thatcaffiet
income, total comprehensive income and total studdlehs’ equity. References to “ASC” are to Accongti
Standards Codification issued by the Financial Aicting Standards Board of the United States of
America.

The preparation of financial statements in conftyrmuith Chilean GAAP, along with the reconciliatido US
GAAP, requires management to make estimates anthptiens that affect the reported amounts of assets
liabilities, disclosures of contingent assets dadillities as of the date of the financial stateteesmd the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses dugngplorted period. Actual results could differ frémse
estimates.

Certain differences in measurement methods
a) Revaluation of property, plant and equipment

Certain property, plant and equipment are repoiethe financial statements prepared under Chilean
GAAP at amounts determined in accordance with lanieal appraisal performed in 1988. US GAAP does
not allow the revaluation of property, plant andipgent. The effects of the reversal of this reatiin, as
well as of the related accumulated depreciation deplreciation charge for each year are set-fortteun
paragraph I I) below.

b) Deferred income taxes

On January 1, 2000 the Company began applying TeadhBulletin No. 60 (“BT 60”), and related
amendments issued by the Chilean Association obéaiants concerning deferred income taxes. These
regulations require the recognition of deferredoine taxes for all temporary differences arisingeraft
January 1, 2000, using the liability method. Pt@implementation of BT 60 and related amendmarus,
deferred income taxes were recorded under ChilgafRGT the related timing differences were expected
to be offset in the year that they were projectereverse by new timing differences of a similauna In
order to mitigate the effects of not recording defé income taxes under the prior deferred incoaxe t
accounting standard, BT 60 provided for a periodrafsition whereby a transitional provision, atcan
asset or liability (referred to as “complementaryds recorded, offsetting the effects of the deféax
assets and liabilities not recorded prior to Janta2000. Such contra-assets or liabilities arersized to
income over the estimated average reversal pedoassponding to the underlying temporary diffeenc
to which the deferred tax asset or liability retate

Under US GAAP, ASC 740ncome Taxe§'ASC 740"), requires income taxes to be recognized using the
same asset and liability approach with deferredrime tax assets and liabilities established for teany
differences between the financial reporting basis @x basis of the assets and liabilities androeted
based on enacted tax rates.
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Note 30 — DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CHILEAN AND UNITED STATES GENERALLY
ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, (continued)

b) Deferred income taxes (continued)

The primary differences between Chilean GAAP and ®SAP relate to the reversal of complementary
accounts and their amortization recorded in accmeavith the transition provisions of BT 60 as valto

the recognition of the deferred income tax effdadditional US GAAP adjustments, the effect of ghis
set-forth under paragraph | I) below. Additionasaosures required under ASC 740 are set forth runde
paragraph Il b) below.

¢) Translation of foreign currency financial statemens and price-level restatement

In accordance with Chilean GAAP, the financial etaents of subsidiaries which do not maintain their
accounting records in U.S. dollars, are translétech local currency to U.S. dollars as describedNote

20).

Under U.S. GAAP ASC 830Foreign Currency Matterg“ASC 830") requires a functional currency
translation approach. Under ASC 830 the Companydetsrmined that the U.S. dollar is the functional
currency of all its domestic and foreign subsidiariAccordingly, financial statements of subsidigri
which do not maintain their accounting records i$\ollars, are remeasured into U.S. dollarsy dlfie
elimination of effects of price-level adjustmernfsny, as follows:

() balance sheet accounts:

* monetary assets and liabilities are translatedeay¢ar-end exchange rate; and
 non-monetary assets and liabilities and sharet®ld=guity are translated at historical
exchange rates.

(i) income statement accounts:
» depreciation and amortization expense and otheouats derived from non-monetary
assets and liabilities are translated at historai@s; and
» all other accounts are translated at monthly-aveeghange rates, which approximate the
actual rates of exchange at the date the transaaticcurred.

Remeasurement gains and losses are included dethemination of net income for the period.

As described in the Note 2g) under Chilean GAARutitial statements of domestic subsidiaries that
maintain their records in Chilean pesos includeatff of the inflation (price-level restatement)dhile.
Under US GAAP Chile does not meet definition oftthjginflationary economy and consequently effects
of inflation accounting needs to be reversed.

The effect of eliminating price-level restatementlahe effects of translation of financial statetseof
subsidiaries that maintain their records in cunenother than US dollar are included in paragraph
below.
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Note 30 — DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CHILEAN AND UNITED STATES GENERALLY
ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, (continued)

d) Minimum dividend

As required by the Chilean Companies Act, unlebgrgtise decided by the unanimous vote of the hslder
of issued and subscribed shares, an open stockratign must distribute a cash dividend in an amoun
equal to at least 30% of the company’s net incoaferk amortization of negative goodwill for eaclaryas
determined in accordance with Chilean GAAP, unlessl except to the extent the Company has
unabsorbed prior year losses. Since the paymettteo80% dividend out of each year’'s income is alleg
requirement in Chile, a provision has to be maddhim U.S. GAAP reconciliation to recognize the
corresponding decrease in net equity at Decembéor3dach year for the difference between 30% of ne
income and interim dividends paid during the year.

Net income related to the amortization of negagjwedwill under Chilean GAAP can only be distributed
an additional dividend by the approval of the shalders, and accordingly, is not included in the
calculation of the minimum dividend to be distribdt

e) Loans to employees

During 1989, 1995 and 2000, the Company loanedhénaggregate, ThUS$ 1,452, ThUS$ 8,224 and
ThUS$ 6,435, respectively, at market interest ratescertain employees for the purpose of acquiring

shares of the Company in the open market. In aeooel with US GAAP, the remaining unpaid balance

of such loans, amounting to ThUS$ 158 and ThUS$at TBecember 31, 2009 and 2009, respectively, has
been treated as a reduction of shareholders' eguitgr paragraph | I) below.

f) Staff severance indemnities

The Company has negotiated certain collective lairgaagreements with employees for staff severance
indemnities. Under Chilean GAAP the correspondiiakjlity has been recorded at the present valuhef
accrued benefits which are calculated by applyinga discount rate to the benefit accrued over the
estimated average remaining service period.

Under U.S. GAAP, termination indemnity employee dfén are accounted for in accordance with ASC
715,Compensation — Retirement Benefibnsistent with that of a defined benefit pensitampmeasuring
the liability by projecting the future expected seance payments using an assumed salary progreasion
net of inflation adjustments, mortality and turno@ssumptions, and discounting the resulting ansotmt
their present value using real interest rates. éffext of accounting for the indemnities in accoma with
US GAAP is set forth under paragraph I I) below.

g) Derivatives and hedging

Under ASC 815Derivatives and Hedging company’s derivative instruments are to be dmnbrin the
balance sheet at fair value and changes in a diegvanstrument's fair value are to be recognized i
earnings unless specific hedge accounting crismgamet. Special accounting for qualifying hedd&s\as

a derivative instrument's gains and losses to Dffskated results on the hedged item in the income
statement, to the extent effective, and requires ghcompany must formally document, designate, and
assess the effectiveness of transactions thawveebedge accounting.
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Note 30 — DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CHILEAN AND UNITED STATES GENERALLY
ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, (continued)

g) Derivatives and hedging (continued)

SQM enters into forward exchange and currency aptamtracts principally to mitigate the risk assted
with maintaining certain accounts receivable irefgn currencies. The purpose of the Company'sdorei
currency-hedging activities is to protect the Compdrom the risk that cash flows will be adversely
affected by changes in exchange rates resulting filoe collection of receivables from international
customers. The effects of changes in the fair vafderward contracts and options are recorded baotter
Chilean GAAP and U.S. GAAP in income.

The Company also periodically uses cross currem@psagreements to manage interest rate risk on its
floating rate debt as well as foreign currency restposure. Under Chilean GAAP the swaps were
designated as hedging instruments. Under US GAAdpswot designated for hedge accounting and those
not meeting strict documentation and effectivertesting requirements to qualify for hedge accountin
are recognized in income. Changes in the fair valuthe swaps designated as cash flow hedges and
meeting hedge accounting criteria are recognizettiudS GAAP in Other comprehensive income. The
effects of those differences on the net income slvadeholders’ equity of the Company are included in
paragraph I I) below.

In addition, the Company entered into some forweodtracts to hedge its exposure to fluctuations
between U.S. dollars and Chilean pesos associatlgurchases of certain property, plant and eqeigm

on the Chilean market. Under Chilean GAAP, the Camyprecorded this forward contracts at fair value
and the related unrealized losses were capitafizeatiditional cost of property, plant and equipmEat

US GAAP purposes, the Company did not apply hedgewating and in consequence, the unrealized loss
on the forward contracts has been recorded in mue&nings. The effect of this difference is imdd in
paragraph I I) below.

h) Business combinations and goodwill

Under Chilean GAAP, goodwill arising from businesambinations is amortized over the estimated
period of return of the investment made. Impairntests are only performed if there are indicatdrs o
impairment.

For US GAAP under ASC 35Mtangibles - Goodwill and OthdfASC 350") goodwill is not amortized
but has to be tested for impairment annually. Tlenpany has performed the annual impairment test
required by ASC 350, which did not result in anypaitment.

The effect of reversing the amortization of goodlwiider Chilean GAAP is set forth under paragraph |
below.

i) Negative goodwill

Under Chilean GAAP until December 31, 2003, negatioodwill was calculated as the excess of the
carrying value of the net assets acquired in anegsi combination over the respective acquisitiast. co
Beginning January 1, 2004, the Company adoptedriealBulletin No. 72 of the Chilean Association of
Accountants that changes the basis for accountingdgative goodwill, introducing the fair valuetbe
acquired net assets as the basis to be comparbdpwithase price in order to determine negative
goodwiill.
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Note 30 — DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CHILEAN AND UNITED STATES GENERALLY
ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, (continued)

i) Negative goodwill (continued)

Negative goodwill recognized under Chilean GAARate$ to acquisitions of Minera Nueva Victoria S.A.
which as of the date of acquisition possessed inemiéning concessions. Under Chilean GAAP, such
negative goodwill was capitalized as a credit ® lalance sheet and is being amortized over acpefio

10 years or over the period in which related miringcessions are amortized. Under US GAAP, prior to
the adoption of ASC 350, negative goodwill was ad@®d as a reduction of the long-term non-monetary
assets of the acquired company, and if a credinimed after reducing those assets to zero, negative
goodwill was recorded and amortized over the pesioekpected benefit.

The effects of reversing goodwill recorded andélated amortization, the recognition of the newibaf
assets and liabilities and subsequent depreciatimh writing off the remaining balance of negative
goodwill are set-forth in paragraph | 1) below aldws:

i-1: The reversal of negative goodwill amortizatiecorded under Chilean GAAP;
i-2: The effects of reducing depreciation expetr to the allocation of the excess purchase price
to property, plant and equipment.

j) Capitalized interest

In accordance with Chilean GAAP, only those legdities that have financial expenses may capitalize
interest on debt related to property, plant, eqeiphunder construction and other projects. Pric2(03
the Company did not capitalize interest to acgoisitost of property, plant and equipment.

Under US GAAP, the capitalization of interest onalifying assets under construction is required,
regardless of whether interest is associated wétht directly related to a project. The effects lod t
accounting difference between Chilean and US GA&R&pitalization of interest costs prior to 2008 a
the related depreciation expense are included enrgiconciliation to US GAAP under paragraph | I)
below.

k) Presentation of non — controlling interest

Under Chilean GAAP non-controlling interest is regpd in the consolidated balance sheet in the
mezzanine section between liabilities and equitgoAnet income attributable to non controllingehetst
is reported as an expense in arriving at cons@itiaet income.

ASC 810, ‘Consolidation” clarifies that a non-controlling interest in aneogting subsidiary is an
ownership interest in the entity that should beorgul as equity in the consolidated financial stetets. It
also requires consolidated net income to includedmounts attributable to both the parent and non-
controlling interest, with disclosure on the fadehe consolidated statement of operations ofitheunts
attributed to the parent and to the non-controllimtgrest. This statement was effective prospelgtifar

the fiscal year beginning after December 15, 2@@&ndar year 2009), with presentation and disctosu
requirements applied retrospectively to compardfinancial statements. Effective January 1, 2009 th
Company adopted the provisions of this statemend applied its presentation requirements
retrospectively (see | I) below).
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Note 30 — DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CHILEAN AND UNITED STATES GENERALLY
ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, (continued)

)] Effects of conforming to US GAAP
The adjustments to reported net income requiredmndorm to US GAAP are as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$
Net income in accordance with Chilean GAAP .........ccoooiiiiiiiis 327,056 501,407 180,021
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment (paaply a) ...........ccevvvvvnnne. 5,756 2,298 4,288
Deferred income taxes (paragraph b) .......coeeeeeiieiieeeieiiieiiieeiecieiiiienns 2,151 2,118 5,483
Translation of foreign currency financial statenseftaragraph c)............... 146 5,457 9,507
Staff severance indemnities (paragraph f) oo, 3,394 408 (1,406)
Derivatives (Paragraph g)......cooeeeeeiiiiceeeeeeee e 7,891 (11,600) (4,821)
Reversal of amortization of goodwill (paragraph.h).........cccccceeeeeiiiiiiinnn. 2,176 2,215 2,252
Negative goodwill (Paragraph i) ........... . e seerrmreeininieneeeeeeeeeeeesereeeenenns
i-2: Depreciation of property, plant and guent .............c.cccceeeeeeeenennn. 113 113 113
Capitalized interest (paragraph ) ........ooeccec i - (1,278) (91)
Reclassification of non-controlling interest un@@ilean GAAP
(PAragraph K) ......oeeeuueeiieiiiiies s eeeeee e e e e e e 1,334 3,492 3,792
Deferred income tax effect of the above US GAARuatihents
(paragraph D) ... (577) 2,120 1,074
Net income UNder US GAAP ...t 349,440 506,750 200,212
Net income attributable to parent company...........cccceeeeevveeivveveeennnns 347,886 500,912 192,668
Net income attributable to non-controllingerest.............cccooooiiiinies 1,554 5,838 7,544
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Minimum pension liability adjustment.........cccccuvvviiiiiieeeeee e 1,129 (2,827) (1412)
Swaps designated as cash flow hedge .......ceeiiiii (7,984) - -
Translation adjuStMeENt ..........c..uuiiiiiii e e 1,087 (786) 356
Total comprehensive income under US GAAR.............oce e 343,672 503,137 200,427
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Note 30 — DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CHILEAN AND UNITED STATES GENERALLY
ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, (continued)

)] Effects of conforming to US GAAP (continued)

The adjustments required to conform shareholdgtstyeamounts under Chilean GAAP to US GAAP are
as follows:

As of December 31,
2009 2008
ThUS$ ThUS$

Shareholders’ equity in accordance with Chilean GAMR...........cccccveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeen, 1,466,613 1,463,108
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment: dQ&ph @) .........cvvvvvviiiiiiiiiiieneeeeennn,
a-1: Property, plant and equUIPMENt.........ccccuviiiiiirieiee e e (133,309) (133,309)
a-2: Accumulated depreCiation ..............cccemeererererrrreeeeeesssssnreneerereeeeeeanns 115,785 110,029
Deferred income taxes (paragraph D) ... eeereimiiiiiriee e (12,875) (15,026)
Translation of foreign currency financial statenseftaragraph c)
c-1: Property, plant and eqUIPMENt.........ccceceeiviiriiiriiiiiiii e ae e 391 391
(orZ N €T Yo Yo 11/ | o T PP (182) (182)
(o @ g1 =TTy (103) (103)
Minimum dividend (paragraph d) ............ocmmmmmeeen e - (50,422)
Employer loans used to purchase shares (paragfaph.e..........cccccvvvvivireeieeeieiiinnns (158) (116)
Staff severance indemnities (paragraph ) ..o, (3,014) (6,407)
Derivatives (Paragraph g) .....coooeeeieiiiieeeeeeeee e e (12,101) (11,989)
(€ToToTo V1| I {0 T=Ta= o =T o] o TN o ) PSS 12,406 10,230
Negative goodwill: (paragraph i)
i-1: Property, plant and eqUIPMENt ..........coemmmeeeeeerin i e e e e e eneeens (4,230) (4,435)
i-1: Accumulated depreciation of property, plantd @guipment..................c........ 2,250 2,136
i-2: Negative goodWIll ...........oiiiiiiiii e 4,230 4,435
i-2: Accumulated amortization of negative goodwill...............ccccvvvieieeeriiiiiinnns (3,156) (3,156)
Reclassification of non-controlling interest un@@ilean GAAP (paragraph K)........... 46,093 47,069
Effect of US GAAP adjustments on non-controllingeirest (paragraph k) ................... (530) (310)
Deferred income tax effect of the above US GAARustipents (paragraph b)............. 2,569 3,128
Shareholders' equity in accordance with US GAARPR.........cccccceeeiiiiiineecviiiinnnn 1,481,209 1,415,381
Shareholders' equity attributable to parent company...........ccooevevcvvvviirireeeeeenenn. 1,434,586 1,368,002
Shareholders' equity attributable to non-contrgliimerest ...............cccocvvevivenneenn. 46,623 47,379
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Note 30 — DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CHILEAN AND UNITED STATES GENERALLY
ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, (continued)

)] Effects of conforming to US GAAP, (continued)

The changes in the Shareholders’ equity accoum¢srdimed under US GAAP are summarized as follows:

ThUS$

Balance at January 1, 2007.........ccccuuiuiirieeeeeieieieeee e e e e e sssenee e ar e e e 1,033,121
Reversal of accrued minimum dividend at DecembeRBQ6..............ccevvveeeeereeeennn. 42,383
Distribution of final 2006 diVIdENd...........cceeiuiiirieieeeeei e (91,787)
Accrued minimum dividend at December 31, 2007.........c.coovviiiiiiiiiiieieeeee e 54(006)
Employer loans used to purchase shares.......cccccceeiiiiiiiivevieivce e, 126
Other comprenensive INCOME...........cciviiiieiiiiiieee e e e e e e e e eeeeeeeeeae 215
Increase in NON-CONLIOIlING INTEIEST......cccviiiiiiiiiii e (2,110)
Net iNCOME fOr the YEAI........ciiie e 200,212

Balance at December 31, 2007..........uuieiiiuiiieeniee et 1,128,154
Reversal of accrued minimum dividend at DecembeRBO7..............ccevvvvveeeeennnnn. 54,006
Distribution of final 2007 diVIdENd...........ceieeiiiiiiiieee e (117,014)
Distribution of 2008 interim dividend........e oo (100,000)
Accrued minimum dividend at December 31, 2008...............cco v ivvvevvvviiiiiiicne e, 50(422)
Employer loans used to purchase shares.......ccccoccveeiiiiiiiivieieeiviccce e, 12
Other COMPreNENSIVE 10SS ......uuiiiiiiiiiiee e e e e (3,613)
Increase in NON-CONLrOIlING INTEIEST.......ccoiiiiiiiii e (2,492)
Net iNCOME fOr the YEAI ......ccii e 506,750

Balance at December 31, 2008..........cccouiiuiiiiaiiiniiiii e 1,415,381
Reversal of accrued minimum dividend at DecembeRB@8..............cccoeevveereernnnn. 150,422
Distribution of final 2008 diVIdENd...........cceeiuiiiririeeer e (325,914)
Distribution of 2009 interim dividend........e oo (100,000)
Employer loans used to purchase shares.......cccccccceeiiiiiiiiveieeivcccc e, (42)
L@ 1 T O PP PPPPPPPPTUPPPPN 7,891
Other COMPreNENSIVE 10SS ......uuiiiiiiiiiiie e e e (5,768)
Decrease in NON-CONLrolliNG INEIESL .......ccoommeeeeeeieiei e e (2,310)
Net iNCOME fOr the VAT ......cvii i 349,440

Balance at December 31, 20Q9...........uutiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 1,481,209
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Note 30 — DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CHILEAN AND UNITED STATES GENERALLY
ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, (continued)

II.  Additional Disclosure Requirements

The following disclosures are not generally reqiiioe recommended for presentation in the financial
statements under Chilean GAAP, but are require@ubd® GAAP:

a) Earnings per share

2009 2008 2007
(Expressed in US dollars)

Basic and diluted earnings per share under Chi®AP attributable to 1.24 1.91 0.68
the Parent COMPANY ......cccoiiiiiiieeiiii e

Basic and diluted earnings per share under US Gatiibutable to the 1.32 1.90 0.73
PArENE COMPANY ....eieeiiitiiraeeieieee e imemaes s e sbeeeee e s sntbeeeeaatbeeeaeaasnneeeeaannes

Dividends declared per share (1) ......cccoceveeeeeriiiiiiiiieeeieeceeeeeeee 6P. 1.24 0.44
Weighted average number of common shares outs@itiousands)...... 263,197 263,197 263,197

(1) Represents dividends declared and paid inrdacce with Chilean GAAP.

The earnings per share data shown above is detetrbindividing net income for both Chilean GAAP and
US GAAP purposes by the weighted average numbshafes of common stock outstanding during each
year. For the years presented the Company didawat tonvertible securities outstanding.

b) Income taxes
The provision for income taxes differs from the ampof income taxes determined by applying the

applicable Chilean statutory income tax rate tdgpr@ccounting income on a US GAAP basis as atretul
the following differences:

2009 2008 2007
ThUuS$ ThUuS$ ThUS$

Consolidated pretax income under US GAAP .....ccoocicciiiiiiivieeeeeee, 424,398 610,462 242,247
SEATULOIY TAX FALE ..eeut it ee e e 17% 17% 17%
Theoretical tax at Statutory rate..........ocecvviiiiiiieeee e 72,148 103,779 41,182
Non-deductible ITeMS ... ..uuue i 19,120 9,853 (1,433)
Difference in tax rates in foreign jurisdiCtions..............cuvvvviiiiiiiniennnn. 141 B3 105
Valuation @llOWANCE ..........c.evveieeeee et ee e ae e e e e s e seennieraeereeaeeesesenannes (16,451) (13,230) 2,182

Total income tax under US GAAP ......oooviviiiiiiieiieee e 74,958 031712 42,036
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Note 30 — DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CHILEAN AND UNITED STATES GENERALLY
ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, (continued)

b) Income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax assets (liabilities) are summarizefbbevs at December 31 under US GAAP.:

2009 2008
ThUS$ ThUuS$
Deferred Tax Assets
Allowance for doubtful debts...........c.cceeeeeeies 3,708 1,927
Vacation accrual ..........ccceeeiivieirs e, 2,295 1,734
Unrealized gains on sales of products................. 53,274 76,633
Provision for obsolescence ...........ccccvceceemnnnee. 3,433 3,940
Tax loss carryforwards (1) ........cccoevvvvvmcceeeeeeenn. 18,206 4,362
Write-downs of inventory to net realizable value. 11,972 10,362
Fair value acquisition adjustments...................... 2,852 3,153
OtNEI oo 3,803 14,867
Gross deferred tax assetS.......cccceeeeeeeeeiieeenen. 99,543 116,978
Valuation allowancCe .............cooccevvevv v eveeeeeenns (8,663) (25,499)
Total deferred tax assets.........cccceeveeveeeenneens 90,880 91,479
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Production eXpenses ..........cooeeevvvivierereesineenennn (39,660) (29,775)
Accelerated depreciation of PP&E...................... (81,055) (72,193)
Staff severance indemnities ..............ccceeeeeereneen. (2,243) (846)
EXploration eXpenSes ..........cuvvvvvvermesmmmeennsennnninens (5,263) (4,702)
Capitalized interest .......cccccceveeev v eiiceriieeeee e, (11,222) (9,252)
OtNEI oo (11,375) (7,781)
Total deferred tax liabilities..........ccccceeeoeee oo, (150,818) (124,549)

(1) The Company’s tax loss carryforwards were primagéyerated from losses incurred in Chile. In adaoce
with current laws in Chile, tax losses may be earfiorward indefinitely. In other countries taxdes usually
expire. For the years ended December 31, 2009 200 2007 the Company realized benefits from #ee u
of tax loss carry forwards amounting to ThUS$ 13,8thUS$ 22,373 and ThUS$ 6,477, respectively.

Tax loss carryforwards relate to the following ctigs as of December 31:

2008 2008

ThUS$ ThUS$
(O o111 16,036 1,558
Other COUNTNES ....uveeiiieii e i e e 2,170 2,804
L0 | 18,206 4,362
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Note 30 — DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CHILEAN AND UNITED STATES GENERALLY
ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, (continued)

b) Income taxes (continued)

The classification of the net deferred tax assetkliabilities detailed above is as follows:

2009 008
ThUus$ ThUS$
SNOM-tEIM ..o e 6,993 36,418
[ o 1 =1 1 1 [ (66,931) (69,488)
Net deferred tax liabilities.............ccoeevvvvvviiiiiiiennnnn. (59,938) (33,070)

The provision for income taxes in accordance wihGAAP is as follows:

2009 2008 2007
ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$
Income tax expense under Chilean GAAP ..... .o 76,532 107,951 48,592
Additional deferred taxes under US GAAP .... . 577 (2,128) (1,048)
Reversal of complementary accounts.........com-.... (2,151) (2,111) (5,508)
Total tax provision US GAAP.........ccccvvvvvvveiciiien e, 74,958 103,712 42,036

US GAAP income (loss) before taxes related to Céuilé foreign operations for the years ended Decembe
31, is as follows:

2009 2008 2007
ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$
ChlB . 457,005 605,491 246,251
[0 11T [ o PR (32,607) 4,971 (4,004)
TOMAl et 424,398 610,462 242,247

The portion of current and deferred taxes thattedlao Chile and foreign operations for the yeardeel
December 31 in accordance with US GAAP is as fatow

2009 2008 2007
Deferred Current Total Deferred Current Total Deferred Current Total
ThUS$ ThUS$  ThUS$ ThUS$  ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$ ThuS$  Thus$
Chile...... 21,382 51,001 72,383 (40,565) 145,969 105,404 3,554 36,010 39,564
Foreign... 1,013 1,561 2,575 (3,416) 1,724 (1,692) 264 2,208 2,472
Total....... 22,395 52,562 74,958 (43,981) 147,693 103,712 3,818 38,218 42,036
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Note 30 — DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CHILEAN AND UNITED STATES GENERALLY
ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, (continued)

c)  Other comprehensive income

In accordance with ASC 220 Comprehensive Income,Gbmpany reports a measure of all changes in
shareholders’ equity that result from transactiansl other economic events of the period other than
transactions with owners (“comprehensive incomeQomprehensive income is the total net income and
other non-owner equity transactions that resuttianges in net equity.

The following represents accumulated other comprgikie income balances, net of tax, as of December 3
2007, 2008 and 2009:

Year ended December 31, 2007
Before-tax Tax (expense Net-of-tax

amount or benefit amount

ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$
Beginning balance .........ccccccceeeviiiiicieeeee e (1,242) - (1,242)
Translation adjustment ..........ccccvevveeeceeceereee e 356 - 356
Minimum pension liability adjustment.........cccccevveveeeennnn. (142) - (142)
NEt ChaNQE .......eviiiiiiiieiiiee e 215 - 215
Ending balance .........ccccocviiieie i, (1,027) - (1,027)

Year ended December 31, 2008
Before-tax Tax (expense Net-of-tax

amount or benefit amount

ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$
Beginning balance .............cccviviiiieieeee (1,027) - (1,027)
Translation adjustMment ..............eeeicrcceeriiii e (786) - (786)
Minimum pension liability adjustment.........cccccevveveeeennn. (2,827) - (2,827)
NEt ChaNQE ......ovvvviiiiiie e e e (3,613) - (3,613)
Ending balance ...........cccccieiiiiiiii e (4,640) - (4,640)

Year ended December 31, 2009
Before-tax Tax (expense Net-of-tax

amount or benefit amount

ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$
Beginning balance .........ccccccceeeviviiicieeeeeee (4,640) - (4,640)
Translation adjustMment ..............eeeicrcceerieii e 1,087 - 1,087
Minimum pension liability adjustment.........cccc..........o... 1,129 - 1,129
Swaps designated as cash flow hedge .......ccccceeervvvnnnnee. (9,619) 1,635 (7,984)
NEt ChaNQe ......oovvviiiiii e e e e (7,403) 1,635 (5,768)
Ending balance ............ccccoiiiiiiiieeeeeee (12,043) 1,635 (10,408)
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Note 30 — DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CHILEAN AND UNITED STATES GENERALLY
ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, (continued)

d) Credit agreements

The Company had renewable credit lines for shem+te)S-dollar borrowings with various Chilean and
foreign banks totaling, in the aggregate, US$ 5@5om and US$ 481 million as of December 31, 2009
and 2008, respectively. There were US$ 471 milhod US$ 481 million available as of December 31,
2009 and 2008, respectively. Of the US$ 471 milkenilable as of December 31, 2009, the Company had
US$ 40 million under two committed credit line agmeents with local banks, for which the Company paid
commitment fees.

e) Lease commitments

The Company leases office facilities by way of pitzd lease payable in installments through 201ith &
bargain purchase option at the end of the lease.

Minimum lease payments under the capital leasesa@ded in Other accounts payable and are asvallo

Minimum
lease

payments

Year ended December 31, ThUS$
2000 e e a2ttt a e et n e e e e e anreeeaeaan 329
200 e e ettt e e ah e e e s anraeeaeaan 192
Total future minimum lease payments.....cccccevvveveveeeenennnn. 521
L (=T €= S (34)
Present value of net minimum lease payments................ 487
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Note 30 — DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CHILEAN AND UNITED STATES GENERALLY
ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, (continued)

e) Lease commitments (continued)

SQM Salar S.A., a consolidated subsidiary of then@any, entered into a contract with a government
agency (CORFO) for the rental of land for the pgrof exploration and exploitation of certain maisr
Rental payments (royalties) are stated in US dolird are determined based on actual mineral sales
through 2030 in accordance with rates specifiethinagreement. Based on the agreement the Company
paid ThUS$ 17,747, ThUSS$ 17,712 and ThUS 13,86%010, 2008 and 2007 respectively, including the
minimum annual rental, which was ThUS$ 11,738, T&lBS/57 and ThUS$ 4,759 for 2009, 2008 and
2007, respectively. Future estimated minimum ahrardals are as follows:

Minimum
annual
rentals

Year ended December 3. ThUS$

9102
9102
9102
9102
9102
144,352
189,457

As of December 31, 2009, SQM Salar S.A. has accimethe rental payment of ThUS$ 3,752 related to
the rental agreement maintained with CORFO.

f) Concentration of credit risk

Financial instruments, which potentially subjea thompany to significant concentrations of creidik,r
consist principally of cash, investments and tractounts receivable.

The Company maintains cash and cash equivalentketable securities, and certain other financial
instruments with various financial institutions.é8e financial institutions are located in Chile ariger
parts of the world, and the Company’s policy isigiesd to limit exposure to any one institution. The
Company performs periodic evaluations of the redatiredit standing of these financial instituticas
part of the Company's investment strategy.

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trageounts receivable are limited because of tigelar
number of entities comprising the Company's custdmase and their dispersion around the world. The
Company’s policy is to require collateral (suchletters of credit, guarantee clause or others)aand/
maintain credit insurance for certain accountsessmed necessary by the management.
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Note 30 — DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CHILEAN AND UNITED STATES GENERALLY
ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, (continued)

g) Foreign exchange gains and losses

For US GAAP presentation purposes, the net foreigihange gains and losses on transactions in foreig
currencies and UF amounted to ThUS$ (7,429) ThU$785), and ThUS$ 10,885 in 2009, 2008 and
2007, respectively.

h) Advertising and research and development costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurrechammlinted to ThUS1,885, ThUS$ 1,818 and ThUS$
1,670 for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2002@07, respectively.

Research and development costs are expensed agthand mounted to ThUS$4,603, ThUS$ 2,617 and
ThUSS$ 2,843 for the years ended December 31, ZWB and 2007.

i) Business combinations and goodwiill

The Company accounts for goodwill and identifiegingible assets acquired in a business combination
accordance with ASC 35Mtangibles — Goodwill and Other

The balance of goodwill under US GAAP is ThUS$ 88,3t December 31, 2007, 2008 and 2009, with no
activity in the account during the years presented.
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ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, (continued)

)

Reclassification differences between Chilean GAAPnd US GAAP

(i) Non-operating income and expense under US GAARulzdéd in accordance with Chilean

GAAP

The following reclassifications are required to fosm to the presentation of Chilean GAAP
income statement information to that required und8rGAAP. The reclassification amounts are

determined in accordance with Chilean GAAP.

Non-operating income under Chilean GAAP......oeeneene.
Less:
Sale of MiNiNG CONCESSIONS...........ocvvmeeeeeeeeeiveiiiiee e
Sale Of @aSEMENLS ......cciiiiiiiiiii i veeree e
Sale of material and SErviCes .........ccouueeeeeiiiiiiieniiiiiiiee
[NSUIANCE FECOVEIIES .....uiviieeeitiitccmeeee et e e
Write-off of liabilitieS..........ooooiiiie e,
Payment discount obtained from suppliers....ccc...ccceve......
Rental of property, plant and equipment.........................
Compensation obtained from third parties......cccc...........
Gain on sale of investment (Agricolima S.A. de §.V.......
Gain on sale of assets of SQM Lithium ...l
Other iINCOME .....cooiiiiiiiiie et eeeeee e
Non-operating income as classified under US GAAR, b
calculated in accordance with Chilean GAAP.. ...

Non-operating expenses under Chilean GAAP .................
Less:
WOork diSruption EXPENSES .....uuuvuuns s e seeeseeaaaeeaanaeans
Increase in allowance for doubtful debts . .cvvveeennnee.
Non-capitalizable exploration project expenses...............
NON-recoverable taXes ... ccemeeiiiiiee e
Provision for legal expenses and litigation.......................
Allowances for materials, spare parts and supplies........
CONSUIING SEIVICES ...vvviiiiiiieee et
DOoNationS .......ccevviieeieiiiiiee e
Suppliers’ compensations
Accrued expenses related to energy tariff adjustenen.....
Other EXPENSES ....cceeei ittt e e e e e e e e
Non-operating expense as classified under US GAAP,
calculated in accordance with Chilean GAAP.........
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2009 2008 2007
ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$
40,472 40,590 25,948
2,170 721 399
10,356 - -
100 156 369
285 581 527
915 2,623 335
921 815 458
1,133 1,092 958
60 146 524
- 1,387 -
- 2,342 -
2,270 106 2,013
22,262 29,621 20,617
77,458 59,896 53,032
11,430 2,445 484
- 30 -
9,348 8,961 16,528
612 582 669
451 975 523
9,059 4,732 4,925
53 84 -
2,431 21 -
90 237 1,575
- - 2,066
1,995 1,629 3,624
41,989 38,069 22,278
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Note 30 — DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CHILEAN AND UNITED STATES GENERALLY
ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, (continued)

) Reclassification differences between Chilean GAP and US GAAP (continued)
(i) Condensed financial statements under US GAAP

The following are summarized balance sheets ofGbepany using a US GAAP presentation and
amounts determined in accordance with US GAAP:

As of December 31,

2009 2008
Assets ThUS$ ThUS$
CUIENt ASSELS ...cccevvvvriiiiiiii i 1,735,750 1,340,723
Property, plant and equipment.................... 2,246,984 1,894,557
Accumulated depreciation ..................cceeunes (944,174) (802,306)
Property plant and equipment, net.............. 1,302,810 1,092,251
GOOAWIIl ... e 40,335 40,335
Other aSSetS.....c.uiiiiiiiiiiiieeee e 98,588 75,781
Total @SSetS ...coovvvvieeeiiiieee e 3,177,483 2,549,090
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Current liabilities ..........cooooiiiiiiiii e 544,235 505,644
Long-term liabilities ...............ccevvvivieemmn e, 1,152,039 628,065
Shareholders equity attributable to non-
controlling interest...........ccccevvvvvvvviiieneeeeeenn, 46,623 47,379
Shareholders’ equity attributable to the parent
COMPANY etvvtiinianeeeeeeeeeee s e eeeeeneeeneennnnes 1,434,586 1,368,002
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity...... 3,177,483 2,549,090
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Note 30 — DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CHILEAN AND UNITED STATES GENERALLY
ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, (continued)

) Reclassification differences between Chilean GAP and US GAAP (continued)

The condensed consolidated statements of incontbdoyears ended December 31 under US GAAP and
classified in accordance with US GAAP are preseatefibllows:

For the years ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
Operating income ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$
SAlES . 1,436,891 1,774,119 1,187,527
Cost Of saleS......uvvieieiieieeei i (924,085) (1,065,370) (880,272)
GroSS MArgin ....coeeveeeeeeeeeeeeeeee v e eeveenns 512,806 708,749 307,255
Selling and administrative expense............ (78,896) (85,709) (70,273)
Operating inCome ..........cccevvvvvvvvvivicenenenn, 433,910 623,040 236,982
Non-operating income (expense), het....... (15,229) (26,936) 1,699
INCOME tAXES ... ee e e (74,958) (103,712) (42,036)
Equity participation in income of related
COMPANIES, NEL...cvvvviiiiiiiii e eee e 5,717 14,358 3,567
Netincome ... 349,440 506,750 200,212
Net income attributable to parent
company 347,886 500,912 192,668
Net income attributable to non-
controlling interest 1,554 5,838 7,544
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of
taxes:
Minimum pension liability adjustment........ 1,129 (2,827) (141)
Swaps designated as cash flow hedge (7,984) - -
Translation adjustment...............cccevvvee v, 1,087 (786) 356
Total comprehensive income under US
GAAP .o 343,672 503,137 200,427
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Note 30 — DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CHILEAN AND UNITED STATES GENERALLY
ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, (continued)

k)  Industry segment and geographic area information

The Company provides disclosures in accordance A8 280Segment ReportinASC 280"), which
establishes standards for reporting informationualoperating segments in annual financial statesnast
well as related disclosures about products andicesnand geographic areas. Operating segments are
defined as components of an enterprise about wédaglarate financial statement information available
evaluated regularly by the chief operating decisimaker in making decisions about allocating resesirc
and assessing performance. In accordance with AZBCtBe Company has five segments, which are split
into geographical areas: Chile, Latin America aratilibean except Chile, Europe, USA, and Asia and
other. In addition, the Company evaluates alsop@sformance by the following group of products:
Specialty Plant Nutrition, lodine and Derivativeghium and Derivatives, Industrial Chemicals, Psiam
Chloride and Other Commodity Fertilizers. The actg policies of each segment are the same asg thos
described in the “Summary of Significant Accountifplicies” (Note 2). The following segment
information is presented in accordance with US GAAporting requirements; however, the amounts have
been determined in accordance with Chilean GAAP.

(i)  Sales by product type and by geographic ase#hke years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007

Latin America

and North Asia
Year ended December 31, 2009 Chile Caribbean (1) Europe America and other Eliminations Total
Thus$ Thusg Thus$ Thus$ Thusg Thusg Thus$

Total revenues:
Specialty plant nutrition.................. 149,23¢ 125,60¢ 167,557 231,77¢ 211,48¢ (236,957 648,713
lodine and derivatives................... 188,45¢ 6,856 125,17C 126,382 61,181 (317,763 190,284
Lithium and derivative.................... 20¢ 1,60¢ 93,11° 27,03: 58,55¢ (62,677 117,84
Industrial chemicals....................... 8,684 13,562 100,80¢ 99,221 38,2432 (145,130 115,386
Potassium chloride............cccuue.... 173,24¢ 49,542 182,271 65,587 91,131 (276,957 284,823
Other commaodity fertilizers (........ 335,01 424 12,00: 4,56¢ 932 (273,094 79,84

Total ..o 854,851 197,59¢ 680,927 554,56¢ 461,531 (1,312,578 1,436,891
Transfers between geographic

areas
Specialty plant nutrition................. 66,55€ - 104,172 66,22¢ - (236,957 -
lodine and derivatives.................. 187,58¢ - 54,62C 56,18€ 19,371 (317,763 -
Lithium and derivative.................... - - 33,05: 9,91¢ 19,70¢ (62,677 -
Industrial chemica...........cccoeeuvneee. @) 2,082 48,39:¢ 66,58¢ 28,07: (145,130 -
Potassium Chloride 115,13¢ 16,58¢ 111,607 33,62¢ - (276,957 -
Others commodity fertilizers (2).... 256,96: 152 11,42¢ 4,157 393 (273,094 -

Total..covee e 626,24 18,82: 363,27: 236,69t 67,54 (1,312,578 -
Sales to unaffiliated customers:
Specialty plant nutrition 82,682 125,60¢ 63,38E 165,55( 211,48¢ - 648,713
lodine and derivative...................... 872 6,85¢ 70,55( 70,19¢ 41,81( - 190,28
Lithium and derivatives.................. 208 1,606 60,065 17,112 38,852 - 117,843
Industrial chemica..........cccccvvveenes 8,68t 11,48( 52,41: 32,63° 10,17 - 115,38t
Potassium Chloride 58,111 32,953 70,664 31,964 91,131 - 284,823
Others commodity fertilizers (2).... 78,05C 272 572 409 539 - 79,842

Total...coee e 228,60¢ 178,77t 317,64¢ 317,86¢ 393,98¢ - 1,436,89.

(1) Excludes Chile.

(2) Includes revenues from imported fertilizergrilisited in Chile and Mexico.
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Note 30 — DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CHILEAN AND UNITED STATES GENERALLY
ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, (continued)

k)  Industry segment and geographic area informatior{continued)

(i) Sales by product type and by geographic area &y#ars ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007

(continued)

Latin America

and North Asia
Year endedDecember 31, 20C Chile Caribbean (1) Europe America and other Eliminations Total
ThuSs$ ThuSs$ ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUus$ ThUuS$ ThUuSs$

Total revenues:
Specialty plant nutrition.................. 268,107 256,56¢ 426,497 341,392 234,28¢ (547,927 978,922
lodine and derivative...................... 176,10 7,40( 150,81( 199,37: 92,05: (378,832 246,90°
Lithium and derivatives.................. 581 1,982 121,957 62,23¢€ 85,597 (100,016 172,339
Industrial chemicals....................... 8,011 35,41¢ 107,04C 135,65¢ 47,69¢ (210,204 123,619
Potassium chloriC..........eeeeeeeeeivnenns 223,90: 30,46¢ 5,09( 54¢ 33,56: (153,565 139,99¢
Other commodity fertilizers (2)...... 485,98: 1,032 402 1,442 115 (376,640 112,334

B0 ] - | R 1,162,69( 332,86% 811,79¢ 740,647 493,307 (1,767,184 1,774,119
Transfers between geographic

areas:
Specialty plant nutrition.................. 81,292 27,52¢ 197,41¢ 156,481 85,20¢€ (547,927 -
lodine and derivative...................... 174,63( 43 70,36¢ 100,34( 33,45: (378,832 -
Lithium and derivatives.................. - - 41,067 30,26¢ 28,68C (100,016 -
Industrial chemicals....................... 2,921 7,521 72,942 94,972 31,847 (210,204 -
Potassium Chloric 148,92: - - - 4,64¢ (153,565 -
Others commodity fertilizers (....... 376,64( - - - - (376,640 -

Total....oooiveeeecee e 784,40¢ 35,095 381,791 382,067 183,832 (1,767,184 -
Sales to unaffiliated customers
Specialty plant nutrition 186,81< 229,04( 229,081 184,911 149,07¢ - 978,922
lodine and derivatives................... 1,477 7,357 80,444 99,031 58,59¢ - 246,907
Lithium and derivative.................... 581 1,98: 80,89( 31,96¢ 56,917 - 172,33¢
Industrial chemicals...........ccoc.u..... 5,090 27,894 34,09¢ 40,68& 15,852 - 123,619
Potassium Chloride 74,98C 30,465 5,090 546 28,917 - 139,998
Others commodity fertilizers (2).... 109,34: 1,032 402 1,442 115 - 112,334

Total ..o 378,28¢ 297,77( 430,00t 358,58¢ 309,47¢ - 1,774,119

(1) Excludes Chile.

(2) Includes revenues from imported fertilizergriligited in Chile and Mexico.
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Note 30 — DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CHILEAN AND UNITED STATES GENERALLY
ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, (continued)

k)  Industry segment and geographic area informatior{continued)

(i) Sales by product type and by geographic area &y#ars ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007

(continued)

Year ended December 31, 2007

Total revenues:

Specialty plant nutrition..................
lodine and derivative......................
Lithium and derivative....................
Industrial chemicals..........ccc..cc......
Potassium chlorid...........ccceeeennee..

Other commodity fertilizers (. ........

Latin America

LI ] 71 U

Transfers between geographic
areas

Specialty plant nutrition..................
lodine and derivatives...................
Lithium and derivative....................
Industrial chemicals............c.c.......
Potassium chloride..........ccccecevene.
Other commodity fertilizers (2)......

LI ] 71 U

Sales to unaffiliated customers
Specialty plant nutrition

lodine and derivatives...................
Lithium and derivatives..................
Industrial Chemica .........cccccc........
Potassium chloride...........ccccvveeeee
Other commaodity fertilizers (2)......

LI ] 71

and North Asia
Chile Caribbean (1) Europe America and other  Eliminations Total
ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$
157,14¢ 127,27¢ 240,982 192,83( 84,50¢ (221,982 580,761
167,18¢ 7,58¢ 144,97 157,53( 63,35 (325,530 215,10:
631 2,621 152,99: 66,70¢ 72,65 (115,814 179,79(
3,027 14,695 95,282 88,26¢€ 19,801 (139,881 81,190
104,80° 12,81: 7,621 19¢ 10,71¢ (84,889 51,26¢
214,48 91C 1,31¢ 3,44 1,831 (142,568 79,41"
647,28% 165,89¢ 643,171 508,97¢ 252,867 (1,030,664 | 1,187,527
33,10z 13,174 95,014 62,424 18,268 (221,982 -
166,244 - 59,011 78,73¢€ 21,53¢ (325,530 -
26( - 69,40¢ 28,22¢ 17,917 (115,814 -
1,322 2,776 58,897 61,29¢ 15,588 (139,881 -
74,78¢ 2,598 - 30 7,472 (84,889 -
138,68( - - 2,284 1,604 (142,568 -
414,397 18,284 282,331 233,00( 82,388 (1,030,664 | -
124,04¢ 114,10C 145,96¢ 130,40¢ 66,241 - 580,761
945 7,584 85,96¢€ 78,794 41,814 - 215,103
371 2,621 83,584 38,48C 54,734 - 179,790
1,70¢ 11,91¢ 36,38¢ 26,96¢ 4,21: - 81,19(
30,01¢€ 10,213 7,621 168 3,246 - 51,266
75,801 910 1,316 1,163 227 - 79,417
232,88t 147,34 360,84( 275,97¢ 170,47! - 1,187,522

(1) Excludes Chile.

(2) Includes revenues from imported fertilizergritimited in Chile and Mexico.
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Note 30 — DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CHILEAN AND UNITED STATES GENERALLY
ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, (continued)

k)  Industry segment and geographic area informatior{continued)

(i)  Other segment information as of and for tleans ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007:

Latin
As of and for the year ended America and North Asia
December 31, 2009 Chile Caribbean Europe America and other Eliminations Total
ThUS$ ThUuS$ ThUuS$ ThUuS$ ThUuS$ ThUuS$ ThUuS$
Production facilities (1):
Pedro de Valdivia..........ccccevvenen. 75,934 - - - - - 75,934
Maria Elena 196,80¢ - - - - - 196,809
Coya Su............ 235,08: - - - - - 235,08:
Pampa Blanc........cccccoooeiiiieriinnen. 15,66" - - - - - 15,66"
Nueva Victoria.......ccceeveiieeiinennns 141,78¢€ - - - - - 141,786
Salar de Atacama..........ccceeveennnenn, 433,63¢ - - - - - 433,636
92,34: - - - - - 92,34:
2,444 - - - - (1,271) 1,173
Sulk-total production facilitie ...... 1,193,701 - - - - (1,271 1,192,42
Port facility (1) ...ccoevvereveeniereiiieen, 55,937 - - - - - 55,937
Other property, plant and
equUIPMENt .....cvvvvie e 58,814 - - - - 7,839 66,653
Assets of commercial locations.... 7,160 1,619 505 2,367 665 - 12,316
Investments in related companies 1,709,79: 37,591 49,272 36,851 - (1,778,300 55,205
GoodWill......ooeeeiiiciiieeicce e, 20,51¢ 63 9,14¢ - - - 29,72t
Other non-current assets (2)........ 274,63¢ - 7 3 - (228,907 45,738
Total long-lived assets.............. 3,320,55: 39,273 58,93C 39,221 665 (2,000,639 1,458,003
Expenditures on long-lived assets 375,941 920 121 30 4 - 376,186
Export by region ..........ccccceveieen - 120,64¢ 469 2,851 134,062 - 258,030

(1) The Company’s principal production facilities ameadted near its mines and extraction facilitiemanthern Chile. The
following table sets forth the principal productitailities as of December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007:

Location: Products:

Pedro de Valdivia Nitrate and iodine production

Maria Elena Nitrate and iodine production

Coya Sur Nitrate and iodine production

Pampa Blanca Concentrated nitrate salts and iquivduction

Nueva Victoria lodine production

Salar de Atacama Potassium chloride, lithium cHerpotassium sulfate and boric acid
Salar del Carmen Lithium carbonate and lithium loyéte production

Tocopilla Port facilitiy

(2) In all tables in the segment disclosure thigory includes principally assets that may naidmgned to production facilities
and investments held by holding entities within dgheup.
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Note 30 — DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CHILEAN AND UNITED STATES GENERALLY
ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, (continued)

k)  Industry segment and geographic area informatior{continued)

(i)  Other segment information as of and for tleans ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007:

Latin
As of and for the year ended America and North Asia
December 31, 2008 Chile Caribbean Europe America and other Eliminations Total
ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUs$ ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUs$ ThUS$
Production facilities (1):
Pedro de Valdivia...........c.ccccovennene 69,09€ - - - - - 69,096
Maria Elena 177,41¢€ - - - - - 177,416
Coya Su............ 146,20: - - - - - 146,20:
Pampa Blanc........cccccoooeiiiieriinnen. 7,037 - - - - - 7,037
Nueva Victoria .........coceeveereeineenienns 115,84¢ - - - - - 115,845
Salar de Atacama..........cccceeveeenenne. 342,45¢ - - - - - 342,458
100,90¢ - - - - - 100,90¢
2,907 - - - 5,529 (1,480) 6,956
Sut-total production facilitie ...... 961,87: - - - 5,52¢ (1,480 965,92
Port facility (1) .c.ccoevveeerereiireniveeem, 46,18¢ - - - - - 46,188
Other property, plant and
equUIPMENt .....cvvvvie e 91,09¢ - - - - 7,839 98,938
Assets of commercial locations.... 6,262 1,236 2,772 2,557 743 (894) 12,676
Investments in related companies  1,489,43¢ 31,754 44,85C 35,491 - (1,564,583 36,951
GOOAWIll....coviiccccec e, 22,10( 86 9,71f - - - 31,90:
Other non-current assets (2)......... 254,63¢ - 6 105 - (219,519 35,227
Total long-lived assets.............. 2,871,59¢ 33,07€ 57,343 38,158 6,272 (1,778,637 1,227,801
Expenditures on long-lived assets 302,91¢ 60 484 547 84 - 304,090
Export by region ..........ccocceiievinnin - 273,152 6,607 5,630 171,59¢ - 456,983
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Note 30 — DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CHILEAN AND UNITED STATES GENERALLY
ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, (continued)

k)  Industry segment and geographic area informatior{continued)

(i)  Other segment information as of and for tleans ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007:

Latin
As of and for the year ended America and North Asia
December 31, 2007 Chile Caribbean Europe America and other Eliminations Total
ThUS$ ThUuS$ ThUuS$ ThUuS$ ThUS$ ThUuS$ ThUS$
Production facilities (1):
Pedro de Valdivia..........ccccevvenen. 74,03€ - - - - - 74,036
Maria Elena 156,48 - - - - - 156,484
Coya Su............ 106,77: - - - - - 106,77:
Pampa Blanc........cccccoooeiiiieriinnen. 4,06¢ - - - - - 4,06¢
Nueva Victoria.......ccceeveiieeiinennns 104,75¢ - - - - - 104,758
Salar de Atacama..........ccceeveennnenn, 250,571 - - - - - 250,577
43,99° - - - - - 43,99°
6,822 - - 21,44C 5,970 (4,865) 29,367
Sut-total production facilitie ...... 747,51« - - 21,44( 5,97( (4,865 770,05¢
Port facility (1) ...ccoevvereveeniereiiieen, 39,03¢ - - - - - 39,038
Other property, plant and
equUIPMENt .....cvvvvie e 155,06t - - - - 7,839 162,904
Assets of commercial locations.... 7,615 1,450 2,813 2,867 566 (1,174) 14,137
Investments in related companies  1,221,49¢ 15,65¢ 24,03t 36,45C - (1,273,707 23,935
GOoOAWIll....coveiiiiciiees e 23,84« 10¢ 10,28« - - - 34,23¢
Other non-current assets (2)........ 353,742 - 6 1,675 - (317,369 38,055
Total long-lived assets.............. 2,548,31" 17,217 37,13¢ 62,432 6,536 (1,589,276 1,082,364
Expenditures on long-lived assets 175,91( 57 205 1,838 18 - 178,028
Export by region ..........ccccceveieen - 139,242 241,097 217,11¢ 189,897 - 787,352
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Note 30 — DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CHILEAN AND UNITED STATES GENERALLY
ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, (continued)

1)

Estimated fair value of financial instruments ard derivative financial instruments

The accompanying tables provide disclosure of #tegnated fair value of financial instruments owrigd
the Company. Various limitations are inherent ia pihesentation, including the following:

The data excludes non-financial assets and iligisil such as property, plant and equipment, and
goodwiill.

While the data represents management's best a&stimthe data is subjective and involves
significant estimates regarding current econométraarket conditions and risk characteristics,

The methodologies and assumptions used dependeoteitins and risk characteristics of the various
instruments and include the following:

Cash and time deposits approximate fair value lmxaaf the short-term maturity of these
instruments.

Current liabilities that are contracted at varialnieerest rates are considered to have a fair value
equal to book value.

For interest-bearing liabilities with an originalrdractual maturity of greater than one year, #ie f
values are calculated by discounting contractush ¢eows at current market origination rates with
similar terms.

For forward contracts and swap agreements, fairevid determined using quoted market prices of
financial instruments with similar characteristics.

The following is a detail of the Company’s finaridéistruments’ US GAAP carrying amount and
estimated fair value:

As of December 31,

2009 2008
US GAAP US GAAP
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents..........cc............ 530,394 530,394 303,799 303,799
Short-term accounts receivable.................. 394,479 394,479 385,695 385,695
Long-term accounts receivable.................. 4,209 4,209 2,766 2,766
Derivative inStruments ............cccccoeeee e - - 1,723 1,723
Liabilities:
Short-term bank debt..............occoi i 70,368 70,368 133,355 133,355
Short-term notes and accounts payable..... 216,563 216,563 110,298 110,298
Derivative inStruments ...........ccccoevvvve e 68,036 68,036 18,189 18,189
Current and long-term portions of long-term
bank debt..........ccooviiiiii 1,202,622 1,298,139 522,651 601,662
Long-term other accounts payahle............ 187 187 397 397
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Note 30 — DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CHILEAN AND UNITED STATES GENERALLY
ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, (continued)

) Estimated fair value of financial instruments ard derivative financial instruments (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

Effective January 1, 2008, the Company adopted 83(, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures
(“ASC 820") that establishes a fair value hierartigt prioritizes the inputs to valuation technigjused

to measure fair value. Although the adoption of &®C 820 did not materially impact Company’s
financial position, results of operations or cadbw$, additional disclosures about fair value
measurements are required and they are discuskmd be

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy arecdbed below:
Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for idEaitassets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Observable inputs other than quoted priceluded in Level 1, such as quoted prices for
similar assets and liabilities in active marketsptgd prices for identical or similar assets aatilities in
markets that are not active; or other inputs that gbservable or can be corroborated by observable
market data.

Level 3 — Significant unobservable inputs are sufgub by little or no market activity and that are
significant to the fair value of the assets oriliibs. This includes certain pricing models, disated
cash flow methodologies and similar techniques tkatsignificant unobservable inputs.

When deemed appropriate, the Company manageslhtdrom interest and foreign currency exchange
rates through the use of derivates financial assatsliabilities. The Company’s derivates are prilpa
interest rate and cross currency swaps relateehib ahd foreign exchange options and forwards tsed
hedge against the currency fluctuations. The faluer of those foreign currency forwards, swaps and
options is the net amount that the Company woutgive or pay to terminate the agreements as of the
balance sheet date. The fair value of the derigatigtruments was determined using internal valoati
models, most of which are based on observable mamgats including interest rate curves and forward
and spot prices for currencies. Also these estinetasider assumptions about Company’s own credit
risk and credit risk of the counterparties. SQM i3 most of its financial instruments market
assumptions from the market data sources, like Blmyg andNetgociando To the extent that
management can estimate the fair value of the sasset liabilities without the use of the significan
unobservable inputs, these derivatives are inclinédvel 2 category.

The estimates are not necessarily indicative ofatineunts that the Company could realize in a ctirren

market exchange. The use of different market assangpand/or estimation methodologies may have a
material effect on the estimated fair value
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Note 30 — DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CHILEAN AND UNITED STATES GENERALLY
ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, (continued)

) Estimated fair value of financial instruments ard derivative financial instruments (continued)

The following table sets forth the Company’s detiia@instruments as of December 31, 2009 by type of
the instrument and by level within the fair valderarchy in accordance with ASC 820:

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date

ThUS$
Assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Cross currency swaps - 51,339 -
Foreign exchange forwards - 8,863 -
Foreign exchange options - 54 -
Total Assets - 625 -
Liabilities
Cross currency swaps - - -
Foreign exchange forwards - 3,993 -
Foreign exchange options - - -
Total Liabilities - 3,993

m) Post-retirement obligations and staff severancemdemnities

The Company’'s subsidiary SQM North America Corgorathas a defined benefit, noncontributory
pension plan covering substantially all employed® wjualify as to age and length of service. Plan
benefits are based on years of service and theogegibk highest five-year average compensation gurin
the last ten years of employment. The plan’s assmisist primarily of equity mutual funds and group
annuity contracts.

In September 2002, the Board of Directors of SQMtNé&merica Corporation voted to suspend the plan
and as a result after December 31, 2002, partitspdm not earn additional benefits for future seasi
Such action resulted in a curtailment loss (eqaaht amount of unrecognized prior service cost) of
approximately US$ 1.3 million for the year endecc&aber 31, 2002.

Assumptions used in determining the actuarial priegglue of the projected benefit obligation as of
December 31 are as follows:

2009 2008
Weighted-average discount rate ............oeececcceeeeveiiicnnnnnnns 6.5% 6.5%
Rate of increase in compensation levels...ccoe.vovvveennnns 0.0% 0.0%
Long-term rate of return on plan assets....ccweveveeeiennnnn. 7.5% 7.5%

The long-term rate of return on assets was deteairiased upon past investment experience and the
expectation for future experience.
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Note 30 — DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CHILEAN AND UNITED STATES GENERALLY
ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, (continued)

m)  Post-retirement obligations and staff severamcindemnities (continued)

The following table sets forth the plan’s fundeatgs and amounts recognized in the consolidateshbal
sheet as of December 31:

2009 2008 2007
ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$
Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year..............ccc....... 6,631 6,245 5,696
SEIVICE COSE ..viiiiiiiiiiiie ettt 1 1 1
INEEIESE COSL ..vvviiiiiiieiiie e e 423 398 391
Actuarial 0SS .......oooiiiiiiiiiei e 33 255 405
Benefits paid..........coooeiiiiiiiiiies e (297) (268) (248)
Benefit obligation at end of the year ................coce, 6,791 6,631 6,245
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of yeat.............. 3,758 6,141 5,621
Employer contributions .........cccooveeiiiiiimmme e, 448 34 69
Actual return (loss) on plan assets........cccccceveeeeeveccnnnn. 1,173 (2,149) 699
Benefits paid...........coocuveiiiiiieiee s (297) (268) (248)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year..ceeeeeeeeeoooennnes 5,082 3,758 6,141
FUNed StatUS .....ouvvieiieiiiie e e (1,709) (2,873) (104)
Items not yet recognized as components of net gierio
pension costs:
Net actuarial loss at the beginning of the period............. (4,186) (1,359) (1,218)
Amortization during the period............ccoccceeiiiice e, 198 37 35
Estimated net gain loss occurring during the periad....... 857 (2,864) (176)
Adjustment to recognize minimum pension liability......... (3,131) (4,186) (1,359)
Accrued pension (liability)/ prepaid pension cast............ (1,709) (2,873) (104)

Net periodic pension expense was comprised ofdlf@ifing components for the years ended December
31, 2009, 2008 and 2007:

2009 2008 2007
ThUS$ ThUS$ ThUS$

Service cost or benefits earned during the periad........... 1 1 1
Interest cost on benefit obligation ...........c.cccevviviiceniinnnnn. 423 398 391
Actual return on plan assets .........ccoceeeeveeciriciene e, (1,173) 2,149 (699)
Amortization of loss from prior periods.......cccccvvvvveverennnn. 198 38 35
Net gain during the period.............oceeeeeveeievvieviei, 889 (2,610) 229

Net periodic pension EXPENSE........ccceeeeeervrrrmmmerreernnnns 338 (24) (43)
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Note 30 — DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CHILEAN AND UNITED STATES GENERALLY
ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, (continued)

m)  Post-retirement obligations and staff severamcindemnities (continued)

The plan’s asset allocations by asset category Bea@ember 31 are as follows:

2009 2008
GroWth SECUILIES ...uuiiiiiiiiiii it e eeaa s 59% 48%
INternational SECUNLIES .......ccivveiiiiticeee e 25% 25%
Taxable BONd........covuiiiii e 14% 20%
Treasury SECUNMTIES .....v.uuvvveriiriiiiiimmmmmmr e eeeeeaeer e immme s - 4%
Money market funds ........cccceveeiiieie e e 2% 3%
B 10 c- | T 100% 100%

As of December 31, 2009 the pension plan beneffis&ed to be paid in the future are as follows:

ThUS$
2010 318
2011 346
2012 375
2013 400
2014 436
Years 2015-2019 2,699

n)  Cash and cash equivalents

Under Chilean GAAP cash and cash equivalents arsidered to be all highly liquid investments with a
remaining maturity of less than 90 days as of tlosieg date of the financial statements, where&, U
GAAP considers cash and cash equivalents to bagdily liquid investments with an original maturity
date of less than 90 days. The difference betwaebalance under US GAAP and Chilean GAAP of cash

and cash equivalents is not material for the psrmésented.

0) Restricted assets

The amount of consolidated retained earnings thptesents undistributed earnings of 50% or less
investees accounted for by the equity method ansdonthUS$ 5,308 as of December 31, 2009.
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Exhibit 1.1

MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
OF
SOCIEDAD QUIMICA'Y MINERA DE CHILE S.A.
FREE TRANSLATION.

* kk Kk kK%

l. CONSTITUTION.

Sociedad Quimica y Minera de Chile S.A., herearadtso and indistinctly referred to as the
Corporation or SQM, was constituted by public daedrded on June 17, 1968 before Santiago
Notary Public Mr. Sergio Rodriguez Garcés. Its f@ustwas registered on June 29, 1968 in the
Business Registry of the Santiago Real Estate RyoRegister, on page 4.533 No. 1.991. The
Corporation’s existence was approved by DecreelN&4 (Decreto Supremo No. 1.164) from June
22, 1968 of the Ministry of Finance, and also reggexd on June 29, 1968 in the Business Registry of
the Santiago Real Estate Property Register, on £&3& No. 1.992, and inscribed within the
margin of the corporate registration. The abstwéthe articles of incorporation, approved by the
Superintendency of Insurance Companies, Corposgtanmd Stock Exchanges, and the Decree
authorizing the Corporations’ existence, were hiad in the Official Gazette (Diario Oficial) No.
27.080, on June 29, 1968.

I. AMENDMENTS.

1. The By-Laws were amended at the Corporation’s Géiedtraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting
held on October 9, 1969 and an abstract was exeoutepublic deed on October 13, 1969
before Santiago Notary Public Mr. Sergio RodrigGazcés. The abstract of this deed, approved
by the Superintendency of Insurance Companies,dtatipns, and Stock Exchanges, was
registered on February 5, 1970 in the BusinessdRggif the Santiago Real Estate Property
Register, on page 947 No. 447, and was inscribddnthe margin of the corporate
registration. The amendment was approved by Déd¢oe®3 of January 26, 1970 of the
Ministry of Finance, and was registered on Febr&ardQ70 in the Business Registry of the
Santiago Real Estate Property Register, on pag&l84848, and inscribed within the margin of
the abstract’s registration of the deed of amendnidre deed of amendment’s abstract and the
Decree approving the amendment were publishecei®fficial Gazette No. 27.566 on
February 7, 1970.

Among other matters, this amendment establishedfarped dividend for Series "A" shares of
the Corporation’s net earnings originated in tresxdback awarded by Decree No. 914 of
September 4, 1969 of the Ministry of Economy, Depetent and Reconstruction.

2. The By-Laws were amended at the Corporation’s Gatiextraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting
held on April 21, 1977 and an abstract was exedatedoublic deed on May 19, 1977 before
Santiago Notary Public Mr. Jaime Morandé Orregas Plablic deed was subsequently
complemented by the public deeds awarded on MantiSSeptember 21, 1978, before
Santiago Notary Public Mr. Jaime Morandé Orrega @amendment was approved by means of
Exempt Resolution No. 256-S of June 27, 1979 oSihgerintendency of Insurance Companies,
Corporations, and Stock Exchanges. The certifitate the General Secretary of that
Superintendency regarding the mentioned Resolatiohabstract of the deed of amendment,
was published in the Official Gazette No. 30.408nly 7, 1979, registered in the Business
Registry of the Santiago Real Estate Property Regis page 8.068 No. 4.908 on July 9, 1979,
and inscribed within the margin of the corporatgigeation.

Among other matters, this amendment specified dtinpacate purposes, eliminated the division
of shares into Series, increased the payment w@rshfire capital and reduced the period for
SQM'’s Directors to 2 years.



3. The By-Laws were amended at the Corporation’s Geiedtraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting
held on April 19, 1979 and an abstract was exedatedoublic deed on May 18, 1979 before
Santiago Notary Public Mr. Jaime Morandé Orregas Tleed was subsequently complemented
by a public deed executed on January 8, 1980 b&mnéago Notary Public Mr. Jaime
Morandé Orrego . The amendment was approved bysradResolution No. 020-S of January
14, 1980 of the Superintendency of Insurance Corepa@orporations, and Stock Exchanges.
The certificate of the General Secretary of thggeBumtendency regarding this Resolution, the
abstract of the deed of amendment and its complemedeed was registered in the Business
Registry of the Santiago Real Estate Property Regisn page 1.080, No. 569, on January 21,
1980, and inscribed within the margin of the cogberegistration. The abstract of the deed of
amendment and the aforementioned certificate welbéighed in the Official Gazette No.
30.572, on January 24, 1980.

Among other matters, this amendment reduced thdauof Directors to 7 and eliminated the
positions of alternate Directors.

4. The By-Laws were amended at the Corporation’s Getiedtraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting
held on July 6, 1981 and an abstract was execntegublic deed on July 6, 1981 before
Santiago Notary Public Mr. Jaime Morandé Orregas Tleed was subsequently complemented
by a public deed also executed before SantiagoriNBizblic Mr. Rubén Galecio Gomez, on
October 20, 1981. The amendment was approved bgsidaResolution No. 652 of October
21, 1981 from the Superintendency of Securitieslaadrances. The certificate of the General
Secretary of that Superintendency regarding theioresd Resolution, the abstract of the deed
of amendment and the complementary deed was registethe Business Registry of the
Santiago Real Estate Property Register, on padg§@3o. 12.751, on December 15, 1981 and
inscribed within the margin of the corporate ragison. The abstract of the deed of amendment
and the aforementioned certificate were publishdatié Official Gazette No. 31.142, on
December 16, 1981.

Among other matters, this amendment increased shaital of US$ 40,000,000, divided into
40,000,000 shares with a nominal value of US$ hgacUS$ 123,491,099 divided into
123,491,099 shares with a nominal value of US$ch.ea

5. The By-Laws were amended at the Corporation’s Geiedtraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting
held on April 14, 1982 and an abstract was exedatedoublic deed on April 15, 1982 before
Santiago Notary Public Mr. Rubén Galecio Gémeze dbstract of this deed of amendment
was published in the Official Gazette No. 31.255\ay 4, 1982, registered in the Business
Registry of the Santiago Real Estate Property Regis page 7.600, No. 4.184 on May 7,
1982, and inscribed within the margin of the cogberegistration.

Among other matters, this amendment adjusted tHawy to comply with the provisions of
Law No. 18.046 of 1981.

6. The By-Laws were amended at the Corporation’s Gatiextraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting
held on August 5, 1982 and an abstract was exeatte@ublic deed on September 6, 1982,
before Santiago Notary Public Mr. Patricio Zaldilackenna. The abstract of this deed of
amendment was published in the Official Gazette34a377, on September 27, 1982, registered
in the Business Registry of the Santiago Real EfReabperty Register, on page 16.546, No.
9.482 on September 27, 1982, and inscribed wittemtargin of the corporate registration.

Among other matters, this amendment voluntarilyjectied the Corporation to the regulations
governing publicly-held corporations and, thereatiyljgated it to register its stock in the
National Security Register (Registro Nacional déo&s) and establish the incompatibility of
the position of Chief Executive Officer with thdtDirector, Auditor or Accountant and to
specify that SQM’s General Ordinary Shareholderselihg appoints the Corporation’s
External Auditors on a yearly basis.



7. The By-Laws were amended at the Corporation’s Getiettraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting
held on July 26, 1984 and an abstract was exeti@gublic deed on August 9, 1984 before
Santiago Notary Public Mr. Mario Baros Gonzéaleze Hlbstract of the deed of amendment was
published in the Official Gazette No. 31.962, orgAst 31, 1984, registered in the Business
Registry of the Santiago Real Estate Property Regis page 12.682, No. 6.912, on August 31,
1984, and inscribed within the margin of the cogberegistration.

Among other matters, this amendment reduced slagitatto US$79,528,455 by absorbing
losses of US$43,962,644 accumulated as of Dece®ihd983, thus leaving the Corporation’s
share capital divided into 123,491,099 shares withominal value.

8. The By-Laws were amended at the Corporation’s Geiedtraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting
held on August 8, 1986 and an abstract was exeattegublic deed on August 12, 1986
before Santiago Notary Public Mr. Mario Baros GdazaThe abstract of this deed of
amendment was registered in the Business Registhe Gantiago Real Estate Property
Register, on page 15.600, No. 8.754, on Augus1226 and inscribed within the margin of the
corporate registration. This abstract was cortgetgyistering the correction on page 17.211,
No. 9.564, on September 15, 1986 and inscribimgtltin the margin of the aforementioned
Business Registry. Both abstracts were publishekd Official Gazettes No. 32.554 and No.
32.572, on August 22, 1986 and September 13, 188pectively.

Among other matters, this amendment adapted thieaBys to provisions contained in Title XII
of Decree Law No. 3.500 of 1980, adding ArticleBi4, 5 Bis, 16 Bis, 18 Bis, 27 Bis, 28 Bis,
31 Bis, 36 Bis and a ninth chapter with "Speciafjitations".

9. The By-Laws were amended at the Corporation’s Gatiextraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting
held on December 5, 1988 and an abstract was exerubd public deed on January 19, 1989
before Santiago Notary Public Mr. Patricio Zaldiéackenna. The abstract of this deed of
amendment was registered in the Business Registhe Gantiago Real Estate Property
Register, on page 3.263, No. 1.555, on Februat®89, inscribed within the margin of the
corporate registration and published in the Offi@azette No. 33.289, on February 3, 1989.

Among other matters, this amendment modified thgp@mations’ name, established its
indefinite duration and extended its corporate pses.

10. The By-Laws were amended at the Corporation’s Géiedtraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting,
held on April 23, 1993 and an abstract was exeduatedoublic deed on April 27, 1993 before
Santiago Notary Public Mr. Juan Ricardo San Madtirejola. The abstract of this deed of
amendment was published in the Official Gazette 3ddb54 on April 30, 1993, registered on
page 8.675, No. 7.186 of the Business Registrij@mBSantiago Real Estate Property Register for
1993 and inscribed within the margin of the corporagistration.

Among other matters, this amendment (a) incredse€orporation’s share capital of
US$79,528,455, divided into 123,491,099 sharesouitnominal value and fully paid, to
US$229,528,455 divided into 123,491,099 Seriesadeshwithout nominal value and fully
paid, and 83,007,413 Series B shares without ndméalae, either fully paid or payable,
16,601,482 shares with US$30,000,000 by meansrotitiate capitalization of retained
earnings equal to that amount, and 66,405,931 skatie US$120,000,000 by means of
issuing, subscribing, and paying for these shargsnithree years of April 23, 1993; (b)
established that only Series A shares are ableparately elect, in the respective Meeting,
Directors and Inspectors of the Corporation’s aat®and their respective alternates; (c)
established that only Series B shares are ablkeptarately elect, in the respective Meeting, the
Corporation’s External Auditors; (d) determinedtttiee aforementioned privileges will be in
force for 50 years from April 23, 1993; and (e)laged articles 5, 11, 12, 31, and 32 of the By-
Laws and included 2 new temporary articles intoBlidLaws.



11. The By-Laws were amended at the Corporation’s Geietraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting
held June 3, 1993 and an abstract was executegdubt deed on June 3, 1993 before Santiago
Notary Public Mr. Juan Ricardo San Martin Urrejolhe abstract of this deed of amendment
was published in the Official Gazette No. 34,584Jone 7, 1993, and registered on page 13.866
No. 11.475 of the Business Registry of the SantReal Estate Property Register for 1993.

This abstract was corrected and the corrections weblished in the Official Gazettes No.
34.589, No. 34.600 and No. 34.609 on June 14, 188% 26, 1993 and July 8, 1993,
respectively. The corrections were registeredage5.410, No. 12.761, on July 23, 1993 of
the Business Registry of the Santiago Real Estajgeity Register for 1993 and inscribed,
along with the aforementioned abstract of the ddeinendment, within the margin of the
corporate registration.

Among other aspects, this amendment: (a) revokddudly annulled all agreements adopted at
the Corporation’s General Extraordinary Sharehalddeeting held June 3, 1993, an abstract
of which was executed into public deed on Jun@83before Santiago Notary Public Juan
Ricardo San Martin Urrejola; (b) increased the sltapital of US$79,528,455, divided into
123,491,099 shares without nominal value and fodiig, to US$229,528,455 divided into
123,491,099 Series A shares without nominal vaheefally paid and 83,007,413 Series B
shares without nominal value and paid or to be,{#6¢601,482 shares with US$30,000,000 by
means of immediate capitalization of retained emymior that amount, and 66,405,931 with
US$120,000,000 by means of issuing, subscribingpagthg for such shares within three years
of June 3, 1993; (c) increased the number of Doredrom 7 to 8; (d) established that Series B
shares have a restricted right to vote, since ¢theyonly elect 1 Director; (e) established the
preference of Series B shares to enable them ¢allian Ordinary or Extraordinary Meeting
when requested by Series B shareholders repregeatiaast 5% of the issued Series B shares
and -ii-, call an Extraordinary Board of DirectoMeeting without the Chairman’s
authorization, when requested by the Director elbbly Series B shareholders; (f) indicated that
before a tie in electing the Chairman, a new abectvill be called excluding the Director
elected by Series B shareholders, and that thissra represents a preference for Series A
shares; (g) determined that the aforementionedlgmis will be in force for 50 years from June
3, 1993; and (h) replaced Articles 5, 9, 11, 12,15} 19, 28, 30, 31, and, 32 of the By-Laws,
and included 2 new temporary articles to the By-faw

12. The By-Laws were amended at the Corporation’s Géietraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting
held on December 19, 1994 and an abstract was texkiciio public deed on December 26,
1994 before Santiago Notary Public Mr. Juan Ric&do Martin Urrejola. The abstract of this
deed of amendment was published in the Officialé®azon January 6, 1995, registered on
January 16, 1995 on page 1.391, No. 1.113 of tlenBss Registry of the Santiago Real Estate
Property Register for 1995 and inscribed withinrieegin of the corporate registration. This
abstract was corrected and the correction wasghédliin the Official Gazette No. 35.067 on
January 14, 1995 and inscribed within the margithefaforementioned registration.

Among other matters, this amendment: (a) adape@yhLaws to the provisions of Law No.
19.301; (b) extended the specific corporate purggsg indicated that the Corporation’s share
capital amounts to US$265,669,746 divided into 326,972 Series A shares without nominal
value and fully paid, and 83,007,413 Series B shasthout nominal value and fully paid; (d)
replaced articles 5 Bis, 31, 31 Bis, 41 and 4hefBy-Laws and (e) annulled the first
temporary article.

13. The By-Laws were amended at the Corporation’s Géietraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting
held on September 1, 1995 and an abstract wastexiioto public deed on September 1, 1995
before Santiago Notary Public Mr. Juan Ricardo Bartin Urrejola. The abstract of this deed
of amendment was published in the Official Gaziite 35.260 on September 4, 1995,
registered on September 4, 1995 on page 20.977,68@88 of the Business Registry of the
Santiago Real Estate Property Register for 1995rmwlibed within the margin of the corporate
registration.



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Among other matters, this amendment: (a) increaback capital of US$265,669,746 divided
into 120,376,972 Series A shares without nominhleszand 83,007,413 Series B shares without
nominal value to a new share capital of US$435689divided into 120,376,972 Series A
shares without nominal value and 120,376,972 SBrigsares without nominal value and (b)
replaced article 5 of the By-Laws, renamed the taemy article as temporary article 1 and
incorporated temporary article 2.

The By-Laws were amended at the Corporation’s Bxdliaary Shareholders’ Meeting held
April 26, 1996 and an abstract was executed indipdeed on May 3, 1996 before Santiago
Notary Public Mr. Juan Ricardo San Martin Urrejolhe abstract of this deed of amendment
was published in the Official Gazette No. 35.466May 14, 1996, registered on page 11.504
N0.9.332 of the Business Registry of the Santiagal Estate Property Register for 1996.

Among other matters, this amendment: (a) indicttiatishare capital amounts to
US$415,160,946 divided into 120,376,972 Seriesaeshwithout nominal value and fully paid
and 120,376,972 Series B shares without nominakevahd fully paid and (b) modified Article
5, annulled transitory article No. 2 and renamadditory article No.1 as transitory article.

The By-Laws were amended at the Corporation’s Bxdiaary Shareholders’ Meeting held on
April 28, 1997 and an abstract was executed intdipdeed on April 28, 1997 before Santiago
Notary Public Mr. Juan Ricardo San Martin Urrejolhe abstract of this deed of amendment
was published in the Official Gazette No. 35.758ay 6, 1997, registered on May 9, 1997 on
page 11.099 No. 8.802 of the Business RegistrieSantiago Real Estate Property Register
for 1997 and inscribed in the margin of the corpmragistration.

Among other matters, this amendment: (a) incretfisetkrm that Directors serve from 2 to 3
years and (b) modified Articles 10 and 14 of thelByvs.

The By-Laws were amended at the Corporation’s Bxdiaary Shareholders’ Meeting held on
February 6, 1998 and an abstract was executegiriic deed on February 6, 1998 before Mr.
Oscar Ernesto Navarrete Villalobos, Deputy Notaule for Santiago Notary Public Mr. Juan
Ricardo San Martin Urrejola. The abstract of téed of amendment was published in the
Official Gazette No. 35.986 on February 9, 1998istered on February 9, 1998 on page 3.556
No. 2.851 of the Business Registry of the SantlRRgal Estate Property Register for 1998 and
inscribed within the margin of the corporate ragiton.

Among other matters, this amendment (a) incredse€orporation’s share capital from
US$415,160,946 divided into 120,376,972 Seriesaeshwithout nominal value and fully paid
and 120,376,972 Series B shares without nominalkevand fully paid to US$494,160,946
divided into 143,376,972 Series A shares withouhinal value and 120,376,972 Series B
shares without nominal value and (b) replaced krtic renamed the transitory article as
transitory article No.1 and incorporated a newditany article No.2.

The By-Laws were amended at the Corporation’s Bxdliaary Shareholders’ Meeting held
November 20, 1998 and an abstract was executeguitiac deed on November 20, 1998
before Santiago Notary Public Mr. Juan Ricardo Martin Urrejola. The abstract of this deed
of modification was published in the Official GareeNo. 36,224 on November 26, 1998,
registered on November 26, 1998 on page 29.1453\888 of the Business Registry of the
Santiago Real Estate Property Register for 1998rawlibed within the margin of the corporate
registration.

Among other matters, this amendment replaced aditland transitory article No.2.

The By-Laws were amended at the Corporation’s Bxdliaary Shareholders’ Meeting held
April 26, 2002 and an abstract was executed intdigpdeed on April 26, 2002 before Santiago
Notary Public Mr. Juan Ricardo San Martin Urrejolhe abstract of the deed of amendment
was published in the Official Gazette No. 37.25MMay 6, 2002, registered on May 6, 2002 on



page 11.150 N0.9.227 of the Business RegistryeBiémntiago Real Estate Property Register for
2002 and inscribed within the margin of the corporagistry.

Among other matters, this amendment modified &td in order to eliminate the penalty
applicable to Directors who left the country foreothree months.

19. The By-Laws were amended at the Corporation’s Bxdliaary Shareholders’ Meeting held
May 25, 2005 and an abstract was executed intagodééd on May 26, 2005 before Santiago
Notary Public Mr. Juan Ricardo San Martin Urrejoldne abstract of this deed of amendment
was published in the Official Gazette No. 38,1790one 7, 2005, registered on June 8, 2005 on
page 19.598 N0.14.193 of the Business RegistrigeoBSantiago Real Estate Property Register
for 2005 and inscribed within the margin of thepmate registry.

Among other matters, this amendment modified &dl in order to incorporate the concept of
“related persons” and other associated terms thet @iready included in article 31 Bis of said
By-Laws.

20. The Extraordinary Shareholders Meeting of SQM, leld\pril 29, 2010, amended the By-laws
of the same. The public deed containing the Minafesaid Meeting was issued on April 29,
2010, before Mr. Juan Ricardo San Martin U., NoRublic of Santiago and the abstract of
such public deed was published in the Official GiazE° 39.662 of May 17, 2010, and
thereafter registered. on May 20, 2010, at pagEd24N° 16.590 in the Registry of Commerce
of the Real Estate Register of Santiago of sucresgear.

Basically, the amendment (a) reflected the “SQMhamercial name (b) established the
Company’s domicile in the City of Santiago (c) adldee production, distribution, purchase,
transfer, ownership and commercialization of gewtia energy as a new corporate purpose (d)
confirmed that the Company’s capital is of US$488.979 divided into 142.819.552 Series A
shares and into 120.376.972 Series B shares, wittooninal value, all fully subscribed and

paid (e) corrected typos and language in all Artiadf the By-laws (f) adjusted the By-laws to
the outstanding provisions of Laws N° 18.046 an®Bl382 and of Decree Law N° 3.500 (g)
eliminated Article 43 and Transitory Article 2 afig replaced the restated By-laws for a new
outstanding rewrote text of the same.

TITLE ONE
NAME, ADDRESS, DURATION, AND PURPOSE

ARTICLE ONE . An open stock Company is hereby constituted undername of “Sociedad
Quimica y Minera de Chile S.A.”, and that for adigéng purposes, may also act as “Soquimich” or
“SQM”. It will be governed by these By-laws, theopisions of Law N°18.046, its Regulations and
other relevant legal provisions and the amendnadttse same.

ARTICLE ONE BIS . Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company is eabjo the provisions
contained in Decree Law N°3.500 and its amendmasi falls within the conditions foreseen in
Title X1l of such Decree Law.

ARTICLE TWO . The Company will be domiciled in the city of Sag, notwithstanding the
special legal domiciles of its agencies or branareand offices to be established in other location
within the country or abroad.

ARTICLE THREE . The duration of the Company will be indefinite.

ARTICLE FOUR . The Company’s specific purposes will be 4&: perform all kinds of chemical

or mining activities and businesses including, agnasthers, those related to researching,
prospecting, extracting, producing, working, preieg, purchasing, disposing of, and
commercializing properties, as applicable, of aktallic and non-metallic and fossil mining




substances and elements of any type or natureg tobkained from them or from one or more
concessions or mining deposits, and in their nhturaonverted state, or transformed into different
raw materials or manufactured or partially manufeed products, and of all rights and properties
thereon-b- manufacture, produce, work, purchase, transfereostnip, import, export, distribute,
transport and commercialize in any way all kind$eofilizers, components, raw materials, chemical,
mining, agricultural and industrial products andithby-productsc- generate, produce, distribute,
purchase, transfer ownership, and commercializearip way, all kinds of electrical, thermal,
geothermal or other type of power, and hydric resesl or water rights in genera- request,
manifest, claim, constitute, explore, work, leasansfer ownership, and purchase, in any way, all
kinds of mining concessiong- purchase, transfer ownership, and administernjnveay, any kind

of telecommunications, railroads, ships, ports, @amgmeans of transport, and represent and manage
shipping companies, common carriers by water,n@sli and carries in generdl manufacture,
produce, commercialize, maintain, repair, assentdmastruct, disassemble, purchase and transfer
ownership, in any way, any kind of electromechanitaucture, and substructure in general,
components, parts, spares, or parts of equipmedtpachines, and execute, develop, advice, and
commercialize any kind of electromechanical or simglactivities-g- purchase, transfer ownership,
lease, and commercialize any kind of agribusiness$ farm forestry activities in any wa-
purchase, transfer ownership, lease, and commegiah any way, any kind of urban or rural real
estatei- render any kind of health services and manageitatssgprivate clinics, or similar facilities

-j- construct, maintain, purchase, transfer ownersmg, manage, in any way, any kind of roads,
tunnels, bridges, water supply systems and othquined infrastructure works, without any
limitation, regardless of whether they may be pubti private, among others, and participate in bids
and enter into any kind of contracts, and be tigallewner of the applicable concessions dad
purchase, transfer ownership, and commercializapinway, any kind of intangible properties such
as shares, bonds, debentures, financial assetspemml papers, shares or rights in company’s, and
any kind of bearer securities or instruments, amddminister such investments, acting always
within the Investment Policy and Financing Policppeoved by the applicable General
Shareholders’ Meeting. The Company may comply withforegoing acting by itself or through or
with other different legal entities or natural pers, within the country or abroad, with propertiés

its own or owned by third parties, and additionally the ways and territories, and with the
aforementioned properties and purposes, may alsstroet and operate industrial or agricultural
facilities or installations; constitute, administ@urchase, transfer ownership, dissolve, liquidate
transform, modify, or form part of partnershipsstitutions, foundations, company’s, or associations
of any kind or nature; perform all actions, entetoiall contracts, and incur in all obligations
convenient or necessary for the foregoing; perfany business or activity related to its properties,
assets, or patrimony, or with that of its affilste@ssociated companies, or related companies, and
render financial, commercial, technical, legal, idng, administrative, advisory, and other pertinen
services.

TITLE TWO
CAPITAL AND SHARES

ARTICLE FIVE . The Company's share capital amounts to US$477.385@ivided into
142.819.552 Series A shares and 120.376.972 Ssbsres. All such shares are registered shares,
without nominal value and they have been whollyésk subscribed and paid. The Series B shares
may in no case exceed 50% of the Company’s isssidoscribed and paid shares and have a
restricted right to vote as they can only elect @ieector of the Company, regardless of its
ownership on the total shares of the Company aadthferences ofa- calling to an Ordinary or
Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting when the shadehis of at least 5% of the Series B shares
request the same and- call an Extraordinary Board of Director's Meetingiithout the
qualification of the same by the Chairman, whelsitequested by the Director elected by the
shareholders of said Series B. The restriction@aterences of the Series B shares will be in force
for 50 continuous years as from June 3, 1993. EneSA shares have the preference to exclude the
Director elected by the Series B shares from thimggrocess in which the Chairman of the Board
of Directors and of the Company is to be electédhere is a tie in the first voting process. The
preference of the Series A shares will be in fdores0 continuous years as from June 3, 1993. The
form of the listed securities, their issuance, exge, disabling, loss, replacement, assignment and




other circumstances thereon will be ruled pursuanthe provisions of Law N°18.046 and its
Regulations.

ARTICLE FIVE BIS . No person may directly or by means of third relapedsons concentrate
more than 32% of the Company’s capital with rightvote. Minority shareholders must have at least
10% of the Company’s capital with right to vote,daat least 15% of such capital must be
underwritten by over 100 shareholders not relatexrey them, and each of them must own a
minimum equivalent to 100nidades de Fomento shares according to their value determined in
the last balance. The Company’s administrators musgue the strict compliance of the foregoing
pursuant to the applicable terms established inréget.aw N°3.500. In addition, the Company,
when requested to register some stock transferll sldely register under the applicable
shareholder's name the amount of shares which dosmgass the stock’s concentration limit
established in these By-laws. In the event thatesshareholder owns an amount of shares greater
than the number allowed by these By-laws, the Compavithin 15 days, must inform the
shareholder about it, in order for him to sell &xeess. This is without detriment of the obligation
for both parties to sign a commitment of non-com@ion of shares under the terms provided by
Decree Law N°3.500. Shareholders will have no rightunderwrite preferred shares when this
implies surpassing the concentration margin establ in these By-laws. The Company may
request from its shareholders the information retpeeto determine if there are related persons or,
in case the shareholders are legal entities, thesaf their main partners or shareholders, angetho
of the natural persons related thereon. The shigketsowill be obliged to provide such information.
A minority shareholder and related persons arestarierstood as per the definitions stated thereon
in Decree Law N°3.500 and in Law N°18.045.

ARTICLE SIX . The Company will keep a record of every shareholdsgistering their domiciles
and the amount of shares owned by each of them.

ARTICLE SEVEN . The Company neither recognizes nor accepts divitheades. In the event that
two or more persons are sharing one share, theyappsint a common representative to act before
the Company.

ARTICLE EIGHT . Once the loss, theft, robbery or disabling of tetissecurity, or another similar
accident, has been verified, the replacement ofisked security will be performed pursuant to the
rules in Law N°18.046 and its Regulations.

TITLE THREE
ADMINISTRATION

ARTICLE NINE . The Company will be managed by a Board of Direcmposed of eight
members. Series A Shareholders will elect seveadirs, and Series B shareholders will elect one
Director. The Directors may be shareholders or Attleast one of the eight Directors must be
independent as referred to in Law N°18.046 and designation and replacement of such
independent Director shall be carried out in acancg with the provisions of such Law. The
Company shall also appoint a Directors’ Committest will have the powers and duties described
in Article 50 bis of Law N°18.046 and will be congaml as indicated in such Article. The
resolutions, agreements and organization of therfitiee shall be governed, as applicable, by the
regulations relating to the meetings of the BodrBicectors of the Company.

ARTICLE TEN . Directors will remain in their posts for three ygaand they can be reelected
indefinitely. The Directors will stay in their pasiafter their terms expire if the Shareholders’
Meeting has not been held in time, so as to eletnew Directors. In that event, the Board of
Directors must call a Meeting so as to appointapplicable Directors within the period stipulated
by the Law.

ARTICLE ELEVEN . In order to elect the Directors at the applicathargholders’ Meeting, each
Series A share and each Series B share will haveight to only one vote. Series A shareholders
and Series B shareholders will vote separately,those persons with the highest majority in each




Series will be elected, until the number of postehe Series has the right to elect has been
completed.

ARTICLE TWELVE . The minutes containing the Directors’ election perfed at the applicable
Shareholders’ Meeting, will include the names ¢fSaries A and Series B shareholders attending
the meeting, specifying the number of shares tlwgd/for themselves or acting for third parties,
and stating the general result of the election.hSminutes must also include the names of all
candidates proposed to be elected as Independesti@s and whether or not such candidates made
the sworn statement indicated in Article 50 bid.afv N°18.046 available to the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer.

ARTICLE THIRTEEN . Any Director who does not attend three consecuteetings due to
reasons not considered reasonable by the BoardtexdtDrs, will as a matter of fact, stop performing
his functions, and must be replaced without delay ®rmalities. In this case, and in the cases of
conflict of duties, resignation, dismissal, dealflankruptcy, or any other inability disabling a
Director to perform his duties, the Board of Dist will appoint the replacement in accordance
with the provisions of the Law, who will remain fnis or their position until the Company’s next
Shareholders’ Meeting at which all the Directors @r be elected.

ARTICLE FOURTEEN . At the first meeting to be held by the Board of daiors after the
election, a Chairman and, immediately afterwardgice-Chairman, will be appointed from among
its members. These appointments will be made wighvbtes of the absolute majority of Directors
attending the meeting, and in the event of a tiaga voting will be performed, where only the
Directors elected by Series A shareholders wiltip@ate. Each of them will remain three years in
his post, and can be reelected indefinitely. If ahyhese posts becomes vacant due to any reason,
before the expiration period stated in the foreggiaragraph, the Directors will appoint someone
new for the remaining period. The foregoing will performed with the same quorum, and
restrictions indicated for a tie. In the Board dfdators’ Meetings, the duties of Secretary will be
performed by the Company’s Chief Executive Officerby the person specifically designated for
such purpose by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE FIFTEEN . The Board of Directors will meet or be in sessibteast once a month and
the Directors’ Committee will meet or be in sessidrieast once every three months. There will be
ordinary and extraordinary Board of Directors ariceBtors’ Committee meetings. The former will
be held on dates previously specified by the saoedof Directors or Directors’ Committee. The
latter will be held when specially called for byetiChairman of the Board or of the Committee
himself or due to instructions of one or more Dioes, subject to the previous judgment of the need
thereon by the Chairman, unless the meeting isestqd by the absolute majority of the Directors,
or, only with respect to the Board of Directors,tbg Director elected by the Series B shareholders,
in which events the meeting is to be held withdu¢ previous judgment of its need. In the
extraordinary meetings, only the matters specificaidicated in the meeting’s notice can be
discussed.

ARTICLE SIXTEEN . Operations between the Company and its Direct@sregulated by the
provisions of Title XVI of Law N°18.046. Such preins apply when one or more Directors are
involved and, also, when one or more Directorsingobn behalf of third parties, are involved, as
well as when one or more of the other parties edlab or associated with such Directors and
mentioned in the aforementioned Title are involved.

ARTICLE SIXTEEN BIS . The Company may only carry out operations withteslgparties in
accordance with the provisions of Title XVI of LaW18.046. All acts and contracts entered into by
the Company with its majority shareholders, itseiors or Principal Executives, or with persons
related to them, must be previously approved byttvimas of the Board of Directors, and must be
recorded in the corresponding Minutes, withoutideint to the provisions thereon, in Title XVI of
Law N°18.046, and other applicable provisions of #ame body of laws, or its Regulations
concerning Directors.




ARTICLE SEVENTEEN . Directors will be remunerated for their duties. Tamount of their
remuneration and that of the members of the DirsttGommittee will be fixed yearly by the
Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting.

ARTICLE EIGHTEEN . The Board of Directors, in order to comply with tb@rporate purposes,
which is not necessary to demonstrate before trarties, will have the Company’s court-ordered
representation and out-of-court representation, aild be invested of all administrative and
disposing powers that can be legally granted tindluding those acts and contracts that require
special power, excluding only those issues that the or these By-laws establish as exclusive of
the Shareholders’ Meetings. The foregoing is withdetriment of the court-ordered representation
corresponding to the Chief Executive Officer of @ampany.

ARTICLE EIGHTEEN BIS . While performing the duties indicated in the foregparticle, the
Board of Directors must always remain within thmits determined by the Investment Policy and
the Financing Policy approved by the Ordinary Shalders’ Meeting pursuant to the provisions of
Article 119 of Decree Law N°3.500.

ARTICLE NINETEEN . The quorum for the Board of Directors’ meetingd wé of five members,
and the agreements will be taken by a majorityhef Directors in attendance. In the event of a tie,
the vote of the presiding party will decide. Theomm for the Directors’ Committee meetings will
be of two members, and the agreements will be thkemmajority of the Directors in attendance. In
the event of a tie, the vote of the presiding paiitidecide.

ARTICLE TWENTY . The Board of Directors may delegate part of itharity to the Company’s
Officers, Executives, or Attorneys, to a Directarao Commission of Directors, and for purposes
expressly determined, to third parties.

ARTICLE TWENTY ONE . The deliberations and agreements of the Board wdciirs and the
Directors’ Committee will be recorded in the regpecMinutes Book, which must be signed by the
members attending the meeting, and by the Secrdtamye of them dies or becomes unable for any
reason, the circumstance of this impediment willideorded in the Minutes thereof. The Minutes
will be considered as approved from the momenad been signed by the aforementioned persons,
and as of such moment onward, the agreements mauthiato force. Notwithstanding the above,
the agreements approved at a meeting can be pufarte without waiting for the Minutes to be
approved if there is a unanimous vote by the Dimscin attendance to that effect. In such case, the
agreement adopted shall be recorded in a docungméds by such Directors. In any event, the
applicable minutes must be signed before the rrelimary meeting of the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE TWENTY TWO . The Director willing to exempt his liability for see act or agreement
of the Board of Directors, must state his oppositiothe Minutes, and the Chairman of the Board of
Directors must inform such matter in the next Gah8hareholders’ Meeting.

TITLE FOUR
CHAIRMAN AND VICE-CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTOR S
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER OF THE COMPANY

ARTICLE TWENTY THREE . The Chairman will be the Chairman of the Board o&Etors, and

of the Shareholders’ Meetings, and he will be sgcentrusted tea- act as chairman of the Board
of Directors’ meetings, and of the General Shamddrs! Meetings-b- convoke the Board of
Directors and Shareholders’ Meetings in accordanith these By-laws and the Law and-
perform the other duties indicated in these By-lawd in the Law or those entrusted to him by the
Board of Directors.

ARTICLE TWENTY FOUR . The Vice-Chairman will replace the Chairman in #neent of
absence or temporary inability of the latter, witre same powers and without the need to
demonstrate this fact to third parties. In the ¢w#rabsence or inability of the Vice-Chairman, he




will be replaced by the senior Director and, ifstig not possible, by the Director appointed by the
Board of Directors.

ARTICLE TWENTY FIVE . The Board of Directors will appoint a Chief ExeaeatOfficer, who

will have all the powers and duties applicable ttoenmercial agent, and those others provided in
the Law or in these By-laws, or specifically assidrio him by the Board of Directors. The post of
Chief Executive Officer is incompatible with thegp@f the Company’s Chairman, Director, Auditor

or Accountant of the Company.

TITLE FIVE
SHAREHOLDERS' MEETINGS

ARTICLE TWENTY SIX . The Shareholders will hold Ordinary and Extraordirdeetings.

ARTICLE TWENTY SEVEN . The Ordinary Meeting will take place within the fanonth period
following the Balance date, at the place, date, timé determined by the Board of Directors, to
address the following mattera- to approve or reject the Report Statement, thariga and the
Financial Statements submitted by the Company’'srdoé& Directors or the Liquidators; to review
the Company’s condition and the Inspectors’ repdrtdo pronounce on the distribution of profits,
if any, for each accounting year and, specially,ttom distribution of dividendsc- to elect or to
revoke, when applicable, the members of the Boairectors or the Liquidators and Inspecters
d- to designate each year an independent externd fawd in order to review the Company’s
accounting, inventory, balance and other finanstatlements, with the commitment of submitting a
written report during the next Ordinary Sharehadd@dteeting, about the fulfillment of its mandate
with at least 15 days in advance to such meetnado fix the Board of Directors’ and Directors’
Committee’s remuneration and to determine the bufigehe operating expenses of the Directors’
Committee and its advisors arfd any other matter related to the interests andrpesgof the
Company, except matters which must be addressedeirExtraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting,
pursuant to the Law or these By-laws. The Ordirahareholders’ Meeting will also take place
when the Superintendency of Securities so detesnine

ARTICLE TWENTY SEVEN BIS . In addition to the foregoing article, the Ordin&fgeting will
approve the Investment Policy and the FinancingcPgroposed by the Administration under the
terms provided in Article 119 of Decree Law N°3.500e Ordinary Meeting will also designate, on
an annual basis, two Regular and two Alternate Anttnspectors with the authority established in
Article 51 of Law N°18.046.

ARTICLE TWENTY EIGHT . The Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting will bechelhen the
Board of Directors deems necessary, when requéstesthareholders representing at least 10% of
the Company'’s total issued shares, or when reqiiésté&eries B shareholders representing at least
5% of the issued Series B shares, in order to addiee following mattersa- dissolution of the
Company-b- transformation, merge or division of the Compang anodification of its By-lawsc-
issuing of bonds or debentures that may be convented shares-d- disposal of assets and
formulation or modification of the business plansntioned in Article 67 N°9 of Law N°18.046-
approval or ratification of the execution of actscontracts with related parties in accordance with
the provisions of Article 147 of Law N°18.046 furnishing collateral securities or personal
guarantees to give bail for third party’s liabési except if these are subsidiary companies, iohwh
case the Board of Directors’ approval will be eroagd-g- other matters which are determined by
the Law, by these By-laws or by the Board of Dioest All the matters indicated in letters -a-, -b-,

c-, -d- and -e-, above, can only be agreed up@Shareholders’ Meeting held in the presence of a
Notary Public who must attest that the written Mewiare a true statement of what happened and
was agreed upon in the Meeting. The Extraordin&iaré&holders’ Meeting will also take place when
the Superintendency of Securities so determineserfalling an Extraordinary Shareholders’
Meeting, the notice must indicate its objectived amly those matters included in the notice can be
addressed.




ARTICULO TWENTY EIGHT BIS . Notwithstanding the foregoing article, other mattés be
addressed in the Extraordinary Meeting ase transferring the ownership of the Company’s
properties or rights, considered essential foojitsration, according to the Financing Policy aral th
constitution of guaranties thereon, ad the anticipated modification of the Investmenti®obr

of the Financing Policy approved by the Ordinargi®@holders’ Meeting.

ARTICLE TWENTY NINE . The call to a Shareholders’ Meetings, either Onginar
Extraordinary, will be by means of a highlightedradisement published at least three times and on
different days in the newspaper of the legal adddetermined by the Shareholders’ Meeting, and in
the way and under those conditions indicated byRibgulations. Additionally, a notice will be sent
by mail to each shareholder with at least 15 daigs o the date of the Meeting, which will include

a reference of the matters to be addressed tharabjnformation for obtaining complete copies of
the documents describing the different options Wilitbe subject to vote. However, those meetings
with the attendance of all shares with a right edevmay be legally held, even if the foregoing
formal notice requirements are not met. Any Shddge’ Meeting must be informed to the
Superintendency of Securities with at least 15 dagglvance.

ARTICLE THIRTY . The Shareholders’ Meetings, either Ordinary or &otdinary, will be
constituted in the first notice with shares repntisg at least the absolute majority of the issued
shares with voting rights, and in the second notigth those that attend, regardless of their numbe
Agreements will be adopted by the absolute majarfitthe present or represented shares with voting
rights, notwithstanding those special majoritiedext by the Law or these By-laws. The agreements
to increase Series B shares’ participation abo¥é 60the Company’s total shares will require the
agreeing vote of two thirds of the shares presemgpresented with voting rights in the respective
Shareholders’ Meeting of the Company.

ARTICLE THIRTY ONE . Only shareholders of record that are registerethéShareholders’
Register five business days prior to a Sharehdldéegting will have the right to participate and
vote in such a meeting. Each shareholder will htheeright to one vote for each share it owns or
represents. No holder of Series A or Series B shaik have the right to exercise for itself or on
behalf of other holders of Series A or Series Breshdhe right to vote more than 37.5% of the
outstanding shares of each such class entitledtm ¥or purposes of calculating such percentage,
shares owned by persons related to such sharehsit@dirbe added to the shares held by such
shareholder. Apart from the aforesaid voting litnitas, and the preferences corresponding to the
Series A and Series B shares, the holders of betiesSof shares will have identical rights in the
Company. Shareholders may be represented in Shdeehdleetings by third parties, whether or
not such third party is also a shareholder, by m@&dm@ proxy.

ARTICLE THIRTY ONE BIS . Notwithstanding the provisions contained in thecpding article,

no shareholder will have the right to exerciseitelf or on behalf of other shareholders the right
vote more than 32% of the outstanding shares oCtrapany entitled to vote, with any excess of
such 32% being deducted from the number of shameb kolder may vote. For purposes of
calculating such percentage, shares owned by perstated to such shareholder shall be added to
shares held by such shareholder. In addition, meopemay represent shareholders that collectively
have more than 32% of the outstanding shares dE ¢imepany.

ARTICLE THIRTY TWO . Parties attending the Meeting must sign an atteselascord where,
after each signature, the signatory’s stock nuraberSeries, and the stock number and Series he is
representing, with the name of the represented,parist be indicated.

ARTICLE THIRTY THREE . Elections held at Shareholders’ Meetings shall &eied out in
accordance with the provisions of these By-laws &ad/ N°18.046 and its Regulations. The
deliberations and agreements of the Meetings willdcorded in a Minutes Book that will be kept
by the Secretary. The Minutes will be signed by @iairman or by his replacement, by the
Secretary and by three shareholders elected &fléleting, or by all shareholders if there were less
than three. The Minutes will be considered as amatdrom the moment it has been signed by the
aforementioned persons, and from that moment eadineements taken in it may be put into force.




ARTICLE THIRTY FOUR . The Inspectors elected by the Ordinary Sharehdldéesting must
review the Company’s accounting, inventory, balaaed other financial statements, and provide a
written report, in the next Ordinary Shareholdéigeting, about the fulfillment of that mandate.

TITLE SIX
BALANCE SHEET AND PROFIT DISTRIBUTION

ARTICLE THIRTY FIVE . Each year, on December 31, the accounting peritdbevclosed and a
General Balance of the Company’s assets and tiabilvill be performed.

ARTICLE THIRTY SIX . The Board of Directors must submit a detailed ahmeport to the
Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting about the Compaangtsdition in the last accounting period, along
with the general balance, the income statementtlandeport thereon submitted by the inspectors.
All these documents must clearly indicate the comdiof the Company’s patrimony at the closing
of the respective accounting period, and the ma#rned or losses suffered therein. On a date not
later than the first notice calling the OrdinaryaBholders’ Meeting, the Board of Directors must
make a copy of the Company’s balance sheet andabmeport available to each shareholder
registered in the respective register, includirgritport of the inspectors and their respectivesiot
The duly audited general balance and income statismand the other information determined by
the Superintendency of Securities will be publisbade in a newspaper of wide circulation, in the
location of the legal residence, with not less th@rdays and no more than 20 days in advance to the
Meeting which will determine thereon. Additionallyhe aforementioned documents must be
submitted within the same term to the Superinteagleh Securities in the number of copies that the
latter determines, and they must be made avaitabline Company’s Web site. The annual report,
balance sheet, inventory, minutes, books, and tepdthe inspectors, must be at the shareholders’
disposal in the Company’s offices 15 days prioth® Meeting. If the general balance and income
statement are changed during the Meeting, the ngeitti modifications will be sent to the
shareholders within 15 days following the Meetiagg will be published in the same newspaper in
which those documents were published, and withérstime term.

ARTICLE THIRTY SIX BIS . Notwithstanding the foregoing article, the BoardDofectors must
send a copy of the Investment Policy and of theaidéing Policy to be presented at the Ordinary
Shareholders’ Meeting to each shareholder regisiarthe respective Register.

ARTICLE THIRTY SEVEN . Dividends will be paid exclusively out of the acating period’s net
profits, or out of the retained earnings from ba&mapproved by the Shareholders’ Meeting, and
they will be distributed in accordance with thepstwons of the applicable Shareholders’ Meeting or
Law N°18.046 and its Regulations. If the Compang hacrued losses, the profits earned in the
accounting period will be assigned in first placebsorb such losses.

ARTICLE THIRTY EIGHT . At least 30% of the accounting period’s net profitil be
distributed yearly as dividend in money to the shatders, proportionally to their shares, except as
otherwise determined unanimously by the issuedesharthe respective Meeting.

TITLESEVEN
DISSOLUTION AND LIQUIDATION

ARTICLE THIRTY NINE . The Company will be dissolved by those reason<atdd in Article
103 of Law N°18.046.

ARTICLE FORTY . Once the Company has been dissolved, it will baidiated by a receiver
committee constituted of three members electedhiey Shareholders’ Meeting, which will also
determine its powers, obligations, remuneration tenah.




TITLE EIGHT
ARBITRATION

ARTICLE FORTY ONE . Any problem arising among the shareholders, or gtbem and the
Company or their administrators, during its effeetperiod or its liquidation, will be resolved by a
arbitrator appointed by mutual agreement of théigrarlf there is no agreement between the parties,
the Superintendent of the Superintendency of Séesirdr the Ordinary Courts will make the
appointment. The aforementioned arbitrage will restrain the possibility that, when a conflict
arises, the claimant may remove his knowledgehferarbitrator's competency and submit the same
to the decisions of Ordinary Courts. This right nmagt be exercised by the persons indicated in
Article 125 of Law N°18.046.

TITLE NINE
SPECIAL REGULATIONS

ARTICLE FORTY TWO . While the Company is subject to the provisions awd in Title XII,
and other pertinent provisions of Decree Law N°B,58ny modifications to the regulations
established in Articles ONE BIS, FIVE BIS, SIXTEBENS, EIGHTEEN BIS, TWENTY SEVEN
BIS, TWENTY EIGHT BIS, THIRTY ONE BIS and THIRTY SIBIS, and herein, will require the
quorum set forth in Article 121 of the mentionedcBee Law N°3,500.

TRANSITORY ARTICLE . The restrictions and preferences of the Companpares will
extinguish at the term of 50 years, starting JunE933. After this term, all shares in force athsuc
date will be automatically converted in ordinanasds and the Company’s Board of Directors will
call an Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting as sasipossible with the purpose of adapting and
modifying the By-laws.

NOTE. By-laws in force since April 29, 2010.



Exhibit 8.1

Significant Subsidiaries of Sociedad Quimica y Mina de Chile S.A.

Name of Subsidiary Country of Incorporation
SQM Industrial S.A. Chile
SQM Nitratos S.A. Chile
SQM Salar S.A. Chile
Minera Nueva Victoria S.A. Chile
Servicios Integrales de Transito y Transferencfa S. Chile
Soquimich Comercial S.A. Chile
SQM North America Corp. USA
SQM Europe N.V. Belgium

For a complete list of foreign and domestic sulasids see Note 2 e) to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.



Exhibit 12.1

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CERTIFICATION
(Pursuant to Section 302)

I, Patricio Contesse, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 2ff-Bociedad Quimica y Minera de Chile S.A;;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaterany untrue statement of a material fact ortomi
to state a material fact necessary to make thenstaits made, in light of the circumstances undéctwh
such statements were made, not misleading witleot$p the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeanid other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects finencial condition, results of operations andhcliews
of the company as of, and for, the periods preskintéhis report;

4. The company's other certifying officer(s) andre responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as definedxith&ihge Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and
internal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-156)) f
the company and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedunegansed such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervisioengare that material information relating to
the company, including its consolidated subsid&ris made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period ihieh this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supam, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting cathe preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the company’s dssgi® controls and procedures and presented
in this report our conclusions about the effectaenof the disclosure controls and procedures,
as of the end of the period covered by this repased on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the compaiiyternal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the period covered by the ahreport that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the companyternal control over financial reporting;
and

5. The company’s other certifying officer(s) anldalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatio
internal control over financial reporting, to thengpany’s auditors and the audit committee of the
company’s board of directors (or persons perforntivggequivalent functions):

(@) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesse the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasdpdikely to adversely affect the company’s
ability to record, process, summarize and repasrfcial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a
significant role in the company’s internal contoser financial reporting.

[s/ Patricio Contesse G.
Name: Patricio Contesse G.
Title: Chief Executive Officer
Date: June 30, 2010




Exhibit 12.2

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CERTIFICATION
(Pursuant to Section 302)

I, Ricardo Ramos, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 2ff-Bociedad Quimica y Minera de Chile S.A;;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaterany untrue statement of a material fact ortomi
to state a material fact necessary to make thenstaits made, in light of the circumstances undéctwh
such statements were made, not misleading witleot$p the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeanid other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects finencial condition, results of operations andhcliews
of the company as of, and for, the periods preskintéhis report;

4. The company's other certifying officer(s) andre responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as definedxith&ihge Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and
internal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-156)) f
the company and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedunegansed such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervisioengare that material information relating to
the company, including its consolidated subsid&ris made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period ihieh this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supam, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting cathe preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the company’s dssgi® controls and procedures and presented
in this report our conclusions about the effectaenof the disclosure controls and procedures,
as of the end of the period covered by this repased on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the compaiiryternal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the period covered by the ahreport that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the companyternal control over financial reporting;
and

5. The company’s other certifying officer(s) anldalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatio
internal control over financial reporting, to thengpany’s auditors and the audit committee of the
company’s board of directors (or persons perforntivggequivalent functions):

(@) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesse the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasdpdikely to adversely affect the company’s
ability to record, process, summarize and repasrfcial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a
significant role in the company’s internal contooer financial reporting.

[s/ Ricardo Ramos R.

Name: Ricardo Ramos R.

Title: Chief Financial Officer and Business Devaizent Senior Vice President
Date: June 30, 2010




Exhibit 13.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Patricio Contesse, Chief Executive Officer ofcolad Quimica y Minera de Chile S.A. (“SQM”"), a
corporation incorporated under the laws of the Répwf Chile, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sedati
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of theaBas-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

1. The Annual Report of SQM on Form 20-F for the flsgsar ended December 31, 2009, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, fodgnplies with the requirements of Section
13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act &4:%nd

2. The information contained in such Annual ReportFamm 20-F fairly presents, in all material
respects, the financial condition and results arapions of SQM.

s/ Patricio Contesse G.
Name: Patricio Contesse G.
Title: Chief Executive Officer
Date: June 30, 2010




Exhibit 13.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Ricardo Ramos, Chief Financial Officer of So@ddQuimica y Minera de Chile S.A. (“SQM"), a
corporation incorporated under the laws of the Répwf Chile, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sedati
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of theaBas-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

1. The Annual Report of SQM on Form 20-F for the flsgsar ended December 31, 2009, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, fodgnplies with the requirements of Section
13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act &4t%nd

2. The information contained in such Annual ReportFamm 20-F fairly presents, in all material
respects, the financial condition and results arapions of SQM.

/sl Ricardo Ramos R.
Name: Ricardo Ramos R.

Title: Chief Financial Officer and Business Devaizent Senior Vice President
Date: June 30, 2010




